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REVIEW REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS OF THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY
FOR THE HALF YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS OF THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY

The Board of Directors of HBL Asset Management Limited is pleased to present its report together with Financial Statements of
HBL Income Fund, HBL Government Securities Fund, HBL Money Market Fund, HBL Cash Fund, HBL Stock Fund, HBL Equity Fund,
HBL Energy Fund, HBL Multi Asset Fund and HBL Financial Planning Fund, HBL Growth Fund & HBL Investment Fund the Funds) for
the half year ended December 31, 2019.

Economic Review

Policy steps taken over the last two years continue to lead to improvement in the macros as the economy is showing signs of
recovery in the shape of decline in Current Account deficit, better FX reserves position and stable exchange rate. These stability
measures have led to slowdown in GDP growth and higher inflation in the near term.

Policy makers allowed PKR depreciation of 10.0% during 1HFY20 to address the overvaluation of the currency to improve overall
trade balance of the country. The Real Effective Exchange Rate has reached 95 indicating that the currency is trading below fair
value. Central bank continued the monetary tightening by raising benchmark interest rates by 100bps during 1HFY20. These
changes led to some respite in trade data (SBP) showed export growth of 4% in 1HFY20 compared to decline in import by 21%,
dragging 1HFY20 trade deficit by 39% to USD 9.82bn. Remittances also showed encouraging trend as it witnessed an uptick of 3%
in 1HFY20 clocking at USD 11.4bn. These factors led the Current Account Deficit (CAD) for 1HFY20 to decrease by 75% YoY to USD
2.1bn (1.5% of GDP) compared to USD 8.6bn (5.8% of GDP) during same period last year. Slowdown in CAD was a welcome effect
but it was coupled with overall slowdown in domestic economy with 5.9% decline in LSM during 5MFY20 compared to decline of
0.9% during 5MFY19. Foreign exchange reserves increased to USD 17.9bn while SBP reserves stands at USD 11.3bn.

Average headline CPl inflation was 11.1% in 1HFY20, much higher than the 6.0% recorded during the 1HFY19 on account of higher
average oil prices and currency depreciation. We expect headline inflation to remain high in the near term due to elevated food
prices. However the inflation is expected to fall sharply in 2HCY20 due to high base effect.

Moving ahead, we believe the tough economic environment is likely to continue with sluggish business activities and inflationary
pressures. The focus would remain on meeting FATF requirements, fiscal management and government compliance with the IMF
quarterly targets.

Money Market Review

SBP continued its monetary tightening policy in 1HFY20 to control the rising current account deficit and in anticipation of
increasing inflationary pressures. Yields across shorter tenors increased by 50-90bps due to cumulative increase of 100 bps in SBP
policy rate with 100bps in July-19. Secondary market yields of 3, 5 and 10-year PIBs decreased by 221, 297 and 272 bps respectively
while yields of 3, 6 and 12 month T-Bills increased by 65, 50 and -3 bps respectively. Government of Pakistan raised PKR 1,117bn
(excluding non-competitive bids) through the PIB auction against a target of PKR 625bn to re-profile the government debt as a part
of IMF program. Latest cut-off yields stood at 11.75%, 11.19% and 10.99% for the 3year, 5-year and 10 year PIB respectively.

During the half, Government shifted its borrowing from central bank to scheduled banks. Government retired PKR 740bn from
central bank against borrowing of PKR 159bn during same period last year. Meanwhile, Government borrowing from banks
increased by PKR 927bn during the period. Government largely managed its borrowing requirements through domestic sources,
and largely from scheduled banks.

In the monetary policy held in Jan-20, SBP kept the policy rate at 13.25%. Going forward, we foresee inflation to decline from
current levels due to normalization of food prices and high base effect. We expect a cut in SBP policy rate by 100-150 bps in the
calendar year.

Stock Market Review

Pakistan Equity Markets witnessed a surge in the outgoing half as external account stabilized and overall investor sentiment turned
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positive amid improving macros.

The benchmark KSE100 Index surged 6,834 points to close at 40,735 points (+20%). Majority of the sectors witnessed bullish
momentum due to cheap valuations as market rerated from its lows. Due to rising interest rates and PKR depreciation, Banking and
Qil & Gas Exploration sectors remained in the lime light. Cement, Engineering and pharmaceutical sector also made a comeback in
the latter half of 1HFY20.

Foreigners turned net buyers in the market after four years, investing equities worth USD8mn during the half ended Dec-19.
Individuals were the largest net buyers with net buy of USD140mn. On the flip side, mutual fund, insurance companies and banks
divested USD19.6mn, USD52.6mn and USD90.7mn respectively.

Moving ahead, Pakistan equities are expected to gain further traction due to cheaper valuation and expected cut in policy rate.
Moreover, market participants would closely watch out for inflation numbers and foreign flows. We will maintain our strategic
focus towards "bottom-up" approach and align exposure towards stocks with strong earnings potential.

FUND’S PERFORMANCE AND PAYOUTS
HBL Income Fund

The total income and net income of the Fund was Rs. 99.02 million and Rs. 80.30 million respectively during the period ended
December 31, 2019. The Net Asset Value (NAV) per unit of the Fund was Rs. 106.1134 per unit as on June 30, 2019 which increased
to Rs. 111.9968 per unit as on December 31, 2019 thereby giving an annualized return of 11.00%. During the same period, the
benchmark (6 Month KIBOR) return was 13.69%. The size of Fund was Rs. 1.32 billion as on December 31, 2019 as compared to Rs.
1.51 billion at the start of the year.

JCR-VIS Credit Rating Company Limited has reaffirmed A(f) Fund Stability Rating to the Fund.
HBL Government Securities Fund

The total income and net income of the Fund was Rs. 209.24 million and Rs. 173.86 million respectively during the period ended
December 31, 2019. The Net Asset Value (NAV) per unit of the Fund was Rs. 105.8419 per unit as on June 30, 2019 which increased
to Rs. 112.7639 per unit as on December 31, 2019 thereby giving an annualized return of 12.97%. During the same period the
benchmark (6 Month PKRV Rates) return was 13.54%. The size of Fund was Rs. 3.39 billion as on December 31, 2019 as compared
to Rs. 2.12 billion at the start of the year.

JCR-VIS Credit Rating Company Limited has reaffirmed A+(f) Fund Stability Rating to the Fund.
HBL Money Market Fund

The total income and net income of the Fund was Rs. 568.68 million and Rs. 505.43 million respectively during the period ended
December 31, 2019. The Net Asset Value (NAV) per unit of the Fund was Rs. 102.2200 per unit as on June 30, 2019 which increased
to Rs. 108.6643 per unit as on December 31, 2019 thereby giving an annualized return of 12.50%. During the same period the
benchmark (70% 3M PKRV & 30% 3M deposit rates) return was 12.68%.The size of Fund was Rs. 9.16 billion as on December 31,
2019 as compared to Rs. 6.25 billion at the start of the year.

JCR-VIS Credit Rating Company Limited has reaffirmed AA(f) Fund Stability Rating to the Fund.

HBL Cash Fund

The total income and net income of the Fund was Rs. 690.67 million and Rs. 627.79 million respectively during the period ended
December 31, 2019. The ex-dividend Net Asset Value (NAV) per unit of the Fund was Rs 100.8886 per unit as on June 30, 2019. The

NAV of the Fund was Rs 101.8912 per unit as on December 31, 2019 (after incorporating interim monthly dividends of Rs. 5.3526
per unit); thereby giving an annualized return of 12.82%. During the same period, the benchmark (70% 3M PKRV & 30% 3M
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deposit rates) return was 12.68%. The size of Fund was Rs 10.66 billion as on December 31, 2019 as compared to Rs. 8.81 billion
at the start of the year.
JCR-VIS Credit Rating Company Limited has reaffirmed AA(f) Fund Stability Rating to the Fund.

HBL Stock Fund

The total and net income of the Fund was Rs. 431.47 million and Rs. 382.41 million respectively during the period ended December
31, 2019. The Net Asset Value (NAV) per unit of the Fund was Rs 89.7221 per unit as on June 30, 2019. The NAV of the Fund was
Rs. 106.5659 per unit as on December 31, 2019; thereby giving a return of 18.77%. During the same period, the benchmark KSE 30
index yielded a return of 21.90%.The size of Fund was Rs 2.48 billion as on December 31, 2019 as compared to Rs. 2.15 billion at
the start of the year.

HBL Equity Fund

The total and net income of the Fund was Rs. 59.70 million and Rs. 52.52 million respectively during the period ended December
31, 2019. The Net Asset Value (NAV) per unit of the Fund was Rs. 93.3868 per unit as on June 30, 2019. The NAV of the Fund was
Rs. 112.4512 per unit as on December 31, 2019; thereby giving a return of 20.41%. During the same period, the benchmark KSE
100 index yielded a return of 20.16%.The size of Fund was Rs. 0.33 billion as on December 31, 2019 as compared to Rs. 0.25 billion
at the start of the year.

HBL Energy Fund

The total and net income of the Fund was Rs. 133.40 million and Rs. 117.55 million respectively during the period ended December
31, 2019. The Net Asset Value (NAV) per unit of the Fund was Rs. 11.1201 per unit as on June 30, 2019. The NAV of the Fund was
Rs. 13.0799 per unit as on December 31, 2019; thereby giving a return of 17.62%. During the same period, the benchmark KSE 30
index yielded a return of 21.90%. The size of Fund was Rs. 0.87 billion as on December 31, 2019 as compared to Rs. 0.73 billion at
the start of the year.

HBL Multi Asset Fund

The total and net income of the Fund was Rs. 34.16 million and Rs. 30.07 million respectively during the period ended December
31, 2019. The Net Asset Value (NAV) per unit of the Fund was Rs 95.6506 per unit as on June 30, 2019. The NAV of the Fund was
Rs 110.7617 per unit as on December 31, 2019; thereby giving a return of 15.80%. During the same period, the benchmark index
(Weighted average daily return KSE 100 and 6 Month PKRYV rates) yielded a return of 14.30%. The size of Fund was Rs 0.20 billion
as on December 31, 2019 as compared to Rs. 0.20 billion at the start of the year.

HBL Financial Planning Fund

The Fund comprises of three sub funds (plans) namely Active allocation plan, Conservative allocation plan and Strategic allocation
plan.

The Fund as a whole earned a total and net income of Rs. 21.83 million and Rs. 20.46 million respectively during the period under
review. The fund size of the fund stood at Rs. 0.29 billion as on December 31, 2019.

Performance review for plans is given below:

Active Allocation Plan

During the period under review, the Active allocation plan earned a total and net income of Rs. 9.41 million and Rs 8.88 million
respectively. The net assets of the Active allocation plan stood at Rs. 0.08 billion representing Net Asset Value (NAV) of Rs.

109.8632 per unit as at December 31, 2019 as compared to Net Asset Value (NAV) of 96.9864 per unit as at the start of the year,
thereby giving a return of 13.28% as compared to its Benchmark return of 15.90%.
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Conservative Allocation Plan

During the period under review, the Conservative allocation plan earned total and net income of Rs. 4.43 million and Rs. 4.15
million respectively. The net assets of the Conservative allocation plan stood at Rs. 0.05 billion representing Net Asset Value (NAV)
of Rs. 112.6474 per unit as at December 31, 2019 as compared to Net Asset Value (NAV) of Rs. 103.8264 as at the start of the year,
thereby giving a return of 8.50% as compared to its Benchmark return of 9.35%.

Strategic Allocation Plan

During the period from July 01, 2019 to October 10, 2019, the Strategic allocation plan earned a total and net income of Rs. 2.67
million and Rs. 2.46 million respectively. The Plan marks its maturity on October 10, 2019.

Special Income Plan
HBL Financial Planning Fund — Special Income Plan launched its operations on September 16, 2019.

During the period from September 16, 2019 to December 31, 2019, the Plan earned a total and net income of Rs. 5.31 million and
Rs. 4.98 million respectively. The net assets of the Special Income Plan stood at Rs. 0.15 billion representing Net Asset Value (NAV)
per unit of Rs. 103.3029 as at December 31, 2019. The Plan posted a return of 3.30% as compared to its Benchmark return of 3.93%
during the period under review.

HBL Growth Fund

The Fund as a whole earned a total and net income of Rs. 586.65 million and Rs. 431.06 million respectively during the period
under review. The size of the fund stood at Rs. 8.47 billion as on December 31, 2019 as compared to Rs. 9.31 billion at the start of
the year.

Performance review of each class is presented below:
HBL Growth Fund — Class ‘A’

HBL Growth Fund — Class ‘A’ earned a total income and net income of Rs. 132.92 million and Rs. 49.03 million respectively during
the period ended December 31, 2019. The Net Asset Value (NAV) per unit of the Class ‘A’ was Rs. 22.3615 per unit as on December
31, 2019 as compared to Rs. 17.1016 as at June 30, 2019, thereby giving a return of 30.76%. During the same period the
benchmark KSE 100 index yielded a return of 20.16%. The size of Class ‘A" was Rs. 6.34 billion as on December 31, 2019 as
compared to Rs. 4.84 billion at the start of the year.

HBL Growth Fund — Class ‘B’

HBL Growth Fund — Class ‘B’ earned a total and net income of Rs. 453.73 million and Rs. 382.04 million respectively during the
period ended December 31, 2019. The Net Asset Value (NAV) per unit of the Class ‘B’ was Rs. 19.0781 per unit as on December 31,
2019 as compared to Rs. 16.0884 as at June 30, 2019, thereby giving a return of 18.58%. During the same period the benchmark
KSE 100 index yielded a return of 20.16%. The size of Class ‘B’ was Rs. 2.13 billion as on December 31, 2019 as compared to Rs.
4.46 billion at the start of the year.

HBL Investment Fund
The Fund as a whole earned a total and net income of Rs. 415.34 million and Rs. 338.75 million respectively during the period
under review. The size of the fund stood at Rs. 3.76 billion as on December 31, 2019 as compared to Rs. 4.06 billion at the start of

the year.

Performance review of each class is presented below:
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HBL Investment Fund — Class ‘A’

HBL Investment Fund — Class ‘A’ earned a total and net income of Rs. 49.46 million and Rs. 18.64 million respectively during the
period ended December 31, 2019. The Net Asset Value (NAV) per unit of the Class ‘A" was Rs. 7.9955 per unit as on December 31,
2019 as compared to Rs. 6.0597 as at June 30, 2019, thereby giving a return of 31.95%. During the same period the benchmark KSE
100 index yielded a return of 20.16%. The size of Class ‘A” was Rs. 2.27 billion as on December 31, 2019 as compared to Rs. 1.72
billion at the start of the year.

HBL Investment Fund - Class ‘B’

HBL Investment Fund — Class ‘B’ earned a total and net income of Rs. 365.87 million and Rs. 319.91 million respectively during the
period ended December 31, 2019. The Net Asset Value (NAV) per unit of the Class ‘B’ was Rs. 9.9577 per unit as on December 31,
2019 as compared to Rs. 8.4072 as at June 30, 2019, thereby giving a return of 18.44%. During the same period the benchmark KSE
100 index yielded a return of 20.16%. The size of Class ‘B’ was Rs. 1.49 billion as on December 31, 2019 as compared to Rs. 2.34
billion at the start of the year.

MANAGEMENT COMPANY RATING

The VIS Credit Rating Company Limited has reaffirmed the management quality rating to ‘AM2+ (AM Two Plus) to the
Management Company and the outlook on the assigned rating has been assessed as ‘Positive’.

Acknowledgement

The Board takes this opportunity to thank its valued unit-holders for their confidence and patronage. It would like to place on
record its appreciation for the help and guidance provided by Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan, Central Depository
Company of Pakistan & MCB Financial Services Limited as Trustee, the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited and State Bank of Pakistan.

The Board also wishes to place on record its appreciation for the hard work and dedication shown by the staff.

On behalf of the Board of
HBL Asset Management Limited

Chief Executive Officer

09



é;{;&}gjljéd;%w}l

SIS AN BN IE B 2t BB BANGEIA Ll o AT L e s JIGE)
otz o QUL G260 Bt NG 54 G 56y Jo 381 6 2 S8 NGB G £ 36

e S E20192531.7

S

iy im N i S R MG L 222 e (SRR R E L P L MBS Finl a2,
L e HL L f S s

L NI EA RIS e S o Pkt ST e 15T 10.0%u e 1S ml 5SS 2000 B usisty
FAIGI000un LGNS 200 S LENEL B8 pa 50/ 20 ety PSS b S e 950,85 68 £,
Ll 316 4% S SaTe GRS 200000 AT AU (SBPRSCA U E L Uk e W ek s QA 5L 2o
$ 2000 b S Lee r b pLbon e el )3 19,82/ 5 39%.05 LUt s 2000 bl s SA S FE 21%
210 fE75% YoY &L &GS 200l ersbic e tul W Bl 11.4/05 8 3% S
FTRL eSS 3155 BUKYSSEI 5 8.6 smdl a1 2 T R ol 1 5(1.6% QS 3EIHMBE Pi
L guml st L1098 BT 5.9%E ERIL I nbi& £20JudinGnmer it et $ oA L it ey

~E Mg il .vu;&qq‘ﬂé&z.@m{ Sl 7.9/’&3&5;1,-);&2.@&?&' 0.9% & [

SPEHE6.6.0% ksl ednbied b BLEERES 100082 11.19% 2 AT Akt s 20001
Gl 220 Tl T 2GSk A S Agsie e n S g L e 3 SRS 7L K bsiit
e SO GE U Pl Sz 31

S 77 FASTIIRETE N Fa it L3 sl S S Kol o B S Ko b5 L mz 5 LT
PN (7 T W AL RS D

BTN

LE it nz L o e e e S e f (s Lo QUSSR S 20 Jedilddes
még@iﬁs‘izvﬁ 50-90bpsest L2 % 100bps Al s-L 100bp5u.'1Q‘JUJ?ufd-c/u:u’:JgéQ;ﬁl;,__}ilﬁd;l,l,f;tﬂuﬁ»s/‘gf"’t?
P 5 F65, 508 -3 bps 2Py HAL sba g o e dF 221, 2978 272 bpsszHisg eS8 mTd s
Pl LD e 178 sE (ke QST PL Sa Lo nSl 628 L& S oy $573 % bl 2L pfy i §Te

e 2410.99%:111.19%11.75% Z ULt Lol el bl ST oSy it slon(k

L Jﬁz:ﬁ-&‘e’i}-’:i—uvﬂ 59und 2aIS I enf —u/db‘; i ﬂ,éﬁ;__éd}}f_@@,};;.&.li.wﬁubm':@ﬁ
lf!"; E-Jfl/:d G’A@LJ:/""JUJ‘:/‘;'%'I{J?@Mfﬂéakb@nﬁylgZTUFJJJZ:-:J-J !.if"—:-u:@"'—'-w‘ Ll olLs G2/ il 740
_‘LU?;/ G u:é-f‘ﬁﬁjzf’

10



Pt sdrinlnfeutvrr L e ne s LTy 13.25%ns b dd At s AU Eit20 s
KB 3100-150c LKA S I Bt 2 ST I IS Sk T SR S i

By

_i.'f:/j.::vﬁxﬁsLﬁjug'é..ﬁé..ﬂﬂ":-tl?uéﬁ-ﬁb_;:?Jﬂs!i_ﬂf?z'ﬂw&%fz(bgul?-ﬁiﬂL'alufgﬁhff’dl,i_lgi_ﬂ:tﬂi;gluc'fl‘,_
S e oSl ot & Ak S f U e f(+20% 71940, 7367 L &1L UF 146,834 HKSE 100§
S fr il £ P:?'}_‘LJ.:/,,’};}? ki, J’L,ﬁ_mygigﬁiuj&{,_u_@, byt e nzey Sintspindac }ﬂil

b2 TE S 20000

Sl "I_JLSJK:L/‘_K):E;EIJ‘:J_L)BJQL')'.‘J'Bcjbuitﬁbf:’dl;.J_J'EFJ‘:( 1 9_,.6J_u,;"h.ﬁ_xJ&u:uur,,gﬁdwfju:_uﬂﬂiurug
MR 19 60z L U U I S e S-S Sl S5 R 140 Ui s Kb P 5 B iy
A ASBA190. 708§ 152.6

}zru.w.ﬁw?i:y_d;;fu:h‘au’{gIq.c‘fL,w’Liggd‘u,;’ﬁlé%“;yygéu"-u,%;;ff‘;uz‘u:.:_,gLz‘_,fluw’gé_xazﬁf
LS EAL a2 Jﬁﬁ;rﬁﬁﬁif.&,{n“_g_ﬂ”'& K,??.&?;u,‘g Ifa.f.w’:a53'{,sL;gf,é,,mﬁ»r,wuiln.91.;.&__{1;6@;.1_,1,1
- g"LuJ"Jg'glu:J:’

a6

BANGE

2 BONAV)=A S b sty B e B0 30 1 99.02 oA & alindn Y 2019253104 T A6
el za b s 11 .00‘%%452.&@..‘.-’;_‘(}%_»11 1.9968%%4 201 9,:63155&46.;.»1 06.11343+2019
-L;g%wh SAEITL b d 6L 126 20 32 L 201953146251 3.69%C - Cidbl ) IE
-%Jﬁ?&JL!JJﬁJ%EA(ﬂ é&ﬁi.&rﬁzééfﬁﬂjfds-ﬁd;

IR A o]

(NAV)A f el 2b16 ey G2 Guen 173.86me1#209.24 2P L eudhd sy 2019253134721 5% S
s Cbz I [ 12.97%2 5L Gy (e 112,763/ 201975312y (4 1/105.8419 (16-22019 1230
e me£2.12 RTE St 5L U120 03,3030 201975317 625.313.54% (UL PKRW ) A Eimd
_..'c_JJE;’uLJJJﬁJ%ﬁAﬂf) 4—£-ﬁi-&{u€':)d-£/d'(jrdﬁdlrdé—

BelESIGE

(NAV)= b el 2616 oty B S si 5054304 10568.68.7 7, & L s dse Y 2019253104761 o S5

11



.‘p_agfi.“bfg:(fv;ﬂv..g(12.50‘70;{..&&;)’7'654#!(3&?-»108.66434;5::(2019/:‘13133..‘.-‘4(}%»102.2200 L2019 ©230
LIS L1262 9.160L 201925317 ¥5.612.68%C (U 51530% 3Ms1T0% 3M PKRYLAE ind
Bz 3,%6.25 UEIGT

e UE S B TN L LB e b S AT s

BADGE

Sebstl o e Sy BBt 627.790L 10469067 Pt L eadhinfy 2019253104720 m 8
6y (s2,5.3526) 23432101891 eI 625062 201 95311824 32+,100.8886 (J6-L2019 w2 30(NAV)=L
S (VB bL530% M 4170% 3M PRRYAE nL st bl il 12.82%2 153 L Pt s S Pzl
_.l;p%.uQ_J’S.S‘I ww&dv;;:@w‘.cmzw.;_».,.mo.se}fuw[. 201 9;‘3312 Ki5_(#12.68%

_‘;_JJE?M@,JJ_,@,&*"IJ:?AA(f) L& is B Bt S AT s

BSeIIgE!

(NAV)=A el 26126 ey S ug o 38241 se 1431472 P\ £ eudhd sy 2019253134726 8% 525
BB O3 18.77%{..;52:@?,»4;4&%.»106.56535:4.131’!{}:5; 2019/1‘531-;5._*;5&4{_..3189.7221 L2019 £230
WL L 126 st 2.480boL 2019,:631? {_ﬁ_.“lr(;_}iloé!?r 21.90%_ 54130 $IAL B und wus

gl 2158

BELSIGE

(NAV)2L oo 2126 oy B 5 Gug i 5252 e n59.70 AL £ madh n ¥ 2019753104761 gA § i
iy”g:éwuu_gfzo.m0/«11_;55‘_,’??}.&4&%”1 12.45128sc 116554 201 9,#331-&}4&%”93.3368 G 2019 230
AL B L 1262010330 L 2019;531(%1'5.&)%(31?{20.1S%Lwﬁ"lso GIAE DA imd euis

g %0250

BEANGE

(NAV) =S el 2126 iy U8 o i 17.55 i 133.402 7, & & eudb Y 2019753134726 5F U2
_:_fp&wuv.gﬁ7.62%@5&&@&;&9;13.0799 Ujglqlgﬁf2019ﬁ31dd;dfiéd;.3) 11.1201 J L2019 /%230
WL 8L 12600 0.87 oL 201925317 K5 6 Err821.90% £2130 SILAIL A ubns =uyl
Bl 0.73U%

ﬁ_n,,gf&)_lgér

7 B0NAV)= S b2t by S Gt 30.07ue 534,162 AL £ ealdndnfY 2019531047 A6 S
a1 b Ul LK 15.80%. aj_isaiu’-”nfm;g&i_u11o.7e17 Soetef 1655 2019;631-(?&{&%;;95.6506}1&»&2019

12



1020 bl 201925317 K51 b Bk 14.30% (Uh PKRVLZ #1001CAL Binsidf b Tn)rfat SAEioimd
_LEE.J.*‘TJJ@:EO.QOJ)ETLJVU:#.G—LJM‘L;’%_H

BBy Sohg

e PP @ g Pt P P ) 5 5

420,200 L 20195317 €5 S b GuTUAE AL 107 20.4618 110721 832 P il cunily rig b §FEE 23
Bz

:f_ﬂ:ﬁdia‘/’@ﬁﬁz’jfé_ﬁ'}i{

bk

£ 0.08= 281 PEL ik P EbsE !-JJ%J;.TJ’L&»IJJQ_MJJ'S.as»r%ug‘.‘g.41.__;ﬂgi.wgw‘*-'1f;.f Imd earfloss
sl b G TE et b oL 1 BurZ SEuE (NAVE Seb 261 oL 2y Be0,100.86320bL 2019453124 520
Wb L Er NEL 15.90%L 101K 13.28%2 3L il $ieny3e+,96.9864=4§ (NAV)

b

! O,OS_-;lgﬁbIU‘Jl}Lul}; fi}l:’:uf/.JJ;lpa,ATJ’JGAIJnyA;UUiJW. 1 5)}%.3;&-44 43-...;,—";1.4_(_}1# M'f;u'f'@hu&auf@{)
ﬁw"u;{;tzf.f.dwf@w&w.é‘,gz_/fp’m! (NAV)Es b 216 L 2y 3o 20112.64T 40 L 201925312 5274 s
b L L IEL9.35% L IELK8.50% 5L Uiy (e 1103.8264=08 (NAV)=

I

10,4 - S BuT b S 2,46 s 2 6T AL PG Piind = 20197110, 20190024
SHesd bty 20105

o ASH

WHETER T 1 20197 165w ASF 5 6 FohgEl

o2t L b FSF S P 34T oS 344,98 e ss5 31l bml e a§F 20194531 = 2019716
i 3.30% k- & SEAAS (NAV s o 26126 L 2y 3e2103.302Q0 L 201953128 3277421 0.15

bt 5L B AL 3.93% wind =

A SNGE

13



(&3 BAT IWL 2019531 F K250 BuT 6 AL 20 431.06502 102586 652 Pyumd e ssdlo iy b L5
W29 31T et Bl 12y

P OS I AT S

T 4 ;z',,,aﬂ_@g.

S IS BTG St 49.03010 1132.92.2 Phoim eadlrin iy 201975314 LA/ SEN
2L Py 3e22.36150: L 2019453108 &L iy b2 1,17.10162 2019 2 30(NAV)=d e 281 A6 oy
V12 G4 10163430 L 201975317 K53 b Gl 20.16% U1 00SIAIL AEnd a1 Crti€ 30.76%
B nl4.88 SAE b L

B sh /36!

S YU S BuT e G20 L s 382.0401L 853,732 Puoimd madhix Y 201925312 QU 54/ 106
@séu’-u‘@g&9119.0781&&»52019;*331;;:&.&&;;:;&%”16.0884&2019 o2 30(NAV)=dL el 261 A6 iy
UI2GL 12,433 2019753155 U Bl 20.16% UEEM 00SIAIL AF il a1 C L1 18.58%
tsp%ufm;aumfédpa'awé

Bak e

e 213760 L 20192531 A€ S G TAbaGASL uet 338752 504415 34 Pimd casfle iy b I3
Bl 064 6L Jotd B L1z

:.f‘-_g.;lg_l,Ju‘:d_'J'nﬂgb/g;/CI{JJLgu_aﬁ

I - Be I

St f P GaT b et 18.6451L 1,049,462 P\ hndl = albsdn Y 20195315 iUk Bt tIIdE
2l P Ges. 7.99560+L 2019253104 & 6L iy 34 1,6.0597L 2019wz 30(NAV)=dt S 26106 Ly
UIZGL 102273 2019253165 6Y b El 20.16% U1 008IAIL AFnl a1 E Ll 31.95%
B 172 RRL S 8L

g v Be I SIgE

U S BT SA L 319,91 503658 Phhund wadbdn Y 201925315 YU BetIhdE

gjﬁjséu’-u‘?&gd%u. 9.95770(b+L 201953144 L oy o 2/8.4072 £ 2019 w2 30(NAV)A Sl 2l Py §
U126 118900 L 20195315 GY b Clok 20.16% UEE1008ILAL S nl eas 1 Elid 18.44%

14



Bt re'2.34 SATLJtd 5L

SN
e e 8Ty B e 1S I (Y AM2H LB e fid £ Sns bl B ue t S A0S

g

G prel ..:Tf“ra’gm ﬁxg?aa'w-q_%tﬁﬂ,ﬁ.{-i@ /»lu,bij“"" LNl e i nl Boibe Bt
_ujLfgz;ﬁ;éljfdlggw;ﬂlu;l;u;ﬁF,;’r'_.__r’igJuw’g‘_iru@_’r,,:’bﬂj&')ﬁJ&ldD@:&jJ#ﬁ?}]‘y‘fﬁdJ@IJ;IUD@JT&{
;._L;-gufj_-éuf} LAY a2 el U6 B S st

bl
Lot s JISTE
AE

15



HBL

Income Fund




FUND INFORMATION

Name of Fund HBL Income Fund

Name of Auditor Deloitte Yousuf Adil Chartered Accountants

Name of Trustee Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC)
Bankers Habib Bank Limited

Bank Al-Habib Limited

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited
Faysal Bank Limited

Allied Bank Limited

JS Bank Limited

Samba Bank Limited

MCB Bank Limited

Askari Bank Limited

Zarai Taragiati Bank Limited

Soneri Bank Limited

Sindh Bank Limited

Telenor Microfinance Bank Limited
Meezan Bank Limited

NRSP Microfinance Bank Limited
Industrial & Commercial Bank of China Limited
First Microfinance Bank Limited

U Microfinance Bank Limited

Rating A(f) (JCR-VIS)
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CENTRAL DEPOSITORY COMPANY
OF PAKISTAN LIMITED
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COC House, 998, Block ' @
M.C HS. Makn Shabra-e-Faisal
Karachi - 74400, Pakistan

Tal: (92211 111-171-500

Fax; (32-21) 3436021 - 23

UBL: wwew cibcpakistan.com

Email; infof@cdopak com

&
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TRUSTEE REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS
HBL INCOME FUND

Report of the Trustee pursuant to Regulation 41(h) ol the Nop-Banking Finanee
Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008

We, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, being the Trustee of HBL Income Fund
{the Fund) are of the opinion that HBL Asset Management Limited, being the Management
Company of the Fund has in all material respects managed the Fund during the $ix months
period ended December 31, 2019 in accordance with the provisions of the following:

(i) Limitations imposed on the investment powers of the Management Company under
the constitulive documents of the Fund;

(i)  The pricing, issuance and redemption of units are carried out in accordance with the
requirements of the copstitutive documents of the Fund; and

(i)  The Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulations) Rules,
2003, the Mon-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations,
2008 and the constitutive documents of the Fund.

We would like to draw unil holders’ attention towards the fact that the exposure of the Fund in
unlisted Term Finance Certificates of IS Bank Limited (JSBL] reached to 11.29% of the net
assets; thus the Fund is in non-complinnce of Regulation 55(3) of the Non-Banking Finance
Companies and Notificd Entities Regulations, 2008 (NBFC Regulations) which states that the
exposure of Collective Investment Scheme to any single entity shall not exceed an amount
equal to 10% of its total net assets. This breach is prevailing since December 2018 and we have
reported this issue 1o the Commission. The Management Company has also reported the matier
to the Commission explaining the crcumstances surrounding the breach. The Commission in
its response dated July 23, 2019 has allowed the management to regularize the exposure breach
as soon s possible. Accordingly, the Management Company hus off loaded some of the excess
exposure during the period and intent to align it on availubility of competitive bid in the markel.

3 k
AL S
Badiuddin Akber
Chief Exeeutive Officer
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
% Karachi, February 28, 2020
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DeIOitte 3 Deloitte Yousuf Adil

Chartered Accountants

Cavish Court, A-35, Block T & 8
K.CHSU, Shahrah-e-Faisal
Karachi-75350

Pakistan

Tel: +92 (0) 21 3454 5494-7
Fan: +97 (00 21- 3454 1314

www. deboitte.com

Auditors’ report to the unit holders on review of
Condensed interim financial information

Introduction

We have reviewed the accompanying condensed interim statement of assets and liabilities of HBL
Income Fund (the Fund) as at December 31, 2019, and the related condensed interim income
statement, condensed interim statement of other comprehensive income, condensed Interim statement of
movement in unit holders’ fund, condensed interim cash flow statement and notes to the condensed
interim financial information for the half year ended December 31, 2019 (here-in-after referred to as the
‘condensed interim financial information”). HBL Asset Management Limited (the Management
Company) Is responsible for the preparation and presentation of this condensed interim financial
information in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable In Pakistan for interim
financial reperting. Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on this condensed Interim financial
infarmation based on our review. The figures of the condensed interim income statement and condensed
interim statement of other comprehensive income, for the quarter ended December 31, 2019 have not
baen reviewed, as we are required to review only the cumulative figures for the half year ended
December 31, 2019,

Scope of Review

We conducted our review in accordance with International Standard on Review Engagements 2410,
"Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity”. A review
of condensed interim financial information consists of making inguirles, primarily of persons responsible
for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review procedures. A review is
substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all
significant matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

Conclusion
Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying

condensed interim financial information is not prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with
approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim financial reporting.

Tloitle) s Adil,

Chartered Accouhtants

Engagement Partner
Hena Sadig

Date: February 25, 2020
Place: Karachi

taember of
Dwloltte Towche Tohmatsu Lirmited
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HBL Income Fund

Condensed Interim Statement of Assets and Liabilities (Un-Audited)
As at December 31, 2019

December 31, June 30,
2019 2019
(Un-Audited) (Audited)
Note  -----------m-em- (Rupees in '000) ------------

Assets
Bank balances 4 690,904 552,761
Investments 639,561 1,008,166
Accrued mark-up 19,352 16,285
Advances, deposits and prepayments 6 30,617 30,639
Total assets 1,380,434 1,607,851
Liabilities
Payable to the Management Company 7 3,747 3,054
Payable to the Trustee 109 198
Payable to Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 151 1,478
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 8 57,609 92,378
Total liabilities 61,616 97,108
Net assets 1,318,818 1,510,743
Unit holders' fund (as per statement attached) 1,318,818 1,510,743
Contingencies and commitments 14

--------------- (Number of units) -----------
Number of units in issue 11,775,486 14,237,061

--------------------- (Rupees) ---------==-----.
Net assets value per unit 111.9968 106.1134
The annexed notes 1 to 16 form an integral part of this condensed interim financial information.

For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL Income Fund

Condensed Interim Income Statement (Un-Audited)
For the half year and quarter ended December 31, 2019

Half year ended Quarter ended
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018 2019 2018
Note e (Rupees in '000)
Income
Mark-up on deposit with banks 45,773 48,045 20,638 27,425
Mark-up / return on investments 58,743 48,647 30,400 22,518
Dividend income 164 12,807 164 7,949
Unrealised (loss) / gain on remeasurement of investments classified
as fair value through profit or loss (11,639) (6,455) (10,578) 3,676
Capital gain / (loss) on sale of investments - net 5,889 (7,988) (3,124) (6,033)
Other Income 94 4 94 (2)
99,024 95,060 37,594 55,533
Reversal of provision against non-performing Term
Finance Certificates 5.1.1.2 - 6,186 - 1,548
99,024 101,246 37,594 57,081
Expenses
Remuneration of the Management Company 9,363 16,618 5,465 8,060
Remuneration of the Trustee 641 1,555 313 750
Annual fee of Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 151 836 74 397
Allocation of expenses related to registrar services,
accounting, operation and valuation services 1,221 1,114 370 528
Selling and Marketing 4,419 - 1,479 -
Settlement and bank charges 906 1,428 514 490
Auditors' remuneration 219 190 122 97
Legal and professional charges 4 - - -
Listing fee 13 13 6 7
Rating fee 149 139 73 71
17,086 21,893 8,416 10,400
Net income from operating activities 81,938 79,353 29,178 46,681
Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund 8.2 (1,638) (1,587) (583) (824)
Net income for the period before taxation 80,300 77,766 28,595 45,857
Taxation 9. - - - -
Net income for the period after taxation 80,300 77,766 28,595 45,857
Allocation of net income for the period
Income already paid on redemption of units 16,949 13,672 13,271 7,757
Accounting income available for distribution:
- Relating to capital losses - - (7,684) (1,958)
- Excluding capital gains 63,351 64,094 23,008 40,058
63,351 64,094 15,324 38,100
Net income for the period after taxation 80,300 77,766 28,595 45,857
The annexed notes 1 to 16 form an integral part of this condensed interim financial information.
For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL Income Fund
Condensed Interim Statement of Comprehensive Income (Un-Audited)
For the half year and quarter ended December 31, 2019

Half year ended Quarter ended,
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018 2019 2018

(Rupees in '000)

Net income for the period after taxation 80,300 77,766 28,595

Other comprehensive income for the period - - -

45,857

Total comprehensive income for the period 80,300 77,766 28,595

45,857

The annexed notes 1 to 16 form an integral part of this condensed interim financial information.

For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL Income Fund

Condensed Interim Statement of Movement in Unitholders’ Fund (Un-Audited)
For the half year ended December 31, 2019

Net assets at beginning of the year

Adoption of IFRS 9

Issue of 5,284,876 units (2018: 8,946,463 units)

- capital value (at NET asset value PER unit
at the beginning of the period)

- Element of income
Total proceeds on issuance of units

Redemption of 7,746,451 units (2018: 12,415,620 units)
- Capital value (at net asset value per unit
at the beginning of the period)

- Element of loss
- Income already paid on redemption of units

Total comprehensive income for the period
Refund of Capital
Distribution during the period

Total comprehensive income for the period
Net assets at end of the year

Undistributed income brought forward
- Realised
- Unrealised

Adoption of IFRS 9
Accounting income available for distribution

- Relating to capital losses
- Excluding capital losses

Distribution during the period

Undistributed income carried forward

Undistributed income carried forward
- Realised

- Unrealised

Net assets value per unit at beginning of the period

Net assets value per unit at end of the period

The annexed notes 1 to 16 form an integral part of this condensed interim financial information.

Chief Financial Officer

Half year ended
December 31,
2019 2018
Capital Undistribu Unr?alised (loss) / Capital Undistribute Unreélised
ted income of Total d (loss) / income Total
Value . Value ]
Income investment Income of investment
Rupees in '000"
1,388,862 121,881 - 1,510,743 2,230,273 226,959 (772) 2,456,460
(772) 772
560,796 - - 560,796 946,437 - - 946,437
15,651 - - 15,651 17,559 R R 17,559
576,447 - - 576,447 963,996 . . 963,996
(822,001) - - (822,001) || (1,313,437) - - (1,313,437)
. - - - (9,427) - - (9,427)
(9,722) | (16,949) - (26,671) - (13,671) - (13,671)
(831,723)  (16,949) - (848,672)  (1,322,864) (13,671) - (1,336,535)
- 80,300 - 80,300 - 77,765 - 77,765
. - - - (13,463) - - (13,463)
- - - - - (107,938) - (107,938)
- 80,300 - 80,300 (13,463) (30,173) - (43,636)
1,133,586 185,232 - 1,318,818 1,857,942 182,343 - 2,040,285
125,538 224,607
(3,657) 2,352
121,881 226,959
(772)
63,351 64,094
63,351 64,094
- (107,939)
185,232 182,343
196,871 188,798
(11,639) (6,455)
185,232 182,343
(Rupees) (Rupees)
106.1134 111.2890
111.9968 109.6712
For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL Income Fund

Condensed Interim Statement of Cash Flow (Un- Audited)

For the half year ended December 31, 2019

Half year ended
December 31,

2019 2018
Note ----------- (Rupees in '000') -------------
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income for the period before taxation 80,300 77,766
Adjustments
Mark-up on deposit with banks (45,773) (48,045)
Mark-up / return on investments (58,743) (48,647)
Dividend income (164) (12,807)
Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund 1,638 1,587
Unrealised loss on remeasurement of investments classified
as fair value through profit or loss 11,639 6,455
Capital gain/(loss) on sale of investments - net (5,889) 7,988
(16,992) (15,703)
Decrease / (increase) in assets
Investments - net 362,855 230,402
Advances, deposits and other receivables 22 40,802
362,877 271,204
(Decrease) / increase in liabilities
Payable to the Management Company 693 (901)
Payable to Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee (89) (87)
Payable to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (1,327) (1,906)
Accrued expenses and other liabilities (36,407) 342
(37,130) (2,552)
Net cash generated from operating activities 308,755 252,949
Dividend received 164 12,807
Profit received 101,449 89,888
101,613 102,695
Net cash generated from operating activities 410,368 355,644
Cash flows from financing activities
Amount received on issue of units 576,447 963,996
Payment against redemption of units (848,672) (1,336,535)
Distribution paid - (121,401)
Net cash used in financing activities (272,225) (493,940)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 138,143 (138,296)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period 552,761 1,242,036
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period 4 690,904 1,103,740
The annexed notes 1 to 16 form an integral part of this condensed interim financial information.
For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL Income Fund

Notes to the Condensed Interim Financial Information (Un-Audited)
For the half year ended December 31, 2019

1.

2.1.1

2.1.2

2.1.3

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

HBL Income Fund (the Fund) was established under a Trust Deed, dated September 06, 2006, executed between HBL
Asset Management Limited as the Management Company and Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC) as
the Trustee. The Fund was authorised by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) as a unit trust
scheme on July 25, 2006.

The Management Company of the Fund has been registered as a Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC) under the NBFC
Rules, 2003 and has obtained the requisite license from the SECP to undertake Asset Management Services. The
registered office of the Management Company is situated at 7th Floor, Emerald Tower, G-19, Block 5, Main Clifton Road,
Clifton, Karachi.

The Fund is an open ended mutual fund and offers units for public subscription on a continuous basis. The units are
transferable and can also be redeemed by surrendering to the Fund. The Fund is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange
Limited. The units of the Fund were initially offered for public subscription at par from March 15, 2007 to March 17, 2007.

The principal activity of the Fund is to make investments in fixed income securities. Other avenues of investments include
ready future arbitrage in listed securities and transactions under Continuous Funding System.

VIS Credit Rating Agency has reassigned management quality rating of 'AM2+' (positive outlook) to the Management
Company on December 31, 2019 and the fund stability rating of A(f) to the fund.

Title to the assets of the Fund are held in the name of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited as trustee of the
Fund.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance

This condensed interim financial information have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 along with part VIIIA of the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984; and

- Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulations) Rules, 2003 (the NBFC Rules), Non-Banking Finance
Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the NBFC Regulations) and requirements of the Trust Deed.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations and requirements of the Trust Deed differ from the IFRS
Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations and requirements of the Trust Deed have been followed.

The disclosures made in this condensed interim financial information have, however, been limited based on the
requirements of IAS 34. This condensed interim financial information does not include all the information and disclosures
required in a full set of financial statements and should be read in conjunction with the annual published audited financial
statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2019.

In compliance with Schedule V of the NBFC Regulations, the directors of the Management Company hereby declare that
this condensed interim financial information gives a true and fair view of the state of the Fund’s affairs as at December 31,
2019.
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2.2

2.3

3.1

3.2

33

3.4

4.1

4.2

Basis of measurement

This is condensed interim financial information have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except that
certain investments are measured at fair value.

Functional and presentation currency

This condensed interim financial information is presented in Pakistani Rupees which is the Fund's functional and
presentation currency. Amounts in this condensed financial information has been rounded off to the nearest thousand
rupees, unless otherwise stated.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES, ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, JUDGEMENTS AND
CHANGES THEREIN

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of this condensed interim financial information are consistent with
those applied in the preparation of the annual audited financial statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2019.

The significant judgments made by management in applying its accounting policies and the key sources of estimation
uncertainty were the same as those applied to the annual audited financial statements of the Fund for the year ended
June 30, 2019.

There are certain new and amended standards, interpretations and amendments that are mandatory for the Fund's
accounting periods beginning on or after July 01, 2019 but are considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant
effect on the Fund's operations and therefore not detailed in this condensed interim financial information.

The Fund’s financial risk management objectives and policies are consistent with those disclosed in the annual audited
financial statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2019.

December 31, June 30,
2019 2019
(Un-Audited) (Audited)
Note ~ —-—--m-memmeeee- (Rupees in '000) --------------
BANK BALANCES
Balances with bank - Savings accounts 418&4.2 690,904 552,761

Mark-up rates on these accounts range between 10.28% - 14.75% (June 30, 2019: 10.28% - 13.75%) per annum.

This includes balance maintained with a related party amounting to Rs. 50,737 (June 30, 2019: Rs. 20,735).
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5.1

5.1.1

INVESTMENTS

Finacial assets at fair value through profit or loss

- Term finance certificates and sukuk bonds - Listed
- Term finance certificates and sukuk bonds - Unlisted

- Investment in Government securities
Finacial assets at amortised cost

- Commercial papers

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

December 31,

2019
(Un-Audited)

June 30,

2019
(Audited)

Note  —-------mmemeee- (Rupees in '000) --------------
5.1
511 170,308 84,325
5.1.2 303,468 755,925
5.1.5 94,088 -
5.2 71,697 167,916
639,561 1,008,166

All Term Finance Certficates and Sukuk bonds have a face value of Rs. 5,000 each unless stated otherwise.

Term finance certificates and sukuk bonds - listed

As at Purchases
July 1, during the

Name of the Investee Company

2019 period

Sales / As at

Matured December

during the 31,
period 2019

----- Number of certificates - - - - -

Commercial Banks

Market value /
Carrying value*

Market value as a
percentage of

as at

Total Net

December 31, Investments Assets

2019

Rupees in '000'

JS Bank Limited 1,900 - 636 1,264 113,655 17.77 8.62
1,900 - 636 1,264 113,655 18 9
Financial Services
Saudi Pak Leasing Company
Limited - note 5.1.1.1* 2,000 - - 2,000 - - -
2,000 - - 2,000 - - -
Technology and Communicaton
Worldcall Telecom Limited -
note 5.1.1.2* 23,750 - - 23,750 - R -
23,750 - - 23,750 - - -
Chemicals
Dawood Hercules Chemical
Limited** (Sukuk) 940 - 230 710 56,652 8.86 4.30
940 - 230 710 56,652 9 4
28,590 - 866 27,724 170,308 27 13
Cost of investments at December 31, 2019 181,712
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5.1.1.1

5.1.1.2

5.1.2

** Related party due to common directorship.

* In case of debt securities against which a provision has been made, these are carried at amortised cost less provision.
For non-performing securities market value / valuation by MUFAP is not available.

Saudi Pak Leasing Company Limited defaulted towards payment falling due in September 2010. Accordingly, the exposure
was classified as non-performing and provision was recognised in accordance with the SECP's provisioning guidelines.

Subsequently, on the request of the Issuer, TFC holders approved the restructuring of the facility by extending repayment
period from 5 years to 9 years and by reducing mark-up rate to 6% for 24 months from restructuring date and 8% for next
24 months and thereafter fixing the mark-up rate at 1 month KIBOR. Further, half of the accrued mark-up is to be paid in
cash and the balance is being deferred.

The Issuer defaulted again in the payment of principal and mark-up due on September 13, 2011. In accordance with the
requirements of Circular No. 33 of 2012 dated October 24, 2012 issued by the Securities Exchange Commission of
Pakistan (SECP), the exposure has been classified as non-performing and no further mark-up is being accrued after
classification as non performing exposure. A provision of Rs. 5.550 million equivalent to 100% of the amount outstanding
has been made.

World call Telecom Limited TFC's were classified by MUFAP as non-performing on November 8, 2012 after default of
instalment due on October 7, 2012 (earlier default on April 7, 2012) for the second time. A restructuring agreement was
signed on December 26, 2012. The restructuring included the extension of repayment period by 2 years, deferral of
principal instalments till October 7, 2014 and payment of regular mark-up during the restructuring period. In accordance
with Circular No. 33 of 2012 dated October 24, 2012, a provision of Rs. 47.767 million has been made out of which till
December 31, 2019 Rs. 7.576 million has been received leaving outstanding balance as at December 31, 2019 of Rs.
40.191 million.

Term finance certificates and sukuk bonds - Unlisted

Market value as a
percentage of

Market value as

As atJuly Purchases Sales / As at Total Net Assets
1,2019 duringthe Matured D ber December31, | t
Name of the Investee Company ! ur|n.g € a. ure ecember 2019 nvestments
period during the 31,2019
period
----- Number of certificates - - - - - Rupees in '000'
Commercial Banks
Bank of Punjab * 2,050 - 500 1,550 152,317 23.82 11.55
JS Bank Limited 7,450 - - 7,450 35,344 5.53 2.68
9,500 - 500 9,000 187,661 29.34 14.23
Chemicals
Agritech Limited 2,000 - - 2,000 - - -
Agritech Limited (4" issue) 430 - - 430 - R -
Ghani Gases Limited 200 - - 200 9,750 1.52 0.74
2,630 - - 2,630 9,750 1.52 0.74
Investment Companies
Jahangir Siddiqui & Company Limited 10,000 - - 10,000 49,601 7.76 3.76
Jahangir Siddiqui & Company Limited 15,100 - - 15,100 56,456 8.83 4.28
25,100 - - 25,100 106,057 16.58 8.04
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5.1.2.1

5.1.3

Market value as a

percentage of

Market value as

As at July Purchases Sales / As at Total Net Assets

at December 31,

Name of the Investee Company 2019

period during the 31, 2019

1,2019 duringthe Matured December Investments

period
----- Number of certificates - - - - - Rupees in '000'

Technology and communication
TPL Corporation Limited * 500 - 500 - - - -
Power Generation and Distribution
Hub Power Company Limited 36,600 - 36,600 - - - -
Hub Power Company Limited - 1,000 1,000 - - - -

36,600 1,000 37,600 - - - -
Others
New Allied Electronics Industries
(Private) Limited note 5.1.2.1%* 9,000 - - 9,000 - - -
New Allied Electronics Industries
(Private) Limited - Sukuk note 5.1.2.1* 9,000 - - 9,000 - - -

18,000 - - 18,000 - - -
Total 91,900 1,000 38,600 54,300 303,468 47 23
Cost of investments at December 31, 2019 307,636
* These TFCs have face value of Rs. 100,000 per TFC.
** |n case of debt securities against which a provision has been made, these are carried at amortised cost less provision. For

non-performing securities market value / valuation by MUFAP is not available.

These represent investments in privately placed Term Finance Certificates and Sukuk bonds of the investee company.

These investments have been fully provided.

Details of non-compliant investments with the investment limit specified by Regulation 55 sub regulation 5 of the NBFC

Regulations

Value of
Type of Investment Provision held value of
Name of Non-Complaint yP ) Investment % of Net Assets % of Gross Assets
Investment before (if any) ..
Investment . after Provision
Provision
---------------------- (Rupees in '000')--------==--=nn===--=
JS Bank Limited (note 5.1.3.1) TFC 148,999 - 148,999 11.30 10.79
Bank of Punjab (note 5.1.3.1) TFC 152,317 - 152,317 11.55 11.03
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5.1.3.1 The exposure limit in a single entity as a percentage of net assets exceeded by 1.3% and 1.55% against the prescribed
limit of 10% of the total net assets as required under the NBFC Regulations. The disclosure for breach of exposure limit
is made as required by the circular no. 16 of 2010 dated July 07, 2010 by SECP. Exposure limit exceeded the prescribed
limit of 10% due to reduction of fund size, subsequent to the purchase of investment.

5.1.4

5.1.5

Significant terms and conditions of Term Finance Certificates Sukuk bonds outstanding as at December 31, 2019 are as

follows:

Name of security

Term Finance Certificates and Sukuk bonds - Listed

Remaining principal (per TFC)

Mark-up rate
(per annum)

Issue date

Maturity date

Dawood Hercules Corporation Limited - Sukuk 80,000 3 months KIBOR + 1.% November 16, 2017 November 16, 2022
JS Bank Limited - TFC 99,920 6 months KIBOR + 1.4% December 29, 2017 December 29, 2024
Term Finance Certificates and Sukuk bonds - Unlisted
Jahangir Siddiqui & Company Ltd - TFC 5,000 6 months KIBOR + 1.4% March 6, 2018 March 6, 2023
JS Bank Limited - TFC 4,994 6 months KIBOR + 1.4% December 14, 2016 December 16, 2023
TPL Corp Ltd. - TFC 66,667 3 months KIBOR + 1.5% December 19,2017 December 18, 2019
Bank Of Punjab - TFC 99,880 6 months KIBOR + 1.% December 23, 2016 December 23, 2026
Jahangir Siddiqui & Company Ltd - TFC 3,750 6 months KIBOR + 1.4% July 18, 2017 July 18, 2022
JS Bank Limited - Sukuk 99,960 6 months KIBOR + 1.4% December 29,2017 December 29, 2024
Jahangir Siddiqui & Company Ltd - TFC 3,125 6 months KIBOR + 1.65% June 24, 2016 June 24, 2021
JS Bank Limited - TFC 4,996 6 months KIBOR + 1% December 14,2016 December 16, 2023
Bank Of Punjab - TFC 99,920 6 months KIBOR + 1.% December 23,2016 December 23, 2028
Ghani Gases Limited - Sukuk 54,167 3 months KIBOR + 1% February 2, 2017 February 2, 2023
Investment in Government Securities
Face value Market Value as a percentage of
Market value
Asat Purchases Sales/ Asat t
. Matured asa Total Net

Issue Date Tenure Julyl, during the . December31, pocember3l

. during the 4 Investments Assets

2019 period N 2019 2019
period
--------------- Rupeesin'000---------------

Treasury bill
September 12,2019 12 months - 500,000 500,000 - - -
November7,2019 12 months - 1,000,000 1,000,000 - - -
December 19, 2019 12 months - 300,000 300,000 - - -
October 24,2019 12 months - 600,000 600,000 - - -
October 26,2019 12 months - 500,000 500,000 - - -
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Face value Market Value as a percentage of

Asat Purchases IVSI:Itisréd Asat Marl;:ta:lal ue Total Net
Issue Date Tenure Julyl, during the R December31, December 31
2019 period durm.gthe 2019 5019 ’ Investments Assets
period
--------------- Rupeesin'000---------------

October 24,2019 3 months - 500,000 500,000 - - - -
November7,2019 6 months - 1,000,000 1,000,000 - - - -
October 24,2019 6 months - 500,000 500,000 - - - -
October 10,2019 12 months - 500,000 500,000 - - - -

- 5,400,000 5,400,000 - - - -
Pakistan Investment Bonds
July 12,2018 10 years - 75,000 75,000 - - - -
September 19, 2019 10years - 100,000 - 100,000 94,088 - -
July 12,2018 3years - 575,000 575,000 - - - -
September 19,2019 3years - 350,000 350,000 - - - -
July 12,2018 5years - 371,900 371,900 - - - -
September 19,2019 5years - 350,000 350,000 - - - -

- 1,821,900 1,721,900 100,000 94,088 - -

Grand total - 7,221,900 7,121,900 100,000 94,088 - -
Cost ofinvestments at December 31,2019 90,155

This includes Rs. 71.696 million placed with TPL Corporaton Limited, having rate of return of 15.90%.

The investment in equity securities represents spread transactions entered into the by the Fund. The Fund purchases
equity securities in ready settlement market and sells the securities in future settlement market on the same day,
resulting in spread income due to differences in ready and future stock prices. There are no outstanding equity
investments as at December 31, 2019.
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8.1

8.2

ADVANCES, DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Security deposit with National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited
Security deposit with Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
Receivable against investments of term finance certificates

and sukuk bonds

Advance tax

Prepaid expenses

Less: Provision against overdue installments of
term finance certificates and sukuk bonds

PAYABLE TO THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY

Management fee

Sindh Sales Tax

Sales load payable

Allocation of expenses related to registrar services,
accounting, operation and valuation services

Selling & Marketing expenses payable

ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES

Auditors' remuneration

Federal Excise Duty payable

Dividend payable

Other payables

Capital gain tax payable

Withholding tax payable

Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund

December 31, June 30,
2019 2019

Note  (Un-Audited) (Audited)
5,391 5,285
100 100
1,998 1,998
24,980 24,970
146 284
32,615 32,637
1,998 1,998
30,617 30,639
1,612 1,660
210 216
323 558
123 124
1,479 496
3,747 3,054
211 295
8.1 27,578 27,578
2,745 29,735
558 326
272 293
79 9,624
8.2 26,166 24,527
57,609 92,378

The legal status of applicability of Federal Excise Duty on the Fund is same as that disclosed in the note 12.1 to the
annual audited financial statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the appeal filed by tax

authorities against the order by Supreme Court of Pakistan dated July 16, 2016, is pending for decision.

In view of above, the Management Company, being prudent, is carrying a provision for FED for the period from January
13, 2013 to June 30, 2016 aggregating to Rs. 27.578 million. Had the provision not been retained, NAV per unit of the
Fund as at December 31, 2019 would have been higher by Rs. 2.342 per unit (June 30, 2019: 1.9371 per unit).

The legal status of applicability of Worker's Welfare Fund and Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund is same as that disclosed in

note 12.2 to the annual audited financial statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2019.

In view of the above, the Management Company, being prudent, recognized provision for SWWF amounting to Rs.
26.166 million. Had the provision not been retained, NAV per unit of the Fund as at December 31, 2019 would have

been higher by Rs. 2.222 per unit (June 30, 2019: Rs. 1.723 per unit)
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10.

11.

11.1

TAXATION

The income of the Fund is exempt from tax under clause 99 of Part 1 of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001, subject to the condition that not less than 90 percent of its accounting income for the year, as
reduced by the capital gains whether realised or unrealised, is distributed among its unit holders. The Fund is also
exempt from the provision of Section 113 (minimum tax) under Clause 11A of Part IV of the Second Schedule to the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The Fund has not recorded a tax liability in respect of income relating to the current
period as the Management Company intends to distribute more than 90 percent of the Fund's accounting income for
the period as reduced by capital gains (whether realised or unrealised) to its unit holders.

TOTAL EXPENSE RATIO

In accordance with the directive 23 of 2016 dated July 20, 2016 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan, the total expense ratio of the Fund for the half year ended December 31, 2019 is 1.25% (December 31, 2018:
1.06%), which includes 0.20% (December 31, 2018: 0.20%) representing government levy, Worker's Welfare Fund and
SECP fee.

TRANSACTIONS WITH CONNECTED PERSONS / RELATED PARTIES

Connected persons / related parties comprise HBL Asset Management Limited being the Management Company, Habib
Bank Limited being the Sponsor, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, being the Trustee of the Fund, other
collective investment schemes managed by the Management Company, directors and officers of the Management
Company and the directors of the connected persons.

Transactions with connected persons are in the normal course of business, at contracted rates and terms determined
in accordance with market rates.

Remuneration payable to Management Company and Trustee is determined in accordance with the provisions of the
NBFC Regulations and the Trust Deed respectively.

Details of the transactions with connected persons during the period and balances with them at period/ year end, if
not disclosed elsewhere in the condensed interim financial statements are as follows:

Half year ended
December 31,
2019 2018
(Un-Audited) (Un-Audited)
--------------- (Rupees in '000) ----------

Transactions during the period

HBL Asset Management Limited - Management Company

Management fee inclusive of sales tax 9,363 16,618
Allocation of expenses related to registrar services,

accounting, operation and valuation services 1,221 1,114
Selling & Marketing expenses 4,419 -
Issuuance of nil units (2018: 27,655 units) - 2,926
Redemption of nil units (2018: 1,211,327 units) - 129,374
Dividend paid - 6,359
Refund of capital: nil units (2018 :27,571 units) - 2,917
Habib Bank Limited - Sponsor
Bank charges paid 31 20
Issuuance of nil units (2018: 493,384 units) - 52,195
Redemption of nil units (2018: 3,365,559 units) - 360,000
Mark-up earned during the period 2,950 594
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Half year ended
December 31,
2019 2018
(Un-Audited) (Un-Audited)
--------------- (Rupees in '000) --------=-=-----.

Issuance of nil units (2018: 30,098 units) - 3,184
Redemption of 745,067 units (2018: Nil units) 81,178 -
Refund of capital nil units (2018:30,098 units) - 3,184
Dividend paid - 3,184
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee
Remuneration 641 1,555
CDC charges 27 78
Executives and their relatives
Issuance of Nil units (2018: 3,220 units) - 341
Redemption of 5,165 units (2018: nil units) 551 -
CDC trustee - HBL Government Securities Fund

Sale of Bank Of Punjab - Term finance certificate 50,201 -
CDC trustee - HBL Cash Fund 187.022 i

Sale of the Hub Power Company Limited - Sukuk certificate !
CDC trustee - HBL Islamic Asset Fund 19.844 _

Purchase of TPL corporation limited commerical papers

December 31, June 30,
2019 2019
(Un-Audited) (Audited)
11.2 Balances outstanding as at period /yearend e (Rupees in '000) ----------------

HBL Asset Management Limited - Management Company
Management fee 1,612 1,660
Sindh Sales Tax 210 216
Sales Load payable 323 558
Allocation of expenses related to registrar services,

accounting, operation and valuation services 123 124

Selling & marketing expenses payable 1,479 496
Habib Bank Limited - Sponsor
Investment held by HBL in the Fund: 2,000,000 units

(June 30, 2019: 2,000,000 units) 223,994 212,227
Bank balances with HBL 50,737 20,735
MCBFSL Trustee HBL Financial Planning Fund Strategic Allocation Plan -

CIS Manager by the Management Company
Investment held in the Fund: Nil units (June 30, 2019: 745,068 units) - 79,062
MCBFSL Trustee HBL Financial Planning Fund Active Allocation Plan -

Associate
Investment held in the Fund: 77,566 units (June 30, 2019: 77,566 units) 8,687 8,231

MCBFSL Trustee HBL Financial Planning Fund Strategic Allocation Plan -
CIS Managed by the Management Company
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12,

Half year ended

December 31,
2019 2018
(Un-Audited) (Un-Audited)
--------------- (Rupees in '000) ---------------~.

Pakistan Society For The Welfare Of Mentally Retarded Children-
Related Party due to holding more than 10 percent

Investment held in the Fund: Nil units (June 30, 2019: 1,507,558 units) - 159,972

Executives and their relatives
Investment held in the Fund: 79,488 units (June 30, 2019: 84,654 units) 8,902 8,983

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee

Remuneration payable 96 175
Sindh Sales tax 13 23
Security deposit 100 100
CDC Charges 5 -

The First Microfinance Bank-Associate
Bank balances 10 10

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid or transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants and measurement date. Consequently, differences can arise between carrying values and
the fair value estimates.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Fund is a going concern without any intention or
requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction on adverse terms.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities traded in active markets i.e. quoted market price used for financial assets
held by the Fund is current bid price.

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent
actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 13, "Fair Value Measurement" requires the Fund to classify fair value
measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the
measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

- Fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level
1);

- Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) (level 2); and

- Fair value measurements using Inputs for assets or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e.
unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including
their levels in the fair value hierarchy.
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Financial assets measured at fair value

Investments
- Investment in Government Securities
- Term finance certificates and sukuk bonds

Financial assets not measured at fair value

Investments
Bank balances
Accrued mark-up
Deposits

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value

Payable to the Management Company

Payable to Central Depository Company of
Pakistan Limited - Trustee

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Financial assets measured at fair value

Investments
- Term finance certificates and sukuk bonds

Financial assets not measured at fair value

Investment

Bank balances
Accrued mark-up
Deposits

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value

Payable to Management Company
Payable to Trustee
Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Note

12.1

121

Note

121

121

December 31, 2019 (Un-Audited)

Carrying amount Fair Value
At fair At Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
value amortised
through cost
profit and
(Rupees in '000')

94,088 - 94,088 94,088 - - 94,088
473,776 - 473,776 170,308 303,468 - 473,776
567,864 - 567,864 264,396 303,468 - 567,864

- 71,697 71,697
- 690,904 690,904
- 19,352 19,352
- 5,491 5,491
- 787,444 787,444
- 3,747 3,747
- 109 109
- 3,514 3,514
- 7,370 7,370
June 30, 2019 (Audited)
Carrying amount Fair Value
At Fair At Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Value amortised
through cost
PN N |
(Rupees in '000)
840,250 0 840,250 84,325 755,925 - 840,250
840,250 - 840,250 84,325 755,925 - 840,250
- 167,916 167,916
- 552,761 552,761
- 16,285 16,285
- 5,385 5,385
- 742,347 742,347
- 3,054 3,054
- 198 198
- 30,356 30,356
- 33,608 33,608
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12.1 The Fund has not disclosed the fair values for these financial assets and financial liabilities, as these are either short term
in nature or reprice frequently. Therefore, their carrying amounts are reasonable approximation of fair value.

13. DISCLOSURE UNDER CIRCULAR 16 OF 2010 ISSUED BY THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN -
CATEGORISATION OF OPEN END SCHEME

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan vide Circular 7 of 2009 dated March 6, 2009 required all Asset
Management Companies to classify funds under their management on the basis of categorisation criteria laid down in the
circular. HBL Asset Management Limited (Management Company) classified HBL Income Fund (the Fund) as Income
Scheme' in accordance with the said circular. As at December 31, 2019, the Fund is compliant with all the requirements
of the said circular except for clause 9 (v) which requires that the rating of any security in the portfolio shall not be lower
than the investment grade.

Name of Non-Complaint Type of Value of Provision Value of % of Gross
Investment Investment Investment held Investment Assets
before after
provision provision

-------- (Rupees in '000)--------

New Allied Electronics Industries

(Private) Limited TFC 19,025 19,025 - -
New Allied Electronics Industries

(Private) Limited Sukuk 44,149 44,149 - -
Agritech Limited TFC 9,992 9,992 - -
Saudi Pak Leasing Company

Limited TFC 5,550 5,550 - -
World Call Telecom Limited TFC 41,581 41,581 - -

The above securities have ratings lower than investment grade.
14. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

There are no contingencies and commitments outstanding as at December 31, 2019 and June 30, 2019.
15. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

The condensed interim financial information was authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Management
Company on February 13, 2020.

16. GENERAL
16.1 This condensed interim financial information is unaudited and has been reviewed by the auditors. Further, the figures of

the condensed interim income statement and statement of comprehensive income for the quarter ended December 31,
2018 have not been reviewed.

For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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FUND INFORMATION

Name of Fund

Name of Auditor

Name of Trustee

Bankers

HBL Government Securities Fund

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC)

Habib Bank Limited

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited
Bank Al-Falah Limited
Allied Bank Limited

JS Bank Limited

Samba Bank Limited

MCB Bank Limited

Zarai Taragiati Bank Limited
Soneri Bank Limited

Sindh Bank Limited

Dubai Islamic Bank

Faysal Bank Limited
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CENTRAL DEPOSITORY COMPANY
OF PAKISTAN LIMITED

Head Office

COC Hagse, 99-8, Biock '8
S.M.CHS. Main Shahra-e-Faisal
Karachi - 74400, Pakistan

Tel; f92-21) 111-111-500

Fax: (02-21) 34376021 - 23

LRL: wvew. cocpakistan.com

Emall: info@cdepak com

Q)

£ A

TRUSTEE REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS
HBL GOVERNMENT SECURITIES FUND

Report of the Trustee pursuant to Regulation 41(h) of the Non-Banking Finance Companies
and Notified Entitics Regulations, 2008

We, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limtited, being the Trustee of HBL Govemment
Securities Fund (the Fund) are of the opinion that HBL Asset Management Limited, being the
Management Company of the Fund has in all material respects managed the Fund during the six
months period ended December 531. 2019 in accordunce with the provisions of the following:

{1} Limitativns imposed on the investment powers of the Management Company under the
constitutive documents of the Fund;

(i) The pricing. issuance and redemption of units aré carmied out in accordance with the
requirements of the constitutive documents of the Fund; and

(iii}  The Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulations) Rules, 2003,
the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 and the
conslutive documents of the Fund.

WA W /
Badiuddin Akber
Chief Excoutive Officer
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited

Karachi, Fehruary 26, 2020
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e —— Harachi-T4200

Pakistan

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON REVIEW OF CONDENSED INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION TO
THE UNIT HOLDERS OF HBL GOVERMMENT SECURITIES FUND

Introduction

We have reviewed the accompanying condensed interim statement of assets and llabilities of HBL
GOVERMMENT SECURITIES FUND (“the Fund™) as at December 31, 2019 and the related condensed
interim income statement, condensed interim statement of comprehensive income, condensed interim
statement of cash flows, condensed interim statement of movement in unit halders” fund and notes to
the condersed interfm financial information for the half year then ended (here-in-after referred to as
“interim financial information™). HBL Asset Management Limited (the "Management Company”) s
responsible for the preparation and presentation of this condensed interim financial information in
accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim financial
reporting. Our responsibility is to express a conclusion en this condensed interim financlal infermation
based on our review.

Scope of Review

We conducted cur review in accordance with International Standard on Review Engagements 2410,
“Review af Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity.” A review
of condensed interim financial information consists of making inguirtes, primarily of persons responsible
for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review procedures, A review is
substantiatly less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with Intermational Standards on
Auditing and consequently does not emable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all
significant matters that might be fdentified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

Conclusion

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying
condensed interim financial information as at and for the half year ended December 31, 2019 is not
prepared, in all materfal respects, in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable
in Pakistan for interim financial reporting.

Other matter

The figures for the quarter ended December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018 in the condensed interim
income statement and condensed interim statement of comprehensive income have not been reviewed
and we do not express a conclusion on them.

KARACHI _ /) Lokl
i ] &3 P
pateo: 1 3 FEB 2020 B‘hggéaiﬁﬂ&m, i

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Engagement Partner: Raheel Shahnawaz

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants
BCO Encshim & £o,, 8 Pliiin ragikcered pariracsnip Hrm, 16 & mamber of BOD Internacenil LEnsEd, § LR eomgany limited oy puaranss,
e Terma part of the il prnatsocn]l 500 perwsrs of indepeadent memoaer firma
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HBL Government Securities Fund

Condensed Interim Statement of Assets and Liabilities (Un-Audited)
As At December 31, 2019

December 31, June 30,
2019 2019
(Un-Audited) (Audited)
Note --------------- Rupees in '000--------------

ASSETS

Bank balances 4 1,251,962 2,013,539

Investments 5 2,090,063 1,127,529

Mark-up / interest receivable 88,816 23,146

Advances, deposits and prepayments 6 1,468 1,718
TOTAL ASSETS 3,432,309 3,165,932
LIABILITIES

Payable to the Management Company 7 10,587 10,329

Payable to the Trustee 8 207 224

Payable to Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 9 281 670

Payable against redemption of units - 20,774

Accrued expenses and other liabilities 10 31,956 1,017,653
TOTAL LIABILITIES 43,031 1,049,650
NET ASSETS 3,389,278 2,116,282
UNIT HOLDERS' FUND (AS PER STATEMENT ATTACHED) 3,389,278 2,116,282
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 11

Number of units in issue 30,056,394 19,994,755
Rupees
Net assets value per unit 112.7639 105.8419
The annexed notes from 1 to 18 form an integral part of this condensed interim financial information.
For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL Government Securities Fund

Condensed Interim Income Statement (Un-Audited)

For the Half Year and Quarter Ended December 31, 2019

Note

INCOME

Capital gain / (loss) on sale of investments - net

Income from Government securities

Income from term finance certificates and sukuks

Income from money market placements

Income from Margin Trading System

Mark-up on bank deposits

Unrealised appreciation on re-measurement of investments
classified as financial assets at 'fair value through
profit or loss' - net

EXPENSES
Remuneration of the Management Company 7.1
Sindh sales tax on remuneration of the Management Company 7.2
Remuneration of the Trustee
Sindh sales tax on remuneration of the Trustee
Annual fee to the Securities and Exchange Commission
of Pakistan
Allocation of expenses related to registrar services,
accounting, operation and valuation services 7.3
Selling and marketing expense 7.4
Auditors' remuneration
Fees and subscription
Securities transaction and settlement costs
Bank charges

Net income for the period from operating activities

Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund 10.2
Net income for the period before taxation
Taxation 12

Net income for the period after taxation

Allocation of net income for the period
Income already paid on redemption of units
Accounting income available for distribution:
Relating to capital gains
Excluding capital gains

Earnings per unit 13

The annexed notes from 1 to 18 form an integral part of this condensed interim financial information.

For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Financial Officer

Half year ended Quarter ended
December 31 December 31
2019 2018 2019 2018

---------------------- Rupees in '000
20,608 686 1,286 (186)
85,677 1,000 53,017 600
10,268 - 5,403 -
677 1,525 - 1,122
- 165 - 150
84,953 18,485 39,716 9,045
202,183 21,861 99,422 10,731
7,059 - 7,489 -
209,242 21,861 106,911 10,731
15,443 2,566 9,940 1,233
2,008 334 1,292 184
912 335 412 158
119 44 54 20
281 168 159 79
3,339 224 1,765 106
7,720 - 3,180 -
223 223 111 111
151 149 75 38
1,242 411 436 207
396 34 245 19
31,834 4,488 17,668 2,155
177,408 17,373 89,243 8,576
(3,548) (347) (1,782) (171)
173,860 17,026 87,461 8,405
173,860 17,026 87,461 8,405
37,702 10,245 25,708 7,673
23,005 151 5,765 -
113,153 6,630 55,988 732
136,158 6,781 61,753 732
173,860 17,026 87,461 8,405
Director

Chief Executive Officer
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HBL Government Securities Fund

Condensed Statement of Comprehensive Income (Un-Audited)
For the Half Year and Quarter Ended December 31, 2019

Half year ended
December 31

Quarter ended
December 31

Net income for the period after taxation

Other comprehensive income for the period

Items that will be reclassified

subsequently to income statement
Items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to income statement

Total comprehensive income for the period

The annexed notes from 1 to 18 form an integral part of this condensed interim financial information.

For HBL Asset Management Limited

Chief Financial Officer

(Management Company)

2019 2018 2019 2018
Rupees in '000
173,860 17,026 87,461 8,405
173,860 17,026 87,461 8,405
Director

Chief Executive Officer
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HBL Government Securities Fund

Condensed Interim Statement of Movement in Unit Holders' Fund (Un-Audited)
For the Half Year and Quarter Ended December 31, 2019

Net assets at beginning of the period

Issuance of 27,386,859 units (2018: 5,538,275 units)
Capital value (at net asset value per unit at the beginning of the period)
Element of income

Total proceeds on issuance of units

Redemption of 17,325,218 units (2018: 6,479,646 units)
Capital value (at net asset value per unit at the beginning of the period)
Income already paid on redemption of units
Element of loss

Total payments on redemption of units

Total comprehensive income for the period
Refund of capital
Distribution for the period

Net assets at end of the period
Undistributed income brought forward
Realised income
Unrealised income

Accounting income available for distribution
Relating to capital gains
Excluding capital gains

Distribution for the period
Undistributed income carried forward
Undistributed income carried forward
Realised income
Unrealised income

Net assets value per unit at beginning of the period
Net assets value per unit at end of the period

Half year ended December 31

The annexed notes from 1 to 18 form an integral part of this condensed interim financial information.

2019 2018
Capital Undistributed Total Capital Undistributed Total
Value Income Value Income
Rupees in '000:
2,041,657 74,625 2,116,282 229,135 84,502 313,637
2,898,677 - 2,898,677 585,254 - 585,254
98,172 - 98,172 8,220 - 8,220
2,996,849 - 2,996,849 593,474 - 593,474
(1,833,734) - (1,833,734) (684,733) - (684,733)
- (37,702) (37,702) - (10,245) (10,245)
(26,277) - (26,277) (7,066) - (7,066)
(1,860,011) (37,702) (1,897,713) (691,799) (10,245) (702,044)
- 173,860 173,860 - 17,026 17,026
_ B - (196) - (196)
- - - - (13,295) (13,295)
- 173,860 173,860 (196) 3,731 3,535
3,178,495 210,783 3,389,278 130,614 77,988 208,602
74,572
53
74,625 84,502
23,005
113,153
136,158
210,783 77,988
210,783 77,988
210,783 77,988
(Rupees) (Rupees)
105.8419 110.4244
112.7639 109.8533
For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Executive Officer Director

Chief Financial Officer
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HBL Government Securities Fund

Condensed Interim Cash Flow Statement (Unaudited)
For the Half Year Ended December 31, 2019

Half year ended
December 31

2019 2018
Note ~ -------emmeeeeee- Rupees in '000----------------
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Netincome for the period before taxation 173,860 17,026
Adjustments for:
Capital gain on sale of investments - net (20,608) (686)
Mark-up on bank deposits (84,953) (18,485)
Income from Government securities (85,677) (1,000)
Income from term finance certificates and sukuks (10,268)
Income from money market placements (677) (1,525)
Income from margin trading system - (165)
Unrealised appreciation on re-measurement of investments
classified as financial assets at 'fairvalue through profit orloss' - net (7,059) -
(35,382) (4,835)
(Increase) / decrease in assets
Investments - net (1,883,771) (49,279)
Receivable against margin trading system - (1,769)
Mark-up / interest receivable (74,533) -
Advances, deposits and prepayments 250 160
(1,958,054) (50,888)
Increase / (decrease) in liabilities
Payable to the Management Company 258 386
Payable to the Trustee (17) 33
Payable to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (389) (346)
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 184 1,236
36 1,309
Cash used in operations (1,993,400) (54,414)
Income received from Government securities 50,347 411
Income received from term finance certificates and sukuks 9,997 -
Income received from margin trading system - 146
Mark-up received on bank deposits 94,087 17,960
154,431 18,517
Net cash used in operating activities (1,838,969) (35,897)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from issue of units 2,996,849 593,474
Paymentagainstredemption of units (1,918,487) (702,199)
Dividend paid (970) (13,491)
Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities 1,077,392 (122,216)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (761,577) (158,113)
Cash and cash equivalents atthe beginning of the period 2,013,539 332,785
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period 4 1,251,962 174,672

The annexed notes from 1to 18 form an integral part of this condensed interim financial information.

For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL Government Securities Fund

Notes to the Condensed Interim Financial Information (Unaudited)
For the Half Year Ended December 31, 2019

1

2.1

2.1.1

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

HBL Government Securities Fund ("the Fund") was established under a Trust Deed executed between PICIC Asset
Management Company Limited (now, HBL Asset Management Limited) as the Management Company and Central
Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC) as the Trustee. The Fund was approved by the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide its letter No. NBFC-1I/DD/PICICIF/199 dated March 10, 2010 and the Trust Deed was
executed on March 17, 2010.

Through an order dated August 31, 2016, SECP approved the merger of PICIC Asset Management Company Limited with
and into HBL Asset Management Limited effective from August 31, 2016 and the trust deed was revised on February 17,
2017. Effective from September 1, 2016, HBL Asset Management Limited became Management Company of the Fund
which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Habib Bank Limited. The Aga Khan Fund For Economic Development (AKFED), S.A.
is the parent company of Habib Bank Limited.

The Management Company of the Fund has been registered as a Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC) under the
Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 (NBFC Rules) and has obtained the requisite
license from the SECP to undertake Asset Management Services. The registered office of the Management Company is
situated at 7th Floor, Emerald Tower, G-19, Block 5, Main Clifton Road, Clifton, Karachi.

The Fund is an open-ended sovereign income scheme and is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The units of the
Fund were initially offered for public subscription at par value of Rs. 100 per unit from December 11, 2010 to December
13, 2010. Thereafter, the units are offered to the public for subscription on a continuous basis and are transferable and
redeemable by surrendering them to the Fund.

The Fund has been categorized as a sovereign income scheme as per the criteria laid down by the SECP for categorization
of open-end Collective Investment Schemes (CISs).

The core objective of the Fund is to provide competitive returns to its investors through active investments in low risk
portfolio of short duration, while maintaining high liquidity.

JCR-VIS Credit Rating Company has assigned a management quality rating of 'AM2+' (AM Two Plus) to the Management
Company and assigned stability rating of A+(f) to the Fund as at December 31, 2019 and December 30, 2019, respectively.

Title to the assets of the Fund are held in the name of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited as trustee of the
Fund.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance

This condensed interim financial information has been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim financial reporting. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable
in Pakistan for interim financial reporting comprise of International Accounting Standard (IAS) 34, Interim Financial
Reporting, issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017, the
provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, along with part VIIIA of the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules, the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the 'NBFC
Regulations'), the directives issued by the SECP and the requirements of the Trust Deed.

Where the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations, the directives issued by the SECP and the requirements of the
Trust Deed differ from the requirements of the IAS 34, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act,
2017, part VIIIA of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations, the directives issued
by the SECP and the requirements of the Trust Deed have been followed.
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2.1.2

2.1.3

2.14

2.15

2.2

23

3.1

3.2

33

3.4

The disclosures made in this condensed interim financial information have, however, been limited based on the
requirements of IAS - 34. This condensed interim financial information does not include all the information and
disclosures required in a full set of financial statements and should be read in conjunction with the annual audited
financial statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2019.

The comparative statement of assets and liabilities presented in this condensed interim financial information has been
extracted from the annual audited financial statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2019, whereas the
comparative condensed interim income statement, condensed interim statement of comprehensive income, condensed
interim statement of cash flows, condensed interim statement of movement in unit holders’ fund are extracted from the
unaudited condensed interim financial information for the half year ended December 31, 2018.

This condensed interim financial information is unaudited, but has been reviewed by the auditors. Further, the figures of
the condensed interim income statement and condensed interim statement of comprehensive income for the quarter
ended December 31, 2019 have not been reviewed.

In compliance with Schedule V of the NBFC Regulations, the directors of the Management Company hereby declare that
this condensed interim financial information gives a true and fair view of the state of the Fund’s affairs as at December 31,
2019.

Basis of measurement

This condensed interim financial information has been prepared under the historical cost convention, except that certain
financial assets are stated at fair value.

This condensed interim financial information has been prepared following accrual basis of accounting except for cash flow
information.

Functional and presentation currency

This condensed interim financial information is presented in Pakistani Rupees which is the Fund's functional and
presentation currency.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING AND RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES, ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, JUDGEMENTS AND
CHANGES THEREIN

The accounting policies adopted for the preparation of the condensed interim financial information are the same as those
applied in the preparation of the annual audited financial statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2019.

The preparation of this condensed interim financial information in conformity with accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan requires management to make estimates, assumptions and use judgements that affect the
application of accounting policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Estimates,
assumptions and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
reasonable expectations of future events. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively commencing
from the period of revision.

The significant estimates, judgements and assumptions made by the management in applying the accounting policies and
the key sources of estimation uncertainty are the same as those applied to the annual audited financial statements as at
and for the year ended June 30, 2019.

There are certain standards, interpretations and amendments to accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan effective for the first time in this condensed interim financial information and are mandatory for the Fund's
accounting period beginning on or after July 01, 2019. These standards, interpretations and amendments are either not
relevant to the Fund's operations or are not expected to have a significant effect on this condensed interim financial
information.
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3.5

3.6

4.1

5.1

The Fund's financial risk management objectives and policies are consistent with that disclosed in the annual financial
statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2019.

The accounting policies applied in this condensed interim financial information are the same as those applied in the
preparation of the annual financial statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2019.

December 31, June 30,
2019 2019
(Un-Audited) (Audited)
Note  --------em-- Rupees in '000-------------
BANK BALANCES
In savings accounts 4.1 1,243,092 2,009,536
In current accounts 8,870 4,003
1,251,962 2,013,539

This represents bank accounts held with various banks. Mark-up rates on these accounts range between 8.0% to 14.50%
per annum (June 30, 2019: 8.0% to 13.6% per annum). This includes a balance held by Habib Bank Limited (a related
party), amounting to Rs. 6.628 million (June 30, 2019: Rs. 140.432 million).

December 31, June 30,
2019 2019
(Un-Audited) (Audited)
Note  -—------mmm- Rupees in '000-------------
INVESTMENTS
Financial assets
At fair value through profit or loss 5.1 2,090,063 1,028,205
At amortized cost 5.2 - 99,324
2,090,063 1,127,529
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Government securities
Market treasury bills 5.1.1 - 984,996
Pakistan Investment Bonds 5.1.2 2,006,786 89
GoP ljara Sukuk Certificates 5.14 - -
2,006,786 985,085
Term Finance Certificates and Sukuk Bonds 5.1.5 83,277 43,120
2,090,063 1,028,205
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5.1.1

5.1.2

5.13

5.1.4

5.1.5

Market Treasury Bills

Face value Market Market value
. _— Market value asa
Asat Purchases Sales/matured Asat Carrying value Asat Appreciation / asa
Issue date Tenure S percentage of total
July1, during the during the December31, value December 31, (diminution) | percentage of Investments
2019 period period 2019 2019 net assets
Rupeesin ‘000
July12,2018 3 Month - 50,000 50,000 - - - - - -
April 25,2019 3 Month - 4,000,000 4,000,000 - - - - - -
May 23,2019 3 Month 1,000,000 3,150,000 4,150,000 - - - - - -
July 18,2019 3 Month - 16,695,000 16,695,000 - - - - - -
August1,2019 3 Month - 4,250,000 4,250,000 - - - - - -
August 16,2019 3 Month - 3,000,000 3,000,000 - - - - - .
August 29,2019 3 Month 3,000,000 3,000,000 - - - - - -
September 12,2019 3 Month - 700,000 700,000 - - - - - -
September 26,2019 3 Month - 650,000 650,000 - - - - - -
October 10,2019 3 Month - 1,290,000 1,290,000 - - - - - -
October 24,2019 3 Month - 3,499,000 3,499,000 - - - - - -
November7,2019 3 Month - 1,000,000 1,000,000 - - - - - -
December 19,2019 3 Month - 700,000 700,000 - - - -
Total-As at December 31, 2019 1,000,000 41,984,000 42,984,000 - - - - - -
Total -As at June 30,2019 - 50,704,400 49,704,400 1,000,000 984,910 984,996 86 46.54% 87.36%
Pakistan Investment Bonds
Face value Market value
. Market value Asat _— Market value asa
Asat Purchases Asat Carrying Appreciation / asa
Issue date Tenure Sales/ matured December31, T percentage of total
July1, during the . X December31, value (diminution) | percentage of N
N duringthe period 2019 investments
2019 period 2019 netassets
Rupeesin 000
July12,2018 3Years 100 2,217,100 1,725,200 492,000 457,956 456,472 (1,484) 13% 22%
July12,2018 5Years - 2,081,400 2,081,400 - - - - - -
July12,2018 10 Years - 75,000 75,000 - - - - - -
July 25,2019 10 Years - 1,000,000 1,000,000 - - - - - -
August 22,2019 10VYears o 600,000 o 600,000 610,613 613,080 2,467 18% 29%
September 19,2019 3Years - 1,600,000 700,000 900,000 840,697 843,146 2,449 25% 40%
September 19,2019 5Years - 700,000 700,000 - - - o - -
September 19,2019 10Years - 100,000 - 100,000 90,154 94,088 3,934 3% 5%
Total -As at December 31,2019 100 8,373,500 6,281,600 2,092,000 1,999,420 2,006,786 7,366 59% 96%
Total -As at June 30,2019 - 6,939,500 6,939,400 100 91 89 (2) 0.004% 0.008%

These Pakistan Investment Bonds (PIBs) carry effective yield ranging from 11.26% to 12.16% per annum (June 30,

2019: 11.90%).

GoP ljara Sukuk Certificates

Face value Balance asat December 31,2019 Market value
Market value asa
Asat Purchases Sales/ Asat . i asa
Issue date Tenure . . Carrying Appreciation / percentage oftotal
July1, duringthe matured during [ December31, Market value s percentage of N
N A value (diminution) investments
2019 period the period 2019 net assets
Rupeesin '000
June 17,2018 3Years - 410,000,000 410,000,000 - - - - - -
Total -As at December 31,2019 - 410,000,000 410,000,000 - - - - - -
Total -As at June 30,2019 - 735,000 735,000 - = - - - -

Term Finance Certificates and Corporate Sukuk Bonds

Number of units
Market value asa Market value asa
Name of the investee company Asat Puthases S.ales Asat . Market value As Appreciation/ | percentage ofnet percentage of total
July1, durln.gthe durln{gthe December31, || Carryingvalue | atDecember (diminution) assets investments
2019 period period 2019 31,2019
(Rupeesin '000)
Term finance certificates - unlisted
Askari Bank Limited 7,000 7,000 34,143 34,143 - 1.007% 1.634%
Bank of Punjab - 500 - 500 49,441 49,134 (307) 1.450% 2.351%
7,000 500 - 7,500 83,584 83,277 (307) 2.457% 3.984%
Corporate sukuk bonds - listed
Dawood Hercules Corporation Limited 100 - 100 - - - - - -
Corporate sukuk bonds - unlisted
The Hub Power Company Limited - 1,000 1,000 - - - - - -
Total-as at December 31,2019 7,100 1,500 1,100 7,500 83,584 83,277 (307) 2.457% 3.984%
Total-as atJune 30,2019 - 17,290 10,190 7,100 43,151 43,120 (31) 1.950% 3.824%
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5.1.6 These Term Finance Certificates and Sukuk Bonds carry mark-up at the rate ranging from 14.45% to 15.10% per annum
(2019: 12.30% to 12.67%).

5.1.7  Significant terms and conditions of Term Finance Certificates as at December 31, 2019 are as follows:

R ini incipal Mark- t
Name of the investee company e(:::rlzi::.::::;a (paerr a:i;?nl)e | Issue date | Maturity date

Term finance certificates - unlisted

Askari Bank Limited 4,990 6 months KIBOR +1.20% 30-Sep-14 30-Sep-24

Bank of Punjab 99,880 6 months KIBOR +1.00% 23-Dec-16 23-Dec-26

December 31, June 30,
2019 2019
. . . (Un-Audited) (Audited)
5.2 Financial assets at amortized cost: .
Note  --------mm- Rupees in '000-------------
Commercial paper 5.2.1 - 99,324
5.2.1 Commercial paper
Asat Pl t Asat P t
. s aceme'n Matured during s Percentage ercentage
Name of the investee company July1, made during | Income accrued A December 31, of total
) the period of net assets )
2019 the period 2019 investment
B (Rupeesin '000) —-----------mr-mmemmmeee e

The Hub Power Company Limited 99,324 - 676 100,000
Total -as at December 31,2019 99,324 - 676 100,000
Total -as atJune 30,2019 - 146,856 4,468 52,000 99,324 4.693% 8.809%

5.2.2 Commercial paper issued by The Hub Power Company Limited carried mark-up at the rate of 12.11% (June 30, 2019:
12.11%) and has been matured in July 22, 2019.

5.3 Net unrealized appreciation on re-measurement of investments classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

December 31, June 30,
2019 2019
(Un-Audited) (Audited)
Note  --------mm-- Rupees in '000-------------
Market value of investments 2,090,063 1,028,205
less: carrying value of investments (2,083,004) (1,028,152)
7,059 53
6 ADVANCES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
Security deposit with:

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited 100 100
National Clearing Company of Pakistan limited 767 767
867 867
Prepaid expenses 6.1 210 460
Advance tax 6.2 391 391
1,468 1,718
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6.1

6.2

7.1

7.2

This includes prepaid expenses recognized in respect of payment made for listing, rating and MTS fee.

The income of the Fund is exempt from tax under clause 99 of Part | of the Second Schedule of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 (ITO 2001). Furthermore, the Fund is exempt under clause 47(B) of Part IV of Second Schedule of ITO
2001 from withholding of tax under section 150A, 151 and 233 of ITO 2001.

The Federal Board of Revenue through a circular “C.No.1 (43) DG (WHT)/2008-Vol.ll- 66417-R”, dated May 12, 2015,
made it mandatory to obtain exemption certificates under section 159 (1) of the ITO 2001 from Commissioner Inland
Revenue (CIR). However, various withholding agents have deducted advance tax under section 151 of ITO 2001. The
management is confident that the same shall be refunded after filing refund application within stipulated time as per
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

December 31, June 30,
2019 2019
(Un-Audited) (Audited)
Note ~ - Rupees in '000-------------
PAYABLE TO THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY
Remuneration of the Management Company 7.1 3,434 2,233
Sindh Sales Tax payable on the Management
Company's remuneration 7.2 446 290
Sales load payable 2,917 6,684
Allocation of expenses related to registrar
services, accounting, operation and
valuation services 7.3 610 179
Selling and marketing expense 7.4 3,180 943
10,587 10,329

As per the offering document of the Fund, the Management Company charges a fee at the rate of 1.25% of the average
annual net assets on daily basis of the Scheme subject to the guidelines issued by the Commission from time to time.
However, on December 28, 2017, second supplement to the offering document was issued according to which the
management company was to charge a fee at the rate of 12.5% of gross earnings with floor of 1% and cap of 1.25% of
the average annual net assets on daily basis of the Scheme effective from January 15, 2018. During the period, the fee
has been charged at the rate ranging between 0.65% to 1.36% of the daily annual net assets of the Fund. The fee is
being charged at the rate of 1.25% from October 16, 2019 onwards. The fee is payable monthly in arrears.

The Sindh Government has levied Sindh Sales Tax at the rate of 13% (June 30, 2019: 13%) on the remuneration of the
Management Company through Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011.

52



7.3

7.4

8.1

8.2

As per Regulation 60(3)(s) of the NBFC Regulations, fee and expenses pertaining to registrar services, accounting,
operation and valuation services related to a Collective Investment Scheme (CIS) are chargeable to the CIS. Previously,
such expenses were chargeable maximum upto 0.1% of the average annual net assets on daily basis of the Scheme or
the actual cost, whichever is lower. However, SECP, vide S.R.0. 639(1)/2019, dated June 20, 2019, has removed the
maximum limit of 0.1%. During the period, the fee has been charged at the rate ranging between 0.1% to 0.3% of the
daily annual net assets of the Fund. The fee is being charged at the rate of 0.22% from October 16, 2019 onwards.

As per SECP vide its circular No. SCD/PRDD/Circular/361/2016, dated December 30, 2016, selling and marketing
expenses was chargeable to open end equity, asset allocation and index funds only, upto maximum 0.4% of the
average annual net assets of the Scheme or the actual cost, whichever is lower.

However, circular No. SCD/PRDD/Circular/04/2019, dated July 5, 2019, issued by SECP, supersedes all previous
circulars issued with respect to selling and marketing expenses, according to which, selling and marketing expenses
can be charged to all categories of open end mutual funds, except fund of funds with no cap. During the period, the
fee has been charged at the rate ranging between 0.4% to 0.75% of the daily annual net assets of the Fund. The fee is
being charged at the rate of 0.75% from July 8, 2019 onwards.

December 31, June 30,
2019 2019

(Un-Audited) (Audited)

Note -------------- Rupees in '000---------------
PAYABLE TO THE TRUSTEE
Trustee fee payable 8.1 202 221
CDS charges payable 5 3
207 224

The Trustee is entitled to a monthly remuneration for services rendered to the Fund under the provisions of the Trust
Deed, as per the tariff specified therein, based on the average annual net assets of the Fund. The fee is paid to the
Trustee monthly in arrears.

Earlier, the Trustee fee was charged as per the details disclosed in note 10.2 to the annual audited financial statements
of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2019. CDC, vide notification CDC/CEOQ/L-112/02/2019, dated June 27, 2019,
has revised the rates of the Trustee fee, with effect from July 1, 2019, according to which, Trustee fee shall be charged
at the rate of 0.2% of the average annual net assets of the Fund. During the period, Management Company has
charged the Trustee fee at the rate of 0.06% from July 1, 2019 to August 7, 2019, and at the rate of 0.065% from August
8, 2019 to December 31, 2019.

The Provincial Government of Sindh has levied Sindh Sales Tax at the rate of 13% (June 30, 2019: 13%) on the Trustee
fee through the Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011.

December 31, June 30,
2019 2019
(Un-Audited) (Audited)
Note ---------e-e- Rupees in '000---------------
PAYABLE TO SECURITIES AND
EXCHANGE COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN
Annual fee payable 9.1 281 670
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Under the regulation 62 of the NBFC Regulations, a Collective Investment Scheme (CIS) categorized as an income
scheme is required to pay as annual fee to the SECP, an amount equal to 0.075% of the average annual net assets of
the Scheme. However, SECP, vide S.R.0. 685 (1)/2019, dated June 28, 2019, has reduced the rate of the fee to 0.02% of
the average annual net assets for all categories of CIS(s), with effect from July 1, 2019 During the period, Management
Company has charged the fee accordingly. The fee is payable annually in arrears.

ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES

December 31, June 30,
2019 2019
(Un-Audited) (Audited)
Note -------------- Rupees in '000---------------

Provision for Federal Excise Duty 10.1 15,531 15,531
Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund 10.2 11,196 7,648
Withholding tax payable 829 7,708
Auditors' remuneration 220 282
Printing charges 153 183
Payable against purchase of investment - 984,910

Payable against issuance of units 3,600 -
Zakat payable 232 232
Dividend payable 31 1,002
Others 164 157
31,956 1,017,653

The legal status of applicability of Federal Excise Duty (FED) on the Fund is the same as disclosed in note 12.1 to the annual
audited financial statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the appeal filed by tax authorities with
Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan is pending for decision.

In view of the above, the Management Company, as a matter of abundant caution, is carrying provision for FED for the
period from January 13, 2013 to June 30, 2016 aggregating to Rs. 15.531 million. Had the provision not been retained,
NAV per unit of the Fund as at December 31, 2019 would have been higher by Re. 0.5167 per unit (June 30, 2019: Re.
0.7767 per unit).

The legal status of applicability of Worker's Welfare Fund and Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund is the same as disclosed in
note 12.2 to the annual audited financial statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2019 and a constitutional
petition filed by certain CISs, through their trustees, in the Honourable High Court of Sindh, challenging the applicability
of WWF to the CISs, is pending adjudication.

As at December 31, 2019, the provision in relation to SWWF amounted to Rs. 11.196 million. Had the provision not been
made, the net asset value per unit as at December 31, 2019 would have been higher by Re. 0.3725 (June 30, 2019: Re.
0.3825) per unit.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
There were no contingencies and commitments outstanding as at December 31, 2019 (June 30, 2019: Nil).
TAXATION

The Fund's income is exempt from income tax as per clause 99 of Part | of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001, subject to the condition that not less than 90% of its accounting income for the year, as reduced by the
capital gains whether realised or unrealized, is distributed to the unit holders in cash. The Fund is also exempt from the
provision of section 113 (minimum tax) under clause 11A of Part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance,
2001. The Fund has not recorded a tax liability in the current period, as the Management Company intends to distribute
at least 90% of the Fund's accounting income as reduced by capital gains, whether realised or unrealized, for the year
ending June 30, 2020 to its unit holders.
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14.1

EARNINGS PER UNIT

Earnings per unit (EPU) has not been disclosed in this condensed interim financial information, as, in the opinion of the
Management Company, the determination of the cumulative weighted average number of outstanding units for
calculating earnings per unit is not practicable.

TRANSACTIONS WITH CONNECTED PERSONS / RELATED PARTIES

Connected persons include HBL Asset Management Limited being the Management Company, Habib Bank Limited being
the Sponsor, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited being the Trustee of the Fund, other collective investment
schemes managed by the Management Company, directors and officers of the Management Company, directors of the
connected persons and persons having 10% or more beneficial ownership of the units of the Fund.

Transactions with connected persons are in the normal course of business, at contracted rates and terms determined in
accordance with market rates.

Remuneration payable to Management Company and Trustee is determined in accordance with the provisions of the
NBFC Regulations and the Trust Deed respectively.

Transactions and balances with parties who were connected persons due to holding 10% or more units in the comparative
period and not in the current period are not disclosed in the comparative period.

Details of the transactions with connected persons and balances with them, if not disclosed elsewhere in the condensed
interim financial information, are as follows:
Half year ended
December 31
2019 2018
(Un-Audited) (Un-Audited)

Transactions during the period

HBL Asset Management Limited - Management Company

Remuneration of the Management Company 15,443 2,566
Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of the Management Company 2,008 334
Sales load paid 15,959 30
Allocation of expenses related to registrar services,

accounting, operation and valuation services 3,339 224
Selling and marketing expense 7,720 -
Issue of Nil (2018: 915,008) units - 95,000
Redemption of Nil (2018: 1,753,587) units - 189,048
Dividend paid - 4,355

Habib Bank Limited - Sponsor
Bank charges 341 13
Mark-up on bank deposits 6,870 121

HBL Financial Planning Fund Strategic Allocation Plan

- Fund under common management
Issue of 345,994 (2018: Nil) units 36,967 -
Redemption of 658,073 (2018: Nil) units 72,496 -

HBL Financial Planning Fund Special Income Plan
- Fund under common management
Issue of 1,220,437 (2018: Nil) units 133,000 -
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Half year ended
December 31
2019 2018
(Un-Audited) (Un-Audited)

Executive of the Management Company
Issue of 37,450 (2018: 19,346) units 4,026 2,110
Redemption of 38,857 (2018: 19,346) units 4,257 2,115

CDC Trustee - HBL Income Fund
Purchase of Bank of Punjab - Term Finance Certificate 50,201 -

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee

Remuneration 912 335
Sindh Sales Tax payable on the Trustee fee 119 44
Central Depository service charges 47 8

December 31, June 30,
2019 2019
(Un-Audited) (Audited)

14.2

Balances outstanding as at period / year end

HBL Asset Management Limited - Management Company

Remuneration payable to the Management Company 3,434 2,233
Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of the
Management Company 446 290
Sales load payable 2,917 6,684
Allocation of expenses related to registrar services,
accounting, operation and valuation services 610 179
Selling and marketing payable 3,180 943
Habib Bank Limited - Sponsor
Bank balances 15,497 144,445
Profit receivable 2,733 343
HBL Financial Planning Fund Strategic Allocation Plan
- Fund under common management
Units held: Nil (June 30, 2019: 312,079) - 33,031
HBL Financial Planning Fund Special Income Plan
- Fund under common management
Units held: 1,220,437 (June 30, 2019: Nil) 137,621 -
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December 31, June 30,
2019 2019
(Un-Audited)  (Audited)

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee

Remuneration payable 202 221
CDS charges payable 5 3
Security deposit 100 100

Executives of the Management Company
Units held: 13,996 (June 30, 2019: 23,111) 1,578 2,446

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. Consequently, differences can arise between carrying values
and the fair value estimates.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Fund is a going concern without any intention or
requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction on adverse terms.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities traded in active markets are based on the quoted market prices at the
close of trading on the period end date. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Fund is current
bid price.

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent
actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

As per the requirements of IFRS 13 (Fair Value Measurements), the Fund classifies fair value measurements using a fair
value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy
has the following levels:

- Fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level
1);

- Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) (level 2); and

- Fair value measurements using inputs for assets or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e.
unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including
their levels in the fair value hierarchy.
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December 31, 2019 (Un-Audited)
Carrying Amount Fair Value
Fair value through

) Amortized cost Total level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
profit or loss
Note Rupees in '000:
Financial assets measured at fair value 15.1
Pakistan investment bonds 2,006,786 - 2,006,786 - 2,006,786 - 2,006,786
Term finance certificates and corporate
sukuk bonds 83,277 - 83,277 - 83,277 - 83,277
2,090,063 - 2,090,063 - 2,090,063 - 2,090,063
Financial assets not measured at fair value 15.2
Bank balances - 1,251,962 1,251,962
Commercial paper - -
Mark-up / interest receivable - 88,816 88,816
Deposits - 867 867

- 1,341,645 1,341,645

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value 15.2

Payable to Management Company - 10,141 10,141
Payable to the Trustee - 183 183
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - 4,163 4,163

- 14,487 14,487

June 30, 2019 (Audited)
Carrying Amount Fair Value
Fair value through

) Amortized cost Total level 1 level 2 level 3 Total
profit or loss
Note (Rupees in '000)
Financial assets not measured at fair value 15.2
Bank balances - 2,013,539 2,013,539
Commercial paper - 99,324 99,324
Profit / interest receivable - 23,146 23,146
Deposits - 867 867

- 2,136,876 2,136,876

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value 15.2

Payable to the Management Company - 10,039 10,039
Payable to the Trustee - 199 199
Payable against redemption of units - 20,774 20,774
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - 986,529 986,529

- 1,017,541 1,017,541

Valuation techniques

For level 2 investments at fair value through profit or loss - investment in Pakistan Investment Bond, Fund uses rates
which are derived from PKRV and PKFRV rates at reporting date per certificate multiplied by the number of certificates
held as at period end and investment in Corporate Sukuk Bonds and Term Finance Certificates is valued on the basis
of rates determined by the Mutual Fund Association of Pakistan (MUFAP) in accordance with the methodology
prescribed by SECP vide its circular no. 1 of 2009 dated January 6, 2009 and circular no. 33 of 2012 dated October 24,
2012 at reporting date.

The Fund has not disclosed the fair values for these financial assets and financial liabilities, as these are either short
term in nature or repriced periodically. Therefore, their carrying amounts are reasonable approximation of fair value.

Transfers during the period

No transfers were made between various levels of fair value hierarchy during the period.

TOTAL EXPENSE RATIO

In accordance with the directive 23 of 2016 dated July 20, 2016 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of

Pakistan (SECP), the total expense ratio of the Fund for the half year ended December 31, 2019 is 1.27% (December
31, 2018: 1.09%) which includes 0.22% (December 31, 2018: 0.20%) representing Government levy and SECP fee
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17 DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

This condensed interim financial information was authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Management
Company on February 13, 2020.

18 GENERAL
18.1 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees, unless otherwise stated.

18.2 Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever necessary, for better presentation and
disclosure, effect of which is not material.

For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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CENTRAL DEFOSITORY COMPANY
OF PAKISTAN LIMITED

Head Office

COC House, 99-8, Block ‘8
5MCHS Main Shahra-e-Faisal
Karachi - T4400. Pakistan

Tel; (92-213 111-111-500

Fax: (92-21) 34326021 -23
URL: woaw.cdopakistan cam
Email; infodcdepak.com

TRUSTEE REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS
HBL MONEY MARKET FUND

Report of the Trustee pursuant to Regulation 41(h) of the Non-Banking Finance Companies
and Notified Entitics Regulations, 2008

We. Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, being the Trustee of HBL Money Market
Fund (the Fund) are of the opinion that HBL Assct Management Limited. being the Management
Company of the Fund has in all matenal respects managed the Fund during the six months period
mded December 31, 2019 in sccordance with the provisions of the following:

(1) Limitations imposed on the investment powers of the Management Company under the
constitutive documents of the Fund;

() The pricing, issuance and redemption of units are carmied out in gecordance with the
requirernents of the copstitutive documents of the Fund; and

(iif)  The Non-Banking Finance Companies (Estublishment und Regulations) Rules, 2003,
the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 and the
constitulive documents of the Fund.

\M A, /
Badiuddin Akber

Chiel Executive Offcer

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited

Karachi, February 26, 2020
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Deloitte. —

Chartered Accountants

Cavish Court, A-35, Block T& 8
KCHSU, Shahrah-e-Faisal
Karachi-75350

Pakistan

Tel: +92 (0) 21 3454 6494-T7
Fax:  +92 (0) 21- 3454 1314

vy, del ottt e com

Auditors’ report to the unit holders on review of
Condensed Interim Financial Information

Introduction

We have reviewed the accompanying condensed interim statement of assets and liabilities of HBL Money
Market Fund (the Fund) as at December 31, 2019, and the related condensed interim income
statement, condensed interim statement of other comprehensive income, condensed interim statement of
movement in unit holders’ fund, condensed interim cash flow statement and notes to the condensed
interim financial information for the half year ended December 31, 2019 (here-in-after referred to as the
‘condensed Interim financial information’). HBL Asset Management Limited (the Management
Company) is responsible for the preparation and presentation of this condensed interim financial
information in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim
financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on this condensed interim financial
information based on our review. The figures of the condensed interim income statement and condensed
interim statement of other comprehensive income, for the quarter ended December 31, 2019 have not
been reviewed, as we are required to review only the cumulative figures for the half year ended
December 31, 2019,

Scope of Review

We conducted our review in accordance with International Standard on Review Engagements 2410,
“Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity”. A review
of condensed interim financial information consists of making inquiries, primarily of persons responsible
for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review procedures. A review is
substantially less in scope than an audit conducted In accordance with International Standards on
Auditing and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all
significant matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

Conclusion
Based on our review, nothing has come to gur attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying

condensed interim financial information is not prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with
approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim financial reporting.

Telole vl Adely

Chartered Acco nts

Engagement Partner
Hena Sadiq

Date: February 25, 2020
Place: Karachi

Member of
Deloitte Towchs Tohmatsu Limited
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HBL Money Market Fund

Condensed Interim Statement of Assets and Liabilities (Un-Audited)
As at December 31, 2019

December 31, June 30,
2019 2019
(Un-Audited) (Audited)
Note  ------------- (Rupees in '000) ----------

Assets
Bank balances 8,019,541 5,485,942
Investments 1,135,911 1,423,742
Accured mark-up 102,331 55,136
Deposits and prepayments 264 117
Total assets 9,258,047 6,964,937
Liabilities
Payable to the Management Company 11,546 5,843
Payable to the Trustee 544 1,038
Payable to Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 889 5,486
Payable against purchase of investments - 492,454
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 89,463 207,378
Total liabilities 102,442 712,199
Net assets 9,155,605 6,252,738
Unit holders' fund (as per statement attached) 9,155,605 6,252,738

Contingencies and commitments

Number of units in issue 84,255,894 61,169,427
-------------- (Rupees) --------------
Net assets value per unit 108.6643 102.2200

The annexed notes 1 to 14 form an integral part of these condensed interim financial information.

For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL Money Market Fund

Condensed Interim Income Statement (Un-Audited)

For the half year ended December 31, 2019

Income

Mark-up on deposits with banks
Mark-up / return on investments
Capital loss on sale of investments - net
Unrealised loss on re-measurement of investments
classified as Financial asset at fair value through profit and loss

Expenses

Remuneration of the Management Company

Remuneration of the Trustee

Annual fee of Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan

Allocation of expenses related to registrar services,
accounting, operation and valuation services

Settlement and bank charges

Auditors' remuneration

Fee and Subscription

Securities transaction cost

Selling and Marketing expenses

Net income from operating activities

Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund

Net income for the period before taxation
Taxation

Net income for the period after taxation

Allocation of income for the period

Income already paid on redemption of units

Accounting income available for distribution:
- Relating to capital gains
- Excluding capital gains

Net income for the period after taxation

The annexed notes 1 to 14 form an integral part of these condensed interim financial information.

For HBL Asset Management Limited

Note

7.2

Half year ended
December 31,

Quarter ended
December 31,

(Management Company)

Chief Financial Officer

2019 2018 2019 2018
(Rupees in '000)
338,721 139,428 261,749 51,591
233,675 198,301 47,887 121,410
(3,686) (7,021) (2,865) (6,550)
(33) (17) - (17)
568,678 330,691 306,772 166,434
38,957 37,887 24,290 18,952
3,051 3,771 1,636 1,777
889 2,959 503.07 1,383
4,136 3,945 1,090.22 1,844
559 317 452.05 158
322 299 169.28 149
157 149 81 86
217 3 109 2
4,647 - - -
52,937 49,330 28,332 24,351
515,741 281,361 278,440 142,083
(10,315) (5,627) (5,568) (2,841)
505,426 275,734 272,872 139,242
505,426 275,734 272,872 139,242
104,497 86,480 85,773 74,599
400,929 - 187,066 64,643
400,929 189,254 187,100 64,643
505,426 275,734 272,872 139,242
Director

Chief Executive Officer
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HBL Money Market Fund
Condensed Interim Statement of Comprehensive Income (Un-Audited)
For the half year ended December 31, 2019

Half year ended Quarter ended,
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018 2019 2018

(Rupees in '000)

Net income for the period after taxation 505,426 275,734 272,872

Other comprehensive income - - -

139,242

Total comprehensive income for the period 505,426 275 734 272.872

139,242

The annexed notes 1 to 14 form an integral part of these condensed interim financial information.

For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL Money Market Fund

Condensed Interim Statement of Movement in Unit Holders' Fund (Un-Audited)

For the half year ended December 31, 2019

Half year ended
December 31,

2019 2018
Undistributed Undistributed
Capital Value income / Total Capital Value income / Total
(accumulated (accumulated
loss) loss)
(Rupees in '000)
Net assets at beginning of the period 6,192,950 59,788 6,252,738 7,033,537 215,965 7,249,502
Issuance of 65,449,484 units (2018: 66,487,174 units)
- Capital value (at net asset value per unit at the beginning of the period) 6,690,245 - 6,690,245 6,784,145 - 6,784,145
- Element of income 212,112 - 212,112 104,723 - 104,723
Total proceeds on issuance of units 6,902,357 - 6,902,357 6,888,868 - 6,888,868
Redemption of 42,363,017 units (2018: 63,615,773 units)
- Capital value (at net asset value per unit at the beginning of the period) (4,330,347) - (4,330,347)| (6,491,156), - (6,491,156),
- Income already paid on redemption of units - (104,497) (104,497) - (86,480) (86,480)
- Amount paid out of element of loss (70,072)| - (70,072) (35,678) - (35,678)
Total payments on redemption of units (4,400,419) (104,497) (4,504,916) (6,526,834) (86,480) (6,613,314)
Element of income and capital gains included in prices
of units issued less those in units redeemed - net - - - - - -
Net income for the period after taxation - 505,426 505,425 - 275,734 275,734
Refund of Capital - - - (181,739) - (181,739)
Distribution during the period - - (166,578), (166,578)|
Other comprehensive income for the period - - - - - -
Net income for the period less distribution - 505,426 505,425 - 109,156 (72,583)
Net assets at end of the period 8,694,888 460,717 9,155,605 7,395,571 238,641 7,452,473
Undistributed income brought forward
- Realised 59,788 215,965
- Unrealised - -
59,788 215,965
Distribution during the period - (166,578)
Accounting income available for distribution:
- Relating to capital losses - -
- Excluding capital gains 400,929 189,254
400,929 189,254
Undistributed income carried forward 460,717 238,641
Undistributed income carried forward
- Realised 460,750 238,641
- Unrealised (33) -
460,717 238,641
(Rupees) (Rupees)
Net assets value per unit at beginning of the period 102.2200 107.1869
Net assets value per unit at end of the period 108.6643 105.7004
The annexed notes 1 to 14 form an integral part of these condensed interim financial information.
For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL Money Market Fund

Condensed Interim Cash Flow Statement (Un-Audited)
For the half year ended December 31, 2019

Half year ended
December 31,

2019 2018
Note = ------o-m--- (Rupees in '000) ------------
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income for the period before taxation 505,426 275,734
Adjustments for non-cash items:
Capital loss on sale of investments - net 3,686 7,021
Mark-up / return on investments (233,675) (198,301)
Profit on bank deposits (338,721) (139,428)
Unrealised diminution on re-measurement of investments
classified as Financial asset at fair value through profit and loss 33 17
Provision for Sindh Worker's Welfare Fund 10,315 5,627
(52,937) (49,330)
(Decrease) / increase in assets
Investments - net 284,112 (4,687,637)
Advances , deposits, prepayments and other receivables (147) (149)
283,965 (4,687,786)
Increase / (Decrease) in liabilities
Payable to the Management Company 5,703 1,537
Payable to the Trustee (494) 581
Payable to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (4,597) (1,205)
Payable against purchase of investment (492,454) 3,445,617
Accrued expenses and other liabilities (128,230) 377
(620,072) 3,447,007
(389,044) (1,290,109)
Bank profit received 299,763 108,799
Income on investments received 225,439 192,426
525,201 301,225
Net cash generated / (used in) from operating activities 136,158 (988,884)

Cash flows from financing activities

Amount received on issue of units 6,902,357 6,888,868
Payment against redemption of units

(4,504,916) (6,613,314)
Cash dividend paid - (348,317)
Net cash generated /(used in) from financing activities 2,397,442 (72,763)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2,533,599 (1,061,647)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period 5,485,942 7,298,928
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period 4 8,019,541 6,237,281
The annexed notes 1 to 14 form an integral part of these condensed interim financial information.

For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director

68



HBL Money Market Fund

Notes to the Condensed Interim Financial Information (Unaudited)
For the half year ended December 31, 2019

1.

2.1

2.1.1

2.1.2

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

HBL Money Market Fund ('the Fund') was established under a Trust Deed, dated March 18, 2010, executed between HBL
Asset Management Limited as the Management Company and Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited as the
Trustee. The Fund has been authorised by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) as a unit trust
scheme on April 9, 2010.

The Management Company of the Fund has been licensed to act as an Asset Management Company under the
Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 through a certificate of registration issued
by the SECP. The registered office of the Management Company is situated at 7th Floor, Emerald Tower, G-19, Block 5,
Main Clifton Road, Clifton, Karachi.

The Fund is an open ended mutual fund and offers units for public subscription on a continuous basis. The units are
transferable and can also be redeemed by surrendering to the Fund. The Fund is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange
Limited. The units of the Fund were initially offered for public subscription at par from July 12, 2010 to July 14, 2010.

The principal activity of the Fund is to seek high liquidity and comparative return for investors by investing in low risk
securities of shorter duration and maturity.

VIS Credit Rating Company has re assigned a management quality rating of AM2+’ (positive outlook) to the Management
Company and fund stability rating of AA(f) to the fund on December 31,2019

Title to the assets of the Fund are held in the name of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited as Trustee of the
Fund.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These condensed financial information have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards
as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 along with part VIIIA of the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984; and

- Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulations) Rules, 2003 (the NBFC Rules), Non-Banking Finance
Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the NBFC Regulations) and requirements of the Trust Deed.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations and requirements of the Trust Deed differ from the IFRS
Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations and requirements of the Trust Deed have been followed.

The disclosures made in these condensed interim financial information have, however, been limited based on the
requirements of 1AS-34. These condensed interim financial information does not include all the information and
disclosures required in a full set of financial statements and should be read in conjunction with the annual published
audited financial statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2019.

In compliance with Schedule V of the NBFC Regulations, the directors of the Management Company hereby declare that
these condensed interim financial information gives a true and fair view of the state of the Fund’s affairs as at December
31, 2019.
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2.3

2.4

3.1

3.2
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3.4

35

4.1

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

This condensed interim financial information has been prepared under the historical cost convention, except that certain
financial assets are stated at fair value.

FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY

This condensed interim financial information is presented in Pakistani Rupees which is the Fund's functional and
presentation currency. Amounts in this condensed financial information has been rounded off to the nearest thousand
rupees, unless otherwise stated.

The directors of the Management Company declare that this condensed interim financial information give a true and fair
view of the Fund.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING AND RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES, ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, JUDGEMENTS AND
CHANGES THEREIN

The accounting policies adopted for the preparation of the condensed interim financial information are the same as those
applied in the preparation of the annual audited financial statements of the Fund for the year, ended June 30, 2019.

The preparation of this condensed interim financial information in conformity with approved accounting standards
requires management to make estimates, assumptions and use judgements that affect the application of accounting
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Estimates, assumptions and judgments are
continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including reasonable expectations of
future events. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively commencing from the period of revision.

The significant estimates, judgements and assumptions made by the management in applying the accounting policies and
the key sources of estimation uncertainty are the same as those applied to the annual audited financial statements as at
and for the year ended June 30, 2019.

Certain amendments to approved accounting standards have been published and are mandatory for the Fund's
accounting periods beginning on or after July 01, 2019. None of these amendments are expected to have a significant
effect on this condensed interim financial information.

The financial risk management objectives and policies are consistent with those disclosed in the annual financial
statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2019.

(Un-Audited) (Audited)
December 31, June 30,
2019 2019
BANK BALANCES Note ~  ---—--- (Rupees in '000) --------
Balances with bank in:
- Saving account 4.1 8,019,541 2,185,942
- Term deposit receipts - 600,000
- Call deposit receipts - 2,700,000
8,019,541 5,485,942

Mark-up on these accounts ranges between 11.00% - 14.50% per annum (June 30, 2019: 4.00% - 13.6% per annum).
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5.1

5.2

INVESTMENTS

Financial asset at fair value through profit and loss

- Government Securities

Financial assets at amortised cost

- Commercial Paper
- Letter of placement

Investment in Government Securities - At fair value through profit and loss

Issue Date

Treasury bills

May 23, 2019

July 18, 2019
August 1, 2019
October 10, 2019
October 24, 2019
November 7, 2019
August 16, 2019
August 29, 2019
October 10, 2019
October 24, 2019
November 7, 2019

Tenure

3 month
3 month
3 month
3 month
3 month
3 month
3 month
3 month
6 month
6 month
6 month

Total - As at December 31, 2019

Total - As at June 30, 2019

Particulars

K-electric
K-electric
K-electric

Profit/
mark-up
rates

15.38%
14.74%
14.64%

(Un-Audited) (Audited)
December 31, June 30,
2019 2019

Note = -------- (Rupees in '000) ---
5.1 23,883 492,498
5.2 437,028 931,244
5.3 675,000 -
1,135,911 1,423,742

Face value Market Value as Market value as a percentage of
Asatlulyl, Purchases  Sales / Matured As at December At December Total Net Assets
2019 during the year during the year 31, 2019 31, 2019 Investments
--------------------------- (Rupees in '000) -------------=-n=nnmmnnmmev
500,000 1,200,000 1,700,000 - -
- 14,535,000 14,535,000 - - - -
- 4,862,500 4,862,500 - - - -
- 1,525,000 1,525,000 - - - -
- 3,300,000 3,300,000 - - - -
- 1,350,000 1,350,000 - - - -
- 625,000 625,000 - - - -
- 110,000 110,000 - - - -
- 910,000 910,000 - - - -
- 1,500,000 1,500,000 - - - -
- 2,575,000 2,550,000 25,000 23,883 2% 0.26%
500,000 32,492,500 32,967,500 25,000 23,883 0.02 0.00
- 109,826,500 109,326,500 500,000 492,498 34.59 7.88
Issue date Maturity Face Value Amortised  Carrying value Carrying
Date Cost as a % of net value asa %
assets of total
investment
--------------------------- (Rupees in '000) -------=-====mnmnmmummmanan
28-Aug-19 28-Feb-20 100,000 97,614 1.07% 8.59%
19-Sep-19 19-Mar-20 100,000 96,999 1.06% 8.54%
19-Sep-19 19-Mar-20 250,000 242,415 2.65% 21.34%
450,000 437,028
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5.3

5.2.1

Letter of Placement

Purchased X As at Percentage of
As at July . Matured during Percentage of
Name of Company o1 2019 made during the period December 31, total value of Net Assets (%)
! the period P 2019 investments (%) ’
----------------------- (Rupees in '000) -------------=--=-=----

Saudi Pak Ind & Agri Investment Co. - 450,000 450,000 - - -

Pak Oman Investment Company (Pvt) - 3,281,000 3,281,000 - - -

Pak Brunei Investment Co. Ltd. - 740,000 740,000 - - -
Zarai Taraqiati Bank limited - 1,425,000 750,000 675,000 59% 7%
Total - As at December 31, 2018 - 5,896,000 5,221,000 675,000 0.59 0.07

Total - As at June 30, 2019 - 3,148,000 3,148,000 - - -

Letter of placement carries mark-up range of 14% (June 30, 2019: Nil) per annum and will mature on January 24, 2020.

(Un-Audited) (Audited)
December 31, June 30,

2019

2019

..... (Rupees in '000) -----

PAYABLE TO THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY

Management fee 6,944 4,714
Sindh sales tax on Management Company's remuneration 903 613

Allocation of expenses related to registrar services,
accounting, operation and valuation services - 501
Sale load payable to management company 3,699 15
11,546 5,843

(Un-Audited) (Audited)
December 31, June 30,

2019 2019

Note  ----- (Rupees in '000) -----

ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES
Auditors' remuneration 319 456
Withholding tax payable 60 30,995
Capital gain tax payable 8,434 2,296
Federal Excise Duty 7.1 41,211 41,211
Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund 7.2 34,691 24,376
Advance received against units to be issued 2,500 2,500
Dividend payable 1,926 101,223
Others 322 4,321
89,463 207,378
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7.1

7.2

10.

As per the requirement of the Finance Act, 2013, Federal Excise Duty (FED) at the rate of 16 percent on the remuneration
of the Management Company has been applied effective from June 13, 2013. The Management Company is of the view
that since the remuneration is already subject to the provincial sales tax, further levy of FED results in double taxation,
which does not appear to be the spirit of the law, hence, a petition was collectively filed by the Mutual Fund Association
of Pakistan along-with Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited with the Sindh High Court (SHC) on September 04,
2013.

While disposing the above petition through order dated June 30, 2016, the SHC declared the said provisions to be ultra
vires and as a result no FED is payable with effect from July 01, 2011. However, the tax authorities subsequently filed
appeal against the decision of the SHC in the Supreme Court of Pakistan, which is pending for the decision.

The Finance Act, 2016 excluded the mutual funds from the levy of FED with effect from July 01, 2016. therefore, no
provision is charged during the period ending December 31, 2019.

However, since the appeal is pending in Supreme Court of Pakistan, the Management Company, has made a provision on
FED on remuneration of Management Company, aggregating to Rs. 41.211 million. Had the provision not been made, the
Net Asset Value per unit as at December 31, 2019 would have been higher by Rs. 0.489 (June 30, 2019: Rs. 0.674) per unit.

The legal status of applicability of Federal Excise Duty on the Fund is same as that disclosed in note 12.2 to the annual
audited financial statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the appeal filed by tax authorities against
the order by Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan dated July 16, 2016, is pending for decision.

As a result of the above recommendations of the MUFAP, the Fund on January 12, 2017, reversed the provision of WWF
amounting to Rs. 64.738 million and started recognising provision for SWWF.

As at December 31, 2019, the provision in relation to SWWF amounted to Rs. 34.691 million (June 2018: Rs. 12.371
million). Had the provision not being made, the Net Asset Value per unit as at December 31, 2019 would have been higher
by Rs. 0.4117 (June 30, 2019: Rs. 0.398) per unit.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
There are no contingencies and commitments outstanding as at December 31, 2019 and June 30, 2019.
TAXATION

The Fund's income is exempt from Income Tax as per clause (99) of part | of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 subject to the condition that not less than 90% of the accounting income for the year as reduced by
capital gains whether realised or unrealised is distributed to the unit holders in cash. The Fund is also exempt from the
provisions of section 113 (minimum tax) under clause 11A of Part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance,
2001. The Fund has not recorded a tax liability in the current period, as the Management Company intends to distribute
more than 90 percent of the Fund's accounting income as reduced by capital gains (whether realised or unrealised) for
the period ended December 31, 2019 to its unit holders.

TRANSACTIONS WITH CONNECTED PERSONS / RELATED PARTIES

Connected persons include HBL Asset Management Limited being the Management Company, Habib Bank Limited being
the Sponsor, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, being the Trustee of the Fund, other collective investment
schemes managed by the Management Company, directors and officers of the Management Company, directors of
connected persons and persons having 10% or more beneficial ownership of the units of the Fund.

Transactions with connected persons are carried out in the normal course of business, at agreed /contracted rates and
terms determined in accordance with market rates.

Remuneration payable to Management Company and Trustee is determined in accordance with the provisions of the
NBFC Regulations and the Trust Deed respectively.

Details of the transactions with connected persons and balances with them, if not disclosed elsewhere in the condensed
interim financial information are as follows:
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10.2

(Un-Audited)
Half year ended
December 31,

Transactions during the period

HBL Asset Management Limited - Management Company

Management fee inclusive of Sales tax

Allocation of expenses related to registrar senices,
accounting, operation and valuation senvices

Issue of 934,643units (2018: 78,443 units)

Redemption of 692,158units (2018: 1,069,156 units)

Habib Bank Limited - Sponsor

Mark-up earned during the period

Issue of nil units (2018:95,212 units)

Redemption of 4,621,263 units (2018: 324,958 units)

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee
Remuneration of the Trustee

Directors, Executives and Key Management personnel
Issue of 52,3348units (2018: 1,895 units)
Redemption of 52,258units (2018: 1,627 units)

Fauji Fertilizer Company Ltd
Connected persons due to holding 10% or more units
Issue of 20,743,816 units (2018: Nil units)

MCBFSL Trustee HBL Financial Planning Fund
Issue of 16,246 units (2018: Nil units)
Redemption of 159,508 (2018: Nil units)

Amounts outstanding as at period / year end

HBL Asset Management Limited - Management Company
Management Fee
Sindh Sales Tax
Allocation of expenses related to registrar services,
accounting, operation and valuation services
Sales load payable
Investment held in the Fund : 263,596 units (June 30, 2019 : 21,109 units)

2019

38,957
4,136

101,195
75,000

35,028

500,000

3,051

5,601
5,597

2,160,000

1,740
16,598

(Un-Audited)
December 31,
2019
(Rupees in '000) ----------

6,944
903

28,643

2018

mmmmmmmmm- (Rupees in '000) ----------

37,887

3,945
8,063
111,111

21,520
9,715
33,121

3,771

196
169

(Audited)
June 30,

2019

4,714
613

501
15
2,158
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12,

(Un-Audited) (Audited)
December 31, June 30,

2019 2019

---------- (Rupees in '000) ----------
Habib Bank Limited - Sponsor

Investment held in the Fund : 4,116,245 units (June 30, 2019: 8,737,507 units) 447,289 893,148
Bank balances 3,968,973 503,798
Sales load payable - 3,833

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee
Remuneration payable 482 919

Sindh Sales tax 62 119
Directors, Executives and Key Management personnel

Investment held in the Fund : 13,242 units (June 30, 2019: 13,150 units) 1,439 1,349
MCBFSL Trustee HBL Financial Planning Fund- Connected persons

Investment held in the Fund : 396,163 units (June 30, 2019: 539,425 units) 43,049 55,140

Fauji Fertilizer Company Ltd due to holding 10% or more units

Investment held in the Fund : 20,764,373 units (June 30, 2019: Nil units) 2,256,346 -

Prior period balances with these parties has not been disclosed as they were not connected person and related
parties during prior periods.

TOTAL EXPENSE RATIO

In accordance with the directive 23 of 2016 dated July 20, 2016 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan, the total expense ratio of the Fund for the half year ended December 31, 2019 is 0.72% (December 31, 2018:
0.70%) which includes 0.18% (December 31, 2018: 0.17%) representing government levies and SECP fee.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid or transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants and measurement date. Consequently, differences can arise between carrying values and
the fair value estimates.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Fund is a going concern without any intention or
requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction on adverse terms.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities traded in active markets i.e. listed equity shares are based on the quoted
market prices at the close of trading on the reporting date. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the
Fund is current bid price.

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from
an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.
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12.2

International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 13, "Fair Value Measurement" requires the Fund to classify fair value
measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements.
The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

- Fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in activve markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1);.

- Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) (level 2); and

- Fair value measurements using Inputs for assets or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e.
unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their
levels in the fair value hierarchy.

December 31, 2019

Carrying amount Fair Value
Fair value At amortised cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
through profit
and loss
Note (Rupees in '000) ------=====nsmmmmemmmmmmmmmmmmnnaan
Financial assets measured at fair value 121
Investments
Government securities 23,883 - 23,883 - 23,883 - 23,883
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Investments 1,112,028 1,112,028
Bank balance 8,019,541 8,019,541
Accrued mark-up 102,331 102,331
Deposits and prepayments 114 114
- 9,234,014 9,234,014
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value 12.1
Payable to the Management Company - 11,546 11,546
Payable to the Trustee - 544 544
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - 5,067 5,067
- 17,157 17,157
June 30, 2019
Carrying amount Fair Value
Fairvalue At amortised cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
through profit
and loss
(Rupees in '000) =------mmnmmmmmmmmmmmmm e
Note
On-balance sheet financial instruments
121
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Investments
Government securities 492,498 - 492,498 492,498 - - 492,498
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Bank balance 1,423,742 1,423,742
Dividend recievable and accrued mark-up 55,136 55,136
Deposits 100 100
- 1,478,978 1,478,978
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value 12.1
Payable to the Management Company - 5,843 5,843
Payable to the Trustee - 1,038 1,038
Payable against purchase of investments - 492,454 492,454
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - 4,777 4,777
- 504,112 504,112

The Fund has not disclosed the fair values for these financial assets and financial liabilities, as these are either short term
in nature or reprice periodically. Therefore, their carrying amounts are reasonable approximation of fair value.

Transfers during the period

There were no transfers between various levels of fair value hierarchy during the period.
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13. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

The condensed interim financial information was authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the Management
Company on February 13, 2020.

14. GENERAL
14.1 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees.
14.2 This condensed interim financial information is unaudited and has been reviewed by the auditors. Further, the figures of

the condensed interim income statement and condensed interim statement of comprehensive income for the quarter
ended December 31, 2019 have not been reviewed.

For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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FUND INFORMATION

Name of Fund

Name of Auditor

Name of Trustee

Bankers

Fund Rating

HBL Cash Fund

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC)

Habib Bank Limited

Bank Al-Habib Limited
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited
Bank Al-Falah Limited

MCB Bank Limited

Allied Bank Limited

Dubai Islamic Bank Limited
Samba Bank Limited

Zarai Taragiati Bank Limited
United Bank Limited

Sindh Bank Limited

Faysal Bank Limited

‘AA(f)’ (JCR-VIS)
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CENTRAL DEPOSITORY COMPANY
OF PAKISTAN LIMITED

Head Office

CDC House, 99-8, Block "B’
5M.CH.5 Main Shahra-e-Faisal
Karachi - 74400. Pakistan.

Tel (92-21) 111-111-500

Fax: (92-21) 34326021 -23

URL: wwww cdcpakistan.com

Emnail: info@cdopak.com
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TRUSTEE REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS
HBL CASH FUND

Report of the Trustee pursuant to Regulation 41(h) of the Non-Banking Finance Companies
and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008

We, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, being the Trustze of HBL Cash Fund (the
Fund) are of the opinion that HEL Asset Management Limited, being the Management Company
of the Fund has in all material respects managed the Fund during the six months period ended
December 31. 2019 in accordance with the provisions of the following:

(i} Limitations imposed on the investment powers ofthe Management Company under the
consttutive documents of the Fund;

{(iiy  The pricing. issuance and redemption of units are carried out in sccordance with the
requirements of the constitutive documents of the Fund; and

{(iii)  The Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulations) Rules, 2003,
the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 and the
constituiive documents of the Fund,

N N |
Badivddin Akber
Chief Executive Officer
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited

Karachi, February 24, 2020
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Tel: +92 21 3563 3030 2rd Floor, Block-C
O Fax: <92 21 3568 4239 Lakson Square, Building No.1
www,bdo.com.pk Sarwar Shaheed Road

I—-— Karachi-T4200
Pakistan

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON REVIEW OF CONDENSED INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION TO
THE UNIT HOLDERS OF HEL CASH FUND

Introduction

We have reviewsd the accompanying condensed interim statement of assets and liabilities of HEL CASH
FUND (“the Fund”) as at December 31, 2019 and the related condensed interim income statement,
condensed interim statement of comprehensive income, condensed interim statement of cash flows,
condensed interim statement of movement in unit holders’ fund and notes to the condensed interim
financial information for the half year then ended (here-in-after referred to as “interim financial
infermation™). HBL Asset Management Limited (the “Management Company') is responsible for the
preparation and presentation of this condensed interim financial information in accordance with
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim financial reporting. Our
responsibility is to express a conclusion on this condensed interim financial information based on our
MEVIEW.

Scope of Review

We conducted our review in accordance with International Standard on Review Engagements 2410,
“Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity.” A review
of condensed interim financial information consists of making inquiries, primarily of persons responsible
for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review procedures. A roview is
substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all
significant matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit apinion.

Conclusion

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying
condensed interim financial information as at and for the half year ended December 31, 2019 is not
prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable
in Pakistan for interim financial reporting.

Other matter
The figures for the quarter ended December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018 in the condensed interim

income statement and condensed interim statement of comprehensive income have not been reviewed
and we do not express a conclusion on them.

KARACHI /’ o
. CODE f;.»t{lﬁx :f...-? .
patep: | 3 FEE 2020 T kg,
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Engagement Partner: Raheel Shahnawaz

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants
B0 Enrahirn b o, & Pakistan regatered partnenivip Femy, i o mamber of o0 Incemnational Lisited, & UK company Hmited by garanles
and oo part of the amational BOD network of Independent ke firmi.
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HBL Cash Fund

Condensed Interim Statement of Assets and Liabilities (Un-Audited)

As At December 31, 2019
December 31, June 30,
2019 2019
(Un-Audited) (Audited)
Note ~ —-=-m-mememememe (Rupees in '000) -------=-=-=----
ASSETS
Bank balances 4 9,349,298 7,064,377
Investments 5 1,250,666 2,693,870
Mark-up receivable 131,049 104,600
Advances, deposits and prepayments 6 1,320 3,384
TOTAL ASSETS 10,732,333 9,866,231
LIABILITIES
Payable to the Management Company 7 9,704 7,387
Payable to the Trustee 8 716 809
Payable to Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 9 1,009 8,887
Payable against purchase of investments - net - 984,910
Dividend payable - 138
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 10 57,689 55,177
TOTAL LIABILITIES 69,118 1,057,308
NET ASSETS 10,663,215 8,808,923
UNIT HOLDERS' FUND (AS PER STATEMENT ATTACHED) 10,663,215 8,808,923
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 11
---------------- (Number of Units)----------------
Number of units in issue 104,652,994 87,313,394
(Rupees)
Net assets value per unit 101.8912 100.8886
The annexed notes from 1 to 18 form an integral part of this condensed interim financial information.
For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL Cash Fund

Condensed Interim Income Statement (Un-Audited)
For The Half Year And Quarter Ended December 31, 2019

Half year ended Quarter ended
December 31, December 31,

2019 2018 2019 2018

Note ~ = e (Rupees in '000)------------=-=------
Income
Capital loss on sale of investments - net (3,378) (8,350) (2,239) (8,002)
Income from Government securities 196,972 237,362 110,363 113,043
Income from money market transactions and placements 125,189 94,297 71,919 57,751
Mark-up on bank deposits 371,891 215,163 193,662 121,898
690,674 538,472 373,705 284,690
Unrealised diminution on re-measurement of
investments classified as financial assets at 'fair value through
profit or loss' - net - (30) - (30)
690,674 538,442 373,705 284,660
Expenses
Remuneration of the Management Company 7.1 26,894 40,952 18,455 26,542
Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of the Management Company 7.2 3,496 5,324 2,399 3,451
Remuneration of the Trustee 8.1 3,278 4,989 1,762 2,464
Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of the Trustee 8.2 426 649 229 320
Annual fee to Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 1,009 4,819 543 2,371
Allocation of expenses related to registrar services, -
accounting, operation and valuation services 7.3 7,856 6,426 4,132 3,162
Selling and marketing expense 7.4 5,707 - - -
Auditors' remuneration 225 221 118 110
Fee and subscription 164 153 89 79
Securities transaction costs and settlement charges 708 444 424 201
Bank charges 294 190 146 108
Printing charges 20 - 20 -
50,077 64,167 28,317 38,808
Net income for the period from operating activities 640,597 474,275 345,388 245,852
Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund 10.2 (12,812) (9,485) (6,908) (5,023)
Net income for the period before taxation 627,785 464,790 338,480 240,829
Taxation 12 - - - -
Net income for the period after taxation 627,785 464,790 338,480 240,829
Allocation of net income for the period
Income already paid on redemption 27,803 197,309 20,158 167,668
Accounting income available for distribution:
Relating to capital gains - - - -
Excluding capital gains 599,982 267,481 318,321 73,161
599,982 267,481 318,322 73,161
627,785 464,790 338,480 240,829
Earnings per unit 13
The annexed notes from 1 to 18 form an integral part of this condensed interim financial information.
For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL Cash Fund

Condensed Statement of Comprehensive Income (Un-Audited)
For The Half Year And Quarter Ended December 31, 2019

Half year ended Quarter ended
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018 2019 2018

Net income for the period after taxation 627,785 464,790 338,480 240,829

Other comprehensive income

Items that will be reclassified subsequently to income statement

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to income statement

Total comprehensive income for the period 627,785 464,790 338,480 240,829

The annexed notes from 1 to 18 form an integral part of this condensed interim financial information.

For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL Cash Fund

Condensed Interim Statement of Cash Flow (Un-Audited)

For The Half Year Ended December 31, 2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income for the period before taxation
Adjustments for:

Capital loss on sale of investment - net
Income from Government securities
Income from money market placements
Mark-up on bank deposits

Decrease / (increase) in assets
Investments - net
Advances, deposits and prepayments

(Decrease) / increase in liabilities
Payable to the Management Company
Payable to the Trustee
Payable to Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Dividend payable

Cash generated from / (used in) operations
Income received from Government securities
Income received from money market placement
Mark-up received on bank deposits

Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Amount received on issue of units
Amount paid on redemption of units
Dividend paid
Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents during the period

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

The annexed notes from 1 to 18 form an integral part of this condensed interim financial information.

For HBL Asset Management Limited

(Management Company)

Chief Financial Officer

Chief Executive Officer

Half year ended
December 31,
2019 2018
---------------- (Rupees in '000) -------=-=------
627,785 464,790
3,378 8,350
(196,972) (237,362)
(125,189) (94,297)
(371,891) (215,163)
(62,889) (73,682)
454,983 (1,922,644)
2,064 (3,827)
457,047 (1,926,471)
2,318 2,756
(93) (34)
(7,878) (3,102)
2,511 1,641
(138) 43,842
(3,280) 45,103
390,878 (1,955,050)
196,972 237,362
111,235 81,440
359,330 173,748
667,537 492,550
1,058,415 (1,462,500)
8,034,437 16,561,545
(6,284,960) (17,772,306)
(522,971) (979,777)
1,226,506 (2,190,538)
2,284,921 (3,653,038)
7,064,377 10,899,252
9,349,298 7,246,215
Director




HBL Cash Fund

Condensed Interim Statement of Movement in Unit Holders' Fund (Un-Audited)

For The Half Year Ended December 31, 2019

Net assets at beginning of the period

Issuance of 79,309,465 units (2018: 161,719,040 units)
Capital value (at net asset value per unit at the beginning of the period)
Element of income

Total proceeds on issuance of units

Redemption of 61,969,864 units (2018: 173,173,598 units)
Capital value (at net asset value per unit at the beginning of the period)
Income already paid on redemption of units
Element of loss

Total payments on redemption of units

Total comprehensive income for the period

Annual distribution of Rs. 5.25 per unit declared on July 04, 2018 as cash dividend
Refund of capital
Distribution for the year

Interim distribution of Rs. 3.50 per unit declared on December 28, 2018 as cash dividend
Refund of capital
Distribution for the period

Interim distribution of Rs. 1.1585 per unit declared on August 02, 2019 as cash dividend
Refund of capital
Distribution for the period

Interim distribution of Rs. 1.0317 per unit declared on September 03, 2019 as cash dividend
Refund of capital
Distribution for the period

Interim distribution of Rs. 1.0471 per unit declared on October 02, 2019 as cash dividend
Refund of capital
Distribution for the period

Interim distribution of Rs. 1.1689 per unit declared on November 04, 2019 as cash dividend
Refund of capital
Distribution for the period

Interim distribution of Rs. 0.9464 per unit declared on December 03, 2019 as cash dividend
Refund of capital
Distribution for the period

Net assets at end of the period
Undistributed income brought forward
Realised income

Unrealised income

Accounting income available for distribution
Relating to capital gains

Excluding capital gains

Distribution for the period:
Interim distribution of Rs. 1.1585 per unit declared on August 02, 2019 as cash dividend
Interim distribution of Rs. 1.0317 per unit declared on September 03, 2019 as cash dividend
Interim distribution of Rs. 1.0471 per unit declared on October 02, 2019 as cash dividend
Interim distribution of Rs. 1.1689 per unit declared on November 04, 2019 as cash dividend
Interim distribution of Rs. 0.9464 per unit declared on December 03, 2019 as cash dividend

Undistributed income carried forward
Undistributed income carried forward
Realised income

Unrealised income

Net assets value per unit at beginning of the period

Net assets value per unit at end of the period

Half year ended December 31,

The annexed notes from 1 to 18 form an integral part of this condensed interim financial information.

For HBL Asset Management Limited

2019 2018
Capital Value Um.iistrihuted Total Capital Value Um.iistributed Total
income income
(Rupees in '000)
8,764,853 44,070 8,808,923 11,727,212 312,522 12,039,734
8,001,418 - 8,001,418 16,293,535 - 16,293,535
33,019 - 33,019 268,010 - 268,010
8,034,437 - 8,034,437 16,561,545 - 16,561,545
(6,252,053) - (6,252,053) (17,447,606) - (17,447,606)
- (27,803) (27,803) - (197,309) (197,309)
(5,104) - (5,104) (127,391) - (127,391)
(6,257,157) (27,803) (6,284,960) (17,574,997) (197,309)  (17,772,306)
- 627,785 627,785 - 464,790 464,790
- - - (319,181) - (319,181)
- - - - (277,112) (277,112)
- - - (132,688) - (132,688)
- - - - (250,794) (250,794)
(10,589) - (10,589) - - -
- (95,237) (95,237) - - -
(961) - (961) - - -
- (94,473) (94,473) - - -
(4,030) - (4,030) - - -
- (96,321) (96,321) - - -
(5,371) - (5,371) - - -
- (111,020) (111,020) - - -
(5,373) - (5,373) - B .
- (99,595) (99,595) - - -
(26,324) 131,139 104,815 (451,869) (63,118) (514,987)
10,515,809 147,406 10,663,215 10,261,891 52,095 10,313,986
44,070 312,522
44,070 312,522
599,982 267,481
599,982 267,481
(95,237) :
(94,473) -
(96,321) -
(111,020) -
(99,595) -
(496,646) (527,908)
147,406 52,095
147,406 52,095
147,406 52,095
(Rupees) (Rupees)
100.8886 106.0021
101.8912
(Management Company)
Chief Executive Officer Director

Chief Financial Officer
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HBL Cash Fund

Notes to the Condensed Interim Financial Information (Un-Audited)
For The Half Year Ended December 31, 2019

1

2.1

2.1.1

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

HBL Cash Fund ('the Fund') was established under a Trust Deed executed between PICIC Asset Management Company
Limited (now, HBL Asset Management Limited) as the Management Company and Central Depository Company of
Pakistan Limited (CDC) as the Trustee. The Fund was approved by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
(SECP) vide its letter No. SCD/NBFC-11/DD/PCF/844/2010 dated November 11, 2010 and the Trust Deed was executed on
October 22, 2010.

Through an order dated August 31, 2016, SECP approved the merger of PICIC Asset Management Company Limited with
and into HBL Asset Management Limited effective from August 31, 2016 and the trust deed was revised on February 17,
2017. Effective from September 1, 2016, HBL Asset Management Limited became Management Company of the Fund
which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Habib Bank Limited. The Aga Khan Fund for Economic Development (AKFED), S.A.,
is the parent company of Habib Bank Limited.

The Management Company of the Fund has been registered as a Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC) under the
Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 (NBFC Rules) and has obtained the requisite
license from the SECP to undertake Asset Management Services. The registered office of the Management Company is at
7th Floor, Emerald Tower, G-19, Block 5, Main Clifton Road, Clifton, Karachi.

The Fund is an open-ended money market scheme and is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The units of the Fund
were initially offered for public subscription at par value of Rs. 100 per unit from December 11, 2010 to December 13,
2010. Thereafter, the units are offered to the public for subscription on a continuous basis and are transferable and
redeemable by surrendering them to the Fund.

The Fund has been categorized as a money market scheme as per the criteria laid down by the SECP for categorization of
open-end Collective Investment Schemes (CISs).

The core objective of the Fund is to provide competitive returns to its investors through active investments in low risk
portfolio of short duration, while maintaining high liquidity.

JCR-VIS Credit Rating Company has assigned a management quality rating of '"AM2+' (AM Two Plus) positive outlook to the
Management Company and assigned stability rating of AA(f) to the Fund as at December 31, 2019 and December 30,
2019, respectively.

Title of the assets of the Fund is held in the name of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited as trustee of the
Fund.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance

This condensed interim financial information has been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim financial reporting. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable
in Pakistan for interim financial reporting comprise of International Accounting Standard (IAS) 34, Interim Financial
Reporting, issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017, the
provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, along with part VIIIA of the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules, the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the 'NBFC
Regulations'), the directives issued by the SECP and the requirements of the Trust Deed.

87



2.1.2

2.1.3

2.14

2.15

2.2

23

3.1

3.2

Where the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations, the directives issued by the SECP and the requirements of the
Trust Deed differ from the requirements of the IAS 34, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act,
2017, part VIIIA of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations, the directives issued
by the SECP and the requirements of the Trust Deed have been followed.

The disclosures made in this condensed interim financial information have, however, been limited based on the
requirements of IAS 34. This condensed interim financial information does not include all the information and disclosures
required in a full set of financial statements and should be read in conjunction with the annual published audited financial
statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2019.

The comparative statement of assets and liabilities presented in this condensed interim financial information has been
extracted from the annual audited financial statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2019, whereas the
comparative condensed interim income statement, condensed interim statement of comprehensive income, condensed
interim statement of cash flows, condensed interim statement of movement in unit holders’ fund are extracted from the
unaudited condensed interim financial information for the half year ended December 31, 2018.

This condensed interim financial information is unaudited, but has been reviewed by the auditors. Further, the figures of
the condensed interim income statement and condensed interim statement of comprehensive income for the quarter
ended December 31, 2019 have not been reviewed.

In compliance with Schedule V of the NBFC Regulations, the directors of the Management Company hereby declare that
this condensed interim financial information gives a true and fair view of the state of the Fund’s affairs as at December 31,
2019.

Basis of measurement

This condensed interim financial information has been prepared under the historical cost convention, except that certain
financial assets are stated at fair value.

This condensed interim financial information has been prepared following accrual basis of accounting except for cash flow
information.

Functional and presentation currency

This condensed interim financial information is presented in Pakistani Rupees which is the Fund's functional and
presentation currency.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING AND RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES, ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, JUDGEMENTS AND
CHANGES THEREIN

The accounting policies adopted for the preparation of this condensed interim financial information are the same as those
applied in the preparation of the annual audited financial statements of the Fund for the year, ended June 30, 2019,
unless otherwise stated.

The preparation of this condensed interim financial information in conformity with accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan requires management to make estimates, assumptions and use judgements that affect the
application of accounting policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Estimates,
assumptions and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
reasonable expectations of future events. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively commencing
from the period of revision.
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33

3.4

35

4.1

5.1

The significant estimates, judgements and assumptions made by the management in applying the accounting policies and
the key sources of estimation uncertainty are the same as those applied to the annual audited financial statements as at
and for the year ended June 30, 2019.

There are certain standards, interpretations and amendments to approved accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan, effective for the first time in this condensed interim financial information and are mandatory for
the Fund's accounting period beginning on or after July 01, 2019. These standards, interpretations and amendments are
either not relevant to the Fund's operations or are not expected to have a significant effect on this condensed interim
financial information.

The Fund's financial risk management objectives and policies are consistent with that disclosed in annual audited
financial statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2019.

December 31, June 30,
2019 2019
(Un-Audited) (Audited)
Note @ - (Rupees in '000) -----------
BANK BALANCES
Cash at bank
In savings accounts 4.1 9,349,298 5,464,377
Call deposit receipts - 1,600,000
9,349,298 7,064,377

This represents bank accounts held with various banks. profit rates on these accounts range between 11.25% to 14.35%
per annum (June 30, 2019: 8% to 13.60% per annum). This includes a balance held by Habib Bank Limited (a related
party), amounting to Rs. 4,165.284 million (June 30, 2019: Rs. 1,333.678 million).

December 31, June 30,
INVESTMENTS 2019 2019

(Un-Audited) (Audited)
Financial assets NOte ----------- (Rupees in |000) -----------
At fair value through profit or loss 5.1 - 984,996
At amortized cost 5.2 1,250,666 1,708,874

1,250,666 2,693,870

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Market treasury bills 5.1.1 - 984,996
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5.1.1

5.2

5.2.1

5.2.2

Market Treasury Bills

sal Balance as at December 31, 2019 Market value Market value
As at Purchases m:tflie/d As at as as
Issue date Tenure July 1, during the A December 31, Market Appreciation / percentage percentage
- during the Carrying value L
2019 period eriod 2019 value (diminution) of net of total
P assets investments
(Rupees in '000)
May 23, 2019 3 months 1,000,000 3,350,000 4,350,000
June 10, 2019 3 months - 570,000 570,000
July 18, 2019 3 months 20,412,000 20,412,000
August 1, 2019 3 months 4,725,000 4,725,000
August 16, 2019 3 months 912,000 912,000
August 29, 2019 3 months 200,000 200,000
October 10, 2019 3 months 6,370,000 6,370,000
October 24, 2018 3 months 9,340,000 9,340,000
November 7, 2018 3 months 2,655,000 2,655,000
Total - As at December 31, 2019 1,000,000 48,534,000 49,534,000 - - - - - -
Total - June 30, 2019 - 156,187,000 155,187,000 1,000,000 984,910 984,996 36 11.18% 36.56%
December 31, June 30,
2019 2019
(Un-Audited) (Audited)
Note (Rupees in '000)
Financial assets at amortized cost
Letter of placements 5.2.1 785,000 400,000
Commercial paper 5.2.2 465,666 1,308,874
1,250,666 1,708,874

Letter of placement carry mark-up at the rate of 13.8% per annum (June, 30 2019: 11.35%). This will mature on March 19,

2020.
Commercial paper

As at Placement Placement As at Percentage Percentage

Name of investee company July 1, made during | Income accrued | matured during | December 31, of total of of net
2019 the year the year 2019 investments assets
------------------------------ (Rupees in '000) ------=-----=-=mmremmmarmeneaen

K Electric Limited 433,585 2,794 - 436,379 35% 4.09%
K Electric Limited 29,188 75 - 29,263 2% 0.27%
Total - as at December 31, 2019 462,773 2,869 - 465,642 37% 4.37%
Total - as at June 30, 2019 1,264,769 44,105 - 1,308,874 49% 15.00%

These commercial papers carry mark-up at the rate of 14.64% and 15.38% (June 30, 2019: 11.35%) per annum and will be
matured by March 19, 2020 and February 28, 2020 respectively.
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6.1

7.1

7.2

7.3

December 31, June 30,

2019 2019

ADVANCES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (Un-Audited) (Audited)

Note - (Rupees in '000) -----------
Security deposit with:

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited 100 100
100 100
Prepaid expenses 259 107
Advance tax 6.1 961 3,177
1,320 3,384

The income of the Fund is exempt from tax under clause 99 of Part | of the Second Schedule of the Income Tax Ordinance,
2001 (ITO 2001). Furthermore, the Fund is exempt under clause 47(B) of Part IV of Second Schedule of ITO 2001 from
withholding of tax under section 150, 150A, 151 and 233 of ITO 2001.

The Federal Board of Revenue through a circular “C.No.1 (43) DG (WHT)/2008-Vol.ll- 66417-R”, dated May 12, 2015, made
it mandatory to obtain exemption certificates under section 159 (1) of the ITO 2001 from Commissioner Inland Revenue
(CIR). However, various withholding agents have deducted advance tax under section 151 of ITO 2001. The management
is confident that the same shall be refunded after filing refund application within stipulated time, as per ITO 2001.

December 31, June 30,
2019 2019
(Un-Audited) (Audited)
PAYABLE TO THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY ]
Note -------- (Rupees in '000) -----------
Remuneration to the Management Company 7.1 6,635 5,628
Sindh sales tax payable on the
Management Company's remuneration 7.2 863 732
Allocation of expenses related to registrar services,
accounting, operation and valuation services 7.3 1,949 889
Sales load payable 257 138
9,704 7,387

As per the offering document of the Fund, the Management Company shall charge a fee at the rate of 7.5% of gross
earnings of the Scheme, calculated on daily basis not exceeding 1% of the average daily net assets of the Scheme and
subject to a minimum fee of 0.50% of the average daily net assets of the Scheme, subject to the guidelines as may be
issued by the Commission from time to time. During the period, the fee has been charged, at the rate ranging between
0.15% to 0.68% of the daily annual net assets of the Fund. The fee is being charged at the rate of 0.68% from September
1, 2019 onwards. The fee is payable monthly in arrears.

The Sindh Provincial Government has levied Sindh Sales Tax (SST) at the rate of 13% (June 30, 2019: 13%) on the
remuneration of management company through Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011.

As per Regulation 60(3)(s) of the NBFC Regulations, fee and expenses pertaining to registrar services, accounting,
operation and valuation services related to a Collective Investment Scheme (CIS) are chargeable to the CIS. Previously,
such expenses were chargeable maximum upto 0.1% of the average annual net assets on daily basis of the Scheme or the
actual cost, whichever is lower. However, SECP, vide S.R.0. 639(1)/2019, dated June 20, 2019, has removed the maximum
limit of 0.1%.
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7.4

8.1

8.2

9.1

During the period, the fee has been charged at the rate ranging between 0.1% to 0.2% of the daily annual net assets of
the Fund. The fee is being charged at the rate of 0.2% from December 1, 2019 onwards.

As per SECP vide its circular No. SCD/PRDD/Circular/361/2016, dated December 30, 2016, selling and marketing
expenses was chargeable to open end equity, upto maximum 0.4% of the average annual net assets of the Scheme or the
actual cost, whichever is lower.

However, circular No. SCD/PRDD/Circular/04/2019, dated July 5, 2019, issued by SECP, supersedes all previous circulars
issued with respect to selling and marketing expenses, according to which, selling and marketing expenses can be charged
to all categories of open end mutual funds, except fund of funds with no cap. During the period, the fee has been charged
at the rate ranging between 0% to 0.5% of the daily annual net assets of the Fund. No fee is being charged from
September 1, 2019 onwards.

December 31, June 30,
2019 2019
(Un-Audited) (Audited)
Note @  -—--m-mmm-- (Rupees in '000) -----------
PAYABLE TO THE TRUSTEE
Prepaid expenses 8.1 716 809

The Trustee is entitled to a monthly remuneration for services rendered to the Fund under the provisions of the Trust
Deed as per the tariff specified therein, based on the daily net assets of the Fund. The fee is paid to the Trustee monthly
in arrears.

Earlier, the Trustee fee was charged as per the details disclosed in note 10.2 to the annual audited financial statements of
the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2019. CDC vide notification CDC/CEOQ/L-112/02/2019, dated June 27, 2019, has
revised the rates of the Trustee fee, with effect from July 1, 2019, according to which, Trustee fee shall be charged at the
rate of 0.065% of the average annual net assets of the Fund. During the period, Management Company has charged the
Trustee fee accordingly.

The Provincial Government of Sindh has levied Sindh Sales Tax at the rate of 13% (June 30, 2019: 13%) on the Trustee fee
through the Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011.

December 31, June 30,
2019 2019
(Un-Audited) (Audited)
Note ~  -————-- (Rupees in '000) -----------
PAYABLE TO SECURITIES AND
EXCHANGE COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN
Annual fee payable 9.1 1,009 8,887

Under the regulation 62 of the NBFC Regulations, a Collective Investment Scheme (CIS) categorized as an equity scheme
is required to pay as annual fee to the SECP, an amount equal to 0.075% of the average annual net assets of the Scheme.
However, SECP, vide S.R.O. 685 (1)/2019, dated June 28, 2019, has reduced the rate of the fee to 0.02% of the average
annual net assets for all categories of CIS(s), with effect from July 1, 2019. During the period, Management Company has
charged the fee accordingly. The fee is payable annually in arrears.
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10

10.1

10.2

11

12

December 31, June 30,

2019 2019
(Un-Audited) (Audited)
Note (Rupees in '000)

ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES
Provision for Federal Excise Duty 10.1 7,528 7,528
Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund 10.2 46,309 33,497
Withholding tax payable 3,183 13,711
Sales Load-payable to the related parties 142 56
Auditors' remuneration 223 313
Printing charges - 13
Brokerage payable 95 9
Zakat Payable 51 50
Others 158 -

57,689 55,177

The legal status of applicability of Federal Excise Duty (FED) on the Fund is the same as disclosed in note 12.1 to the annual
audited financial statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the appeal filed by tax authorities with
Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan is pending for decision.

In view of the above, the Management Company, as a matter of abundant caution, is carrying provision for FED for the
period from January 13, 2013 to June 30, 2016 aggregating to Rs. 7.528 million. Had the provision not been retained, NAV
per unit of the Fund as at December 31, 2019 would have been higher by Rs. 0.072 per unit (June 30, 2019: Rs. 0.09 per
unit).

The legal status of applicability of Worker's Welfare Fund and Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund is the same as that disclosed
in note 12.2 to the annual audited financial statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2019.

The Fund, as a matter of abundant caution, recognised provision for SWWF amounting to Rs. 46.309 million as at
December 31, 2019 in this condensed interim financial information, Had the provision not been made, net assets value
per unit at December 31, 2019 would have been higher by Rs.0.442 per unit (June 30, 2019: Rs.0.38 per unit).

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
There were no contingencies and commitments as at December 31, 2019 (June 30, 2019: Nil).
TAXATION

The Fund's income is exempt from income tax as per clause 99 of Part | of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001, subject to the condition that not less than 90 percent of its accounting income for the year, as reduced
by the capital gains whether realised or unrealized, is distributed to the unit holders in cash. The Fund is also exempt from
the provision of section 113 (minimum tax) under clause 11A of Part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001. The Fund has not recorded a tax liability in the current period, as the Management Company intends to
distribute more than 90 percent of the Fund's accounting income as reduced by capital gains (whether realised or
unrealized) for the period ending June 30, 2020 to its unit holders.
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13

14

14.1

EARNINGS PER UNIT

Earnings per unit (EPU) has not been disclosed in this condensed interim financial information as in the opinion of the
Management Company the determination of the cumulative weighted average number of outstanding units is not
practicable.

TRANSACTIONS WITH CONNECTED PERSONS / RELATED PARTIES

Connected persons include HBL Asset Management Limited being the Management Company, Habib Bank Limited being
the Sponsor, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, being the Trustee of the Fund, other collective investment
schemes managed by the Management Company, directors and officers of the Management Company, directors of
connected persons and persons having 10% or more beneficial ownership of the units of the Fund.

Transactions with connected persons are in the normal course of business, at contracted rates and terms determined in
accordance with market rates.

Remuneration payable to Management Company and Trustee is determined in accordance with the provisions of the
NBFC Regulations and the Trust Deed respectively.

Transactions and balances with parties who were connected persons due to holding 10% or more units in the comparative
period and not in the current period are not disclosed in the comparative period.

Details of the transactions with connected persons and balances with them, if not disclosed elsewhere in this condensed
interim financial information are as follows:

Half year ended
December 31,
2019 2018
---------------- (Un-Audited) ----------------
Transaction during the period s (Rupees in '000) ----------------
HBL Asset Management Limited
Remuneration of the Management Company 26,894 40,952
Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of the
Management Company 3,496 5,324
Allocation of expenses related to registrar services,
accounting, operation and valuation services 7,856 6,426
Selling and marketing expense 5,707 -
Issuance of 7,470,986 (2018: 740,028) units 758,392 75,204
Redemption of 7,241,923 (2018: 1,296,097) units 735,000 132,175
Dividend paid 3,652 1,068
Central Depository Company Of Pakistan
Limited - Trustee
Remuneration of the Trustee 3,278 4,989
Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of the Trustee 426 649
CDS connection charges 327 3
Habib Bank Limited - Sponsor
Mark-up on bank deposits 97,237 30,781
Bank charges paid 197 120
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Jubilee Life Insurance Company Limited
Sales of Market Treasury Bills

Directors and Executives of the Management Company
Issuance of 19,193 (2018: 165,049) units

Redemption of 24,264 (2018: 16,852) units

Dividend Income

HBL Financial Planning Fund - Active Allocation Plan - Associate

Issue of 74,806 (2018: 261,274) units
Redemption of 332,243 (2018: 783,791) units
Dividend paid

HBL Financial Planning Fund - Conservative Allocation Plan -
Associate

Issue of 1,729 (2018: 69,986) units

Redemption of Nil (2018: 536,334) units

Dividend paid

HBL Financial Planning Fund - Strategic Allocation Plan - Associate

Issue of 5,435 (2018: 203,493) units
Redemption of 182,477 (2018: 276,450) units
Dividend paid

HBL Financial Planning Fund - Special Income Plan - Associate

Issue of 46,655 (2018: Nil) units
Dividend paid

Fauji Fertilizers Company Limited - Connected person due to holding

of more than 10% units

Issue of 10,941,152 (2018: Nil) units
Redemption of 4,858,690 (2018: Nil) units
Dividend paid

Interloop Holdings (Private) Limited - Connected person due to
holding more than 10% units

Issue of 466,130 (2018: Nil) units

Dividend paid

HBL Income Fund
Purchase of The Hub Power Company Limited - Sukuk
Certificates

Half year ended
December 31,

---------------- (Un-Audited) ----------------
---------------- (Rupees in '000) ----------------

- 5,000,000
1,946 16,895
2,460 10,767

39 2,698
7,572 26,858
33,723 79,446
1,747 1,943

176 7,055

- 55,567

- 1,842

548 21,034
18,456 28,256
548 554

4,744 -
107 -

1,111,222 -
494,000 -
111,571 -

47,027 -
55,326 -

187,022 -
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Half year ended
December 31,

---------------- (Un-Audited) ----------------
---------------- (Rupees in '000) ----------------
HBL Islamic Asset Allocation Fund
Purchase of The Hub Power Company Limited - Sukuk
Certificates 101,404 -

Purchase of K-Electric Limited- Commercial paper 29,188 -

December 31, June 30,
2019 2019
(Un-Audited) (Audited)
---------------- (Rupees in '000) ----------------

14.2 Balances outstanding as at period / year end

HBL Asset Management Limited

Units held: 548,692 (June 30, 2019: 319,629) 55,907 32,247
Payable to Management Company 6,635 5,628
Sindh sales tax on Management Company's remuneration 863 732
Payable against allocation of expenses related to registrar services,

accounting, operation and valuation services 1,949 889
Sales load payable 257 138
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee

Trustee fee payable 716 809
Security deposit held 100 100
Habib Bank Limited - Sponsor

Bank balances 4,165,276 1,333,678
Mark-up receivable 44,238 7,131
Sales load payable 142 56
Directors and Executives of the Management Company

Units held: 5,205 (June 30, 2019: 305,217) 530 30,793
HBL Financial Planning Fund - Active Allocation Plan - Associate

Units held: 244,732 (June 30, 2019: 502,169) 24,936 50,663
HBL Financial Planning Fund - Conservative Allocation Plan - Associate

Units held: 1,729 (June 30, 2019: Nil) 176 -
HBL Financial Planning Fund - Strategic Allocation Plan - Associate

Units held: Nil (June 30, 2019: 177,042) - 17,862
HBL Financial Planning Fund - Special Income Plan - Associate

Units held: 46,655 (June 30, 2019: Nil) 4,753 -
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December 31, June 30,
2019 2019
(Un-Audited) (Audited)
---------------- (Rupees in '000) ----------------

Fauji Fertilizers Company Limited - Connected person due to holding of
more than 10% units
Units held: 26,306,779 (June 30, 2019: 20,224,317) 2,680,429 2,040,402

Interloop Holdings (Private) Limited - Connected person due to holding
more than 10% units

Units held: 10,617,952 (June 30, 2019: 10,151,822) 1,081,876 1,024,203

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid or transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants and measurement date. Consequently, differences can arise between carrying values and
the fair value estimates.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Fund is a going concern without any intention or
requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction on adverse terms.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities traded in active markets i.e. listed equity shares are based on the quoted
market prices at the close of trading on the reporting date. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the
Fund is current bid price.

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from
an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 13, "Fair Value Measurement" requires the Fund to classify fair value
measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements.
The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

- Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

- Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level
3).
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The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their
levels in the fair value hierarchy:

December 31, 2019 (Un-Audited)

Carrying amount Fair value
Fair value
through profit Amortised cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
or loss
Note (Rupees in '000)

Financial assets not measured at fair value 15.2
Bank balances - 9,349,298 9,349,298
Investments - 1,250,666 1,250,666
Mark-up receivable - 131,049 131,049
Deposits - 100 100
10,731,013 10,731,013

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value 15.2
Payable to the Management Company - 8,841 8,841
Payable to the Trustee - 633 633
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - 473 473
9,948 9,948

June 30, 2019 (Audited)
Carrying amount Fair value
Fair value
through profit Amortised cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
or loss
Note (Rupees in '000)
Financial assets measured at fair value 15.1
Investments
Market treasury bills 984,996 - 984,996 - 984,996 - 984,996
984,996 - 984,996 - 984,996 - 984,996

Financial assets not measured at fair value 15.2
Bank balances - 7,064,377 7,064,377
Investments - 1,708,874 1,708,874
Mark-up receivable - 104,601 104,601
Deposits - 100 100
8,877,952 8,877,952

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value 15.2
Payable to the Management Company - 6,655 6,655
Payable to the Trustee - 716 716
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - 391 391
7,762 7,762

Valuation techniques

For level 2 investments at fair value through profit or loss - investment in Treasury Bills, Fund uses rates which are derived
from PKRV rates at reporting date per certificate multiplied by the number of certificates held as at period end.

The Fund has not disclosed the fair values for these financial assets and financial liabilities, as these are either short term
in nature or repriced periodically. Therefore, their carrying amounts are reasonable approximation of fair value.

Transfers during the period

No transfers were made between various levels of fair value hierarchy during the period.

TOTAL EXPENSE RATIO

In accordance with the directive 23 of 2016 dated July 20, 2016 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of

Pakistan, the total expense ratio of the Fund for the half year ended December 31, 2019 is 0.63% (2018: 0.58%) which
includes 0.18% (2018: 0.16%) representing Government levy and SECP fee.
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17 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

This condensed interim financial information was authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the Management
Company on February 13, 2020.

18 GENERAL
18.1 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees, unless otherwise stated.

18.2 Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever necessary, for better presentation and disclosure,
the effect of which is not material.

For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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FUND INFORMATION

Name of Fund HBL Stock Fund

Name of Auditor Deloitte Yousuf Adil Chartered Accountants

Name of Trustee Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC)
Bankers Habib Bank Limited

Allied Bank Limited

JS Bank Limited

MCB Bank Limited

Soneri Bank Limited

Zarai Taragiati Bank Limited
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited
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TRUSTEE REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS
HBL STOCK FUND

Report of the Trustee pursuant to Regulation 41(h) of the Non-Banking Finance Companies
and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008

We. Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, being the Trustee of HEL Stock Fund (the
Fund) are of the opinion that HBL Asset Management Limited, being the Management Company
of the Fund has in all material respects managed the Fund during the six months period ended
December 31, 2019 in accordance with the provisions of the following:

(i} Limitations imposed on the investment powers of the Management Company under the
consttutive documents of the Fund:

{iiy  The pricing. issuance and redemption of units are carried out in accordance with the
requirements of the constitutive documents of the Fund; and

{iiiy  The Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulations) Rules, 2003,
the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 and the
constitutive documenis of the Fund.

M A J .
Badiuddin Akber
Chief Executive Gfficer
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited

Kamchi, February 24, 2020
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Deloitte Yousuf Adil
Chartered Accountants
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Karachi-75350

Pakistan

Tel: +92 (0} 21 3454 64094.7
Fam: +92 (0p 21- 3454 1314

www, deloitte.com

Auditors’ report to the unit holders on review of
Condensed Interim Financial Information

Introduction

We have reviewed the accompanying condensed interim statement of assets and liabilities of HBL Stock
Fund (the Fund) as at December 31, 2019, and the related condensed interim Income statement,
condensed interim statement of other comprehensive income, condensed Interim statement of movement
in unit holders’ fund, condensed interim cash flow statement and notes to the condensed interim financial
information for the half year ended December 31, 2019 (here-in-after referred to as the ‘condensed
interim financial information’). HBL Asset Management Limited (the Management Company) is
responsible for the preparation and presentation of this condensed interim financial information in
accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim financial reporting.
Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on this condensed interim financial information based on our
review. The figures of the condensed interim income statement and condensed interim statement of other
comprehensive income, for the quarter ended December 31, 2019 have not been reviewed, as we are
required to review only the cumulative figures for the half year ended December 31, 2019.

Scope of Review

We conducted our review in accordance with International Standard on Review Engagements 2410,
“Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity”. A review
of condensed interim financial information consists of making inquiries, primarily of persons responsible
for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review procedures. A review is
substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing and consequently does not enable us to cbtain assurance that we would become aware of all
significant matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

Conclusion
Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying

condensed interim financial information is not prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with
approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim financial reparting,

TSI Npusueh Aty
Chartered Acco nts ™~
Engagement Partner
Hena Sadig

Date: February 25, 2020
Place: Karachi

Member of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited
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HBL Stock Fund

Condensed Interim Statement of Assets and Liabilities (Un-Audited)
As at December 31, 2019

(Un-Audited) (Audited)
December 31, June 30,
2019 2019
Note --------e-ememeeeeee (Rupees in '000) -------------

Assets

Bank balances 272,133 236,034
Investments 2,291,466 1,967,158
Dividend receivable and accrued mark-up 2,605 4,340
Receivable against sale of investments 12,823 36,022
Advances and deposits 3,045 3,029
Total assets 2,582,072 2,246,583
Liabilities

Payable to the Management Company 9,565 7,124
Payable to the Trustee 330 302
Payable to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 212 4,181
Payable against purchase of investment 4,937 13,603
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 83,022 74,856
Total liabilities 98,066 100,066
Net assets 2,484,006 2,146,517
Unit holders' fund (as per statement attached) 2,484,006 2,146,517

Contingencies and commitments

Number of units in issue 23,309,586 23,924,062
------------------ (Rupees)----------------
Net assets value per unit 106.5659 89.7221

The annexed notes 1 to 15 form an integral part of this condensed interim financial information.

For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL Stock Fund

Condensed Interim Income Statement (Un-Audited)
For the half year ended December 31, 2019

Half year ended Quarter ended
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018 2019 2018
Note  ----m--mmemeemmmemeeeeeen (Rupees in '000)---------===-=nnnmmmmmmemaan
Income
Dividend income 59,977 127,373 32,768 63,031
Mark-up on deposits with banks 15,940 30,161 7,790 14,744
Income on Government securities 179 - 179 -
Capital gain/(loss) on sale of investments - net 55,067 (215,827) 74,538 (226,930)
131,163 (58,293) 115,275 (149,155)
Unrealised gain/(loss) on re-measurement of investments
classified as fianancial asset at fair value thorugh profit or loss - net 300,311 (438,220) 407,465 (316,906)
431,474 (496,513) 522,740 (466,061)
Expenses
Remuneration of the Management Company 22,962 65,305 12,701 31,084
Remuneration of the Trustee 1,767 3,835 873 1,692
Annual fee to the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan 212 2,745 112 1,304
Allocation of expenses related to registrar services,
accounting, operation and valuation services 2,675 2,890 905 1,376
Selling and marketing expense 7,804 11,558 4,216 5,502
Securities transaction costs 5,077 12,801 2,708 -
Auditors' remuneration 321 447 241 224
Settlement and bank charges 429 890 259 663
Other expenses 11 18 11 18
41,259 100,489 22,027 41,863
Net Income/(loss) from operating activities 390,215 (597,002) 500,713 (507,924)
Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund 8.2 (7,804) - (7,804) -
Net Income/(loss) for the period before taxation 382,411 (597,002) 492,909 (507,924)
Taxation 10 - - - -
Net Income/(loss) for the period after taxation 382,411 (597,002) 492,909 (507,924)
Allocation of net income/(loss) for the period:
Income already paid on redemption of units 7,960 - 7,960 -
Accounting income available for distribution:
- Relating to capital gains 348,522 - 475,147 -
- Excluding capital gains 25,930 - 9,802 -
374,452 484,949
382,411 (597,002) 492,909 (507,924)

The annexed notes 1 to 15 form an integral part of this condensed interim financial information.

For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL Stock Fund
Condensed Interim Statement of Comprehensive Income (Un-Audited)
For the half year ended December 31, 2019

Half year ended Quarter ended,
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018 2019 2018

(Rupees in '000)

Net income/(loss) for the period after taxation 382,411 (597,002) 492,909 (507,924)

Other comprehensive income - - -

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the period 382,411 (597,002) 492,909 (507,924)

The annexed notes 1 to 15 form an integral part of this condensed interim financial information.

For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL Stock Fund

Condensed Interim Statement of Movement in Unitholders’ Fund (Un-Audited)

For the half year ended December 31, 2019

Net assets as at the beginning of the period

Adoption of IFRS 9

Issue of 5,419,361 units (2018: 5,396,462 units)
- Capital value (at net asset value per unit
at the beginning of the period)

- Element of Income

Total proceeds on issue of units

Redemption of 6,033,837 units (2018: 25,642,518 units)

- Capital value (at net asset value per unit
at the beginning of the period)

- Amount paid out of element of income
Relating to net income for the year after taxation

Total payments on redemption of units

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the period
Distribution during the period

Net income/ loss for the period less distribution

Net assets as at the end of the period

Accumulated loss

- Realised
- Unrealised

Accounting income available for distribution:
- Relating to capital gains
- Excluding capital gains

net loss for the period

Adoption of IFRS 9

Distribution during the period
Accumulated loss carried forward

Accumulated loss carried forward

- Realised
- Unrealised

Net asset value per unit at the beginning of the period

Net asset value per unit at end of the period

Half year ended December 31,

2019 2018
Undistributed
. Undistributed Unrealised . n, stribute Unrealised
Capital . . Capital income / .
Value income / income / (loss) Total Value (accumulated income / (loss) Total
(accumulated loss) on investment loss) on investment
Rupees in '000
3,154,963 (1,008,446) - 2,146,517 6,270,547 (378,651) 66,474 5,958,370
- - - - 66,474 (66,474) -
486,236 - - 486,236 577,756 - - 577,756
15,828 - - 15,828 (5,985) - - (5,985)
502,064 - - 502,064 571,771 - - 571,771
(541,368) - - (541,368) (2,745,340) - - (2,745,340)
- ° ° - 165,947 - - 165,947
2,342 (7,960) (5,618) - - -
(539,026) (7,960) - (546,986) (2,579,393) - - (2,579,393)
- 382,411 - 382,411 - (597,002) - (597,002)
- 382,411 - 382,411 - (597,002) - (597,002)
3,118,001 (633,995) - 2,484,006 4,262,925 (909,179) - 3,353,746
(1,008,446) (378,651)
(1,008,446) (378,651)
348,522 -
25,930 -
374,452
(597,002)
- 66,474
(633,995) (909,179)
(934,306) (470,959)
300,311 (438,220)
(633,995) (909,179)
89.7221 107.0620
94.1788

106.5658

The annexed notes 1 to 15 form an integral part of this condensed interim financial information.

Chief Financial Officer

For HBL Asset Management Limited

(Management Company)

Chief Executive Officer

Director

107




HBL Stock Fund

Condensed Interim Statement of Cash Flow (Un- Audited)
For the half year ended December 31, 2019

Note
Cash flows from operating activities

Net income/(loss) for the period before taxation

Adjustments for Non-cash items:
Mark-up on deposits with banks
Dividend income

Income from Government securities

Capital loss on sale of investments - net
Unrealised gain on re-measurement of investments

classified as fianancial asset at fair value through profit or loss - net

Decrease / (Increase) in assets
Investments - net

Advances and deposits

Increase / (Decrease) Increase in liabilities

Payable to the Management Company

Payable to the Trustee

Payable to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Mark-up on bank deposits received
Dividend received

Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Amount received on issue of units
Payments / Payable against redemption of units
Cash dividend paid

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 4

2019

2018

The annexed notes 1 to 15 form an integral part of this condensed interim financial information.

For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer

382,411 (597,002)
(15,940) (30,161)
(59,977) (127,373)
(179) -
(55,067) 215,827
(300,311) 438,220
(49,063) (100,489)
31,249 1,503,667
14,516 (318,290)
45,766 1,185,377
2,441 (8,897)
28 (105)
(3,969) (2,802)
8,166 1,139
6,666 (10,665)
16,265 29,662
61,387 138,201
81,021 1,242,086
502,064 571,771
(546,986) (1,830,529)
(44,922) (1,258,758)
36,099 (16,672)
236,034 577,518
272,133 560,846
Director
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HBL Stock Fund

Notes to the Condensed Interim Financial Information (Unaudited)
For the half year ended December 31, 2019

1.

1.1

1.2

13

14

15

1.6

2.1.

2.1.1

2.1.2

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

HBL Stock Fund (the Fund) was established under a Trust Deed, dated August 09, 2007, executed between HBL Asset
Management Limited (the Management Company) and Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC) as the
Trustee. The Fund was authorised by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) as a unit trust scheme
on August 21, 2007.

The Management Company of the Fund has been registered as a Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC) under the NBFC
Rules, 2003 and has obtained the requisite license from the SECP to undertake Asset Management Services. The
registered office of the Management Company is located at 7th Floor, Emerald Tower, G-19, Block 5, Main Clifton Road,
Clifton, Karachi.

The Fund is an open-ended mutual fund and offers units for public subscription on a continuous basis. The units are
transferable and can also be redeemed by surrendering to the Fund. The Fund is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange
Limited. The units of the Fund were initially offered for public subscription at par from August 29, 2007 to August 31,
2007.

The principal activity of the Fund is to provide long-term capital growth by investing primarily in a diversified pool of
equities and equities related instruments.

VIS Credit Rating Company has assigned a management quality rating of AM2+’ (Positive outlook) to the Management
Company.

Title to the assets of the Fund are held in the name of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited as Trustee of the
Fund.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of Compliance

This condensed interim financial information have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 along with part VIIIA of the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984; and

- Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulations) Rules, 2003 (the NBFC Rules), Non-Banking Finance
Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the NBFC Regulations) and requirements of the Trust Deed.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations and requirements of the Trust Deed differ from the IFRS
Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations and requirements of the Trust Deed have been followed.

The disclosures made in this condensed interim financial information have, however, been limited based on the
requirements of IAS-34. This condensed interim financial information does not include all the information and disclosures
required in a full set of financial statements and should be read in conjunction with the annual published audited financial
statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2019.
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2.1.3

2.2

2.3

2.4

3.1

3.2

33

3.4

In compliance with Schedule V of the NBFC Regulations, the directors of the Management Company hereby declare that
this condensed interim financial information gives a true and fair view of the state of the Fund’s affairs as at December 31,
2019.

Basis of measurement

This condensed interim financial information has been prepared under the historical cost convention, except that certain
financial assets are stated at fair value.

Functional and presentation currency

This condensed interim financial information is presented in Pakistani Rupees which is the Fund's functional and
presentation currency.

Use of judgments and estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards requires the
management to make estimates, judgements and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. It also requires the management to exercise judgement in application of its accounting policies.
The estimates, judgements and associated assumptions are based on the historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the year
in which the estimates are revised if the revision affects only that year, or in the year of revision and future years if the
revision affects both current and future years.

Areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where estimates and assumptions are significant to
the financial statements as a whole are as follows:

(i) classification and valuation of financial assets ; and
(ii) impairment of financial assets

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING AND RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES, ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, JUDGEMENT AND CHANGES
THEREIN

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of this condensed interim financial information are consistent with
those applied in the preparation of the annual audited financial statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2019.

The preparation of this condensed interim financial information in conformity with the approved accounting standards
requires the management to make estimates, judgements and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. It also requires the management to exercise judgement in application of its accounting
policies. The estimates, judgements and associated assumptions are based on the historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimates are revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The significant judgments made by management in applying its accounting policies and the key sources of estimation
uncertainty were the same as those applied to the annual audited financial statements of the Fund for the year ended
June 30, 2019,

There are certain new and amended standards, interpretations and amendments that are mandatory for the Fund's
accounting periods beginning on or after July 01, 2019 but are considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant
effect on the Fund's operations and therefore not detailed in this condensed interim financial information.
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(Un-Audited) (Audited)

December 31, June 30,
2019 2019
BANK BALANCES Note @~  =----m-mm- (Rupees in '000) -----------
Balances with banks in:
Savings accounts 4.1 272,120 236,034
Current accounts 13 -
272,133 236,034

This represents bank accountsheld with different banks. Mark-up rates onthese accounts range between 11.15% - 14.05%
(June 30, 2019: 8% - 13.6%) per annum.

(Un-Audited) (Audited)

December 31, June 30,
2019 2019
INVESTMENTS Note —-—-mememememeeeeee (Rupees in '000) ---
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss account
- Listed equity securities 5.1 2,281,571 1,967,158
Government securities 5.2 9,895 -

2,291,466 1,967,158

Listed equity securities - At fair value through profit or loss

Shares of listed companies - fully paid up ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each unless stated otherwise

Number of sh. Market value as a percentage of [ par value as a
Market value as at percentage of
Name of the Investee Company As at July 01, Purchases during Bonus / Sales during the | As at December |December 31, 2019 Total Net Assets issued capital of
2019 the period Rights issue period 31,2019 (Rupees in '000) Investments the investee
company
INSURANCE
Adamjee Insurance Co Ltd 661,000 273,000 - 75,000 859,000 36,155 1.58% 1.46% 0.25%
TPL Insurance Limited - 625,000 - - 625,000 16,044 0.70% 0.65% 0.83%
661,000 898,000 - 75,000 1,484,000 52,199
TEXTILE COMPOSITE
Gul Ahmed Textile Mills Ltd - 1,131,000 N 309,500 821,500 35,415 1.55% 1.43% 0.23%
Interloop Limited 751,250 207,000 - 550,000 408,250 23,699 1.03% 0.95% 4.70%
Kohinoor Textile Mills Ltd 331,000 - - 331,000 - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Nishat Mills Ltd 496,500 465,700 - 512,500 449,700 47,731 2.08% 1.92% 0.13%
1,578,750 1,803,700 - 1,703,000 1,679,450 106,845
CEMENT & Material
Kohat Cement Ltd 199,500 118,000 - 166,000 151,500 11,726 0.51% 0.47% 0.12%
Lucky Cement Ltd 143,650 170,000 - 80,500 233,150 99,881 4.36% 4.02% 0.07%
Maple Leaf Cement Factory Ltd - 1,000,000 N 1,000,000 - - 0.00% 0.00% -
343,150 1,288,000 - 1,246,500 384,650 111,608
POWER GENERATION & DISTRIBUTION
Hub Power Company Limited 1,667,863 475,500 - 668,500 1,474,863 137,678 6.01% 5.54% 0.11%
K-Electric Limited 4,530,000 2,350,000 - 737,000 6,143,000 26,845 1.17% 1.08% 0.02%
Nishat Chunian Power Limited 588,500 9,000 - 597,500 - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Pakgen Power Limited 788,000 168,000 - 956,000 - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
7,574,363 3,002,500 - 2,959,000 7,617,863 164,523
ENGINEERING
International Steels Limited - 258,500 - 157,500 101,000 5,847 0.26% 0.24% 0.02%
Mughal Iron & Steel Inds Ltd 18,165 - - - 18,165 744 0.03% 0.03% 0.01%
18,165 258,500 - 157,500 119,165 6,591
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N

ber of sh

Market value as at

Market value as a percentage of

Par value as a
percentage of

Name of the Investee Company As at July 01, Purchases during Bonus / Sales during the | As at December |December 31, 2019 Total Net Assets issued capital of
2019 the period Rights issue period 31,2019 (Rup in '000) the investee
company
Transport
Pakistan National Shipping Corp Ltd 66,500 275,500 - 14,500 327,500 30,762 1.34% 1.24% 0.25%
66,500 275,500 - 14,500 327,500 30,762
Pharmaceuticals
AGP Limited 193,000 234,500 - 181,000 246,500 24,490 1.07% 0.99% 0.01%
Highnoon Laboratories Limited 5,000 58,000 - 5,000 58,000 31,161 1.36% 1.25% 0.01%
The Searle Company Ltd 88,681 100,500 - 64,500 124,681 23,532 1.08% 0.95% 0.07%
286,681 393,000 - 250,500 429,181 79,183
PAPER & BOARD
Century Paper & Board Mills Ltd 190,500 115,000 - 73,000 232,500 11,783 0.51% 0.47% 0.16%
190,500 115,000 - 73,000 232,500 11,783
GLASS & CERAMICS
Tariq Glass Industries Ltd - 96,000 - 96,000 - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
- 96,000 - 96,000 - -
OIL & GAS EXPLORATION COMPANIES
Mari Petroleum Company Ltd 134,658 40,500 11,011 83,280 102,889 134,795 5.88% 5.43% 0.09%
Oil & Gas Development Co Ltd 1,247,100 586,000 - 593,800 1,239,300 176,377 7.70% 7.10% 0.03%
Pakistan Oilfields Ltd 221,410 61,800 - 87,500 195,710 87,428 3.82% 3.52% 0.08%
Pakistan Petroleum Ltd 806,745 898,900 165,929 715,000 1,156,574 158,613 6.92% 6.39% 0.06%
2,409,913 1,587,200 176,940 1,479,580 2,694,473 557,212
OIL & GAS MARKETING COMPANIES
Pakistan State Oil Company Ltd 469,368 325,000 70,873 477,900 387,341 74,230 3.24% 2.99% 0.12%
Sui Northern Gas Pipeline Ltd 485,400 444,000 - 306,000 623,400 47,484 2.07% 1.91% 0.10%
954,768 769,000 70,873 783,900 1,010,741 121,714
COMMERCIAL BANKS
Allied Bank Ltd 670,300 195,100 - 255,000 610,400 58,354 2.55% 2.35% 0.05%
Bank Al-Falah Ltd 2,562,600 1,349,000 - 762,500 3,149,100 143,914 6.28% 5.79% 0.20%
Bank Al-Habib Limited 951,500 600,500 - 280,500 1,271,500 96,837 4.23% 3.90% 0.11%
Bank of Punjab Ltd 4,711,000 3,810,000 - 3,208,000 5,313,000 60,196 2.63% 2.42% 1.00%
Faysal Bank Limited 26,018 - - - 26,018 495 0.02% 0.02% 0.00%
Habib Bank Ltd 916,219 527,900 - 1,057,700 386,419 60,830 2.65% 2.45% 0.03%
MCB Bank Ltd 295,300 269,500 - 336,800 228,000 46,726 2.04% 1.88% 0.02%
National Bank of Pakistan Ltd 492,500 1,469,500 - 598,500 1,363,500 59,040 2.58% 2.38% 0.06%
United Bank Limited 577,200 449,200 - 220,500 805,900 132,571 5.79% 5.34% 0.07%
11,202,637 8,670,700 - 6,719,500 13,153,837 658,963
FERTILIZER
Engro Corporation Ltd 495,150 176,500 - 302,700 368,950 127,380 5.56% 5.13% 0.07%
Engro Fertilizers Limited 1,133,000 656,500 - 955,000 834,500 61,277 2.67% 2.47% 0.06%
Fauiji Fertilizer Co Ltd 730,000 629,500 - 896,000 463,500 47,031 2.05% 1.89% 0.04%
2,358,150 1,462,500 - 2,153,700 1,666,950 235,689
CHEMICAL
Engro Polymer & Chemicals Ltd 1,686,579 1,327,000 - 1,211,500 1,802,079 59,847 2.61% 2.41% 0.20%
Lotte Chemical Pakistan Ltd 748,500 1,572,000 - 2,320,500 - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Sitara Chemical Industries Limited 13,700 75,800 - - 89,500 26,712 1.17% 1.08% 0.42%
2,448,779 2,974,800 - 3,532,000 1,891,579 86,559
AUTOMOBILE PARTS & ACCESSORIES
Thal Limited 204,800 140,000 - 173,500 171,300 57,939 2.53% 2.33% 0.21%
204,800 140,000 - 173,500 171,300 57,939
TECHNOLOGY & COMMUNICATION
Systems Limited - 63,500 - 63,500 - 0.00% 0.00%
- 63,500 - 63,500 - -
Total as at December 31, 2019 30,298,156 23,797,900 247,813 21,480,680 32,863,189 2,281,571 - -
1,981,256

Carrying value as at December 31, 2019
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5.1.1

5.1.2

5.2

Investments include shares having market value aggregating to Rs. 340.906 million (June 30, 2019: Rs. 268.127 million)
that have been pledged with National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited for guaranteeing settlement of the Fund's
trades in terms of Circular No. 11 dated October 23, 2007 issued by the SECP.

This includes gross bonus shares as per Fund’s entitlement declared by the investee company. Finance Act, 2014 has
brought amendments in the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 whereby the bonus shares received by the shareholder are to
be treated as income and a tax at the rate of 5 percent is to be applied on value of bonus shares determined on the basis
of day end price on the first day of closure of books. The tax is to be collected at source by the investee company which
shall be considered as final discharge of tax liability on such income. However, the Management Company of the Fund
jointly with other asset management companies and Mutual Fund Association of Pakistan (MUFAP), has filed a petition in
Sindh High Court to declare the amendments brought in Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 with reference to tax on bonus
shares for collective investment schemes as null and void and not applicable on the funds based on the premise of
exemption given to mutual funds under Clause 99 of Part | of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.
The Sindh High Court has granted stay order till the final outcome of the case. However, the investee company(s) has
withheld the share equivalent to 5% of bonus announcement of the Fund having aggregate fair market value of Rs. 3.291
million at December 31, 2019 (June 30, 2019: Rs. 2.59 million) and not yet deposited in CDC account of department of
Income tax. Management is of the view that the decision will be in the favor and accordingly has recorded the bonus
shares on gross basis at fair value in its investments at period end.

Government Securities - Fair value through profit or loss

Issue Date Tenure Face Value Market Market value as a
percentage of
Asat Purchases Sales/ As at Value as at Total Net
July 1, during Matured Dec31, June 30, Investments Assets
2019 theyear duringthe 2019 2019
year

Treasury bills

October 24, 2019 3 months - 175,000 175,000 - - - -

November 7,2019 3 months - 155,000 145,000 10,000 9,895 0.432% 0.398%

(Un-Audited) (Audited)
December 31, June 30,
2019 2019
------------ (Rupees in '000) ----------

ADVANCES, DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Security deposit with National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited 2,500 2,500
Security deposit with Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited 100 100
Advance tax 429 429
Prepaid listing fee 16 -
Advance against subscription of Term Finance Certificates (TFC) 25,000 25,000
28,045 28,029

Less: Provision in respect of advance against subscription

of term finance certificates (25,000) (25,000)

3,045 3,029

113



8.1

8.2

10.

(Un-Audited) (Audited)

December 31, June 30,
2019 2019
Note  -—-------- (Rupees in '000) -----------
PAYABLE TO HBL ASSET MANAGEMENT
LIMITED - MANAGEMENT COMPANY
Management fee 4,150 3,701
Sindh Sales Tax 540 481
Sales load payable 325 160
Selling and marketing payable 4,215 2,597
Allocation of expenses related to registrar services,
accounting, operation and valuation services 334 185
9,565 7,124
ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES
Federal Excise Duty 8.1 37,838 37,838
Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund 8.2 42,185 34,381
Withholding tax payable 817 838
Auditors remuneration 321 459
Payable to broker 1,013 558
Others 848 782
83,022 74,856

The legal status of applicability of Federal Excise Duty on the Fund is same as that disclosed in note to the annual audited
financial statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the appeal filed by tax authorities against the
order by Supreme Court of Pakistan dated July 16, 2016, is pending for decision.

In view of above, the Management Company, being prudent, is carrying provision for FED for the period from January 13,
2013 to June 30, 2016 aggregating to Rs. 37.838 million. Had the provision not been retained, NAV per unit of the Fund
as at December 31, 2019 would have been higher by Rs. 1.623 per unit (June 30, 2019: 1.58 per unit).

PROVISION FOR SINDH WORKERS' WELFARE FUND

The legal status of applicability of Worker's Welfare Fund and Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund is same as that disclosed in
note 12.2 to the annual audited financial statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2019.

As there is profit for the half year ended December 31, 2019, a provision of 7.8 million for SWWF has been recognised in
this condensed interim financial information. As at December 31, 2019, the provision in relation to SWWF amounted to
Rs. 42.185 million (2019: Rs. 34.381 million). Had the provision not being made, the Net Asset Value per unit as at
December 31, 2019 would have been higher by Rs.1.810 (June 30, 2019: Rs. 1.437) per unit.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
There are no contingencies and commitments outstanding as at December 31, 2019 and June 30, 2019.
TAXATION

The Fund's income is exempt from income tax as per Clause 99 of Part 1 of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001, subject to the condition that not less than 90 percent of its accounting income for the year, as reduced
by the capital gains whether realised or unrealised, is distributed to the unit holders in cash. The Fund is also exempt from
the provision of Section 113 (minimum tax) under Clause 11A of Part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001. The Fund has not recorded a tax liability in the current period, as the Management Company intends to
distribute more than 90 percent of the Fund's accounting income as reduced by capital gains (whether realised or
unrealised) for the year June 30, 2019 to its unit holders.

114



11.

111

TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH CONNECTED PERSONS

Connected persons include HBL Asset Management Limited being the Management Company, Habib Bank Limited being
the Sponsor, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, being the Trustee of the Fund, other collective investment
schemes managed by the Management Company, directors and officers of the Management Company, directors of
connected persons and persons having 10% or more beneficial ownership of the units of the Fund.

Transactions with connected persons are in the normal course of business, at contracted rates and terms determined in
accordance with market rates.

Remuneration payable to Management Company and Trustee is determined in accordance with the provisions of the
NBFC Regulations and the Trust Deed respectively.

Details of the transactions with connected persons and balances with them are as follows:

(Un-Audited)
Half year ended
December 31,
2019 2018
--------- (Rupees in '000) --------

Transactions during the period

HBL Asset Management Limited - Management Company

Management Fee including sales tax thereon 22,962 65,305
Allocation of expenses related to registrar services,
accounting, operation and valuation services 2,675 2,890
Selling and marketing expense 7,804 11,558
Issue of 1,415,688 units (2018: Nil units) 150,000 -
Redemption of 942,564 units (2018: Nil units) 101,348 -

Habib Bank Limited - Sponsor

Bank charges paid 7 23
Mark-up on deposits with banks earned 713 1,489
Dividend income earned 2,142 3,900

Executives and their relatives

Issuance of 7,695 units (December 31, 2018: 18,480 units) 786 1,750
Redemption of 4,690 units (December 31, 2018: 8,890 units) 500 842

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee

Trustee remuneration 1,767 3,835
Central Depository service charges 91 337

Habib Bank Limited - Sponsor

Redemption of nil units (December 31, 2018 : 20,136,832 units) - 2,007,682
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MCBFSL - HBL Financial Planning Fund Active Allocation Plan - Trustee

Issuance of 191,205 units (December 31, 2018 : 161,838 units)
Redemption of 240,156 units (December 31, 2018 : 974,195 units)

MCBFSL - HBL Financial Planning Fund Conservative Allocation Plan - Trustee

Issuance of 24,534 units (December 31, 2018 : 27,480 units)
Redemption of 64,860 units (December 31, 2018 : 147,765 units)

MCBFSL - HBL Financial Planning Fund Strategic Allocation Plan - Trustee

Issuance of nil units (December 31, 2018 : 228,499 units)
Redemption of 440,522 units (December 31, 2018 : 205,041 units)

Balances outstanding as at period / year end
HBL Asset Management Limited - Management Company

Management fee

Sindh Sales Tax

Sales load payable

Selling and marketing payable

Allocation of expenses related to registrar services,
accounting, operation and valuation services
Investment held in Fund : 473,123 units (2019 :nil units)

Habib Bank Limited - Sponsor
Investment held in the Fund: 8,616,219 units (June 30, 2018: 8,616,219 units)

Bank balances
Mark-up receivable

Directors and Executives of the Management Company
and their relatives

Directors and their relatives*

Investment held in the Fund: 7,874 units (June 30, 2019: 131,486 units)

(Un-Audited)
Half year ended
December 31,

2019

2018

----------- (Rupees in '000) -------

16,000 15,329

20,033 92,275

2,012 2,603

5,564 13,996

- 21,643

36,967 19,421
(Un-Audited)  (Audited)

December 31, June 30,
2019 2018

---------- (Rupees in '000) --------

4,150 3,701
540 481
325 160

4,215 2,597
334 185
50,419 R
918,195 773,065
84,295 40,102
412 238
839 11,797
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*

(Un-Audited)  (Audited)
December 31, June 30,
2019 2019
2019 2018
---------- (Rupees in '000) -------
HBL Employees Provident Fund - Associated Entity

Investment held in the Fund: 7,125,389 units (June 30, 2019: 7,125,389 units) 759,323 639,305

MCBFSL - HBL Financial Planning Fund Active Allocation Plan - Associate

Investment held in the Fund: 419,114 units (June 30, 2018: 468,065 units) 44,663 41,996

MCBFSL - HBL Financial Planning Fund Conservative Allocation Plan - Trustee

Investment held in the Fund: 101,438 units (June 30, 2019: 141,765 units) 10,810 12,719

MCBFSL - HBL Financial Planning Fund Strategic Allocation Plan - Trustee

Investment held in the Fund: Nil units (June 30, 2018: 440,522 units) - 39,525

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee

Remuneration payableincluding sales tax thereon 292 267
Sindh Sales Tax 38 35
Security deposit 100 100

During the period, Farid Ahmed Khan and Efham llahi Usmani resigned, effect from september 15, 2019.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date.Consequently, differences can arise between carrying values and the fair
value estimates.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Fund is a going concern without any intention or
requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction on adverse terms.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities traded in active markets (i.e. listed equity shares) are based on the quoted
market prices at the close of trading on the reporting date. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the
Fund is current bid price.

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on an arm's length basis.

IFRS 13, 'Fair Value Measurements' requires the Fund to classify fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that
reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

- Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that
is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

- Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their
levels in the fair value hierarchy.
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12.1

13.

On-balance sheet financial instruments

Financial assets measured at fair value
Investments
- Listed equity securities

Financial assets not measured at fair value
Bank balances

Dividend receivable and accrued mark-up
Advances and deposits

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value

Payable to the Management Company

Payable to the Trustee

Payable against redemption of units

Payable to the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

On-balance sheet financial instruments

Financial assets measured at fair value

Investments - Listed equity securities

Financial assets not measured at fair value

Bank balances

Dividend receivable and accrued mark-up
Recievable against sale of securities
Deposits

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value

Payable to the Management Company
Payable to Trustee

Payable against purchase of investment
Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Note

121

121

Note

12.1

121

December 31, 2019 (Un-Audited)

Carrying amount Fair Value
Fair value .
.. At Amortised
through profit Cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
or loss
(Rupees in '000)
2,291,466 - - 2,281,571 9,895 - 2,291,466
2,291,466 - - 2,281,571 9,895 - 2,291,466
- 272,133 272,133
- 2,605 2,605
- 2,600 2,600
277,338 277,338
- 9,565 9,565
- 330 330
- 4,937 4,937
- 212 212
- 2,182 2,182
17,226 17,226
June 30, 2019 (Audited)
Carrying amount Fair Value
Fair value .
At Amorti
through mortised Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
y Cost
profit or loss
(Rupees in '000)
1,967,158 - 1,967,158 1,967,158 - - 1,967,158
1,967,158 - 1,967,158 1,967,158 - - 1,967,158
- 236,034 236,034
- 4,340 4,340
36,022 36,022
- 2,600 2,600
- 278,996 278,996
- 7,124 7,124
- 656 656
13,603 13,603
- 1,799 1,799
- 23,182 23,182

The Fund has not disclosed the fair values for these financial assets and financial liabilities, as these are either short term

in nature or reprice periodically. Therefore, their carrying amounts are reasonable approximation of fair value.

TOTAL EXPENSE RATIO

In accordance with the directive 23 of 2016 dated July 20, 2016 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan, the total expense ratio of the Fund for the half year ended December 31, 2019 is 2.33%, which includes 0.51%
representing government levy (2018: 1.75% which includes 0.18% representing govenment levy), Sindh Worker's Welfare

Fund and SECP fee.
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DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

This condensed interim financial information were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Management
Company on February 13, 2020.

15. GENERAL
15.1 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees.
15.2 This condensed interim financial information are unaudited and have been reviewed by the auditors. Further, the figures
of the condensed interim income statement and statement of comprehensive income for the quarter ended December
31, 2019 have not been reviewed.
15.3 Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever necessary, for better presentation and disclosure.
15.4 DISCLOURE UNDER CIRCULAR 16 OF 2010 ISSUED BY THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN -
CATEGORISATION OF OPEN END SCHEME
The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan vide circular 16 of 2010 dated July 07, 2010 required all Asset
Management Companies to made disclosure in the financial statement of the collective investment scheme regarding
non-compliant investment held in portfolio of the collective investment scheme which are non-compliant either with
the investment policy or the minimum investment creteria. As at December 31, 2019, all the investment held in the
fund portfolio are compliant except for the following which are non-compliant due to not meeting minimum rating
requirement.
Name of Non-Complaint Type of Value of Provision held Value of % of Net Assets % of Gross
Investment Investment Investment (if any) Investment Assets
before Provision after
Provision
(Rupees in '000)
Dewan Cement Limited Advance 25,000 25,000 - - -
For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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FUND INFORMATION

Name of Fund

Name of Auditor

Name of Trustee

Bankers

HBL Equity Fund
BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC)

MCB Bank Limited
Soneri Bank Limited
HBL Bank Limited
JS Bank Limited
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CENTRAL DEPOSITORY COMPANY
OF PAKISTAN LIMITED

Head Office

CDC House, 99-8, Block ‘B
S.M.CH.S, Main Shahra-e-Faical
Karachi - 74400. Pakistan,

Tel: {92-21) 111-111-500
Fax:(92-21) 34326021 - 23
URL: waww cdepakistan.com
Email: info@odopak,com
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TRUSTEE REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS
HBL EQUITY FUND

Report of the Trustee pursuant to Regulation 41(h) of the Non-Banking Finance Companies
and Notificd Entities Regulations, 2008

We, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, being the Trustee of HBL Equity Fund (the
Fund) are of the opinion that HBL Asset Management Limited, being the Management Company
of the Fund has in all material respects managed the Fund during the six months period ended
December 31, 2019 in accordance with the provisions of the following:

(i) Limitations imposed on the investment powers of the Management Company under the
consttutive documents of the Fund;

(i) The pricing. issuance and redemption of units are carried out in accordance with the
requirements of the constitutive documenis of the Fund: and

(ili)  The Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulations) Rules, 2003,
the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 and the
constitutive documents of the Fund.

\m L\ j
Badiuddin Akber

Chief Executive Officer
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited

Karachi. February 24, 2020
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Tel: +92 21 3563 3030 2rd Floor, Block-C
O Fax: <52 21 3568 4235 Lakson Square, Building No.1
www,bdo.com.pk Sarwar Shaheed Road

I—-— Karachi-T4200
Pakistan

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON REVIEW OF CONDENSED INTERIM FINAMCIAL INFORMATION TO
THE UNIT HOLDERS OF HEL CASH FUND

Introduction

We have reviewsd the accompanying condensed interim statement of assets and liabilities of HBL CASH
FUND (“the Fund”) as at December 31, 2019 and the related condensed interim income statement,
condensed interim statement of comprehensive income, condensed interim statement of cash flows,
condensed interim statement of movement in unit holders’ fund and notes to the condensed interim
financial information for the half year then ended (here-in-after referred to as “interim financial
infermation™). HBL Asset Management Limited (the “Management Company”) is responsible for the
preparation and presentation of this condensed interim financial information in accordance with
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim financial reporting. Our
responsibility is to express a conclusion on this condensed interim financial information based on our
MEVIEW.

Scope of Review

We conducted our review in accordance with International Standard on Review Engagements 2410,
“Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity.” A review
of condensed interim financial information consists of making inquiries, primarily of persons responsible
for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review procedures. A review is
substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all
significant matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit apinion.

Conclusion

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying
condensed interim financial information as at and for the half year ended December 31, 2019 is not
prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable
in Pakistan for interim financial reporting.

Other matter
The figures for the quarter ended December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018 in the condensed interim

income statement and condensed interim statement of comprehensive income have not been reviewed
and we do not express a conclusion on them.

KARACHI /’ o
. GODE fafLha :f...-? .
patep: | 3 FEE 2020 e v
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Engagement Partner: Raheel Shahnawaz

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants
B0 Enrahirn b o, & Pakistan regatered partnenivip Femy, i o mamber of B30 Incemnational Lisited, & UK company fimited by guaranles
and oo part of the amational BOD network of Independent ke firmi.
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HBL Equity Fund

Condensed Interim Statement of Assets and Liabilities

As At December 31, 2019

December 31, June 30,

2019 2019
(Un-Audited) (Audited)
Note  ----------- (Rupees in '000) -----------

ASSETS
Bank balances 23,264 28,239
Investments 5 311,481 217,781
Dividend and mark-up receivable 242 956
Receivable against sale of investments - net 1,131 6,012
Advances, deposits and prepayments 6 2,813 2,791
TOTAL ASSETS 338,931 255,779
LIABILITIES
Payable to the Management Company 7 1,265 746
Payable to the Trustee 8 69 70
Payable to Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 26 275
Payable against redemption of units 324 82
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 10 10,174 9,009
TOTAL LIABILITIES 11,858 10,182
NET ASSETS 327,073 245,597
UNIT HOLDERS' FUND (AS PER STATEMENT ATTACHED) 327,073 245,597
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 11

----------- (Number of Units) -----------
Number of units in issue 2,908,570 2,629,886

-------------- (Rupees) --------------

Net assets value per unit 112.4512 93.3868

The annexed notes from 1 to 18 form an integral part of this condensed interim financial information.

For HBL Asset Management Limited

(Management Company)

Chief Financial Officer

Chief Executive Officer

Director
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HBL Equity Fund

Condensed Interim Income Statement (Un-Audited)

For The Half Year And Quarter Ended December 31, 2019

Note
Income
Capital gain / (loss) on sale of investments - net
Dividend income
Mark-up on bank deposits

Unrealised appreciation / (diminution) on re-measurement of
investments classified as financial assets at 'fair value through profit and loss' - net

Expenses

Remuneration of the Management Company 7.1
Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of the Management Company 7.2
Remuneration of the Trustee 8.1
Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of the Trustee 8.2
Annual fee to Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 9.1
Allocation of expenses related to registrar services,

accounting, operation and valuation services 7.3
Selling and marketing expenses 7.4

Auditors' remuneration

Fees and subscription

Securities transaction costs and settlement charges
Bank charges

Net income / (loss) for the period from operating activities

Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund 10.2
Net income / (loss) for the period before taxation
Taxation 12

Net income / (loss) for the period after taxation

Allocation of net income for the period
Income already paid on redemption of units
Accounting income available for distribution:

Relating to capital gains
Excluding capital gains

Earnings per unit 13

The annexed notes from 1 to 18 form an integral part of this condensed interim financial information.

For HBL Asset Management Limited

(Management Company)

Chief Financial Officer

Chief Executive Officer

Half year ended Quarter ended
December 31, December 31,

2019 2018 2019 2018
(Rupees in '000)

13,968 (5,036) 16,846 (5,923)
7,425 6,705 4,616 3,410
1,808 1,639 989 722

23,201 3,308 22,451 (1,791)

36,498 (30,930) 47,392 (24,305)

59,699 (27,622) 69,843 (26,096)
2,537 3,052 1,405 1,514

330 397 330 197
264 353 140 177
34 46 34 23
26 145 15 72
321 153 123 76
972 610 576 302
242 213 130 106
14 80 8 33
1,358 874 864 495
7 13 4 2
6,105 5,936 3,629 2,997

53,594 (33,558) 66,214 (29,093)
(1,072) - (1,072) -

52,522 (33,558) 65,142 (29,093)

52,522 (33,558) 65,142 (29,093)
1,131 1,131

50,233 64,005
1,158 6

51,391 64,011

52,522 65,142

Director
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HBL Equity Fund
Condensed Interim Statement of Comprehensive Income (Un-Audited)
For The Half Year And Quarter Ended December 31, 2019

Half year ended Quarter ended,
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018 2019 2018

(Rupees in '000)

Net income / (loss) for the period after taxation 52,522 (33,558) 65,142 (29,093)

Other comprehensive income for the period
Items that will be reclassified subsequently to

income statement
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to

income statement

Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the period 52,522 (33,558) 65,142 (29,093)

The annexed notes from 1 to 18 form an integral part of this condensed interim financial information.

For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL Equity Fund

Condensed Interim Statement of Movement in Unitholders’ Fund (Un-Audited)
For The Half Year Ended December 31, 2019

Half year ended December 31,

2019 2018
Capital value Un(.ilstrlbuted Total Capital value Um:hstrlbuted Total
income income

(Rupees in '000)

Net assets at beginning of the period 247,193 (1,596) 245,597 249,396 44,772 294,168
Issuance of 1,375,966 units (2018: 664,150 units)
Capital value (at net asset value per unit at the beginning of the period) 128,497 - 128,497 73,362 - 73,362
Element of income 6,045 - 6,045 590 - 590
Total proceeds on issuance of units 134,542 - 134,542 73,952 - 73,952

Redemption of 1,097,282 units (2018: 594,613 units)

Capital value (at net asset value per unit at the beginning of the period) (102,472) - (102,472) (65,681) - (65,681)

Income already paid on redemption of units - (1,131) (1,131) - - -

Element of (loss) / income (1,985) - (1,985) 953 - 953
Total payments on redemption of units (104,457) (1,131) (105,588) (64,728) - (64,728)
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the period - 52,522 52,522 - (33,558) (33,558)
Net assets at end of the period 277,279 49,795 327,073 258,620 11,214 269,834

Accumulated (loss) / undistributed income brought forward

Realised income 29,469 56,123
Unrealised loss (31,065) (11,351)
(1,596) 44,772
Accounting income available for distribution
Relating to capital gains 50,233 -
Excluding capital gains 1,158 -
51,391 -
Total comprehensive loss for the period - (33,558)
Undistributed income carried forward 49,795 11,214
Undistributed income carried forward
Realised income 13,297 42,144
Unrealised income / (loss) 36,498 (30,930)
49,795 11,214
(Rupees) (Rupees)
Net assets value per unit at beginning of the period 93.3868 110.4602
Net assets value per unit at end of the period 112.4512 98.7442

The annexed notes from 1 to 18 form an integral part of this condensed interim financial information.

For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL Equity Fund

Condensed Interim Statement of Cash Flow (Un- Audited)

For The Half Year Ended December 31, 2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income / (loss) for the period before taxation
Adjustments for:
Capital (gain) / loss on sale of investments - net
Dividend income
Mark-up on bank deposits

Unrealised (appreciation) / diminution on re-measurement of

investments at 'fair value through profit or loss'- net

(Increase) / decrease in assets
Investments - net
Advances, deposits and prepayments

Increase / (decrease) in liabilities
Payable to the Management Company
Payable to the Trustee
Payable to Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Cash used in operations
Dividend received
Mark-up received on bank deposits

Net cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Amount received on issue of units
Payment against redemption of units
Net cash generated from financing activities
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

The annexed notes from 1 to 18 form an integral part of this condensed interim financial information.

Half year ended
December 31,
2019 2018

Note --------------- (Rupees in '000) ---------------
52,522 (33,558)

(13,968) 5,036

(7,425) (6,705)

(1,808) (1,639)

(36,498) 30,930

(7,177) (5,936)
(38,354) (23,771)

(21) 1
(38,375) (23,770)

519 (370)

(1) 13

(249) (169)

1,165 72

1,434 (454)
(44,118) (30,160)

8,119 4,993

1,828 1,648

9,947 6,641

(34,171) (23,519)

134,542 73,952

(105,346) (64,717)

29,196 9,235

(4,974) (14,284)

28,239 43,148

4 23,264 28,864

For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Executive Officer Director

Chief Financial Officer
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HBL Equity Fund

Notes to the Condensed Interim Financial Information (Unaudited)
For The Half Year Ended December 31, 2019

1

2.1

2.1.1

2.1.2

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

HBL Equity Fund ("the Fund") was established under a Trust Deed executed between PICIC Asset Management
Company Limited (now, HBL Asset Management Limited) as the Management Company and the Central Depository
Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC) as the Trustee. The Fund was approved by the Securities and Exchange Commission
of Pakistan (SECP) vide its letter no. SCD/NBFC-11/PSF/249/2011 dated June 1, 2011 and the trust deed was executed on
June 14, 2011.

Through an order dated August 31, 2016, SECP approved the merger of PICIC Asset Management Company Limited with
and into HBL Asset Management Limited effective from August 31, 2016 and the trust deed was revised on February 17,
2017. Effective from September 1, 2016, HBL Asset Management Limited became Management Company of the Fund
which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Habib Bank Limited. The Aga Khan Fund For Economic Development (AKFED), S.A.
is the parent company of Habib Bank Limited.

The Management Company of the Fund has been registered as a Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC) under the
Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 (NBFC Rules) and has obtained the
requisite license from the SECP to undertake Asset Management Services. The registered office of the Management
Company is situated at 7th Floor, Emerald Tower, G-19, Block 5, Main Clifton Road, Clifton, Karachi.

The Fund is an open-ended mutual fund and is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The units of the Fund
were initially offered to the public for subscription at par value of Rs 100 per unit from September 24, 2011 to
September 26, 2011. Thereafter, the units are offered to the public for subscription on a continuous basis and are
transferrable and redeemable by surrendering them to the Fund.

The Fund has been categorised as an equity scheme as per the criteria laid down by the SECP for categorisation of the
Collective Investment Schemes (CISs). The investment objective of the Fund is to provide investors a diversified equity
portfolio with a primary objective of maximizing risk-adjusted returns over longer investment horizon through a
combination of capital gains and dividend income. Title to the assets of the Fund is held in the name of the CDC as
Trustee of the Fund.

JCR-VIS Credit Rating Company has assigned a management quality rating of 'AM2+' (AM Two Plus) to the Management
Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance

This condensed interim financial information has been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim financial reporting. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable
in Pakistan for interim financial reporting comprise of International Accounting Standard (IAS) 34, Interim Financial
Reporting, issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017,
the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, along with part VIIIA of the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules, the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the
'NBFC Regulations'), the directives issued by the SECP and the requirements of the Trust Deed.

Where the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations, the directives issued by the SECP and the requirements of the
Trust Deed differ from the requirements of the IAS 34, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act,
2017, part VIIIA of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations, the directives
issued by the SECP and the requirements of the Trust Deed have been followed.

The disclosures made in this condensed interim financial information have; however, been limited based on the
requirements of International Accounting Standard - 34 'Interim Financial Reporting'. This condensed interim financial
information does not include all the information and disclosures required in a full set of financial statements and should
be read in conjunction with the annual audited financial statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2019.
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2.1.3

2.1.4

2.1.5

2.2

2.3

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

The comparative statement of asset and liabilities presented in this condensed interim financial information has been
extracted from the annual audited financial statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2019, whereas the
comparative condensed interim income statement, condensed interim statement of comprehensive income,
condensed interim statement of cash flows and condensed interim statement of movement in unit holders’ fund are
extracted from the unaudited condensed interim financial information for the half year ended December 31, 2018.

This condensed interim financial information is unaudited but has been reviewed by the auditors. Further, the figures
of the condensed interim income statement and condensed interim statement of comprehensive income for the
quarters ended December 31, 2019 have not been reviewed.

In compliance with Schedule V of the NBFC Regulations, the directors of the Management Company hereby declare that
this condensed interim financial information gives a true and fair view of the state of the Fund’s affairs as at December
31, 2019.

Basis of measurement

This condensed interim financial information has been prepared under the historical cost convention, except that
certain financial assets are stated at fair value.

This condensed interim financial information has been prepared following accrual basis of accounting except for cash
flow information.

Functional and presentation currency

This condensed interim financial information is presented in Pakistani Rupees which is the Fund's functional and
presentation currency.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING AND RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES, ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, JUDGEMENTS AND
CHANGES THEREIN

The accounting policies adopted for the preparation of this condensed interim financial information are the same as
those applied in the preparation of the annual audited financial statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30,
2019, unless otherwise stated.

The preparation of this condensed interim financial information in conformity with accounting and reporting standards
as applicable in Pakistan requires management to make estimates, assumptions and use judgements that affect the
application of accounting policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Estimates,
assumptions and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including reasonable expectations of future events. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively
commencing from the period of revision.

The significant estimates, judgements and assumptions made by the management in applying the accounting policies
and the key sources of estimation uncertainty are the same as those applied to the annual audited financial statements
as at and for the year ended June 30, 2019.

There are certain standards, interpretations and amendments to accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan, effective for the first time in this condensed interim financial information and are mandatory for the Fund's
accounting period beginning on or after July 01, 2019. These standards, interpretations and amendments are either not
relevant to the Fund's operations or are not expected to have a significant effect on this condensed interim financial
information.

The Fund's financial risk management objectives and policies are consistent with that disclosed in annual audited
financial statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2019.
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4.1

5.1

December 31, June 30,
2019 2019

(Un-Audited) (Audited)

-- (Rupees in '000) -

Note

BANK BALANCES
In savings accounts 4.1 18,928 27,147
In current account 4,336 1,092
23,264 28,239

This represents bank accounts held with various banks. Mark-up rates on these accounts range between 11.28% to
14.05% per annum (June 30, 2019: 10.28% to 13.5% per annum). This includes an amount held by a related party Habib
Bank Limited, amounting to Rs. 8.330 million (June 30, 2019: Rs. 5.175 million).

December 31, June 30,
2019 2019

(Un-Audited) (Audited)

INVESTMENTS Note ------------- (Rupees in '000) --------------

Financial assets at 'fair value through profit or loss
Listed equity securities 51 311,481 217,781

Financial assets at 'fair value through profit or loss' - listed equity securities

Shares of listed companies - fully paid up ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each unless stated otherwise.

i Par value as
Carrying Market Value Unrea.hs_ed a percentage
Asat Purchases | Bonus issue Sales Asat Amount as at asat appreciation/ | |Market value as a| Market value as of issued
Name of the Investee Company Notes | July1, duringthe | duringthe | duringthe | December 31, iminution) on of |a of i
N N N December 31, | December 31, N capital of the
2019 period period period 2019 total net assets N
2019 2019 3 investee
of investments company
Number of Shares (Rupees in '000)
AUTOMOBILE PARTS & ACCESSORIES
Thal Limited (par value of Rs. 5 each) 20,400 24,800 - 22,200 23,000 7,194 7,779 585 2.50% 2.38% 0.03%
CEMENT
Lucky Cement Limited 16,400 34,500 - 19,100 31,800 12,294 13,623 1,329 4.37% 4.17% 0.01%)
Kohat Cement Limited 22,000 30,500 - 32,000 20,500 1,057 1,587 530 0.51% 0.49% 0.01%)
Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited - 115,000 - 115,000 - - - - - - -
38,400 180,000 N 166,100 52,300 13,351 15,210 1,859 1.88% 2.65%
CHEMICAL
Engro Polymer & Chemicals Limited 183,596 271,000 B 205,500 249,096 6,895 8,272 1,377 2.66% 253% 0.01%]
Lotte Chemical Pakistan Limited 90,000 293,500 - 383,500 - - - - - - -
Sitara Chemical Industries Limited 2,000 9,100 - - 11,100 3,044 3,314 270 1.06% 1.01% D.OS%'
275,596 573,600 - 589,000 260,196 9,939 11,586 1,647 3.72% 3.54%
COMMERCIAL BANKS
Allied Bank Limited 72,000 49,600 - 40,300 81,300 8,111 7,772 (339) 2.50% 2.38% 0.01%
Bank Al-Falah Limited 511 281,550 269,000 - 112,500 438,050 19,240 20,019 779 6.43% 6.12% 0.03%
Bank Al-Habib Limited 110,000 175,000 - 115,500 169,500 12,540 12,909 369 4.14% 3.95% 0.02%
Habib Bank Limited* 511 106,600 162,500 - 218,000 51,100 6,408 8,044 1,636 2.58% 2.46% 0.00%
MCB Bank Limited** 511 35,300 48,800 - 53,500 30,600 5,322 6,271 949 2.01% 1.92% 0.00%
United Bank Limited 65,200 80,500 - 35,000 110,700 16,241 18,210 1,969 5.85% 5.57% 0.01%
The Bank of Punjab Limited 545,000 1,200,500 - 1,011,500 734,000 7,344 8,316 972 2.67% 2.54% 0.03%
Faysal Bank Limited 5.1.2 1,800 - - - 1,800 39 34 (5) 0.01% 0.01% 0.00%
National Bank of Pakistan Limited 64,000 201,000 - 89,000 176,000 6,580 7,621 1,041 2.45% 2.33% 0.01%
1,281,450 2,186,900 - 1,675,300 1,793,050 81,825 89,196 7,371 28.64% 27.27%
ENGINEERING
International Steels Limited - 65,000 - 50,000 15,000 917 868 (49) 0.28% 0.27% 0.00%
FERTILIZER
Engro Corporation Limited 511 55,930 43,300 - 49,600 49,630 13,957 17,135 3,178 5.50% 5.24% 0.01%
Engro Fertilizers Limited 124,000 148,500 - 162,500 110,000 7,405 8,077 672 2.59% 2.47% 0.01%)
Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited - 120,000 - 120,000 - - - - - - -
Fauiji Fertilizer Company Limited 83,500 91,300 - 111,500 63,300 6,102 6,423 321 2.06% 1.96% 0.00%)
263,430 203,100 N 443,600 222,930 27,464 31,635 4,170 10.16% 9.67%
OIL & GAS EXPLORATION COMPANIES
Mari Petroleum Company Limited 14,459 19,000 1,425 21,440 13,444 15,229 17,613 2,384 5.65% 5.39% 0.01%]
0il & Gas Development Company Limited 139,700 277,500 - 248,200 169,000 21,505 24,052 2,547 7.72% 7.35% 0.78
Pakistan Oilfields Limited 24,940 16,500 - 15,300 26,140 10,494 11,677 1,183 3.75% 3.57% 0.01%)
Pakistan Petroleum Limited 511 91,042 203,000 26,108 162,700 157,450 17,641 21,593 3,952 6.93% 6.60% 0.01%)
270,141 516,000 27,533 447,640 366,034 64,869 74,935 10,066 24.06% 22.91%
OIL & GAS MARKETING COMPANIES
Pakistan State Oil Company Limited 511 52,276 107,500 11,155 118,500 52,431 8,105 10,048 1,943 3.23% 3.07% 0.02%
Sui Northern Gas Pipeline Limited 52,000 58,500 - 27,000 83,500 5,936 6,360 424 2.04% 1.94% 0.01%|
104,276 166,000 11,155 145,500 135,931 14,041 16,408 2,366 5.27% 5.02%
INSURANCE
TPL Insurance Limited | - 80,000 - - 80,000 2,003.00 2,054 51 0.66% 0.63% 0.10%
Adamjee Insurance Company Limited 66,000 193,000 - 104,000 155,000 5,577 6,524 947 2.09% 1.99% 0.04%)
66,000 273,000 - 104,000 235,000 7,580 8,578 998 2.75% 2.62%
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5.1.1

5.1.2

i Par value as
Carrying Market Value Ume?hs_ed a percentage
Asat Purchases | Bonus issue Sales Asat Amount as at asat appreciation/ Market value as a| Market value as of issued
Name of the Investee Company Notes July1, during the during the duringthe | December 31, iminution) on percentage of | a percentage of "
2019 period period period 2019 D 31, |D 31, total i net assets ca!mal of the
2019 2019 . investee
of investments company
------------------------ Number of Shares (RUPEES i '000) ~-roreemrmmrmmercmermoeeme
GLASS & CERAMICS
Tariq Glass Industries Limited - 40,000 - 40,000
PHARMACEUTICALS
AGP Limited 19,500 45,000 - 30,000 34,500 2,577 3,428 851 1.10% 1.05% 0.01%
The Searle Company Limited 512 8,774 21,500 - 14,500 15,774 2,549 2,977 428 0.96% 0.91% 0.01%
Abbott Laboratories (Pakistan) Limited - 9,000 - 9,000 - - - - - - -
Highnoon Laboratories Limited - 10,000 - 10,000 5,250 5,373 123 1.72% 1.64% 0.03%!
28,274 85,500 - 53,500 60,274 10,376 11,778 1,401 3.78% 3.60%
TRANSPORT
Pakistan National Shipping Corporation Limited 4,000 39,500 - 5,000 38,500 2,793 3,616 823 1.16% 1.11% 0.03%
PAPER & BOARD
Century Paper & Board Mills Limited 25,000 29,000 - 22,500 31,500 979 1,596 617 0.51% 0.49% 0.02%
POWER GENERATION & DISTRIBUTION
The Hub Power Company Limited 511 188,188 141,000 - 126,000 203,188 16,225 18,968 2,743 6.09% 5.80% 0.02%
K-Electric Limited (par value of
Rs. 3.5 each) 616,000 435,000 - 270,500 780,500 3,308 3,411 103 1.10% 1.04% 0.00%
Pakgen Power Limited 90,000 43,000 - 133,000 - - - - -
894,188 619,000 - 529,500 983,688 19,533 22,379 2,846 7.18% 6.84%
TECHNOLOGY & COMMUNICATION
Systems Limited 512 2,750 175,000 - 174,000 3,750 317 466 149 0.15% 0.14% 0.00%
TEXTILE COMPOSITE
Nishat Mills Limited 53,000 83,000 - 74,500 61,500 5,513 6,528 1,015 2.10% 2.00% 0.02%]
Gul Ahmed Textile Mills Limited - 182,500 - 49,500 133,000 5,807 5,734 (73) 1.84% 1.75% 0.04%
Interloop Limited 85,436 59,500 90,000 54,936 2,483 3,189 706 1.02% 0.98% 0.01%]
138,436 325,000 - 214,000 249,436 13,803 15,451 1,648 4.96% 4.72%
Total - As at December 31, 2019 3,412,341 5,701,400 38,688 4,681,840 4,470,589 274,981 311,481 36,498 100% 95%
Total - As at June 30, 2019 2,896,110 6,292,344 106,396 5,716,159 3,432,741 248,846 217,781 (31,065) 100 88.68

*Sponsor of the management company
**Related party due to holding more than 10% of units

As at December 31, 2019 the Fund has pledged shares with the National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited (NCCPL)
as collateral for guaranteeing settlement of the Fund's trades in accordance with Circular no. 11, dated October 23,
2007, issued by the SECP, of following companies:

- Bank Al-Falah Limited (50,000 shares having market value of Rs. 2.285 million)

- Engro Corporation Limited (31,000 shares having market value of Rs. 10.702 million )

- Habib Bank Limited (10,000 shares having market value of Rs. 1.74 million)

- The Hub Power Company Limited (50,000 shares having market value of Rs. 4.667 million)

- MCB Bank Limited (20,000 shares having market value of Rs. 4.098 million)

- Pakistan Petroleum Limited (10,000 shares having market value of Rs. 1.371 million)

- Pakistan State Oil Company Limited (20,000 shares having market value of Rs. 3.832 million)

These investments include gross bonus shares as per Fund's entitlement declared by the investee companies. Finance
Act, 2014 has brought amendments in the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 whereby the bonus shares received by the
shareholder are to be treated as income and a tax at the rate of 5% is to be applied on value of bonus shares
determined on the basis of day end price on the first day of closure of books. The tax is to be collected at source by the
investee company which shall be considered as final discharge of tax liability on such income. However, the
Management Company of the Fund jointly with other Asset Management Companies and Mutual Fund Association of
Pakistan, has filed a petition in Honorable High Court of Sindh to declare the amendments brought in Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 with reference to tax on bonus shares for collective investment schemes as null and void and not
applicable on the funds based on the premise of exemption given to mutual funds under clause 99 of Part | of the
Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The Honorable High Court of Sindh has granted stay order till the
final outcome of the case. However, the investee companies has withheld the share equivalent to 5% of bonus
announcement of the Fund having aggregate fair market value of Rs. 0.41 million at December 31, 2019 (June 30, 2019:
Rs. 0.33 million) and not yet deposited on CDC account of department of Income Tax. Management is of the view that
the decision will be in favor of the Fund and accordingly has recorded the bonus shares on gross basis at fair value of
its investments.
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6.1

7.1

7.2

7.3

December 31, June 30,

2019 2019
(Un-Audited) (Audited)
Note ------------ (Rupees in '000) ----------------
ADVANCES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
Security deposit with:
National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited 2,500 2,500
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited 100 100
2,600 2,600
Prepaid listing fee 14 -
Advance tax 6.1 199 191
2,813 2,791

The income of the Fund is exempt from tax under clause 99 of Part | of the Second Schedule of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 (ITO 2001). Furthermore, the Fund is exempt under clause 47(B) of Part IV of Second Schedule of ITO
2001 from withholding of tax under section 150, 151 and 233 of ITO 2001.

The Federal Board of Revenue through a circular “C.No.1 (43) DG (WHT)/2008-Vol.ll- 66417-R”, dated May 12, 2015,
made it mandatory to obtain exemption certificates under section 159 (1) of the ITO 2001 from Commissioner Inland
Revenue (CIR). However, various withholding agents have deducted advance tax under section 150 and 151 of ITO 2001.
The management is confident that the same shall be refunded after filing refund application within stipulated time, as
per ITO 2001.

December 31, June 30,
2019 2019
(Un-Audited) (Audited)
Note --------- (Rupees in '000) ----------------
PAYABLE TO THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY
Remuneration payable of the Management Company 7.1 569 415
Sindh Sales Tax payable on the Management Company's
remuneration 7.2 74 54
Allocation of expenses related to registrar services,
accounting, operation and valuation services 7.3 46 21
Selling and marketing expense payable 7.4 576 255
Sales load payable - 1
1,265 746

As per the offering document of the Fund, the Management Company shall charge a fee at the rate not exceeding 2%
of the average annual net assets on daily basis of the Scheme, subject to the guidelines issued by the Commission from
time to time. During the period, the fee has been charged, at the rate of 2% from July 1, 2019 to July 7, 2019, at the rate
of 1.7% from July 8, 2019 to September 30, 2019 and at the rate of 2% from October 1, 2019 to December 31, 2019, of
the daily annual net assets of the Fund. The fee is payable monthly in arrears.

The Sindh Government has levied Sindh Sales Tax (SST) at the rate of 13% (June 30, 2019: 13%) on the remuneration of
the Management Company through Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011.

As per Regulation 60(3)(s) of the NBFC Regulations, fee and expenses pertaining to registrar services, accounting,
operation and valuation services related to a Collective Investment Scheme (CIS) are chargeable to the CIS. Previously,
such expenses were chargeable maximum upto 0.1% of the average annual net assets on daily basis of the Scheme or
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7.4

8.1

8.2

the actual cost, whichever is lower. However, SECP, vide S.R.0. 639(1)/2019, dated June 20, 2019, has removed the
maximum limit of 0.1%. During the period, the Management Company has charged the aforementioned expenses, at
the rate of 0.1% from July 1, 2019 to July 7, 2019, at the rate of 0.5% from July 8, 2019 to September 30, 2019 and at
the rate of 0.161% from October 1, 2019 to December 31, 2019, of the daily annual net assets of the Fund.

As per SECP vide its circular No. SCD/PRDD/Circular/361/2016, dated December 30, 2016, selling and marketing
expenses was chargeable to open end equity, asset allocation and index funds only, upto maximum 0.4% of the average
annual net assets of the Scheme or the actual cost, whichever is lower.

However, circular No. SCD/PRDD/Circular/04/2019, dated July 5, 2019, issued by SECP, supersedes all previous circulars
issued with respect to selling and marketing expenses, according to which, selling and marketing expenses can be
charged to all categories of the open end mutual funds, except fund of funds, with no cap. During the period,
Management Company has charged the aforementioned expenses, at the rate of 0.4% from July 1, 2019 to July 7, 2019
and at the rate of 0.75% from July 8, 2019 to December 31, 2019, of the daily annual net assets of the Fund.

December 31, June 30,
2019 2019
(Un-Audited) (Audited)
Note ------------- (Rupees in '000) ----------------
PAYABLE TO THE TRUSTEE
Trustee fee payable 8.1 69 70

The Trustee is entitled to a monthly remuneration for services rendered to the Fund under the provisions of the Trust
Deed, as per the tariff specified therein, based on the average annual net assets of the Fund. The fee is paid to the
Trustee monthly in arrears.

Earlier, the Trustee fee was charged as per the details disclosed in note 10.1 to the annual audited financial statements
of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2019. CDC vide notification CDC/CEQ/L-112/02/2019, dated June 27, 2019, has
revised the rates of the Trustee fee, with effect from July 1, 2019, according to which, Trustee fee shall be charged at
the rate of 0.2% of the average annual net assets of the Fund. During the period, Management Company has charged
the Trustee fee accordingly.

The Provincial Government of Sindh has levied Sindh Sales Tax at the rate of 13% (June 30, 2019: 13%) on the Trustee
fee through the Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011.

December 31, June 30,
2019 2019
(Un-Audited) (Audited)
PAYABLE TO SECURITIES AND Note ------------- (Rupees in '000) ----------------
EXCHANGE COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN
Annual fee payable 9.1 26 275
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10.2
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Under the regulation 62 of the NBFC Regulations, a Collective Investment Scheme (CIS) categorized as an equity scheme
is required to pay as annual fee to the SECP, an amount equal to 0.095% of the average annual net assets of the Scheme.
However, SECP, vide S.R.O. 685 (1)/2019, dated June 28, 2019, has reduced the rate of the fee to 0.02% of the average
annual net assets for all categories of CIS(s), with effect from July 1, 2019. During the period, Management Company
has charged the fee accordingly. The fee is payable annually in arrears.

December 31, June 30,
2019 2019
(Un-Audited) (Audited)
Note ------------- (Rupees in '000) ----------------
ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES

Provision for Federal Excise Duty 10.1 5,685 5,685
Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund 10.2 3,839 2,768
Withholding tax payable 33 36
Brokerage payable 238 71
Auditors' remuneration 221 264
Printing charges 123 154
Others 35 31
10,174 9,009

The legal status of applicability of Federal Excise Duty (FED) on the Fund is same as that disclosed in note 12.1 to the
annual audited financial statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the appeal filed by tax
authorities with Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan is pending for decision.

In view of above, the Management Company, as a matter of abundant caution, is carrying provision for FED for the
period from January 13, 2013 to June 30, 2016 aggregating to Rs. 5.685 million. Had the provision not been retained,
NAV per unit of the Fund as at December 31, 2019 would have been higher by Rs. 1.95 per unit (June 30, 2019: Rs. 2.16
per unit).

The legal status of applicability of Workers' Welfare Fund and Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund is the same as disclosed in
note 12.2 to the annual audited financial statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2019 and a constitutional
petition filed by certain CISs, through their trustees, in the Honourable High Court of Sindh, challenging the applicability
of WWF to the CISs, is pending adjudication.

As at December 31, 2019, the provision in relation to SWWF amounted to Rs. 3.839 million. Had the provision not been
made, the net asset value per unit as at December 31, 2019 would have been higher by Rs. 1.32 (June 30, 2019: Rs.
1.05) per unit.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
There were no contingencies and commitments as at December 31, 2019 (June 30, 2019: Nil).
TAXATION

The Fund's income is exempt from income tax as per clause 99 of Part | of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001, subject to the condition that not less than 90% of its accounting income for the year, as reduced by
the capital gains whether realised or unrealized, is distributed to the unit holders in cash. The Fund is also exempt from
the provision of section 113 (minimum tax) under clause 11A of Part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001. The Fund has not recorded a tax liability in the current period, as the Management Company intends
to distribute at least 90% of the Fund's accounting income, as reduced by capital gains, whether realised or unrealized,
for the year ending June 30, 2020 to its unit holders.
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14.1

EARNINGS PER UNIT

Earnings per unit (EPU) has not been disclosed in this condensed interim financial information, as, in the opinion of the
Management Company, the determination of cumulative weighted average number of outstanding units for calculating
earnings per unit is not practicable.

TRANSACTIONS WITH CONNECTED PERSONS / RELATED PARTIES

Connected persons include HBL Asset Management Limited being the Management Company, Habib Bank Limited
being the Sponsor, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, being the Trustee of the Fund, other collective
investment schemes managed by the Management Company, directors and officers of the Management Company,
directors of connected persons and persons having 10% or more beneficial ownership of the units of the Fund.

Transactions with connected persons are in the normal course of business, at contracted rates and terms determined
in accordance with market rates.

Remuneration payable to Management Company and Trustee is determined in accordance with the provisions of the
NBFC Regulations and the Trust Deed respectively.

Transactions and balances with parties who were connected persons due to holding 10% or more units in the
comparative period and not in the current period are not disclosed in the comparative period.

Details of the transactions with connected persons and balances with them, if not disclosed elsewhere in the
condensed interim financial information are as follows:

Half year ended
December 31,
2019 2018
(Un-Audited) (Un-Audited)

Transactions during the period 7T (Rupees in '000) ------------

HBL Asset Management Limited - Management Company

Remuneration of the Management Company 2,537 3,052
Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of the Management Company 330 397
Allocation of expenses related to registrar services,

accounting, operation and valuation services 321 153
Sales load paid - 27
Issue of 226,472 (2018: 177,048) units 25,000 20,000
Redemption of 625,230 (2018: 180,942) units 63,103 20,000

Habib Bank Limited - Sponsor

Bank charges 2 5
Mark-up on bank deposits 346 -
Dividend Income 252 503

MCB Bank Limited - connected person

holding 10% or more units
Bank charges 1 1
Mark-up on bank deposits 27 70

Mir Ghulam Ali Talpur - connected person*
holding 10% or more units
Issue of 261,062 units 25,153 -
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14.2

The Citizens Foundation - connected person*
holding 10% or more units

Issue of 475,449 units

Redemption of 180,942 units

Directors and Executives of the Management Company

Issue of 158 (2018: 4,721) units
Redemption of 602 (2018: 1,886) units

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee

Remuneration of the Trustee
Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of the Trustee
Central Depository service charges

Balances outstanding as at period / year end

HBL Asset Management Limited - Management Company
Remuneration payable of the Management Company

Sindh Sales Tax payable on the Management Company's

remuneration
Selling and marketing expenses

Allocation of expenses related to registrar services,

accounting, operation and valuation services
Sales load payable
Units held: Nil (June 30, 2019: 398,758 )

Habib Bank Limited - Sponsor
Bank balance

MCB Bank Limited - connected person

holding 10% or more units

Bank balances

Units held: 1,022,050 (June 30, 2019: 1,022,050 )

Mir Ghulam Ali Talpur - connected person*
holding 10% or more units
Units held: 449,348

The Citizens Foundation - connected person *
holding 10% or more units
Units held: 475,449

Half year ended
December 31,
2019 2018
(Un-Audited) (Un-Audited)
------------ (Rupees in '000) ------------

45,520 -
15,444 -

15 510

63 209

264 353

34 46

25 21
December 31, June 30,

2019 2019

(Un-Audited) (Audited)

----------- (Rupees in '000) -----------

569 415

74 54

576 255

46 21

; 1

- 37,239

8,330 5,175

781 256

114,931 95,446
50,530 -
53,465 -
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December 31, June 30,
2019 2019
(Un-Audited) (Audited)
----------- (Rupees in '000) -----------
Directors and Executives of the Management Company
Units held: 158 (June 30, 2019: 36,471 18 3,406

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee

Remuneration payable 61 58
Sindh Sales Tax on trustee remuneration 8 7
Central Depository Charges payable 5 5
Security deposit 100 100

*Comparative transactions / balances of these parties have not been disclosed as these parties were not related parties
in the last period.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. Consequently, differences can arise between carrying values
and the fair value estimates.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Fund is a going concern without any intention or
requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction on adverse terms.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities traded in active markets i.e. listed equity shares are based on the quoted
market prices at the close of trading on the reporting date. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by
the Fund is current bid price.

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from
an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on an arm's length basis.

As per the requirements of IFRS 13 ( Fair Value Measurement), the Fund classifies fair value measurements using a fair
value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy
has the following levels:

- Fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level
1);

- Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) (level 2); and

- Fair value measurements using inputs for assets or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e.
unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their
levels in the fair value hierarchy.
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15.2

16

17

Note
Financial assets measured at fair value

Investments

Financial assets not measured at fair value 151
Bank balances
Dividend and mark-up receivable
Receivable against sale of investments - net
Deposits

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value 15.1
Payable to the Management Company
Payable to the Trustee
Payable against redemption of units
Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Note
Financial assets measured at fair value
Investments

Financial assets not measured at fair value 151
Bank balances
Dividend and profit receivable
Deposits
Receivable against sale of investments - net

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value 15.1
Payable to the Management Company
Payable to the Trustee
Payable against redemption of units
Accrued expenses and other liabilities

December 31, 2019 (Un-Audited)

Carrying amount Fair value

Fair value
through profit or
loss

Amortised cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

(Rupees in '000)

311,481 - 311,481 311,481 - - 311,481

311,481 - 311,481 311,481 - - 311,481
- 23,264 23,264
- 242 242
- 1,131 1,131
- 2,600 2,600
- 27,237 27,237
- 1,191 1,191
- 61 61
- 324 324
- 598 598
- 2,174 2,174

June 30, 2019 (Audited)
Carrying amount Fair value
Fair value
through profit or  Amortised cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

loss

(Rupees in '000)

217,781 - 217,781 217,781 - - 217,781
217,781 - 217,781 217,781 - - 217,781

- 28,239 28,239

- 956 956

- 2,600 2,600

- 6,012 6,012

- 37,807 37,807

- 692 692

- 63 63

- 82 82

- 505 505

- 1,342 1,342

The Fund has not disclosed the fair values for these financial assets and financial liabilities, as these are either short
term in nature or reprice periodically. Therefore, their carrying amounts are reasonable approximation of fair value.

Transfers during the period

No transfers were made between various levels of fair value hierarchy during the period.

TOTAL EXPENSE RATIO

In accordance with the directive 23 of 2016 dated July 20, 2017 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan (SECP), the total expense ratio of the Fund for the half year ended December 31, 2019 is 2.74% (2018: 1.96%)
which includes 0.6% (2018: 0.22%) representing Government levy and SECP fee.

DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

This condensed interim financial information was authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the Management

Company on February 13, 2020.
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18 GENERAL
18.1 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees, unless otherwise stated.

18.2 Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever necessary, for better presentation and
disclosure, the effect of which is not material.

For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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FUND INFORMATION

Name of Fund

Name of Auditor

Name of Trustee

Bankers

HBL Energy Fund

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC)

MCB Bank Limited

Soneri Bank Limited

Habib Bank Limited

JS Bank Limited

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited.
Zarai Taragiati Bank Limited.
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TRUSTEE REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS
HBL ENERGY FUND

Report of the Trustee pursuant to Regulation 41(h) of the Non-Banking Finance Companies
and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008

We, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, being the Trustee of HBL Energy Fund
(the Fundj are of the opinion that HBL Asset Management Limited. being the Management
Company of the Fund has in all material respects managed the Fund during the six months period
ended December 31, 2019 in accordance with the provisions of the following:

(1 Limitations imposed on the mvestment powers of the Management Company under the
constitutive documents of the Fund:

(i}  The pricing. issuance and redemption of units are carried out in accordance with the
requirements of the constitutive documents of the Fund: and

{iii)  The Non-Banking Finance Companies {Establishment and Regulations) Rules, 2003,
the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 and the
constitutive documents of the Fund.

\pn -

Badiuddin Akber
Chief Executive Officer
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited

Karachi, February 24, 2020
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Tel: <92 21 3558 3020 nd Floor, Block-C
B O ' Fax: 5 71 3568 4239 Leksan Square, Bullging Mol
werw.bdo.com. gk Sarwal Shaneed Boad

—— Karachi-74200
Pakisian

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON REVIEW OF CONDEMSED INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION TO
THE UNIT HOLDERS OF HBL ENERGY FUND

Introduction

We have reviewed the accompanying condensed interim statement of assets and liabilities of HBL
EMERGY FUND “the Fund") as at December 31, 2019 and the related condensed interim income
statement, condensed interim statement of comprehensive income, condensed interim statement of
cash flows, condensed interim statement of movement in unit holders' fund and notes to the condensed
interim financial information for the half year then ended (here-in-after referred to as “interim financial
infarmation™). HBL Asset Management Limited (the "Management Company') is responsible for the
preparation angd presentation of this condensed interim financial information in accordance with
accounling and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim financial reporting. Qur
responsibility is to express a conclusion on this condensed interim financial information based on our
review.

Scope of Review

We conducted ocur review In accordance with International Standard on Review Engagements 2410,
“Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity.” A review
of condensed interim financial infarmation consists of making inguiries, primarily of persens responsible
for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review procedures. A review is
substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing and consequently does nol enable us to obtain assurance that we would became aware of all
significant matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

Conclusion

Based on cur review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying
condensed interim financial information as at and for the hall year ended December 31, 2019 is not
prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable
in Pakistan for interim financial reporting.

Other matter
The figures for the quarter ended December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018 in the condensed interim

income statement and condensed interim statement of comprehensive fncome have not been reviewed
and we do nat express a conclusion on them.

KARACHI .
éﬂ{}g{.{,{}_kf,awg&.
paTep: 1 3 FEB 2020 BDO EBRAHIM & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Engagement Partner: Raheel Shahnawaz

BDO Ebrahim & Co, Chartered Accountants
BOD Furatim & Ta,, & Faddaian registeed aetnanhip firm, i & mesdber of BO0 Mnlptilioadl Limited, a UK esmgeery Uemitid oy guarsmies
e farm pant of dhe intermationsl BBO renends of Incepaediel MM (irms
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HBL Energy Fund

Condensed Interim Statement of Assets and Liabilities (Un-Audited)

As At December 31, 2019
December 31, June 30,
2019 2019
(Un-Audited) (Audited)
Note  ------------ (Rupees in '000) ------------

ASSETS

Bank balances 4 86,511 61,148

Investments 5 807,348 698,072

Dividend and mark-up receivable 576 680

Advances, deposits and prepayments 6 2,919 2,893
TOTAL ASSETS 897,354 762,793
LIABILITIES

Payable to the Management Company 7 3,067 2,310

Payable to the Trustee 8 158 148

Payable to Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 9 70 868

Unclaimed dividend 5,389 5,389

Accrued expenses and other liabilities 10 22,362 19,736
TOTAL LIABILITIES 31,046 28,451
NET ASSETS 866,308 734,342
UNIT HOLDERS' FUND (AS PER STATEMENT ATTACHED) 866,308 734,342
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 11

Number of units in issue

Net assets value per unit

The annexed notes from 1 to 18 form an integral part of this condensed interim financial information.

For HBL Asset Management Limited

(Management Company)

Chief Financial Officer

Chief Executive Officer

66,232,186 66,037,528

----------------- (Rupees) -----------------

13.0799 11.1201
Director
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HBL Energy Fund

Condensed Interim Income Statement (Un-Audited)

For The Half Year And Quarter Ended December 31, 2019

Income
Capital gain / (loss) on sale of investments - net
Dividend income
Mark-up on bank deposits

Unrealized appreciation / (diminution) on re-measurement of investments
classified as financial asset at 'fair value through profit or loss'- net

Expenses
Remuneration of the Management Company
Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of the Management Company
Remuneration of the Trustee
Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of the Trustee
Annual fee to Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
Allocation of expenses related to registrar services,
accounting, operation and valuation services
Selling and marketing expenses
Auditors' remuneration
Fees and subscription
Securities transaction costs and settlement charges
Bank charges

Net income / (loss) for the period from operating activities
Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund

Net income / (loss) for the period before taxation

Taxation

Net income / (loss) for the period after taxation

Allocation of net income for the period
Income already paid on redemption of units
Accounting income available for distribution:
Relating to capital gains
Excluding capital gains

Earnings per unit

Note

7.1
7.2
8.1
8.2
9.1

7.3
7.4

10.2

12

13

The annexed notes from 1 to 18 form an integral part of this condensed interim financial information.

For HBL Asset Management Limited

(Management Company)

Chief Financial Officer

Chief Executive Officer

Half year ended Quarter ended
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018 2019 2018
(Rupees in '000)
3,595 (26,218) 13,038 (24,771)
13,155 16,058 7,266 7,845
3,690 5,437 1,933 3,058
20,440 (4,723) 22,237 (13,868)
112,963 (133,395) 162,407 (104,359)
133,403 (138,118) 184,644 (118,227)
6,690 9,921 3,737 4,776
869 1,290 485 621
698 984 374 475
91 128 49 62
70 471 38 227
880 496 301 239
2,568 1,984 1,402 955
220 477 220 240
11 52 8 52
1,347 937 832 296
15 11 11 5
13,459 16,751 7,457 7,948
119,944 (154,869) 177,187 (126,175)
(2,399) - (2,399) -
117,545 (154,869) 174,788 (126,175)
117,545 (154,869) 174,788 (126,175)
1,853 1,853
114,771 172,935
921 -
115,692 172,935
117,545 174,788
Director
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HBL Energy Fund

Condensed Interim Statement of Comprehensive Income (Un-Audited)
For The Half Year And Quarter Ended December 31, 2019

Half year ended
December 31,

Quarter ended
December 31,

Net income / (loss) for the period after taxation

Other comprehensive income for the period

Items that will be reclassified subsequently

to income statement

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently

to income statement

Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the period

The annexed notes from 1 to 18 form an integral part of this condensed interim financial information.

Chief Financial Officer

2019 2018 2019 2018
(Rupees in '000)
117,545 (154,869) 174,788 (126,175)
117,545 (154,869) 174,788 (126,175)
For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Executive Officer Director

147



HBL Energy Fund

Condensed Interim Statement of Movement in Unitholders’ Fund (Un-Audited)
For The Half Year Ended December 31, 2019

Net assets at beginning of the period

Issuance of 15,586,966 (2018: 4,124,160 units)
Capital value (at net asset value per unit at the beginning of the period)
Element of income / (loss)

Total proceeds on issuance of units

Redemption of 15,392,308 (2018: 9,195,322 units)
Capital value (at net asset value per unit at the beginning of the period)
Income already paid on redemption of units
Element of income

Total payable on redemption of units

Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the period
Net assets at end of the period

Undistributed income brought forward
Realised income
Unrealized (loss) / income

Accounting income available for distribution
Relating to capital gains
Excluding capital gains

Total comprehensive loss for the period
Undistributed income carried forward
Undistributed income carried forward
Realised income
Unrealized income / (loss)

Net assets value per unit at beginning of the period
Net assets value per unit at end of the period

Half year ended December 31,

The annexed notes from 1 to 18 form an integral part of this condensed interim financial information.

2019 2018
Capital value Un(.ilstrlbuted Total Capital value Un(.ilstrlbuted Total
iIncome income
(Rupees in '000)
720,151 14,191 734,342 803,982 257,047 1,061,029
173,328 173,328 60,566 - 60,566
12,905 - 12,905 (2,135) - (2,135)
186,233 186,233 58,431 - 58,431
(171,164) - (171,164) (135,040) - (135,040)
- (1,853) (1,853) - - -
1,205 - 1,205 4,705 4,705
(169,959) (1,853) (171,812) (130,335) - (130,335)
- 117,545 117,545 - (154,869) (154,869)
736,425 129,883 866,308 732,078 102,178 834,256
191,887 240,997
(177,696) 16,050
14,191 257,047
114,771 -
921 -
115,692 -
. (154,869)
129,883 102,178
16,920 235,573
112,963 (133,395)
129,883 102,178
(Rupees) (Rupees)
11.1201 14.6857
13.0799 12.4186
For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Executive Officer Director

Chief Financial Officer
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HBL Energy Fund

Condensed Interim Statement of Cash Flow (Un- Audited)

For The Half Year Ended December 31, 2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income / (loss) for the period before taxation
Adjustments for:
Capital (gain) / loss on sale of investments - net
Dividend income
Mark-up on bank deposits

Unrealized (appreciation) / diminution on re-measurement of investments

classified at 'fair value through profit or loss' - net

Decrease / (increase) in assets
Investments - net
Advances, deposits and prepayments

Increase / (decrease) in liabilities
Payable to the Management Company
Payable to the Trustee
Payable to Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Unclaimed dividend

Cash (used in) / generated from operations
Dividend received
Mark-up received on bank deposits

Net cash generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Amount received on issue of units

Amount paid on redemption of units
Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period

Half year ended

December 31,

The annexed notes from 1 to 18 form an integral part of this condensed interim financial information.

Chief Financial Officer

2019 2018
Note  --------e---- (Rupees in '000) -------------

117,545 (154,869)

(3,595) 26,218

(13,155) (16,058)

(3,690) (5,437)

(112,963) 133,395

(15,858) (16,751)

7,282 104,507
(26) (68)

7,256 104,439

757 (1,515)
10 (27)
(798) (439)

2,626 231
- (5)

2,595 (1,755)

(6,007) 85,933

13,145 17,310

3,804 4,862

16,949 22,172

10,942 108,105

186,233 58,431

(171,812) (130,335)

14,421 (71,904)

25,363 36,201

61,148 100,388

4 86,511 136,589

For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL Energy Fund

Notes to the Condensed Interim Financial Information (Unaudited)
For The Half Year Ended December 31, 2019

1

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

HBL Energy Fund ("the Fund") was established in 2006 as a closed-end scheme under a Trust Deed executed between
PICIC Asset Management Company Limited as the Management Company and Central Depository Company of Pakistan
Limited (CDC) as the Trustee.

In accordance with clause 65(1) of the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008, a
meeting of the certificate holders of the Fund was held on January 31, 2013 whereby the conversion of the Fund into an
open-end scheme was duly approved through a resolution passed by majority of the certificate holders present in the
meeting who were entitled to vote. The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan accorded its final approval for
conversion of the Fund into an open-end scheme through its letter dated May 3, 2013. The second supplemental Trust
Deed and replacement Offering Document were approved by SECP vide its letter no D/PRDD/AMCW/PEF/567/2013
dated May 31, 2013 and letter no SCD/PRDD/AMCW/PEF/606/2013 dated June 24, 2013 respectively. The conversion of
the Fund from a closed end fund to an open-end fund was authorized by the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan (SECP) vide its letter No. SCD/PRDD/AMCW/PEF/607/2013 dated June 24, 2013. The Fund converted into an
open end scheme on the effective date i.e. June 25, 2013. The certificates of the closed-end fund were cancelled on the
effective date and were exchanged with the units of the open-end scheme in the swap ratio of 1:1. Each certificate holder
was allotted units according to their respective holdings as at that date on the basis of a ratio of 1 certificate to 1 unit.
Accordingly 100,000,000 units were issued on the date of conversion.

Since the effective date of conversion, the certificates of the closed-end scheme were de-listed from Pakistan Stock
Exchange. Units of the open-end scheme are listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The units are offered to the
public for subscription on a continuous basis and are transferable and redeemable by surrendering them to the Fund.

Through an order dated August 31, 2016, SECP approved the merger of PICIC Asset Management Company Limited with
and into HBL Asset Management Limited effective from August 31, 2016 and the trust deed was revised on February 17,
2017. Effective from September 1, 2016, HBL Asset Management Limited became Management Company of the Fund
which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Habib Bank Limited. The Aga Khan Fund For Economic Development (AKFED), S.A.
is the parent company of Habib Bank Limited.

The Management Company of the Fund has been registered as a Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC) under the NBFC
Rules and has obtained the requisite license from the SECP to undertake Asset Management Services. The registered
office of the Management Company is located at 7th Floor, Emerald Tower, G-19, Block 5, Main Clifton Road, Clifton,
Karachi.

The Fund has been categorized as an equity scheme as per the criteria laid down by the SECP for categorization of
open-end Collective Investment Schemes (CISs).

The core objective of the Fund is to invest in securities of the energy sector in Pakistan so as to provide investors an
access to high quality blue chip stocks in the energy sector. The eligible stocks comprise of investment in shares of
companies engaged in the following activities:

- Oil and Gas Exploration

- Oil and Gas Marketing

- Oil Refining

- Power Generation and Distribution

JCR-VIS Credit Rating Company has assigned an asset manager rating of 'AM2+ (Positive outlook)' to the Management
Company.

Title to the assets of the Fund is held in the name of CDC as Trustee of the Fund.
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2.1

2.1.1

2.1.2

2.13

2.14

2.15

2.2

23

3.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance

This condensed interim financial information has been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim financial reporting. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable
in Pakistan for interim financial reporting comprise of International Accounting Standard (IAS) 34, Interim Financial
Reporting, issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017, the
provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, along with part VIIIA of the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules, the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the
'NBFC Regulations'), the directives issued by the SECP and the requirements of the Trust Deed.

Where the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations, the directives issued by the SECP and the requirements of the
Trust Deed differ from the requirements of the IAS 34, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act,
2017, part VIIIA of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations, the directives issued
by the SECP and the requirements of the Trust Deed have been followed.

The disclosures made in this condensed interim financial information have, however, been limited based on the
requirements of International Accounting Standard - 34 'Interim Financial Reporting'. This condensed interim financial
information does not include all the information and disclosures required in a full set of financial statements and should
be read in conjunction with the annual audited financial statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2019.

The comparative statement of asset and liabilities presented in this condensed interim financial information has been
extracted from the annual audited financial statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2019, whereas the
comparative condensed interim income statement, condensed interim statement of comprehensive income, condensed
interim statement of cash flows and condensed interim statement of movement in unit holders’ fund are extracted from
the unaudited condensed interim financial information for the half year ended December 31, 2018.

This condensed interim financial information is unaudited and has been reviewed by the auditors. Further, the figures of
the condensed interim income statement and condensed interim statement of comprehensive income for the quarter
ended December 31, 2019 have not been reviewed.

In compliance with Schedule V of the NBFC Regulations, the directors of the Management Company hereby declare that
this condensed interim financial information gives a true and fair view of the state of the Fund’s affairs as at December
31, 2019.

Basis of measurement

This condensed interim financial information has been prepared under the historical cost convention, except that certain
financial assets are stated at fair value.

This condensed interim financial information has been prepared following accrual basis of accounting except for cash
flow information.

Functional and presentation currency

This condensed interim financial information is presented in Pakistani Rupees which is the Fund's functional and
presentation currency.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING AND RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES, ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND CHANGES THEREIN
The accounting policies adopted for the preparation of this condensed interim financial information are the same as

those applied in the preparation of the annual audited financial statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2019,
unless otherwise stated.
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3.2

33

3.4

35

4.1

The preparation of this condensed interim financial information in conformity with accounting and reporting standards
as applicable in Pakistan requires management to make estimates, assumptions and use judgements that affect the
application of accounting policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Estimates,
assumptions and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
reasonable expectations of future events. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively commencing
from the period of revision.

The significant estimates, judgements and assumptions made by the management in applying the accounting policies
and the key sources of estimation uncertainty are the same as those applied to the annual audited financial statements
as at and for the year ended June 30, 2019.

There are certain standards, interpretations and amendments to accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan, standards effective for the first time in this condensed interim financial information and are mandatory for the
Fund's accounting period beginning on or after July 01, 2019. These standards, interpretations and amendments are
either not relevant to the Fund's operations or are not expected to have a significant effect on this condensed interim
financial information.

The Fund's financial risk management objectives and policies are consistent with that disclosed in the annual audited
financial statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2019.

December 31, June 30,
2019 2019
(Un-Audited) (Audited)
Note ------------ (Rupees in '000) ------------
BANK BALANCES
In savings accounts 4.1 61,490 61,129
In current accounts 25,021 19
86,511 61,148

This represents bank accounts held with various banks. Mark-up rates on these accounts range between 11% to 14.50%
per annum (June 30, 2019: 8% to 13.5% per annum). This includes balance held with Habib Bank Limited (a related
party) amounting to Rs. 2.036 million (June 30, 2019: Rs. 1.886 million).

December 31, June 30,
2019 2019
INVESTMENTS (Un-Audited) (Audited)
Financial assets at 'fair value through Note ------------ (Rupees in '000) ------------
profit or loss'
Listed equity securities 5.1 807,348 698,072
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5.1

5.1.1

5.1.2

Investment in listed equity securities - Financial Assets at 'fair value through profit or loss'

Shares of Listed Companies - Fully paid up ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each unless stated otherwise

Unrealised rar vaiue

. Carrying Market Value . apercent
Asat Purchases | Bonus issue Sales Asat Amount as at asat appreciation/ | |Market value as a| Market value as of issue
Name of the Investee Company Notes July1, during the duringthe | during the 31, N N (diminution) on percentage of | a percentage of )
2019 period period period 2019 D 31, | D 31, total i net assets :a[.utal of
2019 2019 . investe
of investments compar
------------------------ Number of Shares (RuUpees in '000) -----sssmrmmmsasacemnecean
AUTOMOBILE PARTS & ACCESSORIES
Thal Limited (par value of Rs. 5 each) 20,400 24,800 - 22,200 23,000 7,194 7,779 585 2.50% 2.38%
CEMENT
Lucky Cement Limited 16,400 34,500 - 19,100 31,800 12,294 13,623 1,329 4.37% 4.17% |
Kohat Cement Limited 22,000 30,500 - 32,000 20,500 1,057 1,587 530 0.51% 0.49% |
Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited - 115,000 - 115,000 - - - - - -
38,400 180,000 - 166,100 52,300 13,351 15,210 1,859 4.88% 4.65%
CHEMICAL
Engro Polymer & Chemicals Limited 183,596 271,000 - 205,500 249,096 6,895 8,272 1,377 2.66% 2.53%
Lotte Chemical Pakistan Limited 90,000 293,500 - 383,500 - - - - - -
Sitara Chemical Industries Limited 2,000 9,100 - - 11,100 3,044 3,314 270 1.06% 1.01%
275,596 573,600 - 589,000 260,196 9,939 11,586 1,647 3.72% 3.54%
COMMERCIAL BANKS
Allied Bank Limited 72,000 49,600 - 40,300 81,300 8,111 7,772 (339) 2.50% 2.38% |
Bank Al-Falah Limited 511 281,550 269,000 - 112,500 438,050 19,240 20,019 779 6.43% 6.12% |
Bank Al-Habib Limited 110,000 175,000 - 115,500 169,500 12,540 12,909 369 4.14% 3.95% |
Habib Bank Limited* 511 106,600 162,500 - 218,000 51,100 6,408 8,044 1,636 2.58% 2.46% |
MCB Bank Limited** 511 35,300 48,800 - 53,500 30,600 5,322 6,271 949 2.01% 1.92% |
United Bank Limited 65,200 80,500 - 35,000 110,700 16,241 18,210 1,969 5.85% 5.57% |
The Bank of Punjab Limited 545,000 1,200,500 - 1,011,500 734,000 7,344 8,316 972 2.67% 2.54% |
Faysal Bank Limited 512 1,800 - - 1,800 39 34 (5) 0.01% 0.01% |
National Bank of Pakistan Limited 64,000 201,000 - 89,000 176,000 6,580 7,621 1,041 2.45% 2.33% |

As at December 31, 2019, the Fund has pledged shares with the National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited (NCCPL)
as collateral for guaranteeing settlement of the Fund's trades in accordance with Circular no. 11, dated October 23, 2007,
issued by the SECP of following companies:

- Oil and Gas Development Company (300,000 shares having market value of Rs. 39.480 million)
- Pakistan Petroleum Limited (200,000 shares having market value of Rs. 24.674 million)

These investments include gross bonus shares as per Fund’s entitlement declared by the investee companies. Finance
Act, 2014 has brought amendments in the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 whereby the bonus shares received by the share-
holder are to be treated as income and a tax at the rate of 5% is to be applied on value of bonus shares determined on
the basis of day end price on the first day of closure of books. The tax is to be collected at source by the investee company
which shall be considered as final discharge of tax liability on such income. However, the Management Company of the
Fund jointly with other asset management companies and Mutual Fund Association of Pakistan, has filed a petition in
Honorable High Court of Sindh to declare the amendments brought in Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 with reference to tax
on bonus shares for collective investment schemes as null and void and not applicable on the funds based on the premise
of exemption given to mutual funds under clause 99 of Part | of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.
The Honorable High Court of Sindh has granted stay order till the final outcome of the case. However, the investee
companies has withheld the share equivalent to 5% of bonus announcement of the Fund having aggregate fair market
value of Rs. 0.458 million at December 31, 2019 (June 30, 2019: Rs. 0.337 million) and not yet deposited on CDC account
of department of Income tax. Management is of the view that the decision will be in the favor of the Fund and according-
ly has recorded the bonus shares on gross basis at fair value in its investments at period end.
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6.1

7.1

7.2

December 31,
2019
(Un-Audited)

June 30,
2019
(Audited)

Note ~  --------- (Rupees in '000) ---------
ADVANCES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
Security deposit with:
National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited 2,500 2,500
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited 300 300
2,800 2,800
Prepaid listing fee 16 -
Advance tax 6.1 103 93
2,919 2,893

The income of the Fund is exempt from tax under clause 99 of Part | of the Second Schedule of the Income Tax Ordinance,
2001 (ITO 2001). Furthermore, the Fund is exempt under clause 47(B) of Part IV of Second Schedule of ITO 2001 from

withholding of tax under section 150, 151 and 233 of ITO 2001.

The Federal Board of Revenue through a circular “C.No.1 (43) DG (WHT)/2008-Vol.ll- 66417-R”, dated May 12, 2015,
made it mandatory to obtain exemption certificates under section 159 (1) of the ITO 2001 from Commissioner Inland
Revenue (CIR). However, various withholding agents have deducted advance tax under section 150 and 151 of ITO 2001.
The management is confident that the same shall be refunded after filing refund application within stipulated time, as

per ITO 2001.

December 31,

2019
(Un-Audited)

PAYABLE TO THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY

June 30,
2019
(Audited)

Note --------- (Rupees in '000) ---------
Remuneration to the Management
Company 7.1 1,375 1,282
Sindh Sales Tax payable on the
Management Company's remuneration 7.2 179 167
Allocation of expenses related to
registrar services, accounting, operation
and valuation services 7.3 111 64
Selling and marketing expense payable 7.4 1,402 798

3,067 2,310

As per the offering document of the Fund, the Management Company shall charge a fee at the rate not exceeding 2% of
the average annual net assets on daily basis of the Scheme, subject to the guidelines issued by the Commission from time
to time. During the period, the fee has been charged at the rate ranging between 1.7% to 2% of the daily annual net
assets of the Fund. The fee is being charged at the rate of 2% from September 1, 2019 onwards. The fee is payable

monthly in arrears.

The Sindh Government has levied Sindh Sales Tax (SST) at the rate of 13% (June 30, 2019: 13%) on the remuneration of

the Management Company through Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011.
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7.3

7.4

8.1

8.2

As per the Regulation 60(3)(s) of the NBFC Regulations, fee and expenses pertaining to registrar services, accounting,
operation and valuation services related to a Collective Investment Scheme (CIS) are chargeable to the CIS. Previously,
such expenses were chargeable maximum upto 0.1% of the average annual net assets on daily basis of the scheme or the
actual cost, whichever is lower.

However, SECP, vide S.R.0. 639(1)/2019, dated June 20, 2019, has removed the maximum limit of 0.1%. During the
period, the fee has been charged at the rate ranging between 0.1% to 0.5% of the daily annual net assets of the Fund.
The fee is being charged at the rate of 0.161% from September 1, 2019 onwards.

As per SECP vide its circular No. SCD/PRDD/Circular/361/2016, dated December 30, 2016, selling and marketing expens-
es was chargeable to open end equity, asset allocation and index funds only, upto maximum 0.4% of the average annual
net assets of the Scheme or the actual cost, whichever is lower.

However, circular No. SCD/PRDD/Circular/04/2019, dated July 5, 2019, issued by SECP, supersedes all previous circulars
issued with respect to selling and marketing expenses, according to which, selling and marketing expenses can be
charged to all categories of open end mutual funds, except fund of funds with no cap. During the period, the fee has been
charged at the rate ranging between 0.4% to 0.75% of the daily annual net assets of the Fund. The fee is being charged
at the rate of 0.75% from July 8, 2019 onwards.

December 31, June 30,
2019 2019
(Un-Audited) (Audited)
Note  -------m-- (Rupees in '000) -----------
PAYABLE TO THE TRUSTEE
Trustee fee payable 8.1 158 148

The Trustee is entitled to a monthly remuneration for services rendered to the Fund under the provisions of the Trust
Deed, as per the tariff specified therein, based on the average annual net assets of the Fund. The fee is paid to the
Trustee monthly in arrears.

Earlier, the Trustee fee was charged as per the details disclosed in note 10.1 to the annual audited financial statements
of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2019. CDC vide notification CDC/CEO/L-112/02/2019, dated June 27, 2019 has
revised the rates of the Trustee fee, with effect from July 1, 2019, according to which Trustee fee shall be charged at the
rate of 0.2% of the average annual net assets of the Fund. During the period, Management Company has charged the
Trustee fee accordingly.

CDC, vide its notification CDC/CEO/L-112/02/2019, dated June 27, 2019, has revised the rates of the Trustee fee. With
effect from July 1, 2019 according to which Trustee fee shall be charged at the rate of 0.2% of the average annual net
assets of the Fund. The Management Company has charged the Trustee fee accordingly.

The Provincial Government of Sindh has levied Sindh Sales Tax at the rate of 13% (June 30, 2019: 13%) on the Trustee fee
through the Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011.

December 31, June 30,
2019 2019
(Un-Audited) (Audited)
Note ~ - (Rupees in '000) -----------
PAYABLE TO SECURITIES AND
EXCHANGE COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN
Annual fee payable 70 868
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10

10.1

10.2

11

12

Under the regulation 62 of the NBFC Regulations, a Collective Investment Scheme (CIS) categorized as an equity scheme
is required to pay as annual fee to the SECP, an amount equal to 0.095% of the average annual net assets of the Scheme.
However, SECP, vide S.R.O. 685 (1)/2019, dated June 28, 2019, has reduced the rate of the fee to 0.02% of the average
annual net assets for all categories of CIS(s) with effect from July 1, 2019. During the period, Management Company has
charged the fee accordingly. The fee is payable annually in arrears.

December 31, June 30,
2019 2019
(Un-Audited) (Audited)
Note - (Rupees in '000) ----------
ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES
Provision for Federal Excise Duty 10.1 13,920 13,920
Provision for Sindh
Workers' Welfare Fund 10.2 7,384 4,985
Withholding tax payable 279 56
Brokerage payable 237 130
Auditors' remuneration 220 293
Printing charges 46 77
Zakat payable 207 205
Other 69 70
22,362 19,736

The legal status of applicability of Federal Excise Duty (FED) on the Fund is the same as that disclosed in note 12.1 to the
annual audited financial statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the appeal filed by tax authorities
with Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan is pending for decision.

In view of the above, the Management Company, as a matter of abundant caution, is carrying provision for FED for the
period from January 13, 2013 to June 30, 2016 aggregating to Rs. 13.920 million. Had the provision not been retained,
NAV per unit of the Fund as at December 31, 2019 would have been higher by Rs. 0.21 per unit (June 30, 2019: Rs. 0.21
per unit).

The legal status of applicability of Workers' Welfare Fund and Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund (SWWF) is the same as that
disclosed in note 12.2 to the annual audited financial statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2019 and a
constitutional petition filed by certain CISs, through their trustees, in the Honourable High Court of Sindh, challenging
the applicability of SWWF to the CISs, is pending adjudication.

As at December 31, 2019, the provision in relation to SWWF amounted to Rs. 7.384 million. Had the provision not been
made, the net asset value per unit as at December 31, 2019 would have been higher by Rs. 0.11 (June 30, 2019: 0.08) per
unit.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
There were no contingencies and commitments as at December 31, 2019 (June 30, 2019: Nil).
TAXATION

The Fund's income is exempt from income tax as per clause 99 of Part | of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001, subject to the condition that not less than 90% of its accounting income for the year, as reduced by the
capital gains whether realised or unrealized, is distributed to the unit holders in cash. The Fund is also exempt from the
provision of section 113 (minimum tax) under clause 11A of Part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance,
2001. The Fund has not recorded a tax liability in the current period, as the Management Company intends to distribute
more than 90 percent of the Fund's accounting income as reduced by capital gains whether realised or unrealized for the
year ending June 30, 2020 to its unit holders.
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14

14.1

EARNINGS PER UNIT

Earnings per unit (EPU) has not been disclosed in this condensed interim financial information, as, in the opinion of the
Management Company, the determination of cumulative weighted average number of outstanding units for calculating
earnings per unit is not practicable.

TRANSACTIONS WITH CONNECTED PERSONS / RELATED PARTIES

Connected persons include HBL Asset Management Limited, being the Management Company, Habib Bank Limited being
the Sponsor, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, being the Trustee of the Fund, other collective investment
schemes managed by the Management Company, directors and officers of the Management Company, directors of
connected persons and persons having 10% or more beneficial ownership of the units of the Fund.

Transactions with connected persons are in the normal course of business, at contracted rates and terms determined in
accordance with market rates.

Remuneration payable to Management Company and Trustee is determined in accordance with the provisions of the
NBFC Regulations and the Trust Deed respectively.

Transactions and balances with parties who were connected persons due to holding 10% or more units in the compara-
tive period and not in the current period are not disclosed in the comparative period.

Details of the transactions with connected persons and balances with them, if not disclosed elsewhere in the condensed
interim financial information are as follows:

Half year ended
December 31,
2019 2018
(Un-Audited) (Un-Audited)
----------- (Rupees in '000) ------------

Transactions during the period

HBL Asset Management Limited - Management Company

Issue of units: 5,791,794 (2018: Nil) units 75,000 -
Redemption of units: 4,160,270 (2018: 895,280) units 49,215 13,000
Remuneration of the Management Company 6,690 9,921

Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of the
Management Company 869 1,290
Allocation of expenses related to registrar services,

accounting, operation and valuation services 880 496

Selling and marketing expenses 2,568 1,984
Habib Bank Limited - Sponsor

Bank charges 3 1

Mark-up on bank deposits 122 -

Executives of the Management Company

Issue of 7,628 (2018: Nil) units 101 -

Redemption of 7,628 (2018: Nil) units 100 -
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee

Trustee remuneration 698 984

Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of the Trustee 91 128

CDS charges 3 28

157



14.2

15

Balances outstanding as at period / year end

HBL Asset Management Limited - Management Company

December 31, June 30,
2019 2019
(Un-Audited) (Audited)

........... (Rupees in '000)

Remuneration of the Management Company 1,375 1,282

Sindh Sales Tax on Management Company's remuneration 179 167

Allocation of expenses related to registrar services,

accounting, operation and valuation services 111 64

Selling and marketing expenses 1,402 798

Units held: 3,829,301 (June 30, 2019: 2,197,777) 50,087 24,440

December 31, June 30,
2019 2019
(Un-Audited) Audited
----------- (Rupees in '000) -----------

Habib Bank Limited - Sponsor

Bank balances 2,036 1,886

Units held: 19,690,192 ( June 30, 2019: 19,690,192) 257,545 218,957
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee

Trustee fee payable 140 128

Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of the Trustee 18 17

CDS charges payable 3 3

Security deposit 300 300
Directors and Executives of the Management Company

Units held: Nil (June 30, 2019: 449,955) - 5,004

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid or transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants and measurement date. Consequently, differences can arise between carrying values and
the fair value estimates.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Fund is a going concern without any intention or
requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction on adverse terms.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities traded in active markets i.e. listed equity shares are based on the quoted
market prices at the close of trading on the reporting date. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the
Fund is current bid price.

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from
an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

As per the requirements of IFRS 13 (Fair Value Measurements), the Fund classifies fair value measurements using a fair
value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has
the following levels:
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- Fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level
1);

- Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) (level 2); and

- Fair value measurements using inputs for assets or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e.
unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair
value hierarchy.

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their
levels in the fair value hierarchy.

December 31, 2019 (Un-Audited)

Carrying amount Fair Value
Fair value
through profit Amortized Cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
or loss
Note (Rupees in '000)
Financial assets measured at fair value
Investments - net 807,348 - 807,348 807,348 - - 807,348
807,348 - 807,348 807,348 - - 807,348
Financial assets not measured at fair value 15.1
Bank balances - 86,511 86,511
Dividend and mark-up receivable - 576 576
Deposits - 2,800 2,800
- 89,887 89,887
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value 151
Payable to the Management Company - 2,888 2,888
Payable to the Trustee - 140 140
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - 572 572
Unclaimed dividend - 5,389 5,389
- 8,989 8,988
June 30, 2019 (Audited)
Carrying amount Fair Value
Fair value
through profit Amortized Cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
or loss
(Rupees in '000)
Financial assets measured at fair value
Investments - net 698,072 - 698,072 698,072 - - 698,072
698,072 - 698,072 698,072 - - 698,072
Financial assets not measured at fair value 151
Bank balances - 61,148 61,148
Dividend and mark-up receivable - 680 680
Deposits - 2,800 2,800
- 64,628 64,628
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value 15.1
Payable to the Management Company - 2,144 2,144
Payable to the Trustee - 131 131
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - 536 536
Unclaimed dividend - 5,389 5,389
- 8,200 8,200
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15.1 The Fund has not disclosed the fair values for these financial assets and financial liabilities, as these are either short term
in nature or repriced periodically. Therefore, their carrying amounts are reasonable approximation of fair value.

15.2 Transfers during the period
No transfers were made between various levels of fair value hierarchy during the period.

16 TOTAL EXPENSE RATIO
In accordance with the directive 23 of 2016 dated July 20, 2016 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan (SECP), the total expense ratio of the Fund for the half year ended December 31, 2019 is 2.29% (2018: 3.38%)
which includes 0.52% (2018: 0.40%) representing Government levy and SECP fee.

17 DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE
This condensed interim financial information was authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Management
Company on February 13, 2020.

18 GENERAL

18.1 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees, unless otherwise stated.

18.2 Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever necessary, for better presentation and
disclosure, effect of which is not material.

For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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FUND INFORMATION

Name of Fund HBL Multi Asset Fund

Name of Auditor KPMG Taseer Hadi & Company

Name of Trustee Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC)
Bankers

MCB Bank Limited

HBL Bank Limited

JS Bank Limited

Zarai Taragiati Bank Limited
Allied Bank Limited

Sindh Bank Limited

Soneri Bank Limited

Dubai Islamic Bank Limited
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CENTRAL DEPOSITORY COMPANY
OF PAKISTAN LIMITED

Head Office

CDC House, 33-8, Block '8’
SM.C H.S, Main Shahra-e-Faisal
Karachi - 74400, Pakstan,

Tel: (92-21}111-111-500

Fae: (92-21) 34326021 - 23
URL: www.cdcpakistan.com
Ermail; info@cdcpak.com

TRUSTEE REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS
HBL MULTI ASSET FUND

Report of the Trustee pursuant to Regulation 41(h) of the Non-Banking Finance Companies
and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008

We, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, being the Trustee of HBL Multi Asser
Fund (the Fund) are of the opinion that HBL Asset Management Limited, being the Management
Company of the Fund has in all material respects managed the Fund during the six months period
ended December 31, 2019 in accordance with the provisions of the following:

(i) Limitations imposed on the investment powers of the Management Company under the
constitutive documents of the Fund:

{iil  The pricing. issuance and redemption of units are carried out in accordance with the
requirements of the constitutive documents of the Fund: and

{iiiy  The Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulations) Rules, 2003,
the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 and the
constitutive documents of the Fund.

WA A l
Badiufjdin Akber

Chief Executive Officer

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited

Karachi, February 24, 2020
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KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Sheikh Sultan Trust Building No. 2, Beaumont Road
Karachi 75530 Pakistan

+92 (21) 35685847, Fax +92 (21) 35685095

Independent Auditors’ Review Report to the unit holders of HEL Multi Asset
Fund

Introduction

We have reviewed the accompanying condensed interim statement of assets and
lizbilities of HBL Multi Asset Fund (“the Fund”) as at 31 December 2019 and the
related condensed interim income statement, condensed interim statement of
comprehansive income, condensed interim statement of movement in unit holders’
fund, condensed interim statement of cash flow and notes to the accounts for the six
months period then ended (here-in-after referred to as the "interim financial
information”}. Management Company is responsible for the preparation and
presentation of this interim financial information in accordance with accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim financial repeorting. Qur
responsibility is to express a conclusion on this interim financial information based on
QUr review.

Scope of Review

We conducted our review in accordance with International Standard on Review
Engagements 2410, "Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the
Independent Auditor of the Entity". A review of interim financial information consists of
making inquiries, primarily of persons responsible for financial and accounting matters,
and applying analytical and other review procedures. A review is substantially less in
scope than an audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing
and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become
aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do
not express an audit opinion.

Conclusion

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that
the accompanying interim financial information is not prepared, in all material respects,
in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan for
interim financial reporting.

Other Matter
The figures for the three months period ended 31 December 2018 in the condensed

interim financial infarmation have not been reviewed and we do not express a
conclusion on them.

HPRIG Tazisd Had & ©o, 8 Pannerssip fimn registensd in Pakialan e o mimitser m of the KPUIG retwork of
AdBpESn! mseTsad fms sEssed with KPIG Imeorasonsd Coogerstve (KPR iFsmalional’), & Swiss endty.
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KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.

The interim financial information of the Fund for the six months period ended 31
December 2018 and financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2019 were
reviewed and audited by another firm of auditors whose reports dated 11 February

2019 and 27 September 2019 expressed an unmodified conclusion and opinion
thereon respectively.

The engagement partner on the engagement resulting in this independent auditor’'s
review report is Zeeshan Rashid,

(oo, Ta— Hed i 4

Date: 24 February 2020 KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Karachi
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HBL Multi Asset Fund

Condensed Interim Statement of Assets and Liabilities (Un-Audited)
For the six months period ended December 31, 2019

(Un-Audited) (Audited)

December 31, June 30,
2019 2019
Note =====m=mm--- (Rupees in '000) ----------

Assets
Bank balances 6 75,199 60,225
Investments 7 157,315 148,196
Dividend receivable and accrued mark-up 1,010 1,134
Receivable against sale of investments - 2,631
Advances, deposits and other receivables 8 3,495 3,480
Total assets 237,019 215,666
Liabilities
Payable to Management Company 9 596 541
Payable to Trustee 42 65
Payable to Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan

of Pakistan 20 234
Payable against redemption of units 20,000 -
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 10 12,174 11,672
Total liabilities 32,832 12,512
Net assets 204,187 203,154
Unit holders’ fund (as per statement attached) 204,187 203,154
Contingencies and Commitments 11

---------- Number of units---------
Number of units in issue 1,843,477 2,123,916
----------------- (Rupees)----======n=nn---

Net assets value per unit 110.7617 95.6506

The annexed notes 1 to 19 form an integral part of these condensed interim financial information.

For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL Multi Asset Fund

Condensed Interim Income Statement (Un-Audited)
For the six and three months period ended December 31, 2019

Income

Net realised gain / (loss) on sale of investments
Dividend income

Return on investments calculated using effective interest method

Profit on deposits with banks calculated using effective interest method

Net unrealised appreciation / (diminution) on remeasurement of investments
classified as 'financial asset at fair value through profit or loss'

Other income

Expenses

Remuneration of Management Company

Remuneration of Trustee

Annual fee to Securities and Exchange Commission
of Pakistan

Allocation of expenses related to registrar services,
accounting, operation and valuation services

Selling and marketing expense

Auditors' remuneration

Securities transaction costs

Settlement and bank charges

Fee and subscription

Net income / (loss) from operating activities

Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund

Net income / (loss) for the period before taxation

Taxation
Net income / (loss) for the period after taxation

Allocation of net income for the period after taxation
Net income for the period after taxation

Income already paid on redemption of units
Accounting income available for distribution

Accounting income available for distribution:

- Relating to capital gains
- Excluding capital gains

Six months period ended

Three months period ended

The annexed notes 1 to 19 form an integral part of these condensed interim financial information.

Chief Financial Officer

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018 2019 2018
Note (Rupees in '000)
2,683 (3,242) 3,454 (3,694)
3,877 4,374 1,858 2,485
2,018 1,340 977 692
4,496 4,676 2,273 2,444
21,054 (20,799) 25,565 (15,939)
33 3 19 1
34,161 (13,648) 34,146 (14,011)
34,161 (13,648) 34,146 (14,012)
2,121 3,423 1,184 1,677
228 399 118 200
20 129 10 63
217 152 53 74
333 248 150 149
200 199 100 99
213 214 105 105
136 232 88 113
14 45 7 18
3,482 5,041 1,815 2,498
30,679 (18,689) 32,331 (16,509)
10.2 (614) - (614) -
30,065 (18,689) 31,717 (16,509)
12 - - - -
30,065 (18,689) 31,717 (16,509)
30,065 - 30,065 -
(2,970) (2,970) -
27,095 27,095 -
21,534 - 21,534
5,561 - 5,561 -
27,095 - 27,095 -
For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL Multi Asset Fund
Condensed Interim Statement of Comprehensive Income (Un-Audited)
For the six and three months period ended December 31, 2019

Six months period ended Three months period ended
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018 2019 2018

Net income / (loss) for the period after taxation 30,065 (18,689) 31,717

Other comprehensive income for the period

(16,509)

Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the period 30,065 (18,689) 31,717

(16,509)

The annexed notes 1 to 19 form an integral part of these condensed interim financial information.

For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer

Director
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HBL Multi Asset Fund

Condensed Interim Statement of Movement in Unitholders’ Fund (Un-Audited)
For the six months period ended December 31, 2019

Net assets at beginning of the period
Adjustment due to adoption of IFRS 9
Issue of 59,403 units (2018: 88,808 units)
- Capital value
- Element of income
Total proceeds on issuance of units
Redemption of 339,842 units (2018: 468,438 units)
- Capital value
- Element of loss
Total payments on redemption of units
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the period
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the period
Net assets at end of the period

Undistributed income brought forward

- Realised loss
- Unrealised loss

Accounting income available for distribution
- Relating to capital gains

- Excluding capital gains

Adjustment due to adoption of IFRS 9
Net loss for the period after taxation
Distribution during the period
Accumulated loss carried forward

Accumulated loss carried forward

-Realised loss
-Un-realised gain

Net assets value per unit at beginning of the period

Net assets value per unit at end of the period

The annexed notes 1 to 19 form an integral part of these condensed interim financial information.

Chief Financial Officer

2019 2018
Capital value  Undistributed Unrealised Total Capital value  Undistributed Unrealised Total
income gain on income / gainon
investment (accumulated investment
loss)
(Rupees in '000)
252,548 (49,394) - 203,154 350,396 (32,325) 6,052 324,123
N . - - - 6,052 (6,052) -
5,682 - - 5,682 9,329 - - 9,329
567 - - 567 (53) - (53)
6,249 - - 6,249 9,276 - - 9,276
(32,506) - - (32,506) (49,210) - - (49,210)
195 (2,970) - (2,775) 420 - - 420
(32,311) (2,970) - (35,281) (48,790) (48,790)
- 30,065 - 30,065 - (18,689) - (18,689)
- 30,065 - 30,065 (18,689) - (18,689)
226,486 (22,299) - 204,187 310,882 (44,962) - 265,920
(28,595) (30,133)
(20,799) (2,192)
(49,394) (32,325)
21,534 (24,163)
5,561 (20,799)
27,095 (44,962)
- 6,052
- (18,689)
22,299 44,962
(43,353) (24,163)
21,054 (20,799)
(22,299) 44,962
(Rupees) (Rupees)
95.6506 105.0519
110.7617 98.2805
For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL Multi Asset Fund

Condensed Interim Statement of Cash Flow (Un- Audited)
For the six months period ended December 31, 2019

Cash flows from operating activities
Net Income / (loss) for the period before taxation

Adjustments
Net realised (gain) / loss on sale of investments
Profit on deposits with banks calculated using effective yield method
Return on investments calculated using effective yield method
Dividend income
Net unrealised (appreciation) / diminution on remeasurement of investments
classified as 'financial asset at fair value through profit or loss'

Decrease / (increase) in assets
Investments

Advances, deposits and other receivables
Receivable against sale of investments

Increase / (decrease) in liabilities

Payable to Management Company

Payable to Trustee

Payable to Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
Payable against redemtion of units

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Net cash generated from operations

Profits received on bank deposits

Markup received on investments

Dividend income received

Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Amount received on issue of units

Payment against redemption of units

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period

The annexed notes 1 to 19 form an integral part of these condensed interim financial information.

For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer

2019 2018

......... (Rupees in '000) -

30,065 (18,689)
(2,683) 3,242
(4,496) (4,676)
(2,018) (1,340)
(3,877) (4,374)
(21,054) 20,799
(4,063) (5,038)
14,618 12,202
(15) (15)
2,631 -
17,234 12,187
55 18
(23) 2
(214) (381)
20,000 -
502 (68)
20,320 (429)
33,491 6,720
4,405 4,556
2,193 1,295
3,917 4,714
10,515 10,565
44,006 17,285
6,249 9,276
(35,281) (48,790)
(29,032) (39,514)
14,974 (22,229)
60,225 118,090
75,199 95,861
Director
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HBL Multi Asset Fund

Notes to the Condensed Interim Financial Information (Unaudited)
For the six months period ended December 31, 2019

1.

2.1

2.11

2.1.2

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

HBL Multi Asset Fund (the Fund) was established under a Trust Deed, dated October 08, 2007, executed between HBL
Asset Management Limited as the Management Company and Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC) as
the Trustee. The Fund was authorised by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) as a unit trust
scheme on September 28, 2007.

The Management Company of the Fund has been registered as a Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC) under the NBFC
Rules, 2003 and has obtained the requisite license from the SECP to undertake Asset Management services. The
registered office of the Management Company is situated at 7th Floor, Emerald Tower, G-19, Block 5, Main Clifton Road,
Clifton, Karachi.

The Fund is an open ended mutual fund and offers units for public subscription on a continuous basis. The units are trans-
ferable and can also be redeemed by surrendering to the Fund. The Fund is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited.

The fund has been categorised as a balanced fund as per the criteria laid down by SECP for categorization of open-end
Collective Investment Scheme (CISs).

The objective of the Fund is to provide long-term capital growth and income by investing in multiple asset classes, such
as equity securities, government securities, fixed income securities, continuous funding system, derivatives, money
market instruments and other asset classes / securities / instruments.

VIS Credit Rating Company has assigned a management quality rating of AM2+’ (Positive outlook) to the Management
Company while the Fund is currently not rated.

Title to the assets of the Fund are held in the name of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited as trustee of the
Fund.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance

The condensed interim financial information has been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting stand-
ards as applicable in Pakistan for interim financial reporting. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan for interim financial reporting comprise of:

- International Accounting Standard (IAS) 34, Interim Financial Reporting, issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 along with part VIII A of the repealed Companies
Ordinance,1984; and

- Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulations) Rules, 2003 (the NBFC Rules), Non-Banking
Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the NBFC Regulations) and requirements of the Trust
Deed.

In case where requirements differ, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of
the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations and requirements of the Trust Deed
have been followed.

This condensed interim financial information does not include all the information and disclosures required in the annual
financial statements and should therefore be read in conjunction with the annual financial statements of the Fund as at
and for the year ended June 30, 2019. However, selected explanatory notes are included to explain events and transac-
tions that are significant to an understanding of the changes in the Fund's financial position and performance since the
last financial statements.
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2,13

2.2

2.3

6.1

In compliance with Schedule V of the NBFC Regulations, the directors of the Management Company hereby declare that
these condensed interim financial information gives a true and fair view of the state of the Fund’s affairs as at December
31, 2019.

Basis of measurement

These condensed interim financial information have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except that
certain financial assets are stated at fair value.

Functional and presentation currency

These condensed interim financial information are presented in Pakistani Rupees which is the Fund's functional and
presentation currency.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies adopted for the preparation of the condensed interim financial information are the same as those
applied in the preparation of the annual financial statements of the Fund for the year, ended June 30, 2019.

USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
The preparation of condensed interim financial information requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumption that affect the application of accounting policies and reported amount of assets and liabilities, income and

expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The significant judgements made by management in applying the accounting policies and the key sources of estimation
uncertainty were the same as those that applied to financial statements as at and for the year ended June 30, 2019.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The financial risk management objectives and policies are consistent with that disclosed in the financial statements as at
and for the year ended June 30, 2019.

December 31, June 30,
2019 2019
BANK BALANCES Note (Rupees in '000)
Savings accounts 6.1 75,199 60,225

This represents bank accounts held with different banks. Profit rates on these accounts ranges between 6.00% - 14.05%
(June 30, 2019: 4.00% - 13.50%) per annum.

December 31, June 30,
2019 2019

INVESTMENTS Note (Rupees in '000)
Investments by category
At fair value through profit or loss
Listed equity securities 7.1 139,561 118,637
Term finance certificates and Sukuk bonds 7.2 17,754 29,559

157,315 148,196
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7.1

Listed equity securities - At fair value through profit or loss

Shares of listed companies - fully paid up ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each unless stated otherwise.

Name of Investee Company

Automobiles Parts & Accessories
Thal Limited (par value: Rs.5 each)

Auto Mobile Assembler
Indus Motor Company Limited

Cement
Kohat Cement Limited
Lucky Cement Limited

Chemicals

Engro Polymer & Chemicals Limited
Lotte Chemical Pakistan Limited
Sitara Chemical Industries Limited

Commercial Banks

Allied Bank Limited

Bank Al-Falah Limited

Bank Al-Habib Limited

Bank of Punjab

Faysal Bank Limited

Habib Bank Limited

MCB Bank Limited

National Bank of Pakistan Limited
United Bank Limited

Engineering
Mughal Iron & Steel Industries Limited

Fertilizers

Engro Corporation Limited
Engro Fertilizers Limited
Fauiji Fertilizer Co Limited

Insurance
Adamijee Insurance Company Limited

Investment Companies

Dawood Hercules Corporation Limited

Oil & Gas Exploration
Mari Petroleum Company Limited

Oil & Gas Development Company Limited

Pakistan Oilfields Limited
Pakistan Petroleum Limited

0il & Gas Marketing Companies
Pakistan State Oil Company Limited
Sui Northern Gas Pipeline Limited

Paper & Board
Century Paper & Board Mills Limited
Security Papers Limited

AsatJuly01, Purchases Bonus / Sales during As at Cost of Market value Market value Market value Parvalue as a
2019 during the Rights issue the period December 31, holdings as at asat as a percentage asa percentage of
period 2019 December 31, December 31, of total percentage of issued capital
2019 2019 investments net assets of the
investee
company
(Number of shares) ------------seccemeeeeee e (Rupees in '000) -------- %
8,000 3,500 - 1,000 10,500 3,498 3,551 2.26% 1.74% 0.52%
8,000 3,500 - 1,000 10,500 3,498 3,551 2.26% 1.74% 0.52%
1,300 - - 1,300 - - - - - -
1,300 - - 1,300 - - - - B B
13,000 13,000 - 16,500 9,500 472 735 0.47% 0.36% 0.05%
11,400 5,500 - 2,000 14,900 5,885 6,383 4.06% 3.13% 0.05%
24,400 18,500 - 18,500 24,400 6,357 7,118 4.53% 3.49% 0.10%
70,000 73,000 - 44,500 98,500 2,629 3,271 2.08% 1.60% 0.11%
50,000 - - 50,000 - - - - - -
2,500 400 - - 2,900 862 866 0.55% 0.42% 0.14%
122,500 73,400 - 94,500 101,400 3,491 4,137 2.63% 2.02% 0.25%
30,000 10,000 - 10,000 30,000 3,090 2,868 1.82% 1.40% 0.00%
145,100 21,000 - 4,500 161,600 7,075 7,385 4.69% 3.62% 0.01%
64,000 22,000 - 6,500 79,500 5,915 6,055 3.85% 2.97% 0.01%
132,000 - - - 132,000 1,208 1,496 0.95% 0.73% 0.00%
2,250 - - - 2,250 48 43 0.03% 0.02% 0.00%
71,971 - - 25,000 46,971 5,320 7,394 4.70% 3.62% 0.00%
30,500 - - 7,000 23,500 4,100 4,816 3.06% 2.36% 0.00%
39,500 94,500 - 64,500 69,500 2,577 3,009 1.91% 1.47% 0.00%
47,300 2,000 - 3,000 46,300 6,790 7,616 4.84% 3.73% 0.00%
562,621 149,500 - 120,500 591,621 36,122 40,682 25.85% 19.91% 0.02%
2,500 - - - 2,500 63 102 0.06% 0.05% 0.00%
2,500 - - - 2,500 63 102 0.06% 0.05% 0.00%
27,050 10,000 - 15,000 22,050 5,884 7,613 4.84% 3.73% 0.04%
73,500 18,000 - 38,500 53,000 3,445 3,892 2.47% 1.91% 0.04%
62,500 2,500 - 27,500 37,500 3,297 3,805 2.42% 1.86% 0.03%
163,050 30,500 - 81,000 112,550 12,626 15,310 9.73% 7.50% 0.11%
- 50,000 - 5,000 45,000 1,170 1,894 1.20% 0.93% 0.00%
- 50,000 - 5,000 45,000 1,170 1,894 1.20% 0.93% 0.00%
12,500 - - 12,500 - - - - - -
12,500 - - 12,500 - - - - - -
6,958 3,528 837 5,348 5,975 5,349 7,828 4.98% 3.83% 0.00%
63,300 80,900 - 57,900 86,300 11,041 12,282 7.81% 6.02% 0.02%
12,120 5,500 - 5,500 12,120 4,809 5,414 3.44% 2.65% 0.04%
47,755 85,500 9,051 51,000 91,306 10,237 12,522 7.96% 6.13% 0.04%
130,133 175,428 9,888 119,748 195,701 31,436 38,046 24.19% 18.63% 0.10%
25,004 15,500 4,900 25,500 19,904 2,551 3,814 2.42% 1.87% 0.05%
20,500 46,500 - 27,500 39,500 2,561 3,009 1.91% 1.47% 0.06%
45,504 62,000 4,900 53,000 59,404 5,112 6,823 4.33% 3.34% 0.11%
14,000 - - 14,000 - - - - - -
10,000 - - 10,000 - - - - - -
24,000 - - 24,000 - - - - - -
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7.1.1

7.1.2

Name of Investee Company AsatJuly 01, Purchases Bonus / Sales during As at Cost of Market value Market value Market value Parvalueasa
2019 during the Rightsissue  the period December 31, holdings as at asat as a percentage asa percentage of
period 2019 December 31, December 31, of total percentage of issued capital
2019 2019 investments net assets of the
investee
company
Pharmaceuticals
AGP Limited 21,000 17,000 21,000 17,000 1,352 1,689 1.07% 0.83% 0.06%
The Searle Company Limited 7,761 8,200 8,000 7,961 1,207 1,503 0.96% 0.74% 0.04%
Highnoon Laboratories Limited - 5,000 - 5,000 2,625 2,686 1.71% 132%  0.16%
28,761 30,200 29,000 29,961 5,184 5,874 3.74% 2.89%  0.26%
Power Generation and Distribution
Hub Power Company Limited 89,983 56,000 59,000 86,983 6,632 8,120 5.16% 3.98% 0.07%
K-Electric Limited (par value: Rs. 3.5 each) 253,000 200,000 67,000 386,000 1,534 1,687 1.07% 0.83% 0.04%
Pakgen Power Limited 51,500 - 51,500 - - - - - -
394,483 256,000 177,500 472,983 8,166 9,807 6.23% 4.81% 0.11%
Textile Composite
Gul Ahmed Textile Mills Limited - 35,000 - 35,000 1,509 1,509 0.96% 0.74% 0.01%
Interloop Limited 34,250 - 7,500 26,750 1,184 1,553 0.99% 0.76% 0.03%
Nishat Mills Limited 14,700 5,000 5,500 14,200 1,237 1,507 0.96% 0.74% 0.04%
48,950 40,000 13,000 75,950 3,930 4,569 2.91% 2.24% 0.08%
Transport
Pakistan National Shipping Corporation 13,000 13,000 8,500 17,500 1,260 1,644 1.05% 0.81% 0.13%
13,000 13,000 8,500 17,500 1,260 1,644 1.05% 0.81% 0.13%

Investments include shares having market value aggregating to Rs.41.241 million (June 30, 2019: Rs. 36.119 million) that
have been pledged with National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited (NCCPL) as collateral for guaranteeing settlement
of the fund's trades in accordance with Circular No. 11 dated October 23, 2007 issued by the SECP.

This includes gross bonus shares as per Fund’s entitlement declared by the investee company. Previously due to amend-
ments brought by the Finance Act, 2014 in the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, the bonus shares received by the shareholder
were to be treated as income and a tax at the rate of 5 % was to be applied on value of bonus shares determined on the
basis of day end price on the first day of closure of books. The tax was to be collected at source by the investee company
which was considered as final discharge of tax liability on such income. However, the Management Company of the Fund
jointly with other asset management companies and Mutual Fund Association of Pakistan (MUFAP), has filed a petition in
Sindh High Court to declare the amendments brought in Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 with reference to tax on bonus
shares for collective investment schemes as null and void and not applicable on the funds based on the premise of exemp-
tion given to mutual funds under Clause 99 of Part | of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The Sindh
High Court has granted stay order ftill the final outcome of the case. However, the investee company(s) has already
withheld the shares (from Tax Year 2014 to Tax Year 2018) equivalent to 5% of bonus announcement of the Fund having
aggregate fair market value of Rs. 0.2615 million at December 31, 2019 (June 30, 2019: Rs. 0.262 million) and not yet
deposited on CDC account of department of Income tax while during the period no tax on bonus shares is being withheld
by the investee company(s) due to the amendments brought by the Finance Act, 2018 in the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001
which excluded the the requirement of tax on bonus shares. Management is of the view that the decision will be in favor
of the asset management company and accordingly has recorded the bonus shares on gross basis at fair value in its invest-
ments at period end.
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7.2

7.2.1

7.2.2

Term Finance Certificates and Sukuk Bonds - At fair value through profit or loss

Asatluly1, Purchases Sales / As at Amortised Market value as a percentage of
Name of the Investee Company X
2019 during the Matured December Cost as at Market value as  Total Investments Net Assets
period during the 31,2019 December31, at December 31,
. » period 2019 2019

Term Finance Certificates . (Number of certificates)-------------=--se-  emmeen (Rupees in'000)-----  eeeeeeeeeeee Yg-rnmmmmmemenene
Commercial Bank
The Bank of Punjab 135 - - 135 13,487 13,269 8.43% 6.50%

135 - - 135 13,487 13,269 8.43% 6.50%
Leasing Companies
Saudi Pak Leasing Company
Limited - ( Note 7.2.1 ) 6,000 - - 6,000

6,000 - - 6,000
Sukuk Bonds
Investment Company
Dawood Hercules Corporation
Limited 50 - - 50 4,500 4,485 2.85% 2.20%
Dawood Hercules Corporation
Limited 125 - 125 - - - - -

175 - 125 50 4,500 4,485 2.85% 2.20%

Total 6,310 - 125 6,185 17,987 17,754 11.28% 8.70%

Saudi Pak Leasing Company Limited defaulted towards payment falling due in September 2010. Accordingly, the exposure
was classified as non-performing and provision was recognised in accordance with the SECP's provisioning guidelines.

Subsequently, on the request of the Issuer, TFC holders approved the restructuring of the facility by extending repayment
period from 5 years to 9 years and by reducing mark-up rate to 6% for 24 months from restructuring date and 8% for next
24 months and thereafter fixing the mark-up rate at 1 month KIBOR. Further, half of the accrued mark-up is to be paid in
cash and the balance is being deferred.

The Issuer defaulted again in the payment of principal and mark-up due on September 13, 2011. In accordance with the
requirements of Circular No. 33 of 2012 dated October 24, 2012 issued by the Securities Exchange Commission of
Pakistan (SECP), the exposure has been classified as non-performing and no further mark-up is being accrued after classi-
fication as non-performing exposure. Accordingly, the exposure has been fully provided.

Significant terms and conditions of Term finance certificate and sukuk bonds outstanding as at December 31, 2019 are as
follows:

Name of securit Remaining Principal Mark-up rate
unty ning Frincip up Issue date Maturity date

(per TFC / Sukuk) (per annum)

Term Finance Certificates

Bank of Punjab 99,880 6 months Kibor + 1% 23-Dec-16 23-Dec-26

Saudi Pak Leasing Company Limited 2,533 6 months Kibor + 1.5% 13-Mar-08 13-Mar-13

Sukuk Bonds

Dawood Hercules Corporation Limited 90,000 3 months Kibor + 1% 1-Mar-18 1-Mar-23
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8.1

10.

ADVANCES, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Security deposit with National Clearing Company
of Pakistan Limited (NCCPL)

Security deposit with Central Depository Company
of Pakistan Limited (CD(

Advance against TFCs

Prepaid listing fee

Others

Provision in respect of advance against TFC

Note

8.1

8.1

December 31, June 30,
2019 2019

(Rupees in '000)

3,016 3,016
100 100
25,000 25,000
14 ;
365 364
28,495 28,480
(25,000) (25,000)
3,495 3,480

The Fund had subscribed towards the term finance certificates of an issuer as Pre-IPO investor on January 9, 2008. Under
the agreement, the issuer was required to complete the public offering by October 9, 2008. However, no public offering
has been carried out by the issuer till at December 31, 2019. In addition, profit on the advance against subscription, due
after six months from the date of subscription, has also not been received by the Fund. As at Decemeber 31, 2019, the
advance against subscription has been fully provided in accordance with the provisioning policy of the Fund as approved
by the Board of Directors of the Management Company.

PAYABLE TO THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY

Management fee

Sindh Sales Tax

Sales load payable

Allocation of expenses related to registrar services,
accounting, operation and valuation services
Selling and marketing payable

ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES

Auditors' remuneration

Federal Excise Duty

Payable to brokers

Provision for Workers' Welfare Fund
Other payables

Note

10.1

10.2

December 31, June 30,
2019 2019

(Rupees in '000)

375 363
49 47

4 -
19 18
149 113
596 541
198 296
6,610 6,610
79 56
5,211 4,597
76 113
12,174 11,672
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10.1

10.2

11.

12.

13.

The legal status of applicability of Federal Excise Duty on the Fund is the same as that disclosed in note 12.1 to the annual
audited financial statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2019.

In view of the above, the Management Company, being prudent, is carrying provision for FED for the period from January
13, 2013 to December 31, 2019 aggregating to Rs. 6.610 million. Had the provision not been retained, the Net Assets
Value per unit of the Fund as on December 31, 2019 would have been higher by Rs. 3.5856 per unit (June 30, 2019: 3.1122
per unit).

Provision for Workers' Welfare Fund

The legal status of applicability of Worker's Welfare Fund (WWF) and Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund (SWWF) is same as
that disclosed in note 12.2 to the annual audited financial statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2019.

The Fund has recognised provision for SWWF amounting to Rs. 5.211 million in these financial statements. Had the provi-
sion not being made, the net asset value per unit as at December 31, 2019 would have been higher by Rs. 2.83 (June 30,
2019: Rs. 2.16) per unit.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

There are no contingencies and commitments outstanding as at December 31, 2019 and June 30, 2019 except those
disclosed already.

TAXATION

The Fund's income is exempt from Income Tax as per Clause (99) of Part 1 of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001, subject to the condition that not less than 90 percent of the accounting income for the year, as reduced
by the capital gains whether realised or unrealised, is distributed to the unit holders in cash. The Fund is also exempt from
the provision of Section 113 (minimum tax) under Clause 11A of Part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001. The Fund has not recorded a tax liability in the current period, as the Management Company intends to
distribute more than 90 percent of the Fund's accounting income as reduced by capital gains (whether realised or unreal-
ised) for the year June 30, 2020 to its unit holders.

TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH CONNECTED PERSONS
Connected persons / related parties comprise of HBL Asset Management Limited being the Management Company, Habib
Bank Limited being the Sponsor, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, being the Trustee of the Fund, collec-

tive investment schemes managed by the Management Company, directors and officers of the Management Company.

Transactions with connected persons / related parties are in the normal course of business, at agreed / contracted rates
and terms determined in accordance with market rates.

Remuneration payable to Management Company and Trustee is determined in accordance with the provisions of the
NBFC Regulations and the Trust Deed respectively.

Details of the transactions with connected persons during the period and balances with them at period end are as follows:
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13.1

13.2

Transactions during the period

HBL Asset Management Limited - Management Company

Remuneration of the Management Company

Allocation of expenses related to registrar services,
accounting, operation and valuation services

Selling and marketing cost payable

Habib Bank Limited - Sponsor

Redemption of 179,998 units (2018: nill units)
Bank charges paid during the period

Mark-up earned during the period

Dividend income earned during the period
Sale of 25,000 shares

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee
Remuneration
Central Depository service charges

Amounts outstanding as at period / year end

HBL Asset Management Limited - Management Company

Management fee payable

Sales tax payable

Sales load Payable

Allocation of expenses related to registrar services,
accounting, operation and valuation services

Selling and Marketing Cost

Habib Bank Limited - Sponsor

Investment held in the Fund: 822,847 units (June 30, 2019: 1,002,846 units)
Bank balances

Mark-up receivable on deposits with bank

Shares held by the Fund : 46,971 shares (June 30, 2019: 71,971 shares)

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee
Remuneration payable
Sindh Sales Tax

Connected Person Due to holding of 10% or more
Investment held in the Fund: 298,482 units (June 30, 2019: 298,482 units)

Key Management Personnel - Management Company
Investment held in the Fund: 42,588 units (June 30, 2019: 42,588 units)

Half year ended
December 31,

2019 2018
(Rupees in '000)

2,121 3,423

217 152

333 248
20,000 -

7 4

238 148

151 135
3,150 -

228 399

9 8
December 31, June 30,

2019 2019

(Rupees in '000)

375 363
49 47

4 -
19 18
149 113
91,140 95,923
5,870 2,967
33 18
7,394 8,151
37 58
5 7
33,060 28,550
4,717 4,072
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14.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. Consequently, differences can arise between carrying values and
the fair value estimates.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Fund is a going concern without any intention or
requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction on adverse terms.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities traded in active markets (i.e. listed equity shares) are based on the quoted
market prices at the close of trading on the reporting date. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the
Fund is current bid price.

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from
an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and

regularly occurring market transactions on an arm's length basis.

IFRS 13, 'Fair Value Measurements' requires the Fund to classify fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that
reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

- Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is derived from prices) (level 2).

- Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The following table shows the carrying amount and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their
levels in the fair value hierarchy.

December 31, 2019
Carrying amount Fair Value
Mandatorily at  Designated as at Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
fair value fair value through
through profitor  profit or loss Amortised cost
loss
Note (Rupees in '000)
On-balance sheet financial instruments
Financial assets measured at fair value
Listed equity securities 139,561 - - 139,561 139,561 - - 139,561
Term Finance Certificates and Sukuk Certifiacte 17,754 17,754 - 17,754 - 17,754
157,315 - - 157,315
Financial assets not measured at fair value 14.1
Bank balances - - 75,199 75,199
Dividend receivable and accrued mark-up - - 1,010 1,010
Advances, deposits and other receivables - - 3,481 3,481
- - 79,690 79,690
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Payable to the Management Company - - 596 596
Payable to the Trustee - - 42 42
Payable against redemption of units - - 20,000 20,000
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - - 353 353

- - 20,991 20,991
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14.1

14.2

15.

June 30, 2019
Carrying amount Fair Value
Mandatorily at Designated asat ~ Amortised cost Total Level 1 Level2  Level3 Total
fair value fair value through
through profit or  profit or loss
loss

(Rupees in '000)

On-balance sheet financial instruments

Financial assets measured at fair value

Listed equity securities 118,637 - - 118,637 118,637 - - 118,637
Term finance certificates and Sukuk bonds 29,559 - - 29,559 - 29,559 - 29,559
148,196 - - 148,196

Financial assets not measured at fair value

Bank balances - - 60,225 60,225
Dividend receivable and accrued mark-up - - 1,134 1,134
Receivable against sale of investments - - 2,631 2,631
Advances, deposits and other receivables - - 3,480 3,480

67,470 67,470

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value

Payable to the Management Company - - 494 494
Payable to the Trustee - - 58 58
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - - 465 465

1,017 1,017

The Fund has not disclosed the fair values for these financial assets and financial liabilities, as these are either short term
in nature or reprice periodically. Therefore, their carrying amounts are reasonable approximation of fair value.

Net assets attributable to unitholders. The Fund routinely redeems and issues the units at the amount equal to the
proportionate share of net assets of the Fund at the time of redemption, calculated on a basis consistent with that used
in these financial statements. Accordingly, the carrying amount of net assets attributable to unitholders approximates
their fair value. The units are categorized into Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

DISCLOURE UNDER CIRCULAR 16 OF 2010 ISSUED BY THE SECP
- CATEGORISATION OF OPEN END SCHEME

The SECP vide circular 7 of 2009 dated March 6, 2009 required all Asset Management Companies to classify funds under
their management on the basis of categorisation criteria laid down in the said circular. The Management Company classi-
fied the Fund as 'Balanced Scheme' in accordance with the said circular. As at December 31, 2019, the Fund is compliant
with all the requirements of the said circular except for clause 2 (iv) which requires that the rating of any debt security in
the portfolio shall not be lower than A- (A Minus).

The following securities are included in the portfolio of the Fund which have rating lower than A- (A minus).

Name of Non-Compliant Investment Type of Value of Provision Value of % of net % of gross
investment  investment held (if any) investment assets assets
before after
provision provision

Saudi Pak Leasing Company Limited TFC 15,197 15,197 - - -
Dewan Cement Limited Advance 25,000 25,000 - - -
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16.

NON COMPLIANT INVESTMENTS DISCLOSURE

Investments in Sector Carrying Value .
Maximum Exposure
. Percentage of Net Asset
Allowed in a Sector
Rs in '000' (%)
40,682
Shares B Banking 25.00 26.42
Term Finance Certificate 13,269

16.1 These are the non compliances with respect to investments policy and restrictions as mentioned in the offering document
of the fund.

17. TOTAL EXPENSE RATIO
In accordance with the directive 23 of 2016 dated July 20, 2016 issued by the SECP, the total expense ratio of the Fund for
the half year ended December 31, 2019 is 2.04% (December 31, 2018: 1.68%) which includes 0.45% (December 31, 2018:
0.19%) representing government levy, Worker's Welfare Fund and SECP fee. As per S.R.0 639 (1)/2019, the limit towards
expense ratio has been amended to 4.5% from 4% for Equity, Balanced, Asset Allocation and Capital protected (dynamic
asset allocation-direct exposure).

18. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE
These condensed interim financial information were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Management
Company on February 13, 2020.

19. GENERAL
Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees.

For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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FUND INFORMATION

Name of Fund

Name of Auditor

Name of Trustee

Bankers

HBL Financial Planning Fund

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants
MCB Financial Services Limited (MCBFSL)
Habib Bank Limited

JS Bank Limited
Soneri Bank Limited
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MCE? MCB FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

FiNARCIAL SERVICES

REPORT OF THE TRUSTEE TO THE UNIT HOLDERS
HBL FINANCIAL PLANNING FUND

Report of the Trustee Pursuani (o Regulation 41(h) of the Non-Baoking Finance
Companies and Notified Entities Reguolations, 2008

HEL Financial Planning Fund. an open-end Scheme established under a Trust Deed dated
March 22, 2017 executed between HBL Asset Management Company Limited, as the
Management Company and MCB Financial Services Limited, as the Trustee. The Fund
commenced its aperations from October 11, 2017.

1. HBL Asset Management Company Limited, the Management Company of HBL
Financial Planning Fund has, in all maerial respects. managed HBL Financial Planning
Fund during the period ended 317 December, 2019 in accordance with the provisions of
the following:

() Investment limitations imposed on the Asser Management Company and the
Trustee under the trust deed and other applicable laws:

i) the valuation or pricing is carried out in accordance with the deed and any
rezulatory requirement,

(iii)  the creation and cancellation of units are carried put in accordance with the
deed;

(iv) and any regulatory requirement

ﬁ«,,ff"

Khawaja Anwar Hussain
Chief Executive Officer
Karachi: February 20, 2020 MCB Financial Services Limited

4th Floor. Perdesi House, 2/1, R-Y-16, Old Queens Road, Karachi - 74200
Direct Nos, 021-32430483, 32415454, 32415204, 32428731 PABX No. 021-32419770, Fax No. 021-32416371
Website: htp:'www.mebfsl.oom.pk
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Tel: =92 2173568 3030 2nd Tloor, Block.C
Fax; =92:21 3368 4239 Laxzon Square, Builging Mo
www, hdo.com.pk Sarwar Shaheed Road

e —————— Karachi-74200
Pakistan

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT DHW REVIEW OF COMDENSED INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION TO
THE UNIT HOLDERS OF HBL FIHANCIAL PLANNING FUND

Introduction

We have reviewed the accompanying condensed interim statement of assets and liabilities of HBL
FINANCIAL PLANHNING FUND (“the Fund”} as at December 31, 2019 and the related condensed interim
income statement, condensed interim statement of comprehensive income, condensed interim
statement of cash flows, condensed interim statement of movement in unit holders’ fund and notes to
the condensed interim financial information for the half year then ended (here-in-after referred to as
“interim financial information™). HBL Asset Management Limited (the "Management Company”) fs
responsible for the preparation and presentation of this condensed interim financial information in
accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim financial
reporting. Qur responsibility is to express a conclusion on this condensed interim financial information
based on our review.

Scope of Review

We conducted our review in accordance with International Standard cn Review Engagements 2410,
“Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity.” & review
of condensed interim financial information consists of making inguiries, primarily of persons responsible
for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review procedures. A review is
substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all
significant matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion,

Conclusion

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying
condensed interim financial infarmation as at and for the half year ended December 31, 2019 is not
prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable
in Pakistan for interim financial reporting.

Other matter
The figures for the quarter ended December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018 in the condensed interim

income statement and condensed interim statement of comprehensive income have not been reviewsd
and we do not express a conclusion on them,

KARACHI '
g{){‘,&a{, ok kG,
paTeD: { 3 FEB 2020 BDO EBRAHIM & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUMNTANTS
Engagement Partner: Raheel Shahnawaz

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartersd Accountants
8O0 Towahin & Co,, & FROITAN regsrered parirderiip fiem, i 8 momber of 20 mtemstionat Limited, 8 UK comaury Timeasd by parentias
snd formmi part o Lhe rizrmacions! BDE refuork of ndgpendent meber fird
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HBL Financial Planning Fund

Condensed Interim Statement of Assets and Liabilities (Un-Audited)

As At December 31, 2019
December 31, 2019 (Un-Audited) June 30, 2019 (Audited)
Active Strategic Special Active Strategic
Allocation  Conservative  Allocation Income Total Allocation  Conservative  Allocation Total
Plan Allocation Plan Plan Plan Allocation Plan
Note (Rupees in '000)

ASSETS

Bank balances 4 142 165 233 12,211 12,751 1,293 31 41 1,365

Investments 5 78,278 54,020 - 142,373 274,671 100,890 67,822 169,458 338,170

Mark-up accrued - - - 74 74 - - - -

Preliminary expenses and flotation costs 742 641 - - 1,383 877 758 188 1,823

Advances and prepayments 6 105 67 - - 172 112 74 44 230
TOTAL ASSETS 79,267 54,893 233 154,658 289,051 103,172 68,685 169,731 341,588
LIABILITIES

Payable to the Management Company 7 13 10 - 38 61 11 6 14 31

Payable to the Trustee 7 5 - 12 24 9 6 15 30

Payable to Securities and Exchange

Commission of Pakistan 8 8 6 9 9 32 168 91 184 443

Payable against redemption of units - - 11 - 11 - 1 - 1

Accrued expenses and other liabilities 9 560 269 213 134 1,176 379 1,530 205 2,114
TOTAL LIABILITIES 588 290 233 193 1,304 567 1,634 418 2,619
NET ASSETS 78,679 54,603 - 154,465 287,747 102,605 67,051 169,313 338,969
UNIT HOLDERS' FUND (AS PER
STATEMENT ATTACHED) 78,679 54,603 - 154,465 287,747 102,605 67,051 169,313 338,969
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 10

(Number of Units)
Number of units in issue 716,154 484,723 - 1,495,270 2,696,147 1,057,933 645,802 1,709,667 3,413,402
(Rupees)
Net assets value per unit 109.8632 112.6474 - 103.3029 96.9864 103.8264 99.0331
The annexed notes from 1 to 17 form an integral part of this condensed interim financial information.
For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL Financial Planning Fund

Condensed Interim Income Statement (Un-Audited)
For The Half Year And Period Ended December 31, 2019

For the period
For the from
Forthe half  Forthe half  period from September
yearended  yearended  July1,2019 16, 2019 to
December December to October  December 31,

31,2019 31,2019 10, 2019 2019 Half year ended December 31, 2018
Active Strategic Special Active Conservative Strategic
Allocation  Conservative  Allocation Income Total Allocation Allocation Allocation Total
Plan Allocation Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan
Income Note (Rupees in '000)
Capital (loss) / gain on sale of investments - net (910) 119 2,123 - 1,332 (4,382) 989 (1,089) (4,482)
Dividend income 1,747 - 548 107 2,402 1,943 1,842 554 4,339
Mark-up on bank deposits 66 6 3 507 582 48 13 4 65
Back-end load - - - 30 30 - - 24 24
903 125 2,674 644 4,346 (2,391) 2,844 (507) (54)
Unrealized appreciation / (diminution) on
re-measurement of investments classified as 'fair value
through profit or loss' - net 8,507 4314 - 4,666 17,487 (12,444) (1,394) (9,317) (23,155)
9,410 4,439 2,674 5,310 21,833 (14,835) 1,450 (9,824) (23,209)
Expenses
Remuneration of the Management Company 71 6 3 - 40 49 14 8 3 25
Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of the
Management Company 7.2 1 1 - 5 7 2 1 - 3
Remuneration of the Trustee 38 26 43 41 148 93 56 93 242
Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of the Trustee 5 3 5 5 18 12 7 12 31
Annual fee to the Securities and Exchange Commission
of Pakistan 8.1 8 6 9 9 32 98 58 98 254
Allocation of expenses / (reversal) related to registrar
services, accounting, operation and valuation services 73 82 (19) (169) 90 (16) 103 62 103 268
Amortisation of preliminary expenses and flotation costs 135 117 188 - 440 135 116 339 590
Auditors' remuneration 52 45 29 30 156 52 45 52 149
Fees and subscription 16 12 58 - 86 21 15 35 71
Bank charges 11 9 3 10 33 8 3 5 16
354 203 166 230 953 538 371 740 1,649
Net income / (loss) from operating activities 9,056 4,236 2,508 5,080 20,880 (15,373) 1,079 (10,564) (24,858)
Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund 9.1 (181) (85) (50) (102) (418) - (22) - (22)
Net income / (loss) for the period before taxation 8,875 4,151 2,458 4,978 20,462 (15,373) 1,057 (10,564) (24,880)
Taxation 11 - - - - - - - - -
Net income / (loss) for the period after taxation 8,875 4,151 2,458 4,978 20,462 (15,373) 1,057 (10,564) (24,880)
Allocation of net income for the period
Income already paid on redemption of units 437 32 378 67 806

Accounting income available for distribution

Relating to capital gains | 7,287 || 4,119 || 2,080 | | 4,603 | -
Excluding capital gains 1,151 - - 308 251
8,438 4,119 2,080 4,911 251
8,875 4,151 2,458 4,978 1,057

Earnings per unit 12

The annexed notes from 1 to 17 form an integral part of this condensed interim financial information.

For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL Financial Planning Fund

Condensed Interim Income Statement (Un-Audited)
For The Quarter And Period Ended December 31, 2019

For the period
For the quarter  For the quarter from October 1, For the quarter
ended ended December 2019 to October ended December
December 31, 31,2019 10,2019 31,2019 Quarter ended December 31, 2018
Active Conservative Strategic Special Active Conservative Strategic
Allocati Allocati Allocati Income Total Allocation Allocation Allocation Total
Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan
Note (Rupees in '000)
Income
Capital gain / (loss) on sale of investments - net 298 231 4,672 (18) 5,183 (1,682) 909 (1,413) (2,186)
Dividend income 879 - 173 107 1,159 1,898 1,805 540 4,243
Mark-up on bank deposits 31 4 1 404 440 24 8 3 35
Back-end load - - - 30 30 - - 24 24
1,208 235 4,846 523 6,812 240 2,722 (846) 2,116
Unrealized appreciation / (diminution) on
re-measurement of investments classified as 'fair value
through profit or loss' - net 8,901 3,554 (5,100) 3,817 11,172 (11,970) (2,749) (9,403) (24,122)
10,109 3,789 (254) 4,340 17,984 (11,730) (27) (10,249) (22,006)
Expenses
Remuneration of the Management Company 7.1 2 1 - 33 36 6 5 1 12
Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of the
Management Company 7.2 - 1 - 4 5 1 1 - 2
Remuneration of the Trustee 18 12 5 35 70 43 26 46 115
Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of the Trustee 2 1 - 4 7 5 3 6 14
Annual fee to the Securities and Exchange Commission
of Pakistan 4 3 - 8 15 45 27 48 120
Allocation of expenses / (reversal) related to registrar
services, accounting, operation and valuation services 7.3 39 (49) (251) 76 (185 47 29 50 126
Amortisation of preliminary expenses and flotation costs 68 59 19 - 146 68 58 170 296
Auditors' remuneration 26 23 3 26 78 24 21 23 68
Fees and subscription 8 6 41 - 55 12 9 19 40
Bank charges 8 5 - 6 19 2 - 2 4
175 62 (183) 192 246 253 179 365 797
Net income / (loss) from operating activities 9,934 3,727 (71) 4,148 17,738 (11,983) (206) (10,614) (22,803)
Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund 9.1 (181) (75) 1 (84) (339) - 4 1 5
Net income / (loss) for the period before taxation 9,753 3,652 (70) 4,064 17,399 (11,983) (202) (10,613) (22,798)
Taxation 11 - - - - - - - - -
Net income / (loss) for the period after taxation 9,753 3,652 (70) 4,064 17,399 (11,983) (202) (10,613) (22,798)
Allocation of net income for the period
Income already paid on redemption of units 437 2 67
Accounting income available for distribution
Relating to capital gains | 8,889 | | 3,650
Excluding capital gains 427 -
9,316 3,650
9,753 3,652

Earnings per unit 12

The annexed notes from 1 to 17 form an integral part of this condensed interim financial information.

For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL Financial Planning Fund

Condensed Interim Statement of Comprehensive Income (Un-Audited)
For The Half Year And Period Ended December 31, 2019

For the
For the period period from
Forthe half  Forthehalf  fromJuly 1, September
year ended year ended 2019 to 16, 2019 to
December 31, December October 10,  peocember 31,
2019 31,2019 201!
! 019 2019 Half year ended December 31, 2018
Active . Strategic Special Active Conservative Strategic
A Conservative . . . .
Allocation Allocation Allocation Income Total Allocation Allocation Allocation Total
Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan
Plan
(Rupees in '000)
Net income / (loss) for the period after taxation 8,875 4,151 2,458 4,978 20,462 (15,373) 1,057 (10,564) (24,880)
Other comprehensive income
Items that will be reclassified subsequently
to income statement - - -
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently
to income statement - - -
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the period 8,875 4,151 2,458 4,978 20,462 (15,373) 1,057 (10,564) (24,880)
The annexed notes from 1 to 17 form an integral part of this condensed interim financial information.
For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Executive Officer Director

Chief Financial Officer
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HBL Financial Planning Fund

Condensed Interim Statement of Comprehensive Income (Un-Audited)
For The Quarter And Period Ended December 31, 2019 (Continued)

h For the period
For the For the from October For the
quarter quarterended  1,2019to  quarter ended
ended December 31, October 10, December 31,
December31, 5919 2019 2019
2019 Quarter ended December 31, 2018
Active Conservative Strategic Special Active Conservative Strategic
Allocation Allocation Allocation Income Total Allocation Allocation Allocation Total
Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan
(Rupees in '000)

Net income / (loss) for the period after taxation 9,753 3,652 (70) 4,064 17,399 (11,983) (202) (10,613) (22,798)
Other comprehensive income

Items that will be reclassified subsequently

to income statement -

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently

to income statement -
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the period 9,753 3,652 (70) 4,064 17,399 (11,983) (202) (10,613) (22,798)
The annexed notes from 1 to 17 form an integral part of this condensed interim financial information.

For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL Financial Planning Fund

Condensed Interim Statement of Cash Flow (Un-Audited)
For The Half Year And Period Ended December 31, 2019

Note

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income / loss for the period before taxation
Adjustments for:
Capital loss / (gain) on sale of investment - net
Dividend income
Mark-up on bank deposits
Unrealized (appreciation) / diminution on re-measurement of investments
classified as 'fair value through profit or loss' - net
Back-end load
Amortisation of preliminary expenses and flotation costs

Decrease / (increase) in assets
Investments - net
Advances and prepayments

Increase / (decrease) in liabilities
Payable to the Management Company
Payable to the Trustee
Payable to Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Cash generated from / (used in) operations

Dividend received

Mark-up received on bank deposits

Back-end load

Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Amount received on issue of units
Amount paid on redemption of units
Dividend paid
Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents during the period
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 4

The annexed notes from 1 to 17 form an integral part of this condensed interim financial information.

Chief Financial Officer

For the period
For the half year For the half year For the period from September
ended ended from July 1,2019 16,2019 to
December31, December31, toOctober10, ~December31,
2019
2019 2019 2019 Half year ended December 31, 2018
Active Conservative Strategic Special Income Total Active Allocation  Conservative Strategic Total
Allocation Plan  Allocation Plan  Allocation Plan Plan Plan Allocation Plan  Allocation Plan
(D P in 'nnn)
8,875 4,151 2,458 4,978 20,462 (15,373) 1,057 (10,564) (24,880)
910 (119) (2,123) B (1,332) 4382 (989) 1,089 4,482
(1,747) - (548) (107) (2,402) (1,943) (1,842) (554) (4,339)
(66) (6) 3) (507) (582) (48) (13) (4) (65)
(8,507) (4,314) - (4,666) (17,487) 12,444 1,394 9,317 23,155
- - - (30) (30) - - - -
135 117 188 - 440 135 116 339 590
(400) (171) (28) (332) (931) (403) (277) (377) (1,057)
30,209 18,235 171,581 (137,707 82,318 141,880 66,134 6,156 214,170f
7 7 44 - 58 4 8 24 36
30,216 18,242 171,625 (137,707) 82,376 141,884 66,142 6,180 214,206
2 4 (14 38 30 (22 (2) (1) (25
) (1) (15 12 (6) (43 (17 (19 (79
(160! (85 (175 9 (411 (108, (51, (45 (204
181 (1,261 3 134 (938! (22 247 (30 195
21 (1,343 (196) 193 (1,325 (195) 177 (95) (113)
29,837 16,728 171,401 (137,846) 80,120 141,286 66,042 5,708 213,036
1,747 - 548 107 2,402 1,943 1,842 554 4,339
66 6 3 433 508 52 14 4 70
- - - 30 30 - - - -
31,650 16,734 171,952 (137,276) 83,060 143,281 67,898 6,266 217,445
15 - 1,538 152,494 154,047, 727 100 - 827
(32,816} (16,600} (172,475 (3,007 (224,898} (143,614 (67,610} (6,383 (217,607
- - (823 - (823 - - - -
(32,801 (16,600 (171,760 149,487 (71,674 (142,887 (67,510 (6,383) (216,780
(1,151) 134 192 12,211 11,386 394 388 (117) 665
1,293 31 41 - 1,365 1,278 443 149 1,870
142 165 233 12,211 12,751 1,672 831 32 2,535
For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL Financial Planning Fund

Condensed Interim Statement of Movement in Unit Holders' Fund (Un-Audited)
For The Half Year Ended December 31, 2019

Net assets at beginning of the period

Issuance of 136 units (2018: 7,216 units)
Capital value (at net asset value per unit at the beginning of the period)
Element of income / (loss)

Total proceeds on issuance of units

Redemption of 341,915 units (2018: 1,433,383 units)
Capital value (at net asset value per unit at the beginning of the period)
Income already paid on redemption of units
Element of income

Total payments on redemption of units

Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the period

Net assets at end of the period

Accumulated (loss) / undistributed income brought forward
Realised (loss) / income
Unrealized loss

Accounting income available for distribution
Relating to capital gains
Excluding capital gains

Total comprehensive loss for the period
Undistributed income / accumulated (loss) carried forward
Undistributed income / accumulated (loss) carried forward
Realised (loss) / income
Unrealized income / (loss)

Net assets value per unit at beginning of the period
Net assets value per unit at end of the period

The annexed notes from 1 to 17 form an integral part of this condensed interim financial information.

Half year ended Half year ended
December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Active Allocation Plan
Capital value Unc:hstrlbuted Total Capital value Accumulated Total
income loss
(Rupees in '000)
110,998 (8,393) 102,605 325,538 4,919 330,457
13 13 741 - 741
2 - 2 (14) - (14)
15 - 15 727 - 727
(33,161) - (33,161) (147,137) - (147,137)
- (437) (437) - - -
782 - 782 3,234 - 3,234
(32,379) (437) (32,816) (143,903) - (143,903)
- 8,875 8,875 - (15,373) (15,373)
78,634 45 78,679 182,362 (10,454) 171,908
(1,078) 6,342
(7,315) (1,423)
(8,393) 4,919
7,287 -
1,151 -
8,438 -
- (15,373)
45 (10,454)
(8,462) 1,990
8,507 (12,444)
45 (10,454)
(Rupees) (Rupees)
96.9864 102.6500
109.8632 95.8727
For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Executive Officer Director

Chief Financial Officer
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HBL Financial Planning Fund

Condensed Interim Statement of Movement in Unit Holders' Fund (Un-Audited)

For The Half Year Ended December 31, 2019 (Continued)

Net assets at beginning of the period

Issuance of Nil units (2018: 955 units)
Capital value (at net asset value per unit at the beginning of the period)
Element of income

Total proceeds on issuance of units

Redemption of 161,079 units (2018: 643,877 units)
Capital value (at net asset value per unit at the beginning of the period)
Income already paid on redemption of units
Element of income

Total payments on redemption of units

Total comprehensive income for the period

Net assets at end of the period

Undistributed income brought forward
Realised income
Unrealized loss / income

Accounting income available for distribution
Relating to capital gains
Excluding capital gains

Undistributed income carried forward
Undistributed income carried forward
Realised income
Unrealized income / (loss)

Net assets value per unit at beginning of the period
Net assets value per unit at end of the period

The annexed notes from 1 to 17 form an integral part of this condensed interim financial information.

Half year ended Half year ended
December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Conservative Allocation Plan
Capital value Undistributed Total Capital value Undistributed Total
(Rupees in '000)
62,239 4,812 67,051 128,919 4,776 133,695
- - - 99 - 99
- - - 1 - 1
- - - 100 - 100
(16,724) - (16,724) (66,809) - (66,809)
- 32) 32) - (806) (806)
157 - 157 5 - 5
(16,567) (32) (16,599) (66,804) (806) (67,610)
- 4,151 4,151 - 1,057 1,057
45,672 8,931 54,603 62,215 5,027 67,242
7,045 3,501
(2,233) 1,275
4,812 4,776
4,119 _
- 251
4,119 251
8,931 5,027
4,617 6,421
4,314 (1,394)
8,931 5,027
(Rupees) (Rupees)
103.8264 103.7607
112.6474 104.1590
For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Executive Officer Director

Chief Financial Officer
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HBL Financial Planning Fund

Condensed Interim Statement of Movement in Unit Holders' Fund (Un-Audited)

For The Period And Half Year Ended December 31, 2019 (Continued)

Net assets at beginning of the period
Issuance of 15,377 units (2018: Nil units)
Capital value (at net asset value per unit at the beginning of the period)
Element of income
Total proceeds on issuance of units
Redemption of 1,725,044 units (2018: 64,129 units)
Capital value (at net asset value per unit at the beginning of the period)
Income already paid on redemption of units
Element of (loss) / income
Total payments on redemption of units
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the period
Interim distribution
Rs. 0.4851 per unit declared on October 10, 2019 as cash dividend
Distribution for the period

Net assets at end of the period
Accumulated (loss) / undistributed income brought forward
Realised income

Unrealized loss / income
Accounting income available for distribution
Relating to capital gains

Excluding capital gains

Total comprehensive loss for the period

For the period from

July1, 2019 to October 10, 2019

Half year ended
December 31, 2018

Strategic Allocation Plan

Interim distribution of Rs. 0.4851 per unit declared on October 10, 2019 as cash dividend

Undistributed income / accumulated (loss) carried forward
Undistributed income / accumulated (loss) carried forward
Realised income

Unrealized loss

Net assets value per unit at beginning of the period

Net assets value per unit at end of the period

The annexed notes from 1 to 17 form an integral part of this condensed interim financial information.

Capital value  Undistribute Total Capital value  Accumulated Total
(Rupees in '000)
170,570 (1,257) 169,313 203,390 5,132 208,522
1,523 - 1,523 - - -
15 - 15 - - -
1,538 - 1,538 - - -
(170,836) - (170,836) (6,575) - (6,575)
- (378) (378) - - -
(1,272) (1,272) 192 - 192
(172,108) (378) (172,486) (6,383) - (6,383)
- 2,458 2,458 - (10,564) (10,564)
- (823) (823) - - -
- 1,635 1,635 - (10,564) (10,564)
- - - 197,007 (5,432) 191,575
3,709 4,617
(4,966) 515
(1,257) 5,132
2,080 -
2,080 -
- (10,564)
(823) -
- (5,432)
- 3,885
- (9,317)
- (5,432)
(Rupees) (Rupees)
99.0331 102.5230
- 97.2577
For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Executive Officer Director

Chief Financial Officer
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HBL Financial Planning Fund

Condensed Interim Statement Of Movement In Unitholders’ Fund (Un-audited)
For The Period From September 16, 2019 To December 31, 2019 (Continued)

Net assets at beginning of the period
Issuance of 1,524,670 units

Capital value (at net asset value per unit at the beginning of the

period)

Element of income
Total proceeds on issuance of units
Redemption of 29,400 units

Capital value (at net asset value per unit at the beginning of the

period)
Income already paid on redemption of units
Element of loss
Total payments on redemption of units
Total comprehensive income for the period
Net assets at end of the period
Undistributed income brought forward
Realised income
Unrealized income

Accounting income available for distribution
Relating to capital gains
Excluding capital gains

Undistributed income carried forward
Undistributed income carried forward
Realised income
Unrealized income

Net assets value per unit at beginning of the period

Net assets value per unit at end of the period

For the period from

September 16, 2019 to December 31, 2019

Special Income Plan

Undistributed

Capital value Total

income

-------------------- (Rupees in '000) --------------------

152,467 - 152,467
27 - 27
152,494 - 152,494
(2,940) - (2,940)
- (67) (67)
(2,940) (67) (3,007)
- 4,978 4,978
149,554 4,911 154,465
4,603
308
4,911
4,911
245
4,666
4,911
(Rupees)
103.3029

The annexed notes from 1 to 17 form an integral part of this condensed interim financial information.
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HBL Financial Planning Fund

Notes to the Condensed Interim Financial Information (Un-Audited)
For The Half Year Ended December 31, 2019

1 LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

HBL Financial Planning Fund (the Fund), was established under the Trust Deed executed between HBL Asset Management
Limited as the Management Company and MCB Financial Services Limited (MCBFSL) as the Trustee. The Trust Deed was
executed on March 22, 2017 and was approved by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) on April
14, 2017 in accordance with the requirements of the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation)
Rules, 2003 (NBFC Rules). The registered office of the Management Company is situated at 7th Floor, Emerald Tower,
G-19, Block 5, Main Clifton Road, Clifton. The Fund commenced its operations from October 10, 2017.

The Fund is an open ended fund of fund scheme and the Fund is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The Fund
currently has three different plans; namely, Active Allocation Plan, Conservative Allocation Plan and Special Income Plan
(collectively referred as 'Plans'). The units of Conservative Allocation Plan and Active Allocation Plan were initially offered
to public (IPO) from September 11, 2017 to October 10, 2017, the units of Strategic Allocation Plan were offered from
August 07, 2017 to October 10, 2017 and the units of Special Income Plan were offered from June 11, 2019 to September
13, 2019. The units are transferable and can be redeemed by surrendering them to the Fund at the option of unit holder.
The Fund is perpetual, however, the Allocation Plans may have a set time frame. Each Allocation Plan will announce
separate NAVs which will rank pari passu inter se according to the number of units of the respective Allocation Plans.
Units are offered for public subscription on a continuous basis. However, term-based plans may be offered for a limited
subscription period.

The Fund aims to generate returns on investment as per the respective Allocation Plan by investing in Mutual Funds in line
with the risk tolerance of the investor. Following is the description of the plans currently in operation:

- The “Active Allocation Plan” is an Allocation Plan under the “HBL Financial Planning Fund” with an objective to earn a
potentially high return through active asset allocation between equity scheme(s), income scheme(s) and money
market scheme(s) based on the Fund Manager’s outlook on the asset classes.

- The “Conservative Allocation Plan” is an Allocation Plan under the “HBL Financial Planning Fund” and primarily aims
to provide stable returns with some capital appreciation through a pre-determined mix of investments in equity
scheme(s), income scheme(s) and money market scheme(s). This Allocation Plan is suitable for investors who have
moderate risk tolerance and have a short to medium term investment horizon.

- The “Strategic Allocation Plan” is an Allocation Plan under the “HBL Financial Planning Fund” with an objective to earn
a potentially high return through active allocation of funds between equity scheme(s), income scheme(s) and money
market scheme(s) based on fundamental analysis of economic indicators, underlying asset values and a strategy of
risk aversion to market volatility. The plan commenced on October 11, 2017 for the duration of 24 months (two years)
and matured on October 10, 2019.

- The “Special Income Plan” is an Allocation Plan under the “HBL Financial Planning Fund” with an objective to earn a
potentially high return through active allocation of funds between income scheme(s) and money market scheme(s)
based on fundamental analysis of economic indicators, interest rate environment, market liquidity conditions and a
strategy of minimizing risk and volatility. The duration of this plan is 24 months (two years). However, SECP or the
Management Company may wind it up or revoke, on the occurrence of certain events as specified in the Regulations
or clause no.10.4 of the offering document of the Fund. HBL Financial Planning Fund - Special Income Plan is due to
mature on September 16, 2021, unless the Management Company decides otherwise.

JCR-VIS Credit Rating Agency has assigned management quality rating of 'AM2+ (AM two plus)' to the Management
Company while the Fund is currently not rated.

Title to the assets of the Fund are held in the name of MCBFSL as the Trustee of the Fund.
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2.1

2.1.1

2.1.2

2.13

2.14

2.15

2.2

23

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance

This condensed interim financial information has been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim financial reporting. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable
in Pakistan for interim financial reporting comprise of International Accounting Standard (IAS) 34, Interim Financial
Reporting, issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017, the
provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, along with part VIIIA of the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules, the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the 'NBFC
Regulations'), the directives issued by the SECP and the requirements of the Trust Deed.

Where the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations, the directives issued by the SECP and the requirements of the
Trust Deed differ from the requirements of the IAS 34, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act,
2017, part VIIIA of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations, the directives issued
by the SECP and the requirements of the Trust Deed have been followed.

The disclosures made in this condensed interim financial information have; however, been limited based on the
requirements of International Accounting Standard - 34 'Interim Financial Reporting'. This condensed interim financial
information does not include all the information and disclosures required in a full set of financial statements and should
be read in conjunction with the annual audited financial statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2019.

The comparative statement of asset and liabilities presented in this condensed interim financial information has been
extracted from the annual audited financial statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2019, whereas the
comparative condensed interim income statement, condensed interim statement of comprehensive income, condensed
interim statement of cash flows and condensed interim statement of movement in unit holders’ fund are extracted from
the unaudited condensed interim financial information for the half year ended December 31, 2018.

This condensed interim financial information is unaudited but has been reviewed by the auditors. Further, the figures of
the condensed interim income statement and condensed interim statement of comprehensive income for the quarters
ended December 31, 2019 have not been reviewed.

In compliance with Schedule V of the NBFC Regulations, the directors of the Management Company hereby declare that
this condensed interim financial information gives a true and fair view of the state of the Fund’s affairs as at December 31,
2019.

Basis of measurement

This condensed interim financial information has been prepared under the historical cost convention, except that certain
financial assets are stated at fair value.

This condensed interim financial information has been prepared following accrual basis of accounting, except for cash
flow information.

Functional and presentation currency

This condensed interim financial information is presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Fund's functional and
presentation currency.
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3.1

3.2

33

3.4

3.5

4.1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING AND RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES, ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, JUDGEMENTS AND
CHANGES THEREIN

The accounting policies adopted for the preparation of this condensed interim financial information are the same as those
applied in the preparation of the annual audited financial statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2019, unless
otherwise stated.

The preparation of this condensed interim financial information in conformity with accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan requires management to make estimates, assumptions and use judgements that affect the
application of accounting policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Estimates,
assumptions and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
reasonable expectations of future events. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively commencing
from the period of revision.

The significant estimates, judgements and assumptions made by the management in applying the accounting policies and
the key sources of estimation uncertainty are the same as those applied to the annual audited financial statements as at
and for the year ended June 30, 2019.

There are certain standards, interpretations and amendments to accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan, effective for the first time in this condensed interim financial information and are mandatory for the Fund's
accounting period beginning on or after July 01, 2019. These standards, interpretations and amendments are either not
relevant to the Fund's operations or are not expected to have a significant effect on this condensed interim financial
information.

The Fund's financial risk management objectives and policies are consistent with that disclosed in annual audited
financial statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2019.

December 31, 2019 (Un-Audited) June 30, 2019 (Audited)
. . : Special . . .
Active Conservative Strategic Active Conservative Strategic
BANK BALANCES Allocation Plan  Allocation Plan  Allocation Plan In;lome Total Allocation Plan  Allocation Plan  Allocation Plan Total
an
Note (Rupees in '000) (Rupees in '000) ----------------memmrmoememeneeev
In savings accounts 4.1 142 165 233 12,211 12,751 1,293 31 41 1,365

This represents bank accounts held with various banks. Mark-up rates on these accounts range between 8% to 14.5% per
annum (June 30, 2019: 10.28% to 13.5% per annum). This includes a balance held in Habib Bank Limited (a related party),
amounting to Rs. 0.131 million (June 30, 2019: Rs. 1.283 million), Rs. 0.142 million (June 30, 2019: 0.009 million), Rs.
0.220 million (June 30, 2019: 0.028 million) and Rs. 0.087 million, by Active Allocation Plan, Conservative Allocation Plan,
Strategic Allocation Plan and Special Income Plan, respectively.

INVESTMENTS

Financial assets classified at fair value
through profit or loss
Units of mutual funds 5.1 78,278 54,020 - 142,373 274,671 100,890 67,822 169,458 338,170
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5.1

6.1

Units of Mutual Funds

Number of units As at December 31, 2019 Market value as a percentage of
Name of investee funds Asat Pur.chases Rede.mptions Asat Carrying Appreciation / Net assets of | Total
July 1, during the during the December 31, amount Market value (diminution) the plan investments of
2019 period period 2019 the plan
mmmmmeeeneeneneeeees (RUPEES iN '000) --mommeeeeenneeeeeen
Active Allocation Plan
HBL Cash Fund 502,169 74,807 332,243 244,733 24,671 24,927 256 31.68 31.84
HBL Stock Fund 468,065 191,205 240,156 419,114 36,872 44,663 7,791 56.77 57.06
HBL Income Fund 77,566 - - 77,566 8,228 8,688 460 11.04 11.10
As at December 31, 2019 (Un-Audited) 1,047,800 266,012 572,399 741,413 69,771 78,278 8,507 99.49 100
As at June 30, 2019 (Audited) 3,081,646 1,011,208 3,045,054 1,047,800 108,205 100,890 (7,315) 90.31 100
Conservative Allocation Plan
HBL Cash Fund - 1,729 - 1,729 176 176 - 0.32 0.33
HBL Stock Fund 141,765 24,534 64,860 101,439 8,993 10,810 1,817 19.80 20.01
HBL Money Market Fund 539,425 16,246 159,508 396,163 40,537 43,034 2,497 78.81 79.66
As at December 31, 2019 (Un-Audited) 681,190 42,509 224,368 499,331 49,706 54,020 4,314 98.93 100
As at June 30, 2019 (Audited) 1,248,185 675,530 1,242,525 681,190 70,054 67,822 (2,232) 100 100
Strategic Allocation Plan
HBL Cash Fund 177,043 5,435 182,478 - - - - - -
HBL Stock Fund 440,522 - 440,522 - - - - - -
HBL Income Fund 745,068 - 745,068 - - - - - -
HBL Government Securities Fund 312,079 345,994 658,073 - - - - - -
As at December 31, 2019 (Un-Audited) 1,674,712 351,429 2,026,141 - - - - - -
As at June 30, 2019 (Audited) 1,922,296 1,382,079 1,629,662 1,674,713 174,424 169,458 (4,966) 100 100
Special Income Plan
HBL Cash Fund - 46,656 - 46,656 4,707 4,752 45 3.08 3.34
HBL Government Securities Fund - 1,220,437 - 1,220,437 133,000 137,621 4,621 89.10 96.66
As at December 31, 2019 (Un-Audited) - 1,267,093 - 1,267,093 137,707 142,373 4,666 92.17 100
As at June 30, 2019 (Audited) - - - - - - - -
Total as at December 31, 2019 (Un-Audited) 3,403,702 1,927,043 2,822,908 2,507,837 257,184 274,671 17,487
Total as at June 30, 2019 6,252,127 3,068,817 5,917,241 3,403,703 352,683 338,170 (14,513)
ADVANCES AND PREPAYMENTS
December 31, 2019 (Un-Audited) June 30, 2019 (Audited)
Active Conservative Strategic Special Active Conservative Strategic
Allocation Allocation Allocation Income Total Allocation Allocation Allocation Total
Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan
Note (Rupees in '000) (Rupees in '000) ---------=-m-msmmmeemmmemoeeneeee
Advance tax 6.1 37 9 - - 46 37 9 26 72
Prepaid listing fee 68 58 - - 126 75 65 18 158
105 67 - - 172 112 74 44 230

The income of the Fund is exempt from tax under clause 99 of Part | of the Second Schedule of the Income Tax Ordinance,
2001 (ITO 2001). Furthermore, the Fund is exempt under clause 47(B) of Part IV of Second Schedule of ITO 2001 from
withholding of tax under section 150, 151 and 233 of ITO 2001.

The Federal Board of Revenue through a circular “C.No.1 (43) DG (WHT)/2008-Vol.ll- 66417-R”, dated May 12, 2015, made
it mandatory to obtain exemption certificates under section 159 (1) of the ITO 2001 from Commissioner Inland Revenue
(CIR). However, various withholding agents have deducted advance tax under section 151 of ITO 2001. The management
is confident that the same shall be refunded after filing refund application within stipulated time, as per ITO, 2001.

PAYABLE TO THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY

December 31, 2019 (Un-Audited) June 30, 2019 (Audited)
Active Conservative Strategic Special Active Conservative Strategic
Allocation Allocation Allocation Income Total Allocation Allocation Allocation Total
Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan
Note  ----rmemmsmmeoeememoe o (RUPEES iN '000) ---mrmmrmommmmmmmemme e e (Rupees in '000) ---------------s-osoeeem
Remuneration payable of the
Management Company 7.1 - 1 - 11 12 3 - - 3
Sindh Sales Tax payable on the
Management Company's
remuneration 7.2 - - - 1 1 - - - -
Allocation of expenses related to
registrar services, accounting,
operation and valuation services 73 13 9 - 26 48 8 6 14 28
13 10 - 38 61 11 6 14 31
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7.1

7.2

7.3

8.1

As per the offering document of the Fund, the Management Company shall charge a fee at the rate not exceeding 1% of
the average annual net assets on daily basis of the plans. However, no management fee is charged on that part of the net
assets which have been invested in mutual funds managed by the Management Company. The fee is payable monthly in
arrears.

This represents amount payable in respect of Sindh Sales Tax at the rate of 13% (June 30, 2019: 13%) on the services
provided by the Management Company as required by Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011.

As per Regulation 60(3)(s) of the NBFC Regulations, fee and expenses pertaining to registrar services, accounting,
operation and valuation services related to a Collective Investment Scheme (CIS) are chargeable to the CIS. Previously,
such expenses were chargeable maximum upto 0.1% of the average annual net assets on daily basis of the Scheme or the
actual cost, whichever is lower. However, SECP vide S.R.0. 639(1)/2019, dated June 20, 2019, has removed the maximum
limit of 0.1%.

During the period, the fee has been charged at the rate ranging between 0.1% to 0.2%, in case of Active Allocation Plan,
Conservative Allocation Plan and Strategic Allocation Plan and, at the rate of 0.2%, in case of Special Income Plan, of the
daily annual net assets of the Fund. The fee is being charged at the rate of 0.2%, from July 8, 2019 onwards, in case of
Active Allocation Plan and Conservative Allocation Plan and, from September 16, 2019 onwards, in case of Special Income
Plan. The fund has reversed the said expenses in Conservative Allocation Plan and Strategic Allocation Plan pertaining to
preceding year amounting to Rs. 0.075 million and Rs. 0.26 million, respectively.

PAYABLE TO SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN

December 31, 2019 (Un-Audited) June 30, 2019 (Audited)
Active Conservative Strategic Special Active Conservative Strategic
Allocation Allocation Allocation Income Total Allocation Allocation Allocation Total
Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan
Note —r--emmmemomemee e (RUPEES iN '000) -----mmmmmmmemmmmemmmemeneees e (Rupees in '000) ----------m-smmmemmmenenaen
Annual fee payable 8 6 9 9 32 168 91 184 443

Under the regulation 62 of the NBFC Regulations, a Collective Investment Scheme (CIS) categorized as a fund of fund
scheme is required to pay as annual fee to the SECP, an amount equal to 0.095% of the average annual net assets of the
Scheme. However, SECP, vide S.R.0. 685 (1)/2019, dated June 28, 2019, has reduced the rate of the fee to 0.02% of the
average annual net assets for all categories of CIS(s), with effect from July 1, 2019. During the period, Management
Company has charged the fee accordingly. The fee is payable annually in arrears.

ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES

December 31, 2019 (Un-Audited) June 30, 2019 (Audited)
Active Conservative Strategic Special Active Conservative Strategic
Allocation Allocation Allocation Income Total Allocation Allocation Allocation Total
Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan
Note  -m-momememoeoeemeee s (RUPEES iN '000) ---mmmmemmrmmmemmemcemmmemeoes e (Rupees in '000) -------------nnsmormonmeemeeen
Provision for Sindh Workers'
Welfare Fund 9.1 292 210 155 102 759 111 126 105 342
Withholding tax payable - - - - - - 253 - 253
Printing charges payable 4 9 18 - 31 13 17 19 49
Auditors' remuneration 51 44 28 30 153 78 67 78 223
Others 213 6 12 2 233 177 1,067 3 1,247
560 269 213 134 1,176 379 1,530 205 2,114
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13

The legal status of applicability of Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund is same as that disclosed in note 12.1 to the audited
financial statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2019. MUFAP has taken up the matter with the concerned
ministry (Sindh Finance Ministry) for appropriate resolution of the matter which is pending.

As at December 31, 2019, the provision in relation to SWWF amounted to Rs. 0.292 million, Rs. 0.210 million, Rs. 0.155
million and Rs. 0.102 million in Active Allocation Plan, Conservative Allocation Plan, Strategic Allocation Plan and Special
Income Plan, respectively (June 30, 2019: Rs. 0.111 million, Rs. 0.126 million, Rs. 0.105 million, respectively). Had the
provision not been made, the net asset value per unit as at December 31, 2019 would have been higher by Rs. 0.408, Rs.
0.433, Nil and Rs. 0.068 per unit of the Active Allocation Plan, Conservative Allocation Plan, Strategic Allocation Plan and
Special Income Plan, respectively (June 30, 2019: Rs. 0.105, Rs. 0.195, Rs. 0.061, respectively).

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
There were no contingencies and commitments as at December 31, 2019 (June 30, 2019: Nil).
TAXATION

The Fund's income is exempt from income tax as per clause 99 of Part | of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001, subject to the condition that not less than 90% of its accounting income for the year, as reduced by the
capital gains, whether realised or unrealized, is distributed to the unit holders in cash. The Fund is also exempt from the
provision of section 113 (minimum tax) under clause 11A of Part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance,
2001. The Fund has not recorded a tax liability in the current period, as the Management Company intends to distribute
at least 90% of the Fund's accounting income, as reduced by the capital gains, whether realised or unrealized, for the year
ending June 30, 2020, to its unit holders.

EARNINGS PER UNIT

Earnings per unit (EPU) has not been disclosed in this condensed interim financial information, as, in the opinion of the
Management Company, the determination of cumulative weighted average number of outstanding units for calculating
earnings per unit is not practicable.

TRANSACTIONS WITH CONNECTED PERSONS

Connected persons include HBL Asset Management Limited, being the Management Company, Habib Bank Limited, being
the Sponsor, MCB Financial Services Limited, being the Trustee of the Fund, other collective investment schemes
managed by the Management Company, directors and officers of the Management Company, directors of connected
persons and persons having 10% or more beneficial ownership of the units of the Fund.

Transactions with connected persons are in the normal course of business, at contracted rates and terms determined in
accordance with market rates.

Remuneration payable to the Management Company and the Trustee is determined in accordance with the provisions of
the NBFC Regulations and the Trust Deed, respectively.

Transactions and balances with parties who were connected persons due to holding 10% or more units in the comparative
period and not in the current period are not disclosed in the comparative period.

Details of the transactions with connected persons and balances with them, if not disclosed elsewhere in this condensed
interim financial information are as follows:
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13.1

Transactions during the period

HBL Asset Management Limited -
Management Company

Remuneration of the Management Company
Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of the
Management Company

Allocation of expenses related to registrar services,

accounting, operation and valuation services
Issue of 4,120 (2018: Nil) units

Redemption of 1,003,322 (2018: Nil) units
Dividend income

Habib Bank Limited - Sponsor
Bank charges
Mark-up on bank deposits

MCB Financial Services Limited - Trustee
Remuneration of the Trustee
Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of the
Trustee

Asif Nadeem Minhas - Connected Person
due to 10% holding
Redemption of 5,403 (2018: Nil) units

Shazia Afshan Minhas - Connected Person
due to 10% holding
Issue of 188,343 (2018: Nil) units

HBL Income Fund -

CIS managed by the Management Company
Bonus of Nil (2018: 30,098) units
Redemption of 745,068 (2018: Nil) units

HBL Stock Fund -

CIS managed by the Management Company
Purchase of 191,205 (2018: 161,838 ) units
Purchase of 24,534 (2018: 27,480) units
Purchase of Nil (2018: 228,499) units
Redemption of 240,156 (2018: 974,195) units
Redemption of 64,860 (2018: 147,765 ) units
Redemption of 440,522 (2018: 205,041) units

HBL Cash Fund -

CIS managed by the Management Company
Purchase of 74,807 (2018: 261,275) units
Purchase of 1,729 (2018: 69,986) units
Purchase of 5,435 (2018: 203,494) units
Purchase of 46,656 (2018: Nil) units
Redemption of 332,243 (2018: 783,792) units
Redemption of Nil (2018: 536,334) units
Redemption of 182,478 (2018: 276,450 ) units
Dividend income

HBL Money Market Fund -

CIS managed by the Management Company
Purchase of 16,246 (2018: Nil) units
Redemption of 159,508 (2018: Nil) units

HBL Government Securities Fund -

CIS managed by the Management Company
Purchase of 345,994 (2018: Nil) units
Purchase of 1,220,437 (2018: Nil) unit:
Redemption of 658,073 (2018: Nil) units

For the

For the period from
Forthe half  Forthehalf  period from  September
year ended year ended July 1, 2019 16, 2019 to
December 31, December 31, to October December 31,
2019 2019 10 2019 2019 Half year ended December 31, 2018
Active Conservative Strategic Special Active Conservative Strategic
Allocation Allocation Allocation Income Total Allocation Allocation Allocation Total
Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan Plan
(Rupees in '000) (Rupees in '000) --------====n-mmmmmemeeneanans
(Un-Audited)
6 3 - 40 49 14 8 3 25
1 1 - 5 7 2 1 - 3
82 (19) (169) 90 (16) 103 62 103 268
- - 412 - 412 - - - -
- - 100,332 - 100,332 - - - -
- - 485 - 485 - - - -
11 9 3 10 33 8 3 5 16
65 6 2 - 73 48 12 3 63
38 26 43 41 148 93 56 93 242
5 3 5 5 18 12 7 12 31
547 - - - 547 - - - -
- - - 19,073 19,073 - - - -
- - 81,178 - 81,178 - - - -
16,000 - - - 16,000 17,000 - - 17,000
- 2,012 - - 2,012 - 2,803 - 2,803
- - - - - - - 23,946 23,946
20,033 - - - 20,033 99,377 - - 99,377
- 5,564 - - 5,564 - 15,213 - 15,213
- - 36,967 - 36,967 - - 20,400 20,400
7,547 - - - 7,547 19,943 - - 19,943
- 176 - - 176 - 1,842 - 1,842
- - 548 - 548 - - 18,554 18,554
- - - 4,707 4,707 - - - -
33,723 - - - 33,723 79,446 - - 79,446
- - - - - - 55,567 - 55,567
- - 18,456 - 18,456 - - 28,256 28,256
1,747 - 548 107 2,402 1,943 1,842 554 4,339
- 1,740 - - 1,740 - - - -
- 16,598 - - 16,598 - - - -
- - 36,967 - 36,967 - - - -
- - - 133,000 133,000 - - - -
- - 72,496 - 72,496 - - - -
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13.2

December 31, 2019 (Un-Audited)

June 30, 2019 (Audited)

Active Conservative
Allocation Allocation
Plan Plan

Strategic
Allocation

Plan

Special
Income
Plan

Total

Active
Allocation
Plan

Conservative
Allocation
Plan

Strategic
Allocation
Plan

Total

Balances outstanding as at period / year end

HBL Asset Management Limited -

Management Company
Remuneration payable of the
Management Company - 1
Sindh Sales Tax payable on remuneration
of the Management Company - -
Allocation of expenses related to
registrar services, accounting,
operation and valuation services 13 9
Units held: Nil (June 30, 2019: 999,202) - -

Habib Bank Limited - Sponsor
Mark-up accrued - -
Bank balances 131 142

MCB Financial Services Limited - Trustee
Remuneration payable of the Trustee 6 4
Sindh Sales Tax payable on remuneration
of the Trustee 1 1

Patient Welfare Association - Connected Person
due to 10% holding
Units held: 400,000 (June 30, 2019: 400,000) - 45,059

Asif Nadeem Minhas - Connected Person
due to 10% holding

Units held: 99,074 (June 30, 2019: 104,477) 10,885 -

Safia Aziz Mirza - Connected Person
due to 10% holding
Units held: 149,247 (June 30, 2019: 149,247) 16,397 -

Shahida Saleem - Connected Person*
due to 10% holding
Units held: 48,606 - 5,475

Shazia Afshan Minhas - Connected Person
due to 10% holding
Units held: 188,343 (June 30, 2019: Nil) - -

HBL Income Fund -

CIS managed by the Management Company
Units held: 77,566 (June 30, 2019: 77,566) 8,688 -
Units held: Nil (June 30, 2019: 745,068) - -

HBL Stock Fund -

CIS managed by the Management Company
Units held: 419,114 (June 30, 2019: 468,065) 44,663 -
Units held: 101,439 (June 30, 2019: 141,765) - 10,810
Units held: Nil (June 30, 2019: 440,522) - -

HBL Cash Fund -

CIS managed by the Management Company
Units held: 244,733 (June 30, 2019: 502,169) 24,927 -
Units held: 1,729 (June 30, 2019: Nil) - 176
Units held: Nil (June 30, 2019: 177,043) - -
Units held: 46,656 (June 30, 2019: Nil) - -

HBL Money Market Fund -
CIS managed by the Management Company
Units held: 396,163 (June 30, 2019: 539,425) - 43,034

HBL Government Securities Fund -

CIS managed by the Management Company
Units held: Nil (June 30, 2019: 312,079) - -
Units held: 1,220,437 (June 30, 2019: Nil) - -

(Rupees in '000)
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11

26

74

87

11

19,456

137,621

12

48

74
580

21

45,059

10,885

16,397

5,475

19,456

8,688

44,663
10,810

24,927
176

4,752

43,034

137,621

1,283

10,133

14,475

8,227

42,046

50,616

*Comparative transactions / balances of these parties have not been disclosed as these parties were not related parties in the last period

41,531

12,735

55,087

14
98,954

28

13

79,030

39,572

17,845

33,012

(Rupees in '000) --------s=nmmemmmeemeenmeens

28
98,954

1,320

26

41,531

10,133

14,475

8,227
79,030

42,046
12,735
39,572

50,616

17,845

55,087

33,012
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14

FAIR VALUE AND CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. Consequently, differences can arise between carrying values and
the fair value estimates.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Fund is a going concern without any intention or
requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction on adverse terms.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities traded in active markets i.e. units of the mutual funds, are based on the
quoted NAVs at the close of the period end date. The quoted NAVs used for financial assets held by the Fund is current
bid price.

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from
an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

As per the requirements of IFRS 13 (Fair Value Measurements), the Fund classifies fair value measurements using a fair
value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has
the following levels:

- Fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1);

- Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) (level 2); and

- Fair value measurements using inputs for assets or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e.
unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their
levels in the fair value hierarchy.

December 31, 2019 (Un-Audited)
Active Allocation Plan

Carrying amount Fair value
Fair value
through Amortised Total Level1 Level2 Level3 Total
profit or cost
loss
Note (Rupees in '000)
Financial assets measured at fair value
Investments 78,278 - 78,278 78,278 - - 78,278
78,278 - 78,278 78,278 - - 78,278
Financial assets not measured at fair value 14.1
Bank balances - 142 142
- 142 142
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value 14.1
Payable to the Management Company - 13 13
Payable to the Trustee - 6 6
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - 60 60
- 79 79
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June 30, 2019 (Audited)
Active Allocation Plan

Carrying amount Fair value
Fair value
through ~ Amortised Total level1 Llevel2 Level3 Total
profit or cost
loss
Note (Rupees in '000)
Financial assets measured at fair value
Investments 100,890 - 100,890 100,890 - - 100,890
100,890 - 100,890 100,890 - - 100,890
Financial assets not measured at fair value 14.1
Bank balances - 1,293 1,293
- 1,293 1,293
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value 14.1
Payable to the Management Company - 11 11
Payable to the Trustee - 8 8
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - 93 93
- 112 112
December 31, 2019 (Un-Audited)
Conservative Allocation Plan
Carrying amount Fair value
Fair value
through ~ Amortised Total Level1 Level2 Level3 Total
profit or cost
Ince
Note (Rupees in '000)
Financial assets measured at fair value
Investments 54,020 - 54,020 54,020 - - 54,020
54,020 - 54,020 54,020 - - 54,020
Financial assets not measured at fair value 14.1
Bank balances - 165 165
- 165 165
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value 14.1
Payable to the Management Company - 10 10
Payable to the Trustee - 4 4
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - 55 55
- 69 69
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June 30, 2019 (Audited)
Conservative Allocation Plan

Carrying amount Fair Value
Fair value
through  Amortised
. Total Level1 Level2 Level3 Total
profit or cost
loss
Note (Rupees in '000)
Financial assets measured at fair value
Investments 67,822 - 67,822 67,822 - - 67,822
67,822 - 67,822 67,822 - - 67,822
Financial assets not measured at fair value 14.1
Bank balances - 31 31
- 31 31
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value 14.1
Payable to the Management Company - 6 6
Payable to the Trustee - 5 5
Payable against redemption of units - 1 1
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - 1,151 1,151
- 1,163 1,163
December 31, 2019 (Un-Audited)
Strategic Allocation Plan
Carrying amount Fair Value
Fair value
thro.ugh Amortised Total Level1 Level2 Level3 Total
profit or cost
loss
Note (Rupees in '000)
Financial assets measured at fair value
Investments - - - - - - -
Financial assets not measured at fair value 14.1
Bank balances - 233 233
- 233 233
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value 14.1
Payable against redemption of units - 11 11
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - 58 58
- 69 69
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June 30, 2019 (Audited)
Strategic Allocation Plan

Carrying amount Fair Value
Fair value
through  Amortised
. Total Level1 Level2 Level3 Total
profit or cost
loss
Note (Rupees in '000)
Financial assets measured at fair value
Investments 169,458 - 169,458 169,458 - - 169,458
169,458 - 169,458 169,458 - - 169,458
Financial assets not measured at fair value 14.1
Bank balances - 41 41
- 41 41
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value 14.1
Payable to the Management Company - 14 14
Payable to the Trustee - 13 13
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - 100 100
- 127 127
December 31, 2019 (Un-Audited)
Special Income Plan
Carrying amount Fair Value
Fair value
thro.ugh Amortised Total Levell Level2 Level3 Total
profit or cost
loss
Note (Rupees in '000)
Financial assets measured at fair value
Investments 142,373 - 142,373 142,373 - - 142,373
142,373 - 142,373 142,373 - - 142,373
Financial assets not measured at fair value 14.1
Bank balances - 12,211 12,211
Mark-up accrued - 74 74
- 12,285 12,285
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value 14.1
Payable to the Management Company - 37 37
Payable to the Trustee - 11 11
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - 30 30

- 78 78

14.1 The Fund has not disclosed the fair values for these financial assets and financial liabilities, as these are either short term
in nature or repriced periodically. Therefore, their carrying amounts are reasonable approximation of fair value.

14.2 Transfers during the period

No transfers were made between various levels of fair value hierarchy during the period.
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15 TOTAL EXPENSE RATIO
In accordance with the directive 23 of 2016, dated July 20, 2016, issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan, the total expense ratio for the half year ended December 31, 2019 is 0.64%, 0.50%, 0.13% and 0.22% (December
31, 2018: 0.26%, 0.32%, 0.36%), which includes 0.23%, 0.16%, 0.04% and 0.08% (December 31, 2018: 0.05%, 0.07%,
0.05%) representing government levy and SECP fee, of the Active Allocation Plan, Conservative Allocation Plan, Strategic
Allocation Plan and Special Income Plan, respectively.

16 DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE
This condensed interim financial information were authorized for issue on February 13, 2020 by the Board of Directors
of the Management Company.

17 GENERAL

17.1 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees, unless otherwise stated.

17.2 Corresponding figures have been arranged and reclassified, wherever necessary, for better presentation and disclosure,
the effect of which is not material.

For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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TRUSTEE REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS
HBL GROWITH FUND

Report of the Trustee pursuant to Regulation 41(h) of the Non-Banking Finance Companies
and Wotified Entities Resulations, 2008

We, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited. being the Trustee of HBL Growth Fund
ithe Fund) are of the opinion that HBL Assel Management Limited, being the Management
Company of the Fund has in all material respects managed the Fund during the six months period
ended December 31, 2019 in accordance with the provisions of the following:

i1 Limitations imposed on the investment powers of the Management Company under the
constitutive documents of the Fund;

{ii}  The pricing, issuance and redempiion of units arc carried out in accordance with the
requirements of the constiutive documents of the Fund; and

{iii)  The Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Reguolations) Rules, 2003,
the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulaiions. 2008 and the
constitutive documents of the Fund.

A A
Badiuddin Akber
Chief Executive Officer
Central Depository Company of Pakiswn Limited

Karachi, February 26, 2020
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Auditors’ report to the unit holders on review of
Condensed Interim Financial Information

Introduction

We have reviewed the accompanying condensed interim statement of assets and liabilities of HBL
Growth Fund (the Fund) as at December 31, 2019, and the related condensed interim income
statement, condensed interim statement of other comprehensive income, condensed interim statement of
movement in unit holders’ fund, condensed interim cash flow statement and notes to the condensed
interim financial information for the half year ended December 31, 2019 (here-in-after referred to as the
‘condensed interim financial information”). HBL Asset Management Limited (the Management
Company) is responsible for the preparation and presentation of this condensed interim financial
information in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim
financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on this condensed interim financial
information based on our review. The figures of the condensed interim income statement and condensed
interim statement of other comprehensive income, for the quarter ended December 31, 2019 have not
been reviewed, as we are required to review only the cumulative figures for the half year ended
December 31, 2019,

Scope of Review

We conducted our review in accordance with International Standard on Review Engagements 2410,
"Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity”. A review
of condensed interim financial information consists of making inquiries, primarily of persons responsible
for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review procedures. A review Is
substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all
significant matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

Conclusion

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying
condensed interim financial information is not prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with
approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim financial reporting.

Toleulle owsAdely

Chartered Acco nts

Engagement Partner
Hena Sadiq

Date: February 25, 2020
Place: Karachi

Mambaer of
Daloitte Touchs Tohmatsu Limited
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HBL Growth Fund

Condensed Interim Statement of Assets and Liabilities (Un-Audited)

As at December 31, 2019

Assets

Bank balances
Investments

Dividend receivable and accured mark-up
Receivable against sale of investment
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables

Total assets

Liabilities

Payable to the Management Company
Payable to the Trustee
Payable to the Securities and Exchange Commission

of Pakistan

Payable against purchase of investment
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Redemption payable

Unclaimed dividend

Total liabilities

Net assets

Unit holders' fund (as per statement attached)

Contingencies and commitments

Number of units in issue

Net assets value per unit

The annexed notes 1 to 14 form an integral part of this condensed interim financial information.

Chief Financial Officer

December 31, June 30,
2019 2019
(Un-Audited) (Audited)
Class A Class B Total Class A Class B Total
Note ---------ommeeemmememeaee (Rupees in '000)

4 138,902 842,251 981,153 127,708 786,197 913,905
5 6,221,780 2,123,998 8,345,777 4,556,990 4,101,848| 8,658,838
5,938 3,028 8,966 187,264 8,480 195,744

- 315,863 315,863 - - -
1,156 3,357 4,513 184 3,101 3,285
6,367,776 3,288,497 9,656,272 4,872,146 4,899,626 9,771,772
6 23,812 11,374 35,186 14910 13,538 28,448
706 373 1,079 561 578 1,139
497 321 818 6,017 4,876 10,893
- - - - 2,079 2,079
7 3,280 177,740 181,020 2,363 280,915 283,278

836,255 836,255
- 133,728 133728 - 134,158 134,158
28,295 1,159,792 1,188,086 23,851 436,144 459,995
6,339,481 2,128,705 8,468,186 4,848,295 4,463,482 9,311,777
6,339,481 2,128,705 8,468,186 4,848,295 4,463,482 9,311,777
8
----------------------- Number of units -----------------------
283,500,000 111,578,308 283,500,000 277,434,381
(Rupees)
22.3615 19.0781 17.1016 16.0884
For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL Growth Fund

Condensed Interim Income Statement (Un-Audited)
For the half year ended December 31, 2019

Half year ended Half year ended Quarter ended Quarter ended
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
Note 2019 2018 2019 2018
Class A Class B Total Class A Class B Total Class A Class B Total Class A Class B Total
-------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000)-------------s-swmememrmemmmmenenne
Income
Capital gain/(loss) on sale of investments - net 50 82,195 82,245 - (74,856 (74,856, 50 202,029 202,079 - (76,042 (76,042
Dividend income 114,020 81,670 195,690 95,017 116,346| | 211,363 114,020 43,923 157,943 95,017 58,479 153,496
Mark-up on deposits with banks 14,897 30,681 45,578 6,078 34,861 40,939 6,590 12,175 18,765 4,046 19,283 23,329
Mark-up on investments 4,030 2,503 6,533 - - - 4,030 2,503 6,533 - - -
Back end load - - - 4,571 4,571 - - - - 1,783 1,783
132,997 197,09 330,045 101,095 80,922 182,017 124,690 260,630 385,319 99,063 3,503 102,566
Unrealised (loss)/gain on re-measurement of investments
classified as financial asset at fair value through profit or loss - net (78) 256,677 256,599 - (611,234)  (611,234) (78) 449,709 449,631 - (518,433)  (518,433)

132,918 453,726 586,644 101,095  (530,312) (429,217) 124,611 710,339 834,950 99,063 (514,929)  (415,866)

Expenses
Remuneration of the Management Company 54,104 34,391 88,495 79,658 60,735| | 140,393 32,352 16,420 48,772 38,577 29,493 68,070
Remuneration of the Trustee 3,141 2,058 5,199 4,348 3,338 7,686 1,799 927 2,726 2,079 1,543 3,622
Annual fee to the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan 497 321 818 3,349 2,521 5,870 286 145 431 1,622 1,208 2,830
Allocation of expenses related to registrar services,
accounting, operation and valuation services 6,056 4,461 10,517 3,525 2,687 6,212 2,305 1,170 3,475 1,707 1,305 3,012
Selling and marketing expense 18,327 11,754 30,081 13,943 10,495 24,438 10,736 5,449 16,185 6,672 5,102 11,774
Settlement and bank charges 10 879 889 5 711 716 5 455 460 4 369 373
Auditors' remuneration 170 155 325 176 172 348 108 155 263 89 66 155
Fees and subscription 587 64 651 211 304 515 496 60 556 89 152 241
Conversion expense from closed end to open end fund - - - - 396 396 - - - - - -
Securities transaction charges - 9,808 9,808 - 5,389 5,389 - 5,183 5,183 - 3,591 3,591
82,892 63,891 146,783 105,215 86,748 191,963 48,087 29,964 78,051 50,839 42,829 93,668
Net Income/(loss) operating activities 50,026 389,835 439,861 (4,120)  (617,060) (621,180) 76,524 680,375 756,899 48,224 (557,758)  (509,534)
Element of income and capital gains included
in prices of units issued less those in units redeemed - net - - - - - - - - - - -
Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare fund 7.1 (1,001) (7,797) (8,797) - - - (1,001) (7,797) (8,797) - -
Net Income/(loss) for the period before taxation 49,026 382,038 431,064 (4,120)  (617,060) (621,180) 75,524 672,578 748,102 48,224 (557,758)  (509,534)
Taxation 9 - - - - - - - - - - -
Net Income/(loss) for the period after taxation 49,026 382,038 431,064 (4,120)  (617,060) (621,180) 75,524 672,578 748,102 48,224 (557,758)  (509,534)
Allocation of net income for the period:
Income already paid on redemption of units - 171,755 171,755 - - - - 171,755 171,755 - - -
Accounting income available for distribution:
- Relating to capital gains - 210,282 210,282 - - - - 500,823 500,823 - - -
- Excluding capital gains 49,026 - 49,026 - - - 75,524 - 75,524 - - -
49,026 210,283 259,309 - - - 75,524 500,823 576,347 - - -
49,026 382,038 431,064 (4,120) (617,060) (621,180) 75,524 672,578 748,102 48224 (557,758)  (509,534)

The annexed notes 1 to 14 form an integral part of this condensed interim financial information.

For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL Growth Fund

Condensed Interim Statement of Comprehensive Income (Un-Audited)
For the half year ended December 31, 2019

Half Year Ended Quarter Ended
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018 2019 2018
Class A Class B Total Class A Class B Total Class A ClassB  Total Class A Class B Total

B (11 1T 1| I 111 B

Net income/(loss) for the period after taxation 49,026 382,038 431,064 (4,120) (617,060) (621,180) 75,524 672,578 748,102 48,224  (557,758)  (509,534)
Items that will not be reclassified to income statement

Unrealised gain/(loss) on re-measurement of investments

classified as fair value through other comprehensive income 1,442,160 - 1,442,160 (1,137,694) - (1,137,694) 1,797,201 - 1,797,201 (1,037,751) - (1,037,751)

Total comprehensive loss for the period 1,491,186 382,038 1,873,224 (1,141,814)  (617,060) (1,758,874) 1,872,725 672,578 2,545,303 (989,527) (557,758) (1,547,285)

The annexed notes 1 to 14 form an integral part of this condensed interim financial information.

For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL Growth Fund

Condensed Interim Statement of Movement in Unitholders’ Fund (Un-Audited)
For the half year ended December 31, 2019

2019 2018
Class A Class B Class A Class B
Capital Unrealized | Premium on Capital | Undistrit Cavital | Undistribute |1 Unrea\llzed\ Premium on| Canital | Undistribut
apita Income/(loss| issue of Total api Total apita ndistribute | Income/Hloss)) jcqyje of Total apita ndistribute | ot
value d o value d Value on N value
on Investmen|  certificates certificates
Income Income Income Income
(Rupees)
Net assets at beginning of the period 2,835,000 (3,131,131) 3,136,614 2,007,812 4,848,295 2,720,611 1,742,871 4,463,482 2,835000 1,226,556 5,621,904 2,992,500 12,675,960 - -
Transfer from premium on issue of certificates [ | - ] - ] - ] [ - ] [ -l - | 984,688] [ (984,688)] | -] -] -]
B B . B B 984,688 (984,638) _ B
Issue of 283,500,000 Class B units at the time of conversion - - - - - (5,443,546) (5,443,546) 2,835,000 2,608,546 5,443,546
Issue of 1,488,105 units (2018 :1,189,511 units)
- Capital value (at net asset value per unit at the beginning of the period) - - - 23,941 - 23,941 - - 22,601 22,601
- Element of loss - - - - (274) - (274) - - (43) 43)
Total proceeds on issuance of units - - - - 23,667 - 23,667 - - 22,558 22,558
Redemption of 167,344,178 units (2018 :3,493,796 units)
- Capital value (at net asset value per unit at the beginning of the period) - - - - (2,692,300)| (2,692,300) 66,382 66,382
- Amount paid out of element of income - - B - - - - - (133,332) (133,332)
Relating to net income for the year after taxation 123,573 | (171,755) (48,182) - -
Total payment on redemption of units - - - (2,568,727)  (171,755) (2,740,482) ~ - i - (66,950) (66,950]
Income available for distribution 49,026 | 1,442,160 - | 1,491,186 - 382,038 382,038 - (4,120)] (1,137,694) (1,141,814 (617,060)(  (617,060))
Distribution during the year period - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Net Income for the period less distribution 49,026 1,442,160 1,491,186 - 382,038 382,038 (4,120)  (1,137,694) (1,141,814) (617,060)  (617,060)
Net assets at end of the period 2,835,000 (3,082,105) 4,578,774 2,007,812 6,339,481 175551 1,953,154 2,128,705 2,835,000 (3,236,422) 4,484,210 2,007,812 6,090,600 (44,392) 1,991,486 4,782,094
Undistributed loss brought forward
- Realised (3,131,131) 1,742,871 1,518,756
- Unrealised - - (292,200)
(3131,131) 1,742,871 1,226,556
Transfer from premium on issue of certificates - 984,688
Transferred to Class B - Segment on conversion of Fund - (5,443,546) 2,608,546
Accounting income available for distribution:
- Relating to capital gains - 210,282
- Excluding capital gains R
Net Income/(loss) available for distribution 49,026 210,282 (4,120) (617,060)
Distribution during the period -
(3,082,105)
(Accumulated loss) / Undistributed income carried forward
- Realised (3,082,105) 1,696,477 (3,236,422) 2,602,720
- Unrealised - 256,677 - (611,234)
(Rupees)
Net assets value per unit at beginning of the period 17.1016 16.0884 25,5112 19.2012
Net assets value per unit at end of the period 22.3615 19,0781 21.4836 17.0063
The annexed notes 1 to 14 form an integral part of this condensed interim financial informatic
NOTE: Consequent to the conversion of the Fund from a closed-end scheme to an open-end scheme with effect from July 02, 2018, the comparative figures disclosed above have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of Schedule V of the Non-Banking Finance
Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 as applicable to an open-end scheme.
o e
For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
. . . . . .
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL Growth Fund

Condensed Interim Statement of Cash Flow (Un- Audited)

For the half year ended December 31, 2019

Note
Cash flow from operating activities
Net Income/(loss) for the period before taxation
Adjustments of non-cash items

Capital gain on sale of investments - net
Unrealised gain/(loss) on remeasurement of investments
classified as financial asset at fair value through profit or loss - net
Dividend income
Income on Government securities
Mark-up on deposits with banks

(Increase) / Decrease in assets
Investments

Receivable against sale of investments
Security deposits

Increase / (decrease) in liabilities

Payable to Management Company

Payable to Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee
Payable to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
Payable against purchase of investment

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Redemption payable

Unclaimed dividend

Cash (used in) / generated from operations

Dividend received
Mark-up received on bank deposit

Net cash generated from operating activities
Cash flow from financing activities

Amount received on issue of units

Amount paid on redemption of units
Dividend paid

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period 4

The annexed notes 1 to 14 form an integral part of this condensed interim financial information.

2019 2018
Class A Class B Total Class A Class B Total
(Rupees in '000)
49,026 382,038 431,064 (4,120) (617,060) (621,180)
(50) (82,195) (82,245) - 74,856 74,856
78 (256,677) (256,599) - 611,234 611,234
(114,020) (81,670) (195,690) (95,017) (116,346) (211,363)
(4,030) (2,503) (6,533)
(14,897) (30,681) (45,578) (6,078) (34,861) (40,939)
(83,893) (71,688) (155,580) (105,215) (82,177) (187,392)
(218,628) 2,319,225 2,100,597 - (26,472) (26,472)
- (315,863) (315,863)
(972) (256) (1,228) (1,687) (415) (2,102)
(219,600) 2,003,106 1,783,506 (1,687) (26,887) (28,574)
8,902 (2,164) 6,738 19,617 (9,645) 9,972
145 (205) (60) 708 (146) 562
(5,520) (4,555) (10,075) 3,349 (9,876) (6,527)
- (2,079) (2,079) - 92,547 92,547
917 (103,175) (102,258) 229 (1,775) (1,546)
836,255 836,255
- (430) (430) - (790) (790)
4,444 723,648 728,091 23,903 70,315 94,218
(299,049) 2,655,066 2,356,017 (82,999) (38,749) (121,748)
296,015 84,566 380,581 282,776 118,676 401,452
14,228 33,237 47,465 4,227 32,656 36,883
310,243 117,803 428,046 287,003 151,332 438,335
11,194 2,772,869 2,784,063 204,004 112,583 316,587
- 23,667 23,667 - 22,558 22,558
- (2,740,482) | | (2,740,482) - (66,950) (66,950)
- (2,716,815)  (2,716,815) - (44,392) (44,392)
11,194 56,054 67,248 204,004 68,191 272,195
127,708 786,197 913,905 - 729,178 729,178
138,902 842,251 981,153 204,004 797,369 1,001,373
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HBL Growth Fund

Notes to the Condensed Interim Financial Information (Unaudited)
For the half year ended December 31, 2019

1.

1.1

1.2

1.3

14

1.5

1.6

2.1

2.1.1

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

HBL Growth Fund was established under a Trust Deed, HBL Asset Management Limited as the Management Company and
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited as the Trustee.

The Management Company of the Fund has been registered as a Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC) under the NBFC
Rules, 2003 and has obtained the requisite license from the SECP to undertake Asset Management Services. The
registered office of the Management Company is located at 7th Floor, Emerald Tower, G-19, Block 5, Main Clifton Road,
Clifton, Karachi.

The objective of the Fund is to maximize the wealth of the unit holders by investing primarily in listed equities in the best
available opportunities, while considering acceptable risk parameters and applicable rules and regulations.

As per Regulation 65 of the NBFC Regulations, all closed end funds were required to converted into open end schemes
upon expiry of five years from November 21, 2007 i.e. by November 21, 2012. However, closed end funds whose
portfolios were frozen as a result of Consent Agreements with Government of Pakistan were allowed to be converted into
open end schemes within three months from the date of the removal of the freezing of the portfolios. Since the Fund has
Frozen Portfolio comprising shares of Pakistan State Oil Company Limited and Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited, its
conversion into an open end scheme was deferred.

The Board of the Management Company (HBL Asset Management Limited) of the Fund in its meeting held on November
23, 2017 approved the Conversion Plan (the Plan) of the fund for the conversion of the Fund into an Open End Scheme,
with the approval of the Certificate Holders of the Fund to fulfill the requirements of the merger order dated August 31,
2016. For this purpose, the Plan was presented to and approved by the Certificate Holders of the Fund in its General
Meeting dated January 10, 2018. The Plan was also approved by Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (the
Commission) on February 16, 2018.

The Replacement Trust Deed and Replacement Offering Document were approved by SECP vide its letter no.
SCD/AMCWY/HIF/339/2018 dated April 18, 2018 and letter no. SCD/AMCW/HIF/398/2018 dated June 7, 2018 respectively.
As per the approved Plan, the conversion took place on July 2, 2018 and every Certificate Holder of the closed end fund

was entitled to following for each certificate held:

- One Class-A Unit of the Fund was issued to every Certificate Holders of Fund for each certificate held representing
Frozen Portfolio and related assets and liabilities.

- One Class-B Unit of the Fund was issued to the every Certificate Holder of Fund for each certificate held representing
Unfrozen Portfolio and related assets and liabilities.

The Plan also envisages that Class-A Units would not be redeemable and would be traded on the Pakistan Stock Exchange.
Whereas Class-B Units can be redeemed at the redemption price.

VIS Credit Rating Company has assigned an asset manager rating of 'AM2+' (Positive outlook) to the Management
Company.

Title to the assets of the Fund is held in the name of Central Depository Company Limited as trustee of the Fund.
BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance

This condensed interim financial information have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRSs") issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ( IASB )
as are notified under the Companies Act, 2017;
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2.1.2

2.1.3

2.2

2.3

3.1

3.2

33

3.4

- Provisions of and directies issued under the Companies Act, 2017 along with part VIII A of te repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984; and

- Non-Banking Finance Companies ( Establisment and Regulations ) Rules, 2003 ( the NBFC Rules ), Non Banking Finance
Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the "NBFC Regulations") and requirements of the Trust Deed.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations and requirements of the Trust Deed differ from the IFRS
Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations and requirements of the Trust Deed have been followed.

The disclosures made in this condensed interim financial information have, however, been limited based on the
requirements of IAS - 34. This condensed interim financial information does not include all the information and
disclosures required in a full set of financial statements and should be read in conjunction with the annual published
audited financial statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2019.

In compliance with Schedule V of the NBFC Regulations, the directors of the Management Company hereby declare that
the condensed interim financial information gives a true and fair view of the state of the Fund’s affairs as at December 31,
2019.

Basis of measurement

This condensed interim financial information has been prepared under the historical cost convention, except that certain
financial assets are stated at fair value.

FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY

This condensed interim financial information is presented in Pakistani Rupees which is the Fund's functional and
presentation currency.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING AND RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES, ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, JUDGEMENT AND CHANGES
THEREIN

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of this condensed interim financial information are consistent with
those applied in the preparation of the annual audited financial statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2019.

The preparation of this condensed interim financial information in conformity with the approved accounting standards
requires the management to make estimates, judgements and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. It also requires the management to exercise judgement in application of its accounting
policies. The estimates, judgements and associated assumptions are based on the historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimates are revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The significant judgments made by management in applying its accounting policies and the key sources of estimation
uncertainty were the same as those applied to the annual audited financial statements of the Fund for the year ended
June 30, 2019.

There are certain new and amended standards, interpretations and amendments that are mandatory for the Fund's
accounting periods beginning on or after July 01, 2019 but are considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant
effect on the Fund's operations and therefore not detailed in the condensed interim financial information.
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(Unaudited) (Audited)

December 31, June 30,
2019 2019
Class A Class B Total Class A Class B Total

(Rupees in '000)
BANK BALANCES

Balances with banks in:
Savings account 138,902 842,251 981,153 127,708 786,197 913,905

This represents bank accounts held with different banks. Mark-up rates on these accounts range between 11.0% to 14.05%
p.a (June 30, 2019: 5.35% - 13.50% p.a).

(Unaudited) (Audited)
December 31, June 30,
2019 2018
Class A Class B Total Class A Class B Total
Note e (Rupees in '000) -----------====-------
INVESTMENTS
At fair value through profit or loss
- Listed equity securities 5.1 - 2,123,998 2,123,998 - 4,101,848 4,101,848
- Government securities 5.2 222,630 - 222,630 - - -
At fair value through other comprehensive income
- Listed equity securities 5.3 5,999,150 - 5,999,150 4,556,990 - 4,556,990

6,221,780 2,123,998 8,345,777 4,556,990 4,101,848 8,658,838

Listed equity securities - At fair value through profit and loss

Shares of listed companies - fully paid up ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each unless stated otherwise

Balance as
Number of shares at December Percentage in relation to
31,2019
Name of the Investee Compan
Py As at Purchases Bonus / Sales As at “c:::t A Nit £ 1 T(:tal ¢ I:vt.e:tee
July 1, during the Rights during the December (Rupees in t::efusn: nvestments C:;)i::japl
2019 period issue period 31, 2019
'000)
CLASS B
INSURANCE
TPL Insurance Limited 1,695 750,000 - - 751,695 19,296 0.91% 0.91% 0.22%
Adamjee Insurance Limited 1,221,500 309,000 - 768,500 762,000 32,073 1.51% 1.51% 1.00%
1,223,195 1,059,000 - 768,500 1,513,695 51,369
TEXTILE COMPOSITE
GulAhmed Textile Mills Limited - 1,451,000 - 589,000 862,000 37,161 1.75% 1.75% 0.24%
Interloop Limited 1,578,415 329,000 - 1,404,500 502,915 29,194 1.37% 1.37% 5.78%
Kohinoor Textile Mills Limited 714,500 - - 714,500 - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Nishat Mills Limited 1,031,900 745,500 - 1,373,700 403,700 42,849 2.01% 2.02% 0.11%
3,324,815 2,525,500 - 4,081,700 1,768,615 109,204
CEMENT
Kohat Cement Limited 382,500 106,000 - 357,000 131,500 10,178 0.48% 0.48% 0.10%
Lucky Cement Limited 298,800 202,100 - 301,800 199,100 85,294 4.01% 4.02% 0.06%
Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited - 1,900,000 - 1,900,000 - - 0.00% 0.00%
681,300 2,208,100 - 2,558,800 330,600 95,473
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Name of the Investee Company

POWER GENERATION & DISTRIBUTION
Hub Power Company Limited
K-Electric Limited

Nishat Chunian Power Limited

Pakgen Power Limited

ENGINEERING

Aisha Steel Mills Limited - Pref. Shares
Aisha Steel Mills Limited. - Conv. Cum.
Pref. Shares

International Steels Limited

TRANSPORT
Pakistan National Shipping Corporation
Limited

PHARMACEUTICALS

AGP Limited

Highnoon Laboratories Limited
The Searle Company Limited

PAPER & BOARD
Century Paper & Board Mills Limited

GLASS & CERAMICS
Tariq Glass Industries Limited

OIL & GAS EXPLORATION COMPANIES
Mari Petroleum Company Limited

Oil & Gas Development Company Limited
Pakistan Oilfields Limited

Pakistan Petroleum Limited

OIL & GAS MARKETING COMPANIES
Pakistan State Oil Company Limited
Sui Northern Gas Pipeline Limited

COMMERCIAL BANKS

Allied Bank Limited

Bank Al-Falah Limited

Bank Al-Habib Limited

Bank of Punjab Limited

Faysal Bank Limited

Habib Bank Limited*

MCB Bank Limited

National Bank of Pakistan Limited
United Bank Limited

FERTILIZER

Engro Corporation Limited
Engro Fertilizers Limited

Fauji Fertilizer Company Limited

Number of shares

Balance as
at December

Percentage in relation to

31, 2019
Market
As at Purchases Bonus / Sales As at value A N:t i 1 T:tal " I:v?stee
July 1, during the Rights during the | December (Rupees in tzsef s (; nvestments Cal :pl
2019 period issue period 31, 2019 .p € fun apita
000)
3,419,856 647,500 - 2,800,500 1,266,856 118,261 5.56% 5.57% 0.10%
10,610,500 1,050,000 - 6,485,000 5,175,500 22,617 1.06% 1.06% 0.02%
1,101,000 - - 1,101,000 - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
1,600,000 50,000 - 1,650,000 - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
16,731,356 1,747,500 - 12,036,500 6,442,356 140,878
257,327 - - - 257,327 2,831 0.13% 0.13% 0.58%
1,628,663 - - - 1,628,663 70,033 3.29% 3.30% 55.94%
- 323,000 - 233,000 90,000 5,210 0.24% 0.25% 0.02%
1,885,990 323,000 - 233,000 1,975,990 78,073
140,500 259,500 - 76,000 324,000 30,433 1.43% 1.43% 0.25%
140,500 259,500 - 76,000 324,000 30,433
400,000 221,000 - 406,500 214,500 21,311 1.00% 1.00% 0.01%
32,000 69,000 - 40,500 60,500 32,504 1.53% 1.53% 0.01%
147,853 121,000 - 157,000 111,853 21,111 0.99% 0.99% 0.06%
579,853 411,000 - 604,000 386,853 74,926
294,000 125,000 - 174,500 244,500 12,391 0.58% 0.58% 0.17%
294,000 125,000 - 174,500 244,500 12,391
- 124,500 - 124,500 - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
- 124,500 - 124,500 - -
280,214 23,500 15,839 231,040 88,513 115,961 5.45% 5.46% 0.08%
2,478,100 449,500 - 1,872,100 1,055,500 150,219 7.06% 7.07% 0.02%
453,460 77,200 - 364,600 166,060 74,182 3.48% 3.49% 0.07%
1,697,730 1,062,500 222,606 1,975,700 1,007,136 138,119 6.49% 6.50% 0.05%
4,909,504 1,612,700 238,445 4,443,440 2,317,209 478,481
924,280 381,000 97,776 1,069,600 333,456 63,904 3.00% 3.01% 0.10%
921,700 255,000 - 623,500 553,200 42,137 1.98% 1.98% 0.09%
1,845,980 636,000 97,776 1,693,100 886,656 106,041
1,392,300 159,800 - 1,024,400 527,700 50,448 2.37% 2.38% 0.05%
5,190,550 1,433,000 - 3,420,000 3,203,550 146,402 6.88% 6.89% 0.20%
1,976,000 797,500 - 1,663,500 1,110,000 84,538 3.97% 3.98% 0.10%
9,620,500 4,035,000 - 8,803,000 4,852,500 54,979 2.58% 2.59% 0.92%
25,250 - - - 25,250 480 0.02% 0.02% 0.00%
1,925,500 555,500 - 2,144,500 336,500 52,972 2.49% 2.49% 0.02%
651,700 360,900 - 808,800 203,800 41,767 1.96% 1.97% 0.02%
987,000 1,762,000 - 1,402,000 1,347,000 58,325 2.74% 2.75% 0.06%
1,214,900 439,000 - 951,700 702,200 115,512 5.43% 5.44% 0.06%
22,983,700 9,542,700 - 20,217,900 12,308,500 605,423
1,026,770 191,500 - 892,400 325,870 112,507 5.29% 5.30% 0.06%
2,237,000 776,000 - 2,280,000 733,000 53,824 2.53% 2.53% 0.05%
1,466,500 807,500 - 1,864,000 410,000 41,603 1.95% 1.96% 0.03%
4,730,270 1,775,000 - 5,036,400 1,468,870 207,934
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5.1.1

5.1.2

Balance as
Number of shares at December Percentage in relation to
31, 2019
Name of the Investee Compan
pany Market Net Total Investee

As at Purchases Bonus / Sales As at value Assets of | 1 " . Paid

July 1, during the Rights during the December (Rupees in tt?sef s : nvestments Cal :pl

2019 period issue period 31, 2019 'p € fun apita

000)

CHEMICAL
Engro Polymer & Chemicals Limited 3,299,199 2,152,000 - 3,857,500 1,593,699 52,927 2.49% 2.49% 0.18%
Lotte Chemical Pakistan Limited 1,476,000 2,396,500 - 3,872,500 B - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Sitara Chemical Industries Limited 28,200 67,400 - 5,000 90,600 27,040 1.27% 1.27% 0.42%

4,803,399 4,615,900 - 7,735,000 1,684,299 79,967
AUTOMOBILE PARTS & ACCESSORIES
Thal Limited 416,600 74,300 - 333,000 157,900 53,407 2.51% 2.51% 0.19%

416,600 74,300 - 333,000 157,900 53,407
TECHNOLOGY & COMMUNICATION
Systems Limited - 50,000 - 50,000 - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
- 50,000 - 50,000 - -

Total as at December 31, 2019 (Unaudited) 64,550,462 27,089,700 336,221 60,166,340 31,810,043 2,123,998
Total as at June 30, 2019 (Audited) 57,003,556 57,051,202 1,093,752 50,598,058 64,550,462 4,101,848

Cost at December 31, 2019 1,867,320
*Sponsor of the Management Company

These investments includes shares having market value of 308.774 million (2019: 292.264 million) have been pledged
with National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited (NCCPL) as collateral against trading facility in the Pakistan Stock
Exchange.

These investments include gross bonus shares as per Fund's entitlement declared by the investee companies. Finance
Act, 2014 has brought amendments in the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 whereby the bonus shares received by the
shareholder are to be treated as income and a tax at the rate of 5% is to be applied on value of bonus shares determined
on the basis of day end price on the first day of closure of books. The tax is to be collected at source by the investee
company which shall be considered as final discharge of tax liability on such income. However, the Management Company
of the Fund jointly with other asset management companies and Mutual Fund Association of Pakistan (MUFAP), has filed
a petition in Sindh High Court to declare the amendments brought in Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 with reference to tax
on bonus shares for collective investment schemes as null and void and not applicable on the funds based on the premise
of exemption given to mutual funds under Clause 99 of Part | of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.
The Sindh High Court has granted stay order till the final outcome of the case. However, the investee company(s) has
withheld the share equivalent to 5% of bonus announcement of the Fund having aggregate fair market value of Rs. 0.929
million at December 31, 2019 (June 30, 2019: Rs. 0.839 million) and not yet deposited on CDC account of department of
Income tax. Management is of the view that the decision will be in the favor and accordingly has recorded the bonus
shares on gross basis at fair value in its investments at period end.
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5.2

5.3

5.2.1

Investment in government securities - 'at fair value through profit or loss'

Class A
Face value Market
Market
Purch As at value as at value as a
urchases
As at . Sales / matured during the | December 31, December
Issue date Tenor during the . percentage
July 01, eriod period 2019 31, of total
2019 F()'000) (000) (‘000) 2019 investments
('000)
--------- Rupeesin'000'---------
24-Oct-19 3 months - 225,000 225,000 - -
07-Nov-19 3 months - 225,000 - 225,000 222,630 3.58%
Total as at December 31, 2019 } 450,000 225,000 225,000 222,630
Carrying value as at '‘December 31, 2019 222,708
Class B
24-Oct-19 3 months - 175,000 175,000 - - -
07-Nov-19 3 months - 145,000 145,000 - - -
Total as at December 31, 2019 } 320,000 320,000 } }
Carrying value as at 'December 31, 2019 -
Listed equity securities - At fair value through other comprehensive income
Balance as
Number of shares at 31 Percentage in Relation to
december
Name of the Investee Company purchases ) As at Market Investee
As atJuly 1, . Bonus / |Sales during Value Net Assets Total .
2019 during the Rights i th iod December R ) fthe fund | 1 " " Paid up
period Ights Issue € perio 31’ 2019 ( upeesin | O e Tun nvestments Capital
'000)
CLASS A
Oil and Gas Marketing Companies
Pakistan State Oil Company Limited 22,804,087 4,560,817 - 27,364,904 5,244,210 82.72% 84.29% 8.39%
Sui Northern Gas Pipeline Limited 9,911,246 - - 9,911,246 754,940 11.91% 12.13% 1.56%
Total December 31, 2019 (Unaudited) 32,715,333 4,560,817 - 37,276,150 5,999,150
Total June 30, 2019 (Audited) 28,914,652 3,800,681 - 32,715,333 4,556,990
Cost at 31 December 2019 1,420,375

The above mentioned shares of Pakistan State Oil Company Limited and Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited are blocked /
frozen by an order of the Government of Pakistan (GoP) as the same form part of a strategic shareholding under the
control of the GoP. As a result, the Fund is restricted from selling, transferring, encumbering or otherwise disposing of or
dealing with any interest in the said shares, including any future bonus / right shares in respect thereof. Consequently, the
exposure limit mentioned in regulation 55 of the NBFC Regulations, does not apply to the above frozen shares.
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5.2.2

7.1

These investments include gross bonus shares as per Fund's entitlement declared by the investee companies. Finance
Act, 2014 has brought amendments in the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 whereby the bonus shares received by the
shareholder are to be treated as income and a tax at the rate of 5% is to be applied on value of bonus shares determined
on the basis of day end price on the first day of closure of books. The tax is to be collected at source by the investee
company which shall be considered as final discharge of tax liability on such income. However, the Management Company
of the Fund jointly with other asset management companies and Mutual Fund Association of Pakistan (MUFAP), has filed
a petition in Sindh High Court to declare the amendments brought in Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 with reference to tax
on bonus shares for collective investment schemes as null and void and not applicable on the funds based on the premise
of exemption given to mutual funds under Clause 99 of Part | of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.
The Sindh High Court has granted stay order till the final outcome of the case. However, the investee company(s) has
withheld the share equivalent to 5% of bonus announcement of the Fund having aggregate fair market value of Rs. 43.701
million at December 31, 2019 (June 30, 2019: Rs. 32.325) and not yet deposited on CDC account of department of Income
tax. Management is of the view that the decision will be in the favor and accordingly has recorded the bonus shares on
gross basis at fair value in its investments at period end.

(Unaudited) (Audited)
December 31, June 30,
2019 2019
Class A Class B Total Class A Class B Total

--------------------- (Rupees in '000) ---------=---====mmnn-

PAYABLE TO MANAGEMENT COMPANY

Management fee 10,802 4,894 15,696 8,284 7,524 15,808
Sindh sales tax 1,404 636 2,040 1,077 978 2,055
Sale load payable - 1 - - -
Allocation of expenses relating to registrar services, accounting,
operation and valuation services 870 394 1,264 414 376 790
Selling and marketing expenses 10,736 5,449 16,185 5,135 4,660 9,795
23,812 11,374 35,185 14,910 13,538 28,448
ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES
Note Class - A Class - B Total Class-A Class B Total
Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund 7.1 3,065 48,572 51,637 2,065 40,775 42,840
Provision for Federal Excise Duty
Sales tax on Management Fee 7.2 - 125,303 125,303 - 125,303 125,303
Brokerage - 2,378 2,378 - 624 624
Auditors' remuneration 190 129 319 258 194 452
National Clearing Company Pakistan Limited Charges 112 112 - 45 45
Withholding tax 14 242 256 12 54 66
Payable to Class A - - - - 113,070 113,070
Others 11 1,005 1,016 28 850 878
3,280 177,740 181,021 2,363 280,915 283,278

PROVISION FOR SINDH WORKERS' WELFARE FUND

The legal status of applicability of Workers' Welfare Fund and Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund (SWWF) is same as that
disclosed in note 12.2 to the annual audited financial statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2019.

In the wake of the aforesaid developments, being prudent, the Fund has recognised provision for SWWF amounting to Rs.
3.065 million for class A and Rs 48.572 million for Class B (June 30, 2019 Rs 2.065 million of Class A and Rs. 40.775 million
for Class B) in this condensed interim financial information. Had the provision not been made, net asset value per unit at
December 31, 2019 would have been higher by Re. 0.0108 and Re 0.435 for Class A and Class B (June 30, 2019 Re. 0.007
and 0.147 for Class A and B respectively) per unit.
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FEDERAL EXERCISE DUTY

The legal status of applicability of Federal Excise Duty on the Fund is same as that disclosed in note 12.1 to the annual
audited financial statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the appeal filed by tax authorities against
the order passed by Supreme Court of Pakistan dated July 16, 2016, is pending for decision.

The Management Company, as a matter of abundant caution, has made a provision on FED on remuneration of
Management Company, aggregating to Rs. 125.303 million (June 30, 2019: Rs. 125.303 million). Had the provision not
been made, the Net Asset Value per unit of Class-B as at December 31, 2019 would have been higher by Re. 1.1230 (June
30, 2019: Re. 0.452 ) per unit.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
There were no contingencies or commitments outstanding as at December 31, 2019 and as at June 30, 2019.
TAXATION

The Fund's income is exempt from tax under clause 99 of Part 1 of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance,
2001, subject to the condition that not less than 90 percent of its accounting income for the year, as reduced by the
capital gains whether realised or unrealised, is distributed among its unit holders in cash.The fund is also exempt from the
provision of Section 113 (minimum tax) under the Clause 11A of part IV of the second schedule to the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001. The Fund has not recorded a tax liability in respect of income relating to the current period as the
Management Company intends to distribute more than 90 percent of the Fund's accounting income for the period as
reduced by capital gains (whether realised or unrealised) to its unit holders.

TOTAL EXPENSES RATIO

In accordance with the directive 23 of 2016 dated July 20, 2016 issued by the SECP, the total expense ratio for the half year
ended December 31, 2019 is 1.70% and 2.25% which includes 0.16% and 0.43% representing government levy, and SECP
fee of the Class A and Class B respectively. (2018: 1.50% and 1.63% which includes 0.18% and 0.20% representing
government levy, and SECP fee of the Class A and Class B respectively

TRANSACTION AND BALANCES WITH CONNECTED PERSONS

Connected persons include HBL Asset Management Limited being the Management Company, Habib Bank Limited being
the Sponsor, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, being the Trustee of the Fund, other collective investment
schemes managed by the Management Company, directors and officers of the Management Company directors of

connected persons and persons having 10% or more beneficial ownership of the units of the Fund.

Remuneration payable to Management Company and Trustee is determined in accordance with the provisions of the
NBFC Regulations and the Trust Deed respectively.

Details of the transactions with connected persons and balances with them are as follows:

Half Year Ended Half Year Ended
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Class A Class B Total Class A Class B Total
Transactions during the period e (Rupees in '000) ------------=-===--=--
HBL Asset Management Limited - Management Company
Remuneration of the Management Company 47,880 30,435 78,314 70,494 53,748 124,242
Sales tax on remuneration of the management company 6,224 3,956 10,181 9,164 6,987 16,151
Allocation of expenses related to registrar services,
accounting, operation and valuation services 6,056 4,461 10,517 3,525 2,687 6,212
Selling and marketing expense 18,327 11,754 30,081 13,943 10,495 24,438
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Habib Bank Limited - Sponsor

Dividend income

Mark-up on deposits with banks

Bank charges

MCB Bank Limited- Connected person
- due to holding more than 10% Units

Mark-up on deposits with banks

Bank charges
Dividend income

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited-Trustee

Trustee Fee
Annual Listing Fee
CDS Charges

Pension Reserves Investment Trust Fund
Redemption of 36,096,714 units (2018: Nil Units)

Pakistan Reinsurance Company Limited - Connected person

- due to holding more than 10% certificate
Redemption of 15,406,721 units (2018: Nil Units)

Balances at period end

HBL Asset Management Company Limited - Management Company

Payable to Management Company

Sindh sales tax on remuneration of Management Company

Allocation of expenses relating to registrar services, accounting,
operation and valuation services

Selling and marketing expense payable

Habib Bank Limited - Sponsor
Banks Balances- savings accounts

MCB Bank Limited- Connected person
- due to holding more than 10% units

Banks Balance - savings account

Mark-up Receivable

Units held: 43,482,858 Units (June 2019: 43,482,858 Units)
Units held: Nil Units (June 2019: 43,482,858 Units)

Pakistan Reinsurance Company Limited - Connected person
- due to holding more than 10% units

Units held: 30,406,721 Units (June 2019: 30,406,721 Units)
Units held: 15,000,000 Units (June 2019: 30,406,721 Units)

Half Year Ended Half Year Ended
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Class A Class B Total Class A Class B Total
---------------------- (Rupees in '000) -------------=--------
- 2,990 2,990 - 1,646 1,646
- 77 77 - 29 29
- 1 1 - - -
9 - 9 2,438 6,142 8,580
1 - 1 5 10 15
. - - - 5,645 5,645
3,141 2,058 5,199 4,348 3,338 7,686
329 64 393 174 304 477
- 353 353 - 335 335
- 519,879 519,879 - - -
- 277,028 277,028 - - -
December 31, June 30,
2019 2019
(Un-Audited) (Audited)
ClassA  ClassB Total ClassA  Class B Total
---------------------- (Rupees in '000) ------------==--------
10,802 4,894 15,696 8,284 7,524 15,808
1,404 636 2,040 1,077 978 2,055
870 394 1,264 414 376 790
10,736 5,449 16,185 5,135 4,660 9,795
- 1,432 1,432 - 1,366 1,366
184 - 184 175 333,226 333,401
- - - - 1,256 1,256
434,829 - 434,829 434,829 - 434,829
- - - - 699,571 699,571
304,067 304,067 304,067 - 304,067
- 286,172 286,172 - 489,196 489,196

226



December 31, June 30,

2018 2018
(Un-Audited) (Audited)
Class A Class B Total Class A Class B Total

---------------------- (Rupees in '000) ----------===-===-==--

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee

Trustee remuneration payable 706 373 1,079 561 518 1,079
Security deposit with trustee 100 175 275 100 175 275
CDS charges payable - 66 66 - 60 60

Jubilee General Insurance Company Limited - associate

Units held: 142,500 Units (June 2019: 142,500 Units) 1,425 - 1,425 1,425 - 1,425
Units held: 142,500 Units (June 2019: 142,500 Units) - 2,719 2,719 - 2,293 2,293
Directors and Executives of the Management Company

Units held: 18,000 Units (June 2019: 18,000 Units) 180 - 180 180 - 180
Units held: 18,000 Units (June 2019: 18,000 Units) - 306 306 - 290 290

12. Fair Value Of Financial Instruments

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. Consequently, differences can arise between carrying values and
the fair value estimates.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Fund is a going concern without any intention or
requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction on adverse terms.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities traded in active markets i.e. listed equity shares are based on the quoted
market prices at the close of trading on the period end date. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the
Fund is current bid price.

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from
an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

IFRS 13, 'Fair Value Measurements: Disclosures' requires the Fund to classify fair value measurements using a fair value
hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the
following levels:

- Fair value measurements using quoted price (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1)
- Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that
is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

- Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their
levels in the fair value hierarchy.
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On-balance sheet financial instruments

Financial assets measured at fair value

Investment in listed equity securities
Investment in government securities

Financial assets not measured at fair value
Bank balances

Dividend and profit receivable

Security Deposit

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value

Payable to Management Company

Payable to trustee

Payable to Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
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On-balance sheet financial instruments
Financial assets measured at fair value

Investment in listed equity securities

Financial assets not measured at fair value

Bank balances
Dividend and profit receivable
Security Deposit

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value

Payable to Management Company

Payable to trustee

Payable to Securities and Exchange Commission Of Pakistan
Accrued expenses and other liabilities

On-balance sheet financial instruments

Financial assets measured at fair value

Investment in listed equity securities

Financial assets not measured at fair value
Bank balances

Dividend and profit receivable

Security Deposit

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Payable to Management Company

Payable to trustee

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Class A
December 31, 2019 (U Jited)
Carrying amount Fair Value
Fair value through
Fair val.ue through other . At amortised cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
profit or loss comprehensive
income
(Rupees in '000)
5,999,150 - 5,999,150 5,999,150 5,999,150
222,630 - 222,630 222,630
- 5,999,150 - 5,999,150 5,999,150 222,630 6,221,780
- - 138,902 138,902
- - 5,938 5,938
- - 1,072 1,072
- - 145,912 145,912
- - 23,812 23,812
- - 706 706
- 497 497
- - 201 201
- - 25,216 25,216
Class B
December 31, 2019 (L dited)
Carrying amount Fair Value
Fair value through
Fair val.ue through other . Amortised cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
profit or loss comprehensive
income
(Rupees in '000)
2,123,998 - - 2,123,998 2,123,998 - 2,123,998
- - 2,123,998 2,123,998 - 2,123,998
- - 842,251 842,251
- - 3,028 3,028
2,715 2,715
- - 847,994 847,994
- - 11,374 11,374
- - 373 373
321 321
- - 3,624 3,624
- - 15,692 15,692
June 30, 2019 (Audited)
Class A
Carrying amount Fair Value
. Fair value Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Fair value through other
through profit e . At amortised cost
comprehensive
and loss X
income
(Rupees in '000)
- 4,556,990 - 4,556,990 4,556,990 - 4,556,990
- 4,556,990 - 4,556,990 4,556,990 - 4,556,990
- - 127,708 127,708
- - 187,264 187,264
- - 100 100
- - 315,072 315,072
- - 13,833 13,833
- - 496 496
286 286
B . 14,615 14,615
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June 30, 2019 (Audited)

Class B
Carrying amount Fair Value
Fair value Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Fair value through other
through profit 8 . At amortised cost
comprehensive
and loss .
income
On-balance sheet financial instruments (Rupees in '000)
Financial assets measured at fair value
Investment in listed equity securities 4,101,848 - - 4,101,848 4,101,848 - - 4,101,848
4,101,848 - - 4,101,848 4,101,848 - - 4,101,848

Financial assets not measured at fair value
Bank balances - - 786,197 786,197
Dividend and profit receivable - - 8,480 8,480
Security Deposit - - 2,675 2,675

797,352 797,352
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Payable to Management Company - - 12,560 12,560
Payable to trustee - - 512 512
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 114,792 114,792

127,864 127,864

The Fund has not disclosed the fair values for these financial assets and financial liabilities, as these are either short term
in nature or reprice periodically. Therefore, their carrying amounts are reasonable approximation of fair value.

13. Date of Authorisation For Issue

These condensed interim financial information were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Management
Company on February 13, 2020.
14. General

14.1 This condensed interim financial information is unaudited and has been reviewed by the auditors. Further, the figures of
this condensed interim income statement and condensed interim statement of comprehensive income for the quarters
ended December 31, 2019 have not been reviewed.

For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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FUND INFORMATION

Name of Fund

Name of Auditor

Name of Trustee

Bankers

HBL Investment Fund

Deloitte Yousuf Adil Chartered Accountants

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC)

MCB Bank Limited

JS Bank Limited

Habib Bank Limited

Soneri Bank Limited

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited
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CENTRAL DEPOSITORY COMPANY
OF PAKISTAN LIMITED -
Head Office

COC House, 99-8, Block ‘B

5.0, H.5, Main Shahra-a-Faisal
Karachi - 74400, Pakistan

Tel: (92-213 111-111-500

Fand! (92-21) 34326031 - 23

LIRL: whe, el pakastan oo

Ermall; info@cdopak.com

TRUSTEE REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS
HBL INVESTMENT FUND

Report of the Trustee pursuant to Regulation 41(h) of the Non-Banking Finance Companies
and Natified Entities Regulations, 2008

We, Central Deposttory Company of Pakistan Limited, being the Trustee of HBL Investment Fund
ithe Fund) are of the opmion that HBL Asser Management Limited, being the Management
Company of the Fund has in all materal respects managed the Fund during the six months period
ended December 31, 2019 in sccordance with the provisions of the following:

(1) Limitations imposed on the investment povers of the Management Company under the
constitutive documents of the Fund;

(i) The pricing, 1ssuarice and redemption of units are carried out in aceordance with the
requirements of the consuwtive documents of the Fund; and

(111}  The Non-Banking Finance Companies (Estehlishment and Regulations) Rules, 2003,
the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Repgulations, 2008 and the
constitotive documents af the Fund.,

A, M-

Badiuddin Akber 1"r

Chief Executive Officer

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited

Karachi, February 26, 2020
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Deloitte. I

Chartered Accountants

Cavish Court, A-35, Block T & 8
KCHSW, Shahrah-e-Faisal
Karachi-75350

Pakistan

Tel: +92 (0) 21 3434 5494-7
Fax: 97 (0) 21- 3454 1314

warrw.deloitte.com

Auditors’ report to the unit holders on review of
Condensed interim financial information

Intraduction

We have reviewed the accompanying condensed interim statement of assets and liabilities of HBL
Income Fund (the Fund) as at December 31, 2019, and the related condensed interim income
statement, condensed interim statement of other comprehensive income, condensed interim statement of
movement in unit holders’ fund, condensed interim cash flow statement and notes to the condensed
interim financial information for the half year ended December 31, 2019 (here-in-after referred to as the
‘condensed interim financial information’). HBL Asset Management Limited (the Management
Company) Is responsible for the preparation and presentation of this condensed interim financial
information in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim
financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on this condensed Interim financial
information based on our review. The figures of the condensed interim income statement and condensed
interim statement of other comprehensive income, for the guarter ended December 31, 2019 have not
been reviewed, as we are required to review only the cumulative figures for the half year ended
December 31, 2019.

Scope of Review

We conducted our review in accordance with International Standard on Review Engagements 2410,
~Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity". A review
of condensed Interim financial information consists of making inquiries, primarily of persons responsible
for financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review procedures. A review is
substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all
significant matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

Conclusion
Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying

condensed interim financlal information is not prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with
approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim financial reporting.

TRloitle) s AdL

Chartered Accouptants

Engagement Partner
Hena Sadiq

Date: February 25, 2020
Place: Karachi

Member of
Dedoltte Towche Tohmatsu Limited
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HBL Investment Fund

Condensed Interim Statement of Assets and Liabilities (Un-Audited)

As at December 31, 2019

Assets

Bank balances

Investments

Dividend receivable and accrued mark-up
Receivable against sale of equity
Advances, deposits and prepayments

Total assets

Liabilities

Payable to the Management Company

Payable to the Trustee
Payable to the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan

Payable against purchase of investment
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Redemption payable

Unclaimed dividend

Total liabilities

Net assets

Unit holders' fund (as per
statement attached)

Contingencies and commitments

Number of units in issue

Net assets value per unit

Note

December 31,2019

June 30, 2019

The annexed notes 1 to 14 form an integral part of this condensed interim financial information.

Chief Financial Officer

(Un-Audited) (Audited)
Class A Class B Total Class A Class B Total
(Rupees in '000) ------------=--------=.
a 58,946 564,992 623,938 49,550 390,621 440,171
5 2,219,918 1,485,885 3,705,803 1,619,479 2,154,419 3,773,898
2,284 2,746 5,030 61,446 4,254 65,700
- 277,779 277,779 - 21,933 21,933
771 3,256 4,026 100 3,217 3,317
2,281,918 2,334,657 4,616,575 1,730,575 2,574,444 4,305,019
6 8,518 8,048 16,566 5,304 7,099 12,403
315 296 611 259 352 611
177 200 377 2,156 2,548 4,704
. . . - 16,064 16,064
1,192 87,066 88,258 1,158 122,353 123,511
- 663,480 663,480
- 85,550 85,550 - 86,019 86,019
10,202 844,639 854,841 8,877 234,435 243,312
2,271,716 1,490,018 3,761,734 1,721,698 2,340,009 4,061,707
2,271,716 1,490,018 3,761,734 1,721,698 2,340,009 4,061,707
Number of units
284,125,000 149,634,377 284,125,000 278,335,332
(Rupees)
7.9955 9.9577 6.0597 8.4072
For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL Investment Fund
Condensed Interim Income Statement (Un-Audited)

For the half year ended December 31, 2019

Income

Capital gain/(loss) on saleof investments - net
Dividend income

Mark-up on deposits with banks

Mark-up on Government securities

Back end load income

Unrealised (loss)/gain on re-measurement of investments

classified as financial assetatfair value through profitor loss - net

Expenses

Remuneration of Management Company

Remuneration of Trustee

Annual feeto the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan

Selling & marketing expense

Allocation of expenses related to registrar services,
accounting, operation and valuation services

Securities transaction costs

Auditors' remuneration

Printing charges

Feeand subscription charges

Settlement & bank charges

Conversion expense from closed end to open end fund

Net Income/(loss) from operating activities

Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund

Net Income/(loss) for the period before taxation
Taxation

Net Income/(loss) for the period after taxatiol
Allocation of net income/(loss) for the period:

Incomealready paid on redemption of units

Accountingincome availablefor distribution:
-Relating to capital gains
- Excluding capital gains

Theannexed notes 1 to 14 forman integral partof this condensed interim financial information.

Chief Financial Officer

Half year ended Quarter ended
December 31, December, 31
2019 2018 2019 2018
Note Class A ClassB Total Class A Class B Total ClassA Class B Total Class A Class B Total
(Rupeesin'000)
8 111,692 111,699 - (41,935 (41,935, 8 138,156 138,163 - (42,638 (42,638)|
42,639 53,908 96,548 35,533 60,815 96,348 42,639 29,675 72315 35,533 30516 66,049
5,586 16,784 22371 2172 17,632 19,804 2,510 7339 9,850 1376 9,779 11,155
1,254 860 2,114 - - - 1254 860 2,114 - - -
B . . - 3344 3344 - - - - 1,109 1,109
49,487 183,245 232,732 37,705 39,856 77561 46411 176,031 222442 36,909 (1,234) 35,675
(24) 182,629 182,604 - (316,730) (316,730) (24) 304,161 304,136 - (268,438) (268,438)
49,463 365,873 415336 37,705 (276874)  (239,169) 46387 480,191 526,578 36,909 (269672)  (232,763)
19,279 21,5595 40,874 28577 31,673 60,250 11,561 11,335 22,896 13,862 15,407 29,269
1,260 1447 2,708 1,750 1,928 3,678 715 717 1433 793 874 1,667
177 200 377 1,201 1331 2,532 102 100 202 583 647 1,230
6,530 7354 13,884 5,002 5,486 10,488 3,837 3,761 7,598 2,398 2,665 5,063
2,154 2,620 4,774 1,264 1,401 2,665 823 807 1,630 613 681 1,294
- 5,752 5,752 - 2,820 2,820 - 3,583 3,583 - 1,639 1,639
124 198 322 146 159 305 51 119 170 73 80 153
- - - 28 30 58 - - - - - -
702 28 730 336 304 640 295 1 296 174 152 326
9 242 251 638 476 1114 6 231 237 636 471 1,107
- - - - 283 283 - - - - - -
30,236 39437 69,673 38,942 45,891 84,833 17,391 20,655 38,046 19,132 22,616 41,748
19,226 326436 345,663 (1,237) (322,765) (324,002) 28,995 459,536 488,532 17,777 (292,288) (274,511)
71 385] (6,529) (6913) - - - 385 (6,529) (6913) - - -
18,842 319,908 338,749 (1,237) (322,765) (324,002) 28,611 453,008 481,618 17,777 (292,288) (274,511)
9 - - - - - - - - - - - -
18,842 319,908 338,749 (1,237) (322,765) (324,002) 28,611 453,008 481,618 17,777 (292,288) (274,511)
- 109,147 109,147 - 109,147 109,147
- 188,309 188,309 - - - - 336,306 336,306 - - -
18,842 22451 41,293 - - - 28,611 7,554 36,165 - - -
18,842 210,760 229,602 - - - 28,611 343,860 372471 - - -
18,842 319,908 338,749 (1,237) (322,765) (324,002) 28,611 453,008 481,618 17,777 (292,288) (274,511)
. e
For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL Investment Fund

Condensed Interim Statement of Comprehensive Income (Un-Audited)

For the half year ended December 31, 2019

Half year ended Quarter ended
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018 2019 2018
Class A Class B Total Class A Class B Total Class A Class B Total Class A Class B Total
(Rupees in '000)
Net Income/(loss) for the period after taxation 18,842 319,908 338,749 (1,237)  (322,765)  (324,002) 28,611 453,008 481,618 17,777 (292,288)  (274,511)
Items that will not be redassified to income statement
Unrealized gain/(loss) on re-measurement of investments
classified as fair value through other comprehensive income 531,176 531,176 (397,250) (397,250) 654,333 654,333 (373,398) (373,398)

Total comprehensive loss for the period 550,018 319,908 869,925 (398,487)  (322,765)  (721,252) 682,944 453,008 1,135951 (355,621)  (292,288)  (647,909)

The annexed notes 1 to 14 forman integral part of this condensed interim financial information.

Chief Financial Officer

For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Executive Officer

Director

236



HBL Investment Fund

Condensed Interim Statement of Cash Flow (Un- Audited)

For the half year ended December 31, 2019

Note
Cash flow from operating activities
Netincome/(loss) for the period before taxation

Adjustments of non-cash items

Capital loss on sale of investment

Unrealised gain/(loss) on remeasurement of investments

classified as financial asset at fair value through profit or loss - net
Dividend income

Mark-up on deposits with banks

(Increase) / Decrease in assets
Investments

Receivable against sale of investments
Advances, deposits and prepayments

Increase / (decrease) in liabilities

Payable to Management Company

Payable to Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee
Payable to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
Payable against purchase of investment

Unclaimed dividend

Redemption payable

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Cash (used in) / generated from operations
Dividend received

Mark-up received on bank deposit

Net cash generated from operating activities
Cash flow from financing activities

Amount received on issue of units
Amount paid on redemption of units

Net cash used in financing activities

Netincreasein cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period 4

The annexed notes 1 to 14 form an integral part of this condensed interim financial information.

Half Year ended
December 31
2019 2018
Class A Class B Total Class A Class B Total
(Rupees in '000)
18,842 319,908 338,749 (1,237) (322,765) (324,002)
(8) (111,692) (111,699) - 41,935 41,935
24 (182,629) (182,604) - 316,730 316,730
(42,639) (53,908) (96,548) (35,533)  (60,815)  (96,348)
(5,586) (16,784) (22,371) (2,172)  (17,632)  (19,804)
(29,367) (45,105) (74,472) (38,942)  (42,547)  (81,489)
(69,279) 962,854 893,575 - (5,821) (5,821)
- (255,846) (255,846) - - -
(671) (39) (709) (330) (299) (629)
(69,950) 706,970 637,020 (330)  (6,120) (6,450)
3,214 949 4,163 7,054 (2,706) 4,348
56 (56) (0) 316 (73) 243
(1,979) (2,348) (4,327) 1,201 (3,973) (2,772)
- (16,064) (16,064) - 61,377 61,377
- (469) (469) - (149) (149)
- 663,480 663,480
34 (35,287) (35,253) 593 (2,132) (1,539)
1,325 610,204 611,529 9,164 52,344 61,508
(97,992) 1,272,069 1,174,076 (30,108) 3677  (26,431)
102,109 54,534 156,644 105,711 66,436 || 172,147
5,279 17,666 22,946 1,496 16,417 17,913
107,389 72,200 179,589 107,207 82,853 190,060
9396 1,344,269 1,353,666 77,099 86,530 163,629
- 6,245 6,245 - 52,510 52,510
- (1,176,143) (1,176,143) - (85,115)||  (85,115)
- (1,169,898) (1,169,898) - (32,605)  (32,605)
9,396 174,371 183,767 77,099 53,925 131,024
49,550 390,621 440,171 - 371,142 371,142
58,946 564,992 623,938 77,099 425067 502,166
For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Executive Officer Director

Chief Financial Officer
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HBL Investment Fund

Condensed Interim Statement of Movement in Unitholders’ Fund (Un-Audited)
For the half year ended December 31, 2019

Halfyear ended
December 31,
2019 2018
ClassA Class B CassA ClassB
Unrealised . Unrealised| .
o _ p Premium or| " - " f Premium "
Sl | Undisroed | Peome/ | iseof | Snerd| rora || Gl | Unditrbuted) gy || Coptel | (eumaate eome | onissueor] SR ol || DL | recumulated] ot
. certificates ossion |cerificates loss)
(Rupeesin '000)
(Rupe )
Net assetsat beginning of the period 2841250 (2221541) 1,101,989 - - 1721698 2,784,354 (444345) 2340009 2841250 (384828) 1993954 984,688 225 5435289 - - -
Transfer from premiumonissueof certificates - - - - - - - - - - 984,688 - | (984,688) - - - - -
Transfer fromgeneral reserve - . . N . - - N - - 225 - - (225) - - - -
- N N - - - 984913 (984,688)  (225)
Issueof 284,125,000 Class B units atthe timeof conversion - - - - - - - - - - (2,852,678) - - - (2,852,678) 2,841,250 11428 2852678
Issueof 810,462 units (2018:2,585,247 units)
-Capital value (atnetassetvalue per unitat - - - - - - 6814 - 6814 - - - - - - 5336 - 53,367
-Elementof loss - - - - - - (569) - (569) - - - - - - 857) - 857,
Total proceeds onissuanceof units - - - - - - 6245 - 6245 - - - - 52,510 52,510
Redemption of 129,511,416 units (2018:4,651,082 units)
- Capital value (at net assetvalue per unitatthe beginning of the period) C N - - N ~ [ 1088823 T [ (1088823) , B B , , , (85858 B (85858
-Amount paid out of element of income - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 743 - 743
Relating to netincomefor theyear after taxation 21,827 (109,147) (87,320
Total payment on redemption of units - - - - - - (1,066,996) (109,147) (1,176,143) - - - - - - (85,115) (85,115)
Total comprehensiveoss for the period - 18,842 531,176 - - 550,018 - 319908 319,908 - (1,237) (397,250} - - (398,487) - (322,765) (322,765
Distribution during the period - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Netincome for the period less distribution - 18842 531,176 - - 550,018 - 319,908 319,908 - (1,237)  (397,250) - - (398,487) - (322,765)  (322,765)
Net assetsat end of the period 2841250  (2202699) 1633165 - - 2271716 1,723603 (233585) 1490018 2841250  (2,253,830) 1,596,704 - - 2184124 2808645  (311,337) 2497308
Undistributed (loss)/income brought forward
-Realised (2,221,581) (69471) (229,448) -
~Unrealised - (374,874) (155,380) -
(2,221,581) (a42,335) (384,828) ,
Transfer from premiumon issueof certificates - 984,688
Transfer fromgeneral reserve - 225
Transferred to Class B- Segment on conversion of Func - - (2852678) 11,428
Accountingincomeavailablefor distribution:
-Relatingto capital gains 183309
- Excluding capital gains 22451
Netincome/(loss) availablefor distribution 18,842 210,760 (1,237) (322,765)
Accumulated loss carried forward (2202,699) (233585 (2,253830) (311,337)
Accumulated loss carried forward
-Realised (2202675) (416213) (2,253,830) 5393
-Unrealised (24) 182629 - (316,730)
(2,202,699) (233,5585) (2,253,830) (311,337)
{Rupees}
Netassets value per unitat beginning of the period 60597 84072 90897 100402
Net assets value per unitatend of the period 79955 99577 7.6872 88907
Theannexed notes 1 to 14 forman integral partof this condensed interimfinancial information.
NOTE: Consequent to the conversion of the Fund from a closed-end scheme to an open-end scheme with effect from July 02, 2018, disclosed dinaccordancewith of ScheduleV of the Non-Banking Finance Companies and

Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 as applicableto an open-endscherme.

Chief Financial Officer

For HBL Asset Management Limited

(Management Company

Officer

Director




HBL Investment Fund

Notes to the Condensed Interim Financial Information (Un-Audited)
For the half year ended December 31, 2019

1.1

1.2

13

14

1.5

1.6

2.1

2.1.1

STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

HBL Investment Fund was established under a Trust Deed, executed between HBL Asset Management Limited as the
Management Company and Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited as the Trustee.

The Management Company of the Fund has been registered as a Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC) under the NBFC
Rules, 2003 and has obtained the requisite license from the SECP to undertake Asset Management Services. The
registered office of the Management Company is located at 7th Floor, Emerald Tower, G-19, Block 5, Main Clifton Road,
Clifton, Karachi.

The objective of the Fund is to maximize the wealth of the unit holders by investing primarily in listed equities in the best
available opportunities, while considering acceptable risk parameters and applicable rules and regulations.

As per Regulation 65 of the NBFC Regulations, all closed end funds were required to converted into open end schemes
upon expiry of five years from November 21, 2007 i.e. by November 21, 2012. However Closed end funds whose
portfolios were frozen as a result of Consent Agreements with Government of Pakistan were allowed to be converted into
open end schemes within three months from the date of the removal of the freezing of the portfolios. Since the Fund has
Frozen Portfolio comprising shares of Pakistan State Oil Company Limited and Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited, its
conversion into an open end scheme was deferred.

The Board of the Management Company (HBL Asset Management Limited) of the Fund in its meeting held on November
23, 2017 approved the Conversion Plan (the Plan) of the fund for the conversion of the Fund into an Open End Scheme,
with the approval of the Certificate Holders of the Fund to fulfill the requirements of the merger order dated August 31,
2016. For this purpose, the Plan was presented to and approved by the Certificate Holders of the Fund in its General
Meeting dated January 10, 2018. The Plan was also approved by Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (the
Commission) on February 16, 2018.

The Replacement Trust Deed and Replacement Offering Document were approved by SECP vide its letter no.
SCD/AMCW/HIF/339/2018 dated April 18, 2018 and letter no. SCD/AMCW/HIF/398/2018 dated June 7, 2018 respectively.
As per the approved Plan, the conversion took place on July 2, 2018 and every Certificate Holder of the closed end fund

was entitled to following for each certificate held:

- One Class-A Unit of the Fund was issued to every Certificate Holders of Fund for each certificate held representing
Frozen Portfolio and related assets and liabilities.

- One Class-B Unit of the Fund was issued to the every Certificate Holder of Fund for each certificate held representing
Unfrozen Portfolio and related assets and liabilities.

The Plan also envisages that Class-A Units would not be redeemable and would be traded on the Pakistan Stock Exchange
Limited. Whereas Class-B Units can be redeemed at the redemption price.

VIS Credit Rating Company has assigned an asset manager rating of 'AM2+' (Positive outlook) to the Management
Company.

Title to the assets of the Fund is held in the name of Central Depository Company Limited as trustee of the Fund.
BASIS OF PREPERATION
Statement of compliance

This condensed interim financial information has been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards applicable in Pakistan.The acounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:
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2.1.2

2.13

2.2

2.3

3.1

3.2

33

3.4

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 along with part VIIIA of the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984; and

- Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulations) Rules, 2003 (the NBFC Rules), Non-Banking Finance
Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the NBFC Regulations) and requirement of the Trust Deed.

Wherever provisions of and directive issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations and requirements of the Trust Deed differ from the IFRS
Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules , the NBFC Regulations and requirement of the Trust Deed have been followed.

The disclosures made in this condensed interim financial information have, however, been limited based on the
requirements of IAS - 34. This condensed interim financial information does not include all the information and
disclosures required in a full set of financial statements and should be read in conjunction with the annual published
audited financial statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2019.

In compliance with Schedule V of the NBFC Regulations, the directors of the Management Company hereby declare that
this condensed interim financial information gives a true and fair view of the state of the Fund’s affairs as at December 31,
2019.

Basis of measurement

This condensed interim financial information has been prepared under the historical cost convention, except that certain
financial assets are stated at fair value.

Functional and presentation currency

This condensed interim financial information is presented in Pakistani Rupees which is the Fund's functional and
presentation currency.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING AND RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES, ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, JUDGEMENT AND
CHANGES THREREIN

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of this condensed interim financial information are consistent with
those applied in the preparation of the annual audited financial statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2019.

The preparation of this condensed interim financial information in conformity with the approved accounting standards
requires the management to make estimates, judgements and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. It also requires the management to exercise judgement in application of its accounting
policies. The estimates, judgements and associated assumptions are based on the historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimates are revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The significant judgments made by management in applying its accounting policies and the key sources of estimation
uncertainty were the same as those applied to the annual audited financial statements of the Fund for the year ended
June 30, 2019.

There are certain new and amended standards, interpretations and amendments that are mandatory for the Fund's
accounting periods beginning on or after July 01, 2018 but are considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant
effect on the Fund's operations and therefore not detailed in this condensed interim financial information.
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December 31,2019 June 30, 2018
(Un-Audited) (Audited)

Note Class A Class B Total Class A Class B Total

(Rupees in '000)
BANK BALANCES

Balances with banks in:
Savings accounts 4.1 58,946 564,992 623,938 49,550 390,621 440,171

This represents bank accounts held with different banks.Mark-up rates on these accounts range between 8.0% to 14.05%
p.a (June 30, 2019: 5.35% - 13.50% p.a).

December 31,2019 June 30, 2019
(Un-Audited) (Audited)
Note ClassA Class B Total Class A Class B Total

INVESTMENTS

At fair value through
profit or loss

- Listed equity securities 5.1 - 1,485,885 1,485,885 - 2,154,419 2,154,419
Government securities 5.2 69,263 - 69,263 - -

At fair value through
other comprehensive

- Listed equity securities 5.3 2,150,655 - 2,150,655 1,619,479 1,619,479
2,219,918 1,485,885 3,705,803 1,619,479 2,154,419 3,773,898

Listed euity securities - At fair value through profit or loss

Shares of listed companies - Fully paid up ordinary shares of Rs 10 each unless otherwise stated.

Number of Shares Market value Market value as a percentage Par value as a
as at December of percentage of
Name of investee company As at :ur.cha:re‘s Bonus Sales during b As:t 31 31, 201!.! Total Net |ss:ec! capital of
July 01, 2019 unn'g € issue the period ecemoer 31, (Rupees in Investments Assets the investee
period 2019 '000) company
CLASS B
TRANSPORT
Pakistan National Shipping Corp Ltd 75,500 217,500 - 62,000 231,000 21,698 1.46% 1.46% 0.17%
75,500 217,500 - 62,000 231,000 21,698
Aut bile Parts and A ies
Thal Limited (Par value Rs. 5 per share) 217,800 79,000 - 186,100 110,700 37,442 2.52% 2.51% 0.14%
217,800 79,000 - 186,100 110,700 37,442
PAPER & BOARD
Century Paper & Board Mills Ltd 150,000 98,500 - 73,500 175,000 8,869 0.60% 0.60% 0.12%
150,000 98,500 - 73,500 175,000 8,869
Chemicals
Engro Polymer & Chemicals Ltd 1,726,462 1,154,000 - 1,763,000 1,117,462 37,111 2.50% 2.49% 0.12%
Lotte Chemical Pakistan Ltd 786,000 1,538,500 - 2,324,500 - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Sitara Chemical Industries Limited 17,900 48,300 - - 66,200 19,758 1.33% 1.33% 0.31%
2,530,362 2,740,800 - 4,087,500 1,183,662 56,869
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Number of Shares

Market value

Market value as a percentage

Par value as a

as at December of percentage of
Name of investee company As at Pur.chases Bonus Sales during As at 31, 201? Total Net |ssuec! capital of
during the . . December 31, (Rupees in the investee
July 01, 2019 N issue the period Investments Assets
period 2019 '000) company
Cement
Kohat Cement Ltd 204,500 77,500 - 190,000 92,000 7,121 0.48% 0.48% 0.07%
Lucky Cement Ltd 156,700 140,000 - 157,500 139,200 59,633 4.01% 4.00% 0.04%
Maple Leaf Cement Factory Ltd - 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
361,200 1,217,500 - 1,347,500 231,200 66,754
Commercial Banks
Allied Bank Ltd 729,600 96,000 - 453,700 371,900 35,554 2.39% 2.39% 0.03%
BankAl-Falah Ltd 2,662,650 823,500 - 1,172,000 2,314,150 105,757 7.12% 7.10% 0.15%
BankAl-Habib Limited 1,018,500 516,500 - 758,500 776,500 59,138 3.98% 3.97% 0.07%
Bank of Punjab Ltd 5,028,000 2,926,000 - 4,577,000 3,377,000 38,261 2.57% 2.57% 0.64%
Faysal Bank Limited 18,000 - - - 18,000 342 0.02% 0.02% 0.00%
Habib Bank Ltd 1,002,700 318,800 - 1,085,400 236,100 37,167 2.50% 2.49% 0.02%
MCB Bank Ltd 346,800 240,500 - 456,600 130,700 26,786 1.80% 1.80% 0.01%
National Bank of Pakistan Ltd 548,500 1,196,000 - 787,000 957,500 41,460 2.79% 2.78% 0.05%
United Bank Limited 637,000 313,700 - 459,000 491,700 80,885 5.44% 5.43% 0.04%
11,991,750 6,431,000 - 9,749,200 8,673,550 425,349
Engineering
Aisha Steel Mills Limited - Preference Shares 130,000 - - - 130,000 1,430 0.10% 0.10% 0.29%
Aisha Steel Mills Limited - Conv Cum Pref Shares 1,065,000 - - - 1,065,000 45,795 3.08% 3.07% 36.58%
International Steels Limited - 199,000 - 134,000 65,000 3,763 0.25% 0.25% 0.01%
1,195,000 199,000 - 134,000 1,260,000 50,988
Fertilizer
Engro Corporation Ltd 538,700 128,600 - 437,000 230,300 79,511 5.35% 5.34% 0.04%
Engro Fertilizers Limited 1,172,000 520,500 - 1,179,000 513,500 37,706 2.54% 2.53% 0.04%
Fauji Fertilizer Co Ltd 777,500 525,500 - 1,014,500 288,500 29,274 1.97% 1.96% 0.02%
2,488,200 1,174,600 - 2,630,500 1,032,300 146,491
Insurance
Adamjee Insurance Co Ltd 623,500 292,500 - 408,000 508,000 21,382 1.44% 1.43% 0.15%
TPLInsurance Limited 689 535,500 - - 536,189 13,764 0.93% 0.92% 0.71%
624,189 828,000 - 408,000 1,044,189 35,146
0il and Gas Exploration Companies
Mari Petroleum Company Ltd 146,948 13,960 10,718 109,220 62,406 81,758 5.50% 5.49% 0.06%
Oil & Gas Development Co Ltd 1,290,900 290,000 - 846,700 734,200 104,491 7.03% 7.01% 0.02%
Pakistan Oilfields Ltd 237,560 46,500 - 168,200 115,860 51,757 3.48% 3.47% 0.05%
Pakistan Petroleum Ltd 878,705 647,500 149,141 968,000 707,346 97,005 6.53% 6.51% 0.04%
2,554,113 997,960 159,859 2,092,120 1,619,812 335,012
Oil & Gas Marketing Companies
Pakistan State Oil Company Ltd 484,360 237,300 65,032 553,200 233,492 44,746 3.01% 3.00% 0.07%
Sui Northern Gas Pipeline Ltd 484,500 174,000 - 269,500 389,000 29,630 1.99% 1.99% 0.06%
968,860 411,300 65,032 822,700 622,492 74,377
Pharmaceuticals
AGP Limited 209,500 158,500 - 218,000 150,000 14,903 1.00% 1.00% 0.01%
Highnoon Laboratories Limited 16,500 51,000 - 26,200 41,300 22,189 1.49% 1.49% 0.00%
The Searle Company Ltd 76,996 76,000 - 75,000 77,996 14,721 0.99% 0.99% 0.04%
302,996 285,500 - 319,200 269,296 51,812
Power Generation and Distribution
Hub Power Company Ltd 1,789,409 420,500 - 1,323,000 886,909 82,793 5.57% 5.56% 0.07%
K-Electric Limited 5,572,000 1,055,000 - 2,996,500 3,630,500 15,865 1.07% 1.06% 0.01%
Nishat Chunian Power Ltd 581,000 - - 581,000 - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Pakgen Power Limited 832,000 75,000 - 907,000 - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
8,774,409 1,550,500 - 5,807,500 4,517,409 98,658
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5.1.1

5.1.2

5.2

Number of Shares Market value Market value as a percentage Par value as a
as at December of percentage of
Name of investee company As at Pur.chases Bonus sales during As at 31, 201? Total Net |ssued. capital of
during the . . December 31, (Rupees in the investee
July 01, 2019 N issue the period Investments Assets
period 2019 '000) company
Textile
Sunshine Cloth* 50,000 - - - 50,000 0 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Mobhib Textile* 40,820 - - - 40,820 0 0.00% 0.00% 0.27%
GulAhmed Textile Mills Ltd - 1,019,000 - 406,500 612,500 26,405 1.78% 1.77% 0.17%
Interloop Limited 799,642 219,500 - 675,000 344,142 19,977 1.34% 1.34% 3.96%
Kohinoor Textile Mills Ltd 400,000 - - 400,000 - - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Nishat Mills Ltd 543,500 398,500 - 659,000 283,000 30,038 2.02% 2.02% 0.08%
1,833,962 1,637,000 - 2,140,500 1,330,462 76,420
Glass & Ceramics
Tariq Glass Industries Ltd - 88,500 - 88,500 - - - 0.00%
88,500 - 88,500
Technology & Communication
Systems Limited - 50,000 - 50,000 - - 0.00% 0.00%
50,000 - 50,000
Total - As at December 31, 2019 (Un-audited) 34,068,341 18,006,660 224,891 29,998,820 22,301,072 1,485,885
Total - As at June 30, 2019 (Audited) 30,583,317 29,282,266 567,333 23,364,575 34,068,341 2,154,419
Cost at 31 December 2019 1,303,256

*Suspended/Delisted Companies

**Sponsors of Management Company

Investments include shares having market value aggregating to Rs: 165.425m (June 30, 2019 : Rs160.870m) that have
been pledged with National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited for guaranteeing settlement of the Funds's trades in
terms of Circular No. 11 dated October 23, 2007 issued by SECP.

These investments include gross bonus shares as per Fund’s entitlement declared by the investee companies. Finance Act,
2014 has brought amendments in the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 whereby the bonus shares received by the
shareholder are to be treated as income and a tax at the rate of 5 percent is to be applied on value of bonus shares
determined on the basis of day end price on the first day of closure of books. The tax is to be collected at source by the
investee company which shall be considered as final discharge of tax liability on such income. However, the Management
Company of the Fund jointly with other asset management companies and Mutual Fund Association of Pakistan (MUFAP),
has filed a petition in Sindh High Court to declare the amendments brought in Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 with reference
to tax on bonus shares for collective investment schemes as null and void and not applicable on the funds based on the
premise of exemption given to mutual funds under clause 99 of Part | of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001. The Sindh High Court has granted stay order till the final outcome of the case. However, the investee
company(s) has withheld the share equivalent to 5% of bonus announcement of the Fund having aggregate fair market
value of Rs. 0.457 million at December 31, 2019 (June 30, 2019: Rs.0.415m) and not yet deposited in CDC account of
department of Income tax. Management is of the view that the decision will be in the favor and accordingly has recorded
the bonus shares on gross basis at fair value in its investments at period end.

Investment in government securities - 'at fair value through profit or loss'

Class A
Face value Market Market Market
As at value as at value as a value as a
Issue date Tenor As at Purchases December 31, percentage
July 01, during the | Sales / matured during the perio 2019 December 31, [ percentage o of total
2019 period 2019 net assets investments
Rup in '000.
24-Oct-19 3 Months - 70,000 70,000 -
07-Nov-19 3 Months - 70,000 - 70,000 69,263 3.05% 3.12%
Total as at December 31, 2019 - 140,000 70,000 70,000 69,263
Carrying value as at 'December 31, 2019 69,287
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5.3

5.2.1

5.2.2

Class B

Face value Market
Market Market arke
As at Purchases Asat value as at value as a value as a
Issue date Tenor December 31, ercentage
July 01, during the | Sales / matured during the perio 2019 December 31, | percentage of P of totalg
2019 period 2019 net assets .
investments
Rupees in '000-
07-Nov-19 3 Months - 50,000 50,000
24-Oct-19 3 Months - 70,000 70,000
Total as at December 31, 2019 - 120,000 120,000

Carrying value at 'December 31, 2019

Shares of listed companies - Fully paid up ordinary shares of Rs 10 each unless otherwise stated.

Number of Shares Market value | Market value afs apercentage| :::c:zltu;:soaf
as at Dec 31, o . ©
Name of investee company As at Purchases B Sales duri As at Total Net issued capital of
s a during the .onus ales urlng Dec31, 20:I..9.(Rupees otal e the investee
July 1, 2019 period issue the period 2019 in '000) Investments Assets company
Class A
0il and Gas Marketing Companies
Sui Northern Gas Pipeline Limited 2,488,024 - - - 2,488,024 189,513 8.54% 8.34% 0.39%
Pakistan State Oil Company Limited 8,527,893 1,705,578 - 10,233,471 1,961,142 88.34% 86.33% 3.14%
Total - As at December 31, 2019 (Unaudited) 11,015,917 - 1,705,578 - 12,721,495 2,150,655
Total - As at June 30, 2019 (Audited) 9,594,602 - 1,421,315 - 11,015,917 1,619,479
Cost at 31 December 2019 517,492

The above mentioned shares of Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited and Pakistan State Oil Company Limited are
frozen/blocked by an order of the Government of Pakistan (GoP) as the same form part of a strategic shareholding under
the control of the GoP. As a result, the Fund is restricted from selling, transferring, encumbering or otherwise disposing
of or dealing with any interest in the said shares, including any future bonus / right shares in respect thereof.
Consequently, the exposure limit mentioned in regulation 55 of the NBFC Regulations, 2008 does not apply to the above
frozen shares.

These investments include gross bonus shares as per Fund’s entitlement declared by the investee companies. Finance Act,
2014 has brought amendments in the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 whereby the bonus shares received by the
shareholder are to be treated as income and a tax at the rate of 5 percent is to be applied on value of bonus shares
determined on the basis of day end price on the first day of closure of books. The tax is to be collected at source by the
investee company which shall be considered as final discharge of tax liability on such income. However, the Management
Company of the Fund jointly with other asset management companies and Mutual Fund Association of Pakistan (MUFAP),
has filed a petition in Sindh High Court to declare the amendments brought in Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 with reference
to tax on bonus shares for collective investment schemes as null and void and not applicable on the funds based on the
premise of exemption given to mutual funds under clause 99 of Part | of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001. The Sindh High Court has granted stay order till the final outcome of the case. However, the investee
company(s) has withheld the share equivalent to 5% of bonus announcement of the Fund having aggregate fair market
value of Rs. 16.342 million at December 31, 2019 (June 30, 2019: Rs. 12.054m) and not yet deposited on CDC account of
department of Income tax. Management is of the view that the decision will be in the favor and accordingly has recorded
the bonus shares on gross basis at fair value in its investments at period end.
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7.1

7.2

December 31,2019 June 30,2019

(Un-Audited) (Audited)
Class A Class B Total Class A ClassB Total
PAYABLE TO MANAGEMENT COMPANY  emeeemeememeeeeeeeees (Rupees in '000)
Management fee 3,868 3,541 7,409 2,944 3,944 6,888
Sindh Sales Tax 503 460 963 383 513 896
Allocation of expenses relating to registrar services,
accounting, operation and valuation services 311 285 596 147 197 344

Selling & marketing payable 3,836 3,761 7,597 1,830 2,445 4,275

8,518 8,048 16,566 5,304 7,099 12,403

December 31,2019 June 30, 2018
(Un-Audited) (Audited)
Class A Class B Total Class A Class B Total
ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES
Note ~ = e (Rupees in '000)

Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund 7.1 1,018 27,604 28,622 634 21,075 21,709
Provision for Federal Excise Duty 7.2 - 55,961 55,961 0 55,961 55,961
Printing charges 3 - 3 18 - 18
Auditors remuneration 146 173 319 217 239 456
Security transaction charges - 1,860 1,860 - 1,249 1,249
Withholding tax payable 25 296 321 289 404 693
Payableto class A - - - 42,284 42,284
Other payable - 1,172 1,172 - 1,141 1,141

1,192 87,066 88,258 1,158 122,353 123,511

PROVISION FOR SINDH WORKERS' WELFARE FUND

The legal status of applicability of Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund (SWWF) is the same as that disclosed in note 12.2 to the
annual audited financial statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2019.

As there is income for half year ended December 31, 2019, a provision of Rs 1.018 million and 27.604 million of Class A
and Class B respectively for SWWF has been recognised in this condensed interim financial information. Had the provision
not been retained, NAV per certificate of the Fund as at December 31, 2019 would have been higher by Rs. 0.0036 for
Class A and Rs 0.1845 for Class B per unit (June 30, 2019: 0.00223 for Class A and 0.0757 for Class B per unit).

The legal status of applicability of Federal Excise Duty on the Fund is the same as that disclosed in note 12.1 to the annual
audited financial statements of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the appeal which was filed by tax
authorities against the order by the Supreme Court of Pakistan dated July 16, 2016, is pending for decision.

In view of the above, the Management Company, being prudent, is carrying provision for FED for the period from January
13, 2013 to June 30, 2016 aggregating to Rs. 55.961 million. Had the provision not been retained, NAV per certificate of
the Fund as at December 31, 2018 would have been higher by Rs. 0.374 per certificate (June 30, 2019: 0.201 per
certificate) of class B.

Contingencies & Commitments

There were no contigencies and commitment as at December 31,2019.
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10.

11.

TAXATION

The income of the Fund is exempt from tax under clause 99 of Part 1 of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001, subject to the condition that not less than 90 percent of its accounting income for the year, as reduced
by the capital gains whether realised or unrealised, is distributed among its unit holders in cash.The Fund is also exempt
from the provision of Section 113 (minimum tax) under Clause 11A of Part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001. The Fund has not recorded a tax liability in respect of income relating to the current period as the
Management Company intends to distribute more than 90 percent of the Fund's accounting income for the period as
reduced by capital gains (whether realised or unrealised) to its unit holders.

TOTAL EXPENSES RATIO

In accordance with the directive 23 of 2016 dated July 20, 2016 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan (SECP), the total expense ratio of the Fund for the period ended December 31, 2019 is 1.74% and 2.31% which
includes 0.16% and 0.50% representing government levy and SECP fee of the Class A and Class B respectively (2018: 1.55%
and 1.65% which includes 0.18% and 0.20% representing government levy and SECP fee of the Class A and Class B
respectively.)

TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH CONNECTED PERSONS

Connected persons include HBL Asset Management Limited being the Management Company, Habib Bank Limited being
the Sponsor, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, being the Trustee of the Fund, other collective investment
schemes managed by the Management Company, directors and officers of the Management Company, directors of
connected persons and persons having 10% or more beneficial ownership of the units of the Fund.

Transactions with connected persons are in the normal course of business, at contracted rates and terms determined in
accordance with market rates.

Remuneration payable to Management Company and Trustee is determined in accordance with the provisions of the
NBFC Regulations and the Trust Deed respectively.
Details of the transactions with connected persons and balances with them are as follows:

Half Year Ended
December 31,

2019 2018

Class A Class B Total Class A Class B Total
Transactions during the period e Rupees in '000 ------
HBL Asset Management Limited
Remuneration of Management Company 17,061 19,110 36,172 25,289 28,030 53,319
Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of Management Company 2,218 2,484 4,702 3,288 3,644 6,932
Reimbursement of fund Operations, accounting and Related costs 2,154 2,620 4,774 1,264 1401 2,665
Selling and marketing 6,530 7,354 13,884 5,002 5,486 10,488
Habib Bank Limited - Sponsor
Dividend income - 1,917 1,917 - 1,809 1,809
Mark-up on deposits with banks - 18 18 - 15 15
MCB Bank Limited
Dividend Income - 2,703 2,703 - 5,856 5,856
Mark-up on deposits with banks 7 - 7 39 3,751 3,791
Central Depository Company of Pakistan
Limited - Trustee
Trustee fee 1,260 1,447 2,708 1,750 1,928 3,678
CDC connection charges 387 222 609 - 195 195
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Balances outstanding at the year end

HBL Asset Management Limited

Payable to the Management Company

Sindh Sales tax payable on remuneration to management company
Finance and operational cost

Selling and marketing expense

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee

Trustee fee payable
Security deposit held
CDC Charges Payable

MCB Bank Limited

Connected Person Due to Holding more than 10% units)

Bank balance
Mark-up on bank deposit receivable

Outstanding units:66,090,021 (2019: 66,090,021) units
Outstanding units: Nil units (2019: 66,090,021) units

Related to units of the Fund

Habib Bank Limited - Sponsor

Outstanding units :48,662,161 (2019: 48,662,161) units
Outstanding units :48,662,161 (2019:48,662,161) units
Bank Balance

Jubilee General Insurance Company Limited

Outstanding units:107,379 (2019: 100,379)units
Outstanding units:100,379 (2019: 100,379)units

Jubilee General Insurance Company Limited
Staff Provident Fund Trust

Outstanding units:118,454 (2019: 118,454) units
Outstanding units:118,454 (2019: 118,454) units
Jubilee General Insurance Company Limited
Gratuity Fund Trust

Outstanding units:224,000 (2019: 224,000) units
Outstanding units:224,000 (2019: 224,000) units

Aga Khan University Employees Provident Fund Trust

Outstanding units:588,000 (2019: 588,000) units

Aga Khan University Employees Gratuity Fund Trust

Outstanding units:138,000 (2019: 138,000) units

Directors and Executives of the Management Company

Outstanding units:26,195 (2018: 26,195) units
Outstanding units: 226,195 (2019: 26,195) units

December 31,2019

Class A

3,868
503
311

3,836

315
100

129

660,900

486,621

1,004

1,184

2,240

5,880

1,380

262

(Un-Audited)
Class B

Total

------ Rupees in '000 ------

3,541
460
285

3,761

296
200
37

484,563
432

1,000

1,180

2,231

2,252

7,409
963
596

7,597

611
300
37

129

660,900

486,621
484,563
432

1,004
1,000

1,184
1,180

2,240
2,231

5,880

1,380

262
2,252

Class A

2,944
383
147

1,830

259
100

122

660,900

486,621

1,004

1,184

2,240

5,880

1,380

262

June 30, 2019
(Audited)
Class B

3,944
513
197

2,445

316
200
36

175,935
707

555,632

409,112
415

844

996

1,883

220

Total

6,888
896
344

4,275

575
300
36

176,057
707

660,900
555,632

486,621
409,112
415

1,004
844

1,184
996

2,240
1,883

5,880

1,380

262
220
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12,

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. Consequently, differences can arise between carrying values and

the fair value estimates.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Fund is a going concern without any intention or
requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction on adverse terms.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities traded in active markets are based on the quoted market prices at the close
of trading on the period end date. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Fund is current bid price.

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from
an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and

regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

The Fund classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in
making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

- Fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1);

Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) (level 2); and

Inputs for assets or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e. unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their
levels in the fair value hierarchy.

Class A
December 31,2019 (Un-audited)
Carrying amount Fair Value
Fair value Fair value through
through profit other . Atamortised ~ Other f{napfl?l Total Levell  Level2 Level3 Total
or loss comprehensive cost assets / liabilities
income
(Rupees in '000)
On-balance sheet financial instruments
Financial assets measured at fair value
Investments - Listed equity securities - 2,150,655 - - 2,150,655 2,150,655 - - 2,150,655
Investments-Government securities 69,263 - - - 69,263 - 69,263 - 69,263
69,263 2,150,655 - - 2,219,918 2,150,655 69,263 - 2,219,918
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Bank balances - - - 58,946 58,946
Dividend and Profit receivable - - - 2,284 2,284
Advances and security deposit - 771 771
62,000 62,000
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Payable to Management Company - - 8,518 8,518
Payable to Trustee - - 315 315
Payable to Securities and Exchange Comission Of Pakistan - - 177 177
Payable against purchase of investment - -

Accrued expenses and other liabilities - - 149 149
Unclaimed Dividend - -

9,159 9,159
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Class B

December 31,2019 (Un-audited)

Carrying amount

Fair Value

Fair value through

Fair value . :
through profit other . Atamortised  Other ﬁ.naplu?l Total Levell Level2 Level3 Total
oF loss comprehensive cost assets / liabilities
income
(Rupees in '000)
On-balance sheet financial instruments
Financial assets measured at fair value
Investments - Listed equity securities 1,485,885 - - 1,485,885 1,485,885 - - 1,485,885
1,485,885 - - 1,485,885 1,485,885 - - 1,485,885
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Bank balances - - 564,992 564,992
Dividend and Profit receivable ° ) 2,746 2,746
Advances and security deposit - - 2,738 2,738
- - 570,476 570,476
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Payable to Management Company - 8,048 8,048
Payable to Trustee - 296 296
Payable to Securities and Exchange Comission of Pakistan - 200 200
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - 3,205 3,205
Unclaimed Dividend - 85,550 85,550
- 97,299 97,299
Class A
June 30, 2019(Audited)
Carrying amount Fair Value
Fair value Fair value
through profit through othgr Atamortised  Other flpaqc!ql Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
or loss comprehensive cost assets / liabilities
income
(Rupees in '000)
On-balance sheet financial instruments
Financial assets measured at fair value
Investments - Listed equity securities - 1,619,479 - 1,619,479 1,619,479 R - 1,619,479
- 1,619,479 - 1,619,479 1,619,479 - - 1,619,479
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Bank balances - - 49,550 49,550
Dividend and Profit receivable ) ) 61446 61446
- - 110,996 110,996
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Payable to Management Company - 5,304 5,304
Payable to Trustee - 259 259
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - 235 235
- 5,798 5,798

The Fund has not disclosed the fair values for these financial assets and financial liabilities,as these are either short term in nature or reprice periodically. Therefore, their carryingamounts

arereasonable approximation of fair value.

249



Class B
June 30, 2019(Audited)

Carrying amount Fair Value
Fair value Fair value
through profit through othgr Atamortised  Other f'?a’TC!"’.' Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
or loss comprehensive cost assets / liabilities
income
(Rupees in '000)

On-balance sheet financial instruments
Financial assets measured at fair value
Investments - Listed equity securities 2,154,419 - - - 2,154,419 2,154,419 R - 2,154,419

2,154,419 - - - 2,154,419 2,154,419 - - 2,154,419
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Bank balances - - - 390,621 390,621
Dividend and Profit receivable 4,254 4,254

394,875 394,875

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Payable to Management Company - - 7,099 7,099
Payable to Trustee - - 352 352
Payable against purchase of investment - - 16,064 16,064
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - - 44,913 44,913

Unclaimed Dividend

68,428 68,428

The Fund has not disclosed the fair values for these financial assets and financial liabilities,as these are either short term in nature or reprice periodically. Therefore, their carryingamounts
arereasonable approximation of fair value.

13. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE
This condensed interim financial information was authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Management
company on February 13, 2020.

14. GENERAL

14.1 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thounsand Rupees.

14.2 Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever necessary, for better presentation and
disclosure.No significant rearrangement or reclassification was made in these financial statements during the current
year.

14.3 This condensed interim financial information is unaudited and has been reviewed by the auditors. Further, the figures of
these condensed interim income statement and condensed interim statement of comprehensive income for the quarter
ended December 31, 2018 have not been reviewed.

For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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